
 

 
PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD 

 
Wednesday, June 19, 2019 
Meeting Opening 5:30 p.m. 
Closed Session 5:32 p.m. 
Public Session 7:00 p.m.  
Adjournment 9:00 p.m. 

 
Board Conference Room 24 
Schaefer Elementary School 
(closed &  public session) 
1370 San Miguel 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
 

A G E N D A 
 

A copy of the agenda, complete with backup materials, may be reviewed in the District Office, 3450 Coffey Lane, Santa Rosa, 
beginning the Monday prior to the Wednesday Board Meeting.  Office hours are from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday 
or as otherwise posted.  Agendas are always posted at each school, the District Office, the Board/Conference Room 24 and on our 
web site at www.pousd.org.   
ADA Compliance: In compliance with Government Code § 54954.2(a), the Piner-Olivet Union School District, will, on request, make 
this agenda available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the American with 
Disabilities Acts of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals 
who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to participate 
in the meeting should contact Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary to the Superintendent, Piner-Olivet Union School District, 3450 
Coffey Lane, Santa Rosa, CA 95403 (707) 522-3000 or email cmanno@pousd.org at least two days before the meeting date. 

www.pousd.org 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
2.  ROLL CALL 
3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
4.  ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 
5.  CLOSED SESSION 

Adjournment to Closed Session during this meeting to consider and/or take action upon any of the following items: 
5.1 With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to 
      Gov. Code Section 54957: 
 5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 

                    (No additional information required) 
 5.1.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT 

                (No additional information required) 
 5.1.3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

               Title:  Superintendent 
5.2 With respect to every item of business to be discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section  
          54957.6: 
 5.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
          Name of Agency Negotiator: Carmen Diaz-French 
          Name of organization representing employees: Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association, CTA Affiliate 
 5.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
           Name of Agency Negotiator: Carmen Diaz-French  

              Name of organization representing employees: Piner-Olivet Classified Association, CSEA Affiliate.  
 5.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 

                Name of Agency Negotiator: Carmen Diaz-French   
                Name of organization representing employees: Confidential, Supervisory, Administrative Staff 
 
6.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING 
7.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY 
8.  BOARD POLICIES 
      8.1 AR/E 6152 Student Placement 

The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of AR/E 6152 Class Assignment (Formerly 
called Student Placement) (Attachment 1) (Pgs. 3-6) 

 

1



 
 
 
9.  ACTION ITEMS 

9.1    Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Federal Addendum for 
the Piner-Olivet Union School District 
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of the LCAP and Federal 
Addendum  for the Piner-Olivet Union School District.   (Action 1) (Pgs. 7-179) 

9.2    Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Federal Addendum for 
Olivet Elementary  Charter School  
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of the LCAP and Federal 
Addendum  for Olivet Elementary  Charter School.   (Action 2) (Pgs. 180-348) 

9.3    Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Federal Addendum for 
Schaefer Charter School 
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of the LCAP and Federal 
Addendum  for Schaefer Charter School.   (Action 3) (Pgs. 349-512) 

 9.4   Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Federal Addendum for 
Northwest Prep Charter School 
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of the LCAP and Federal 
Addendum  for Northwest Prep Charter School.   (Action 4) (Pgs. 513-680) 

 9.5 Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Federal Addendum for 
the Piner-Olivet Charter School 
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of the LCAP and Federal 
Addendum for the Piner-Olivet Charter School.   (Action 5) (Pgs. 681-831) 

 9.6 Approval of the 2019-2020 Budget for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter 
School, Schaefer Charter School, Northwest Prep Charter School, and the Piner-Olivet Charter 
School 
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of the 2019-2020 Budget for 
the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School, Schaefer Charter School, 
Northwest Prep Charter School and the Piner-Olivet Charter School.   (Action 6)  
(Pgs. 832-955) 

10.  CONSENT ITEMS 
All matters listed under “consent items” are considered by the Board to be routine and will be enacted upon in one motion. The public has a right to comment 
on any consent item.  At the request of any member of the Board, during “agenda modifications” any item on the consent agenda shall be removed and given 
individual consideration for action as a regular agenda item.  Members of the public may request the Board to place a “consent item” on the regular agenda 
during “agenda modifications.” 

10.1  Approval of Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of  June 5, 2019 (Consent 1)  
(Pgs. 956-959) 
10.2  Approval of 2019-2020 Consolidated Application, District, Olivet, Schaefer, POCS, 
and NWP  (Consent 2) (Pgs. 960-1016) 

  
11.  ADJOURNMENT 

2



8.1 
BOARD POLICY 
Review and Approval 

@ June 19, 2019 
Special Board Meeting 

 
  AR/E 6152 Class Assignment (Formerly called Student Placement) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policies are available for review at the  
Piner-Olivet District Office 

3450 Coffey Lane 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 

3



Piner-Olivet Union SD 

Administrative Regulation 
Student Placement  
Class Assignment 
 
AR 6152  
Instruction 
 
 
Site Administrator shall attempt to arrange class enrollment to provide grade level and district 
classroom enrollment balance when and where feasible as long as the best interest of the student 
is observed in the process. 
 
To help reach this goal the Governing Board requires its Site Administrators to observe the 
following procedures: 
 
1. New students are temporarily placed if not in attendance at a district school before June 1 
 
2. New students are assigned to a district school and classroom based on the criteria 
outlined in BP 6152.  If there is a discrepancy of more than four in any class at a given grade 
level in the district, new students will be placed in the smaller class. 
 
3. Classroom teachers shall receive a class roster before class lists are posted. 
 
4. Students assigned to a school outside of their attendance area are placed on a waiting list 
to attend the school in their attendance area. 
 
5. Once a student begins instruction at a school outside of their attendance area, they may 
continue to do so in the future. 
 
6. Any changes in class assignments required to fulfill the intent of this policy to balance 
student enrollment districtwide, will be completed by the end of the second week of school. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Regulation PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
approved:  June 26, 2006 Santa Rosa, California 

4



 
Exhibit 
Student Placement 
Class Assignment 
 
E 6152  
Instruction 
 
 
PLEASE SEE DISTRICT MATERIAL IN THE 
DISTRICT OFFICE FOR THE ENGLISH AND SPANISH 
VERSION OF EXHIBIT 6152 ENTITLED: 
"PARENT STATEMENT OF STUDENT NEED FORM" 
 
 
 
Exhibit PINER-OLIVET UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
version:  June 26, 2006 Santa Rosa, California 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
E(2) 6152 
 
STUDENT PLACEMENT 
CLASS ASSIGNMENT 
 
 
CHANGE OF TEACHER REQUEST FORM 
FORM B 
 
Name of Student  Grade  
 
Name of Parent  Date  
 
Teacher  
 
Check box when completed. 
 
__ I attended the Back to School Night activities and heard my child's teacher's complete 
presentation. 
 
__ Has there been a parent/guardian/teacher conference?  Yes__ No__ Date?  
 
__ Briefly describe the outcome of the parent/guardian/teacher conference.  
   
   
   
   

5



 
__ Has there been a teacher/parent/guardian follow-up after the parent/guardian/teacher 
conference? Yes__   No__ 
 
If at this time, you, as a parent/guardian, are not satisfied with your child's placement, please 
state the specific reasons or circumstances as to why you recommend a class/teacher change.  
Attach a separate page if you need more for your response. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
Parent/Guardian Signature  Date  
 
Staff comments regarding placement  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
version:  June 26, 2006 Santa Rosa, California 

6



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
  

Action Item:  9.1 Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum for the 
Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 
Special Meeting of:  June 19, 2019      Action Item Report Format: Oral 
Attachment:  Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP)  and LCAP Federal Addendum          
 
Background 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) legislation was signed into law by the Governor and 
took effect on July 1, 2013. Under the LCFF, school districts are required to develop, adopt, and 
annually update a three-year Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), beginning on July 1, 
2014. According to Ed Code 52060, school districts are required to consult with staff, students, 
parents, and the community in developing the LCAP.  
 
The final District/Jack London LCAP includes a description of the stakeholder engagement 
process, goals, actions and services for all students as well as subgroups. 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP in order to ensure that eligible 
LEAs will meet the LEA Plan Provisions of the ESSA.  The LCAP Addendum must be submitted 
to the CDE to apply for ESSA funding.    
 
Plan 
Prior to approval of the budget under LCFF, a draft of the LCAP and the budget must be 
presented for public hearing.  That occurred at the June 5, 2019 Board Meeting.  Both the LCAP 
and the budget are to be adopted at a subsequent meeting.  There have been minimal changes 
made to the District/Jack London LCAP from the Public Hearing version. 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum answers the required questions from the state.  This Federal 
Addendum must be approved by the board and submitted to the state by July 1, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
Expenditures outlined in the LCAP 
 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt the District/Jack London LCAP and Federal Addendum as presented 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Motion: 
 
Moved by:  Second: 
Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent: 
FRANICEVIC       HINTON           MOHR               PRYOR  WAY 
 

7



Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)  
Federal Addendum Template 
 

LEA Name 
Piner-Olivet Union School District         

 

CDS Code: 
49 70870 0101253         

 

Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 

 
 

For which ESSA programs apply to your LEA? 
 
Choose From: 
 
X TITLE I, PART A 

Improving Basic Programs Operated by  
State and Local Educational Agencies        

X TITLE II, PART A 
Supporting Effective Instruction        

X TITLE III, PART A  
Language Instruction for English Learners  
and Immigrant Students        

X TITLE IV, PART A 
Student Support and Academic  
Enrichment Grants        

 
(note: This list only includes ESSA programs with LEA plan 
requirements; not all ESSA programs.) 
 

 
 
 

In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 
 

8



 
Instructions 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs have the 
opportunity to meet the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the ESSA.  

The LCAP Federal Addendum Template must be completed and submitted to the California 
Department of Education (CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are encouraged to review the LCAP 
Federal Addendum annually with their LCAP, as ESSA funding should be considered in yearly strategic 
planning.  

The LEA must address the Strategy and Alignment prompts provided on the following page.  

Each provision for each program must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA.  

In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template.  

Under State Priority Alignment, state priority numbers are provided to demonstrate where an ESSA 
provision aligns with state priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in determining where ESSA provisions 
may already be addressed in the LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support the state 
priorities. 

The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA funds 
are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are 
encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic 
planning of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff 
will evaluate the LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. 
LEAs will be asked to clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 

California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in 
support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs with the opportunity 
to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved 
students. 

The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their federally-
funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  

LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning process supports 
continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement.  

Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for making 
the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local programs as 
described in the LEA’s LCAP. 

9



 

Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or initiatives funded with state 
funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of federal 
funds within the context of the LEA’s broader strategy reflected in the LCAP. 
 
Piner-Olivet School District is a single school-site district.  We use federal funds to supplement and enhance local priority 
or initiatives funded with state funds by increasing or improving existing actions to support students in meeting the 
challenging state academic standards. 
 
Our rationale/evidence for the selected uses of federal funds is to use the funds to assist in the successful completion of 
actions and goals described in our LCAP to ensure the academic achievement of all students, especially our low-income 
students. 
 
Title I funds are used for intervention services, assessment and data management system, supplemental materials and 
adaptive software to assist students in obtaining skills specific to them needed to master the challenging state academic 
standards. 
 
Title II funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities that have a demonstrated result in improving teacher 
and principal quality. 
 
Title III funds are used to improve educational outcomes for our English Language Learners and support students in their 
attainment of the English Language.  The county office ELD coordinator, collaboration time to plan ELD instruction and 
professional development focused on intervention strategies all assist in supporting our English Language Learners. 
 
Title IV funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities to promote the effective use of technology and to 
offer and/or expand programs that will provide students with a well rounded education. 
 
 
 

 
Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local funds and, 
as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 
 
Piner-Olivet School District aligns its use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local fund and across different 
federal grant programs.  Our LCAP is used as our district strategic plan and so provides us with an overarching plan 
complete with metrics, stakeholder engagement, goals, actions, and analysis. 
 
This plan encompasses activities to support all students in the areas of : 
 
LCAP GOAL 1:  Culture: Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching:  Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
LCAP GOAL 3: Proficiency: All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary 
for future success in college and careers. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement 
 
Any challenges can usually fit under one of these goals and can be addressed with state, local or federal funds. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

10



ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those goals, for each of the 
LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the descriptions of the goals, actions, and services 
how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state 
accountability system. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic standards by: 
 

(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic needs of all students; 
(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school determines need help in 

meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 
(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen academic programs and 

improve school conditions for student learning. 
 
Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the 
classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of 
the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2). 
 
Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 
If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that coordinate and integrate: 
 

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional strategies, that may 
incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills attainment important to in-demand occupations 
or industries in the State; and 

(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry professionals and, if 
appropriate, academic credit. 

 

11



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Title II, Part A Activities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 
Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these activities will be 
aligned with challenging State academic standards. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching: Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes (collaboration time, professional learning, 
instructional practices, math performance tasks, units of instruction, integration of arts education, ELD instructional 
strategies, integrating tiers of intervention support) 
 
 

 

12



TITLE III, PART A 
 
Parent, Family, and Community Engagement 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

3116(b)(3) 3, 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the education of English 
learners. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement (parent education, communicate student progress, communication 
platforms, community based tutoring program, access to information related to support students) and LCAP Goal 2 
Teaching  Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes (ELD Instructional Strategies) 
 
 

13



 
ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System 
 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System (CARS). 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Poverty Criteria 
 

ESSA SECTION(S) STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(4) N/A 
 
Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113. 
 
The poverty criteria used for Title 1, Part A School Allocations is the percent of students who qualify for Free & Reduced 
Price Meals (FRPM). 
 

 

14



 
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP  
 
For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities. Each provision 
for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the 
LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this addendum. 
 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged 
to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of all 
resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s 
responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to clarify 
insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) 
 
Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any 
disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
100% of the teachers at Piner-Olivet Union School District are considered Highly Qualified. 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(B)(3) AND 1112(B)(7) 
 
Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d).  
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

15



(ESSA Section 1112(b)(3)-responsibilities under 1111(d)) 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
(ESSA 1112(b)(7)) 
The strategies the LEA uses to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116, which includes 
how the LEA and its schools build capacity for parent and family engagement is demonstrated in the following ways: 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(a)). 
Piner-Olivet Union School District has an adopted parent involvement policy which is described in BP 6020 and AR 6020. 
The Policy and Administrative Regulations provides details on how parents and families are engaged in the school 
community. The LEA parent and family engagement policy, was developed jointly with and agreed on with parents. The 
parent and family engagement policy is distributed to, parents and family members of participating children annually with 
the annual notification packet that is sent home at the beginning of the year. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(1)) 
Piner-Olivet Union School District provides assistance to parents in understanding such topics as the challenging State 
academic standards, State and local academic assessments, the requirements of this part, and how to monitor a child’s 
progress and work with educators to improve the achievement of their children through parent conferences, back to school 
night, and school events.  Report cards are sent home quarterly so parents are able to identify how their students are 
doing. Other items include: LCAP Action 4.3 Use a variety of communication platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent engagement such as social media, district and school websites, SchoolGo mobile app, 
e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, etc.) including School/Community 
events that showcase student learning (exhibitions, performances, etc.), LCAP Action 4.4 Provide parent education 
through Community-Based Tutoring program, including English language support, strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home and LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(2)) 
Piner-Olivet Union School District provides materials and training to help parents work with their children to improve their 
children’s achievement, such as literacy training and using technology (including education about the harms of copyright 
piracy), as appropriate, to foster parental involvement by  providing parents with varying opportunities to engage in multiple 
areas of their students’ education and ensuring parents are invited to: parent conferences, Back to School Night, Open 
House. During these events parents engage in activities that assist in improving their children's achievement.  Other items 
include: LCAP Action 4.3 Use a variety of communication platforms to promote an understanding of educational programs 
and parent engagement such as social media, district and school websites, SchoolGo mobile app, e-newsletters, LCAP 
Infographics and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, etc.) including School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, performances, etc.), LCAP Action 4.4 Provide parent education through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including English language support, strategies for supporting students in academic learning at home 
and LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(3)) 
Piner-Olivet Union School District educates teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, and other 
school leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the value and utility of contributions of parents, and in 
how to reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents as equal partners, implement and coordinate parent 
programs, and build ties between parents and the school during early release days (professional development) and as 
needed throughout the year.  In addition, LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(4)) 
Piner-Olivet Union School District coordinates and integrates parent involvement programs and activities with other 
Federal, State, and local programs, including public preschool programs, and conduct other activities, such as parent 
resource centers, that encourage and support parents in more fully participating in the education of their children through 
the use of community organizations of Sonoma County and Sonoma County Office of Education. We have increased hours 
outreach workers who can speak Spanish.  These additional hours will provide more frequent opportunities for parent 
communication in various venues.  We will continue to provide English classes for our community. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(5)) 
Piner-Olivet Union School District ensures that information related to school and parent programs, meetings, and other 
activities is sent to the parents of participating children in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents 
can understand.  All notifications and information are sent home in English and Spanish. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(14). 

16



Piner-Olivet Union School District provides other reasonable support for parental involvement activities as parents may 
request. Surveys are conducted annually and attendance at school events is good. Parents are willing to communicate 
needs at school events, with teachers, in the office, at meetings, and via emails. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(f)) 
Piner-Olivet Union School District provides opportunities for the informed participation of parents and family members 
(including parents and family members who have limited English proficiency, parents and family members with disabilities, 
and parents and family members of migratory children), including providing information and school reports in a format and, 
to the extent practicable, in a language such parents understand.  All report cards and information are sent home in both 
English and Spanish.  Surveys are sent home in English and Spanish.  Translation services are available during school 
meetings. 
 
Piner-Olivet Union School District aligns the parent involvement items required in Section 1116 with the LCAP stakeholder 
engagement process. As part of the LCAP process we seek input from parents and families and we have an entire LCAP 
goal dedicated to parent involvement. The following items and results of the item demonstrates how we sought input from 
parents and how their input informed LCAP goals and actions and is stated in our CA Dashboard Local Indicator report for 
parent involvement: Survey results indicated that parents were better able to access information on school events and to 
gain a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their child's education. Parents felt an increased sense of 
connection and engagement with the school community. Our district is focusing on improving parent participation and 
seeking additional input from parents/guardians in school and district decision making was effective overall, and is 
evidenced by several measures. The overall effectiveness is evidenced by the participation in parent events, participation 
in English classes, and the growing participation in DELAC and ELAC meetings. Attendance at Parent Meetings is also 
growing, results from the Spring 2018 My Voice parent survey show that an increased number  parents who agree or 
strongly agree that “parent evenings/meetings are worth attending. The improved website and grading/report card portal 
are now available to students and their families. This year we also offered parent workshops and made Outreach worker 
translation available at more school events, as well. The overall effectiveness of goal 4: parent involvement is evidenced 
by increased participation in parent events and student learning activities. 
 
 
 

 
 
Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under sections 1114 and 1115 and, 
where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children living in local institutions for neglected or 
delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent children in community day school programs. 
 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, paraprofessionals, and specialized 
instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted assistance school program under Section 1115, will identify 
the eligible children most in need of services under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Our single school district operates as a schooolwide program. 
 
 

 
Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 
 
Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided with funds reserved 
under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success of homeless children and youths, in 
coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States 
Code 11301 et seq.). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

17



Piner-Olivet Union School District ensures that homeless students have access to the same free and appropriate public 
education provided to other students within the district. The district shall provide homeless students with access to 
education and other services necessary for these students to meet the same challenging academic standards as other 
students. Detailed description of processes and procedures for Education for Homeless Children can be found in BP 
6173, AR6173, E6173. The services we provide homeless children and youths are the following: 
 
Piner-Olivet Union School District hired a Director of Student Services to include duties that address providing needs for 
homeless students.  The Director or Student Services works closely with Sonoma County Office of Education to identify 
and provide resources as needed.  During the 2017-2018 school year due to the fires the homeless greatly increased as 
did services available.  The county at large through Sonoma County Office of Education (SCOE) provided resources and 
timely information to address the needs of all families. 
 
The services provided are used to support the (1) enrollment, (2) attendance, and (3) success of homeless children and 
youths, in coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 
 
 
 
 
Student Transitions 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8), 1112(b)(10), and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under this part with early 
childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including plans for the transition of participants in 
such programs to local elementary school programs. 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for students from middle 
grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education including: 

(A) coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners; and 
(B) increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment opportunities, or career 

counseling to identify student interests and skills. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) Piner-Olivet Union School coordinates with the following institutions of higher education, employers, and other local 
partners: Santa Rosa Junior College, Sonoma State University, Community Action Partnership, and Sonoma County 
Office of Education to facilitate effective transitions from high school to postsecondary education.   Piner-Olivet Union 
School works with its charter schools and local high schools to facilitate effective transitions from middle grades to high 
school.  Parent meetings are held so that parents and students can learn about the programs offered at each school and 
district so they can make the most appropriate choice for their child/ren. 
 
(B) Piner-Olivet Union School district increases student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent 
enrollment opportunities, or career counseling to identify student interests and skills by working with our Charter School, 
Northwest Prep to  provide opportunities for dual enrollment courses, providing counseling support for students to learn 
about their interests, and providing AP courses to obtain college credit in a high school course. 
 
 
 

 
Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 
Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this part, and that the LEA 
determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will: 
 

(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an opportunity to develop 

digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

18



(A) NA 
(B) As a district we assist in developing effective school library program to provide students an opportunity to develop 
literacy skills and improve academic achievement by implementing the following actions: providing weekly library time for 
students, providing weekly computer time for students, providing devices (computers, chromebooks, and tablets) for 
classroom use. 
 
 
 
 

19



 
TITLE I, PART D 
 
Description of Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(1) 
 
Provide a description of the program to be assisted [by Title I, Part D]. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Formal Agreements 
ESSA SECTION 1423(2) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the LEA and correctional 
facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice system, including such 
facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Comparable Education Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(3) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how participating schools will coordinate with facilities working with delinquent 
children and youth to ensure that such children and youth are participating in an education program comparable to one 
operating in the local school such youth would attend. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Successful Transitions 
ESSA SECTION 1423(4) 
 
Provide a description of the program operated by participating schools to facilitate the successful transition of children and 
youth returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, the types of services that such schools will provide such 
children and youth and other at-risk children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Educational Needs 
ESSA SECTION 1423(5) 
 
Provide a description of the characteristics (including learning difficulties, substance abuse problems, and other special 
needs) of the children and youth who will be returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, other at-risk children 
and youth expected to be served by the program, and a description of how the school will coordinate existing educational 
programs to meet the unique educational needs of such children and youth. 

20



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Social, Health, and Other Services 
ESSA SECTION 1423(6) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will coordinate with existing social, health, and other services to meet 
the needs of students returning from correctional facilities, at-risk children or youth, and other participating children or youth, 
including prenatal health care and nutrition services related to the health of the parent and the child or youth, parenting and 
child development classes, child care, targeted reentry and outreach programs, referrals to community resources, and 
scheduling flexibility. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships 
ESSA SECTION 1423(7) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of any partnerships with institutions of higher education or local businesses to facilitate 
postsecondary and workforce success for children and youth returning from correctional facilities, such as through 
participation in credit-bearing coursework while in secondary school, enrollment in postsecondary education, participation 
in career and technical education programming, and mentoring services for participating students. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Involvement 
ESSA SECTION 1423(8) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the 
 

(A) LEA; and  
(B) correctional facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice 

system, including such facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Program Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(9–10) 
 
Provide a description of how the program under this subpart will be coordinated with other Federal, State, and local 
programs, such as programs under title I of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act and career and technical 
education programs serving at-risk children and youth. 
 
Include how the program will be coordinated with programs operated under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 
Act of 1974 and other comparable programs, if applicable. 

21



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Probation Officer Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(11) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will work with probation officers to assist in meeting the needs of 
children and youth returning from correctional facilities. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Individualized Education Program Awareness 
ESSA SECTION 1423(12) 
 
Provide a description of the efforts participating schools will make to ensure correctional facilities working with children and 
youth are aware of a child’s or youth’s existing individualized education program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Alternative Placements 
ESSA SECTIONS 1423(13) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of the steps participating schools will take to find alternative placements for children 
and youth interested in continuing their education but unable to participate in a traditional public school program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

22



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 
 
Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as induction for teachers, 
principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity of teachers and opportunities to develop 
meaningful teacher leadership. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

23



Piner-Olivet Union School District has an organized delivery of professional learning for all certificated staff. 
 
Principals: 
Professional growth and improvement is provided to the principal through the following process: at the beginning of their 
career as a principal they are mentored and coached until they are ready to take on more leadership opportunities.  As 
principals progress they are supported based on their individual needs. As principals become more seasoned it is expected 
that they take on more and more responsibility in ensuring academic success for all students. Principals utilize services 
from the Sonoma County Office of Education and fellow principals in the county. Growth and improvement are measured 
by staff, teacher and parent survey results, California Student Dashboard Results, number of LCAP metrics and actions 
completed. 
 
Teachers: 
Professional growth and improvement is provided to teachers during beginning of the year professional development, 
ongoing early release days, County Office Workshops, and Specialists in the Field. At the beginning of their career as a 
teacher they are supported through the induction program at the county office. Teachers are then supported as needed 
throughout their career depending on each teachers individual needs, strengths and growth areas.  Teachers often support 
each other and bounce ideas off each other in informal meetings..  We provide professional development to all teachers 
in writing, balanced literacy, and mathematics in order to build capacity in alignment with the standards and target all 
subgroups.  Growth and improvement for teachers are measured by state assessment data, benchmark data, student 
surveys. Identification of growth and improvement areas as a school are measured by California School Dashboard results. 
Teachers are provided professional learning opportunities to develop and support instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California Content Standards for English Language Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next Generation Science Standards. There is an instructional coach and technology integration 
coach to support teachers.  Santa Rosa City Schools network and Sonoma County Office of Education also provide 
support. 
 
School Leaders: 
As a small school district we do not have any additional school leaders, however, many experienced teachers serve various 
roles to assist with special projects or initiatives that help to improve student learning. 
 
The systems in place promote professional growth and ensure improvement.  We measure the success of our program by 
utilizing the Annual Update in the LCAP and Dashboard data. We review our LCAP student outcome data with all 
stakeholders (parents, students, teachers, staff, leadership, community members) as part of the Annual Update process.  
This provides an effective way in discussing our successes and growth areas as a school community and determining any 
necessary actions to be added for the following year.  As part of the Local Indicator: Implementation of the Standards 
Dashboard requirement we report annually on teachers progress in 1) providing professional learning for teaching to the 
recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks 2) making instructional materials that are aligned to 
the recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks, 3) implementing policies or programs to support 
staff in identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walk throughs, 
teacher pairing) for the following content areas: English Language Arts, Mathematics, History-Social Studies, English 
Language Development, Next Generation Science Standards.  In addition, we report on implementing each of the following 
academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for all students (Career Technical Education, Physical 
Education Model Content Standards, World Language, Health Education Content Standards, Visual and Performing Arts  
and we report on success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school administrators during the prior 
school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year): Identifying the professional learning needs of groups 
of teachers or staff as a whole, Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers, providing support for 
teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered. As a school community understand the importance of continuous 
improvement within these systems and are focused on professional growth and improvement. 
 
 
 
 
Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are implementing 
comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and improvement activities under Section 1111(d) 
and have the highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 

24



 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 
 
 

 
Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually 
update and improve activities supported under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The sources of data our district uses to monitors and evaluate Title II, Part A activities is: California School Dashboard 
data (including Local Indicator reports), survey results from professional development opportunities, student achievement 
data (benchmark),  STAR data, Teacher Survey data (including CCSS Implementation questions), ELPAC data, and 
student survey results.  This data is analyzed annually as part of the planning process for the following year.  Benchmark 
data and STAR Data is analyzed throughout the year to inform instruction. In addition to above, Piner-Olivet Union School 
District has purchased Illuminate in order to quickly and easily analyze student data on a regular basis during professional 
learning communities. 
 
Piner-Olivet Union School District meaningfully consults with all stakeholders (teachers, principals and other school 
leaders, paraprofessionals, specialized instructional support personnel,  parents, community partners, organizations) to 
update and improve Title II, Part-A funded activities. This is completed through annual survey data, monthly staff meetings, 
monthly leadership meetings and annually (or as needed) parent meetings.  After compiling information from all 
stakeholder group we determine what are common needs expressed throughout stakeholders and then needs based on 
each stakeholder group. Piner-Olivet Union School District meaningfully consults with these stakeholders in the following 
frequency: teachers-monthly, principals and other school leaders-monthly, paraprofessionals-quarterly, specialized 
instructional support personnel-quarterly, parents-surveys are annually/events are about 4 times per year, community 
partners-yearly, organizations-as needed/at least yearly) 
 
Our Sonoma County Office of Education also provides valuable resources, support and training to our school districts in 
the county.   By utilizing Sonoma County Office of Education resources we are able to quickly understand what various 
schools in the county are doing and use those ideas and success to improve our school community. Piner-Olivet Union 
School District utilizes shortened Wednesdays for collaboration efforts that will be focused on student achievement, setting 
goals for students, and building capacity of staff. 
 
 
 

 

25



 
TITLE III, PART A 
 
Title III Professional Development 
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom teachers, principals and other 
school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The following actions from LCAP describe how our LEA effectively assists English Learners: 
2.5 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core 
set of practices (2.5.a Collaboration time for ELD assessment, 2.5.b Professional development for ELL strategies (SCOE) 
 
3.4 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English Language Learners (ELD Assistant, ELD Instructional 
Materials) 
These professional development opportunities are designed to improve the instruction and assessment of English learners; 
enhance the ability of such teachers, principals, and other school leaders to understand and implement curricula, 
assessment practices and measures, and instructional strategies for English learners. They are also effective in increasing 
children's English language proficiency or substantially increasing the subject matter knowledge, teaching knowledge, and 
teaching skills of such teachers; and are of sufficient intensity and duration (which shall not include activities such as one-
day or short-term workshops and conferences) to have a positive and lasting impact on the teachers' performance in the 
classroom. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enhanced Instructional Opportunities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Piner-Olivet Union School District will provide professional learning in integrated English Language Development 
strategies incorporating the Next Generation Science Standards.  Piner-Olivet Charter School also provides supplemental 
activities that provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth: Summer programs, tutorials, 
supplemental staff, family literacy services, family outreach, mentoring, . In determining the best use of funds we consult 
with stakeholders and use funds strategically with other funding streams to support Title III immigrant activities. 
 
 

 
Title III Programs and Activities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(1) 
 
Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, proposed to be 
developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English learners increase their English 
language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic standards. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

26



Our goal is to increase the effectiveness of our programs and our professional learning is focused on differentiation and 
personalized learning.  The major focus is language learner strategies and best practices.  Piner-Olivet Union School 
Districts develops, implements, and administers effective programs and activities, including language instruction 
educational programs, to help English learners increase English language proficiency and meet the challenging state 
academic standards by providing additional staff, working with SCOE, tutorial, supplemental curricular materials. We 
determine effectiveness by evaluating ELPAC data, CA Dashboard data specific to EL students, and RFEP data. 
 
 

 
English Proficiency and Academic Achievement 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(2)(A-B) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving funds under Subpart 
1 assist English learners in: 
 

(C) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment under Section 
1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and 

(D) meeting the challenging State academic standards. 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
We have streamlined our areas of focus, have planned a thorough professional learning plan including differentiating for 
our English learners, and will provide time for teachers to collaborate and focus on student goals.  We believe this will 
increase student achievement for all students including our English learners.  The details of how we ensure our school 
assists English learners in achieving English proficiency and meeting the challenging state academic standards can be 
found in our EL Master Plan. 
 
 

 

27



 
TITLE IV, PART A 
 
Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs 
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1) 
 
Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out under Subpart 1, 
including a description of: 
 

(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization, community-based 
organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of success in implementing activities under 
this subpart;  

(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education under Section 4107;  
(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy students under Section 

4108; 
(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of technology in schools 

under Section 4109; and 
(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the LEA, or consortium of 

such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the activities carried out under this section based on 
such objectives and outcomes. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Title IV, Part A funds will support the effective use of technology through professional development opportunities and will 
expand and/or create programs such as STEAM to support a well-rounded education for all of our students. 
 
 

28



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Piner-Olivet Union School District
CDS Code: 49708700101253
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Year: 2019-20
LEA contact information: Felicia Koha, CBO (707) 522-3008 fkoha@pousd.org

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2019-20 LCAP Year

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Piner-Olivet Union School District expects to receive 
in the coming year from all sources.

The total revenue projected for Piner-Olivet Union School District is $4,415,209.00, of which 
$2,733,993.00 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $425,647.00 is other state funds, $934,687.00 is 
local funds, and $320,882.00 is federal funds. Of the $2,733,993.00 in LCFF Funds, $227,548.00 is 
generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income 
students).

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Acccountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

LCFF supplemental & 
concentration grants , 

$227,548 , 5%

All Other LCFF funds, 
$2,506,445 , 57%

All other state funds, 
$425,647 , 10%

All local funds, 
$934,687 , 21%

All federal funds, $320,882 
, 7%

Total LCFF funds, 
$2,733,993 , 62%

Projected Revenue by Fund Source

 Page 1 of 329



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Piner-Olivet Union School District plans to spend for 
2019-20. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

Piner-Olivet Union School District plans to spend $6,823,087.00 for the 2019-20 school year. Of that 
amount, $2,456,184.00 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $4,366,903.00 is not included in the 
LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 

The total expenditures not included in the LCAP amount include such costs as overhead (i.e. utilitites, 
maintenance, legal costs, insurance, etc.), contributions, and mandatory contributions.

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2019-20

In 2019-20, Piner-Olivet Union School District is projecting it will receive $227,548.00 based on the 
enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Piner-Olivet Union School District 
must demonstrate the planned actions and services will increase or improve services for high needs 
students compared to the services all students receive in proportion to the increased funding it receives 
for high needs students. In the LCAP, Piner-Olivet Union School District plans to spend $279,568.00 on 
actions to meet this requirement.

Total Budgeted General 
Fund Expenditures

$6,823,087 

Total Budgeted 
Expenditures in LCAP

$2,456,184 

$ 0

$ 1,000,000

$ 2,000,000

$ 3,000,000

$ 4,000,000

$ 5,000,000

$ 6,000,000

$ 7,000,000

$ 8,000,000

Budgeted Expenditures

 Page 2 of 330



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2018-19

This chart compares what Piner-Olivet Union School District budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions 
and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Piner-
Olivet Union School District estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or 

improving services for high needs students in the current year.

In 2018-19, Piner-Olivet Union School District's LCAP budgeted $212,197.00 for planned actions to 
increase or improve services for high needs students. Piner-Olivet Union School District estimates that it 
will actually spend $294,264.00 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 
2018-19.

$294,264 

$212,197 

$ 0 $ 50,000 $ 100,000 $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 250,000 $ 300,000 $ 350,000

Current Year Expenditures: Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students

Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs
Students in the LCAP

Estimated Actual Expenditures for High
Needs Students in LCAP

 Page 3 of 331



Page 1 of 148

 
LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 

 

            2019-20    

 

 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

California School Dashboard: Essential data to support completion of 
this LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template. 

 
LEA Name 

Piner-Olivet Union School District            

Contact Name and Title 

Carmen Diaz-French            
Superintendent 

Email and Phone 

cdiaz-french@pousd.org            
6195223000 

 
 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) was subjected to the Northern California wildfires in 
2017.  The Tubbs Fire destroyed over 5,500 structures and Coffey Park, a neighborhood directly 
across the street from our district office that was one of the most densely populated areas in Santa 
Rosa affected by the fire.  About 1,500 homes were destroyed in the small neighborhood.  One 
consequence of undergoing this natural disaster is a loss of enrollment due to displaced families.  
Overall, the district has lost approximately 200 students over two years. 
 
The district serves a student population of approximately 1331  students, in grades TK - 12. This 
document addresses Jack London Elementary School and there are four additional charter schools.  
Jack London Elementary school has approximately 292 students.  26% of our students are English 
Learners. 44% of our students are economically disadvantaged. There are three elementary schools 
that serve students in grades K - 6; two of which are charter schools, and one charter school with 
grades 7-8, and one charter school that serves students in grades 7-12. 
 
Much effort is given to support effective instructional practices and provide our students with a child-
centered, standards-based education that also incorporates our student outcomes: Personal 
Integrity, Productive Collaboration, Critical and Creative Thinking, Effective Communication, 
Reflective Learning, Citizenship and Global Responsibility, and Resiliency and Drive.   The long-

32

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/reports/49708700000000/2018


Page 2 of 148

term vision for the district is to develop an excellent program that integrates all subjects under the 
Next Generation Science Standards to give learning context and relevance for all learners within a 
STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, the Arts, and Mathematics) program model of 
education. POUSD's overall district goal is to develop a cohesive balanced literacy approach to 
teaching and learning English Language Arts and to ensure differentiation and personalized learning 
for every student.  All classroom instruction is aligned with Common Core and English Language 
Arts standards and assessments. 
 
With open communication between the school and the community, strong support from parents, and 
clearly defined educational goals, we believe that all children will have the opportunity to meet their 
full potential and be productive members of society. The District employs more than 137 staff, 
including certificated and classified employees. The district provides its employees with extensive 
professional development opportunities. Both experienced and newly-inducted teachers are 
supported through the Sonoma County Office of Education, Momentum In Teaching, and 
mathematics trainers which will continue through 2019-2020.  The Piner-Olivet Union School District 
strives for academic excellence. We believe in community advocacy for the whole child. We believe 
that each student is everyone’s responsibility. 
 
         

 

LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

From the study of surveys, the dashboard, financial documents, stakeholder meetings, and other 
measures, the following trends of strengths and needs were identified. Trends indicating our 
strengths include: Students and staff like coming to school and feel safe at school. Parents feel that 
staff care about their children. Parents feel that the communication between home and school is 
adequate and appreciate all the information we provide in Spanish. Staff value the support they get 
from each other. Whether it is from administrators, classroom support staff, or classified staff; 
support from everyone is valued. Teachers value collaboration time and ratified a contract that 
allowed for shortened Wednesdays to allow for more opportunities to collaborate. Students and 
parents are pleased with our implementation of technology.  
 
Trends indicating our opportunities for growth include: Some student subgroups are not achieving 
academically as compared to their peers. There is a need to strengthen relationships between all 
stakeholders through honesty, transparency, and communication. Parents would like 
standardization and consistency of procedures and practices at our school sites. All staff would like 
more opportunities to learn new skills and strategies specific to their roles, in a more streamlined 
manner. Behavior and mental health support and training is needed.  
 
We will continue to focus on four goals: 

• Goal 1- Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
• Goal 2- Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of 

California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
• Goal 3- All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for 

future success in college and careers. 
• Goal 4- Improve parent engagement. 

Some highlights of our Actions/Services within these goals include, but are not limited to: 
 Teachers will receive professional development supported by instructional coaching in the 

classroom in both mathematics and balanced literacy. 

33



Page 3 of 148

 Each site utilizes a Response to Intervention (RtI) Framework with defined interventions to 
be done by the classroom teacher, intervention teachers and paraprofessionals, or special 
education providers. 

 Use of the highest research- and evidence-based teaching strategies. 
 Staff receive knowledge development and skill training during professional development 

sessions. 
 Administrators and teachers work collaboratively to analyze student work, collaborate on 

the implementation of adopted materials, and in the use of high leverage strategies. 
 Each site utilizes a positive, proactive discipline approach and works diligently to ensure 

students and teachers are at school each day. 
 Staff, parents, and students participate annually in a culture and climate survey. 
 A District Counselor position has been created to support all stakeholders; the district will 

also host Behavioral Specialists. 
 The district will provide professional learning in mathematics in support of the new Bridges 

math adoption. 
 A full time Director of Student Services position has been created to address the multiple 

levels of need in the area of Special Education to ensure best practices at every site. 
 The district will provide professional development in balanced literacy. 
 The district will continue to employ a 50% Director of Innovative Learning position to 

support teachers through professional learning implementations. 
 The district will establish a curriculum committee in order to purchase district-wide 

curriculum grades Tk-6. 

 

Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
California School Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or 
other information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build 
upon that success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements 
in services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
We have a lot to be proud of this year, most notably: 
 
*Teachers taking on math and teaching our students to be fierce mathematicians!  
 
*Staff and new principals coming together as united teams and developing collaborative culture at 
each site. 
 
*ALL staff classified and certificated engaging in collaboration and professional learning including 
Making Words, SIPPs, and more! 
 
*After school enrichment programs. 
 
*Outreach worker increased time to meet the needs of our Spanish speaking families.  
 
All students and all subgroups earned a green performance color for Chronic Absenteeism 
(Status:6%, Change: -2%). In addition, the Hispanic Subgroup earned a green performance color for 
suspension rate and the White subgroup earned a green performance color for English Language 
Arts.  

34



Page 4 of 148

 
Highlights from each of our LCAP goals are the following: 
 
Goal 1: Culture 

 Arts & Sciences (Music weekly and STEAM Labs) 
 Athletics (PE Tech) 
 Academics (Year 1 of Math curriculum, Leadership & Social Justice, Toolbox, Increased 

Technology, Curriculum Committee) 

Goal 2: Teaching 
 Math Professional Learning and coaching 
 Writer’s Workshop Professional Learning and Coaching 
 Guided Reading launch, coaching, implementation 
 Off-site visits 
 Release time 
 Conferences 
 Peer to peer observations 

Goal 3: Proficiency 
 Math Professional Learning and coaching 
 Writer’s Workshop Professional Learning and Coaching 
 Guided Reading Professional Learning and Coaching 
 Off-site visits 
 Release time 
 Conferences 
 Peer to peer observations 
 Collaboration time 

 Goal 4: Parent Involvement 
 Established SSCs and ELAC 
 Toolbox parent workshop, Back to School, Winter Performance, Coffee with the Principal 
 Student Recognition Parties 

 
Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for 
which overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a 
“Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has 
determined need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local 
indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for 
improvement? 
 
Greatest Needs 
In the CDE’s LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, LEA or school sites receive a performance level based upon 
how every student group (for which there is data for 30 or more students in the group) performs on 
each applicable state indicator. The performance levels for Mathematics or English Language Arts 
show how far the average student is below (or exceeding) the Level 3 threshold for each indicator. It 
should be noted that the data reflected on the current dashboard is from the 2017-2018 school year, 
which is the school year when the devastating fires impacted our community significantly.  
 
The following indicators received an "red" and "orange" performance level and the steps the LEA 
planning to take to address these areas 

35



Page 5 of 148

 
Suspension Rate (Orange-Status: 3.4%, Change: 0% ) 
 
We anticipate an improvement in the results for the 2018-2019 school year, however, our school 
community is still healing and we were impacted by school closures due to smoke and in addition 
there was significant flooding in the area. The following steps are being taking to address these 
areas of improvement: 
 
Suspension Rate:  
 
*Continue with all items in Goal 1: Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all 
students in order to improve student engagement and attendance. 
 
The following is a list of challenges and impact on LCAP and Actions 
 
Goal 1: Culture 
 
Challenges 

 The wildfires impacted attendance rates, truancy and chronic absenteeism 
 Improve My Voice Survey data results 

Planned Improvement 
 Social/Emotional and Behavior Intervention services 
 Provide in school and after school engagement activities such as sports, arts, clubs, etc 

Goal 2: Teaching 
 
Challenges 

 Math Professional learning 
 Academic achievement for English language learners and low socio-economic subgroup 
 Vertical alignment and implementation of instruction 
 Consistent collaboration across grade levels 

Planned Improvements 
 Focus on mathematics professional learning 
 Tiers of Intervention Support 

Goal 3: Proficiency 
 
Challenges 

 Streamlined and consistent professional development opportunity in mathematics and tiered 
intervention process 

Planned Improvements 
 Math focus (professional learning, curriculum, supplies) 
 Tiers of support 
 Curriculum Committee 

Goal 4: Parent Involvement 
 

36



Page 6 of 148

Challenges 
 Last year was a devastating year for our community 
 Attendance 

Planned Improvements 
 Develop systemic ways to increase parent involvement 
 Increase outreach worker time at each site for bilingual support 
 Enrichment programs after school 

 
 
Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 
Performance Gaps 
There were no student groups who were two or more performance levels below the "all student" 
performance. 

37



Page 7 of 148

 
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every 
Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts. 
 
Schools Identified 
Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 

None 

 
Support for Identified Schools 
Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level 
needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be 
addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

 

 
Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to 
support student and school improvement. 

 

 
38



Page 8 of 148

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 

39



Page 9 of 148

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
Students felt that bullying is not problem at school. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers, and parents): 
% of students in grades 3-5 reported feeling important in their classrooms 
% of 6th graders reported feeling like a valued member of the school 
community 
% of students grades 3-5 reported feeling comfortable asking questions in 
class 
% of students in grade 6 reported feeling comfortable asking questions in 
class 
 
 
 
Healthy Kids Survey: 
Feel safe at school % 
Caring Relationship w/Adults % 
Meaningful Participation % 
School Connectedness % 
 
Student to student surveys  -  reporting of playground conflict and absence 
of positive activities and increase in reporting of positive feelings at recess 
and at play. 
 
CALPADS: 
Attendance Rates -- % 
Truancy Rate/Chronic Absenteeism -- % 
Suspension Rates -- % 
Expulsion Rate - % 
 
FIT: 
Facilities: Sustained Exemplary Status 
Williams Instructional Materials -- sustained 100% access. 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing: 
Maintain 100% Teachers appropriately assigned and fully credentialed. 
        

 2018-2019 Actual 
 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers, and parents): 
50% of students in grades 3-5 reported feeling important in their classrooms 
24 % of 6th graders reported feeling like a valued member of the school 
community 
62% of students grades 3-5 reported feeling comfortable asking questions in 
class 
48 % of students in grade 6 reported feeling comfortable asking questions in 
class 
 
Healthy Kids Survey:--No CHKS survey during 18-19 school year 
Feel safe at school % 
Caring Relationship w/Adults % 
Meaningful Participation % 
School Connectedness % 
 
Student to student surveys - reporting of playground conflict and absence of 
positive activities and increase in reporting of positive feelings at recess and 
at play. 
 
CALPADS: 
Attendance Rates --95% 
Chronic Absenteeism --6 % 
Suspension Rates -- 3% 
Expulsion Rate - 0% 
 
FIT: 
Facilities: Sustained Exemplary Status 
Williams Instructional Materials -- sustained 100% access (0 Complaints) 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing: Maintained 100% Teachers 
appropriately assigned and fully credentialed. 
 
 

40



Page 10 of 148

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
Students felt that bullying is not problem at school. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers and parents) 2018-2019: 
60 % of students in grades 3-5 reported feeling important in their 
classrooms 
80 % of 6th graders reported feeling like a valued member of the school 
community 
70 % of students in grades 3-5 reported feeling comfortable asking 
questions in class 
75% of students in grade 6 reported feeling comfortable asking questions in 
class 
 
Healthy Kids Survey 2017-2018: 
Feel safe at school (85%) 
Caring Relationship w/Adults (30%) 
Meaningful Participation (50%) 
School Connectedness (50%) 
 
Student to student surveys conducted in Spring 2019 - decrease in reporting 
of playground conflict and absence of positive activities. 
 
CALPADS: 
Attendance Rates -- 98% 
Truancy Rate -- .2% 
Suspension Rates -- .8% 
Expulsion Rate - 0% 
 
FIT: 
Facilities: Sustained Exemplary Status 
Williams Instructional Materials -- sustained 100% access. 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing:   100% Teachers 
appropriately assigned and fully credentialed. 
        

41



Page 11 of 148

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
Students felt that bullying is not problem at school. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers and parents) 2016-2017: 
41 % of students in grades 3-5 reported feeling important in their 
classrooms 
68 % of 6th graders reported feeling like a valued member of the school 
community 
49 % of students in grades 3-5 reported feeling comfortable asking 
questions in class 
60% of students in grade 6 reported feeling comfortable asking questions in 
class 
 
 
 
 
Healthy Kids Survey 2015-2016: 
Feel safe at school (79%) 
Caring Relationship w/Adults (14%) 
Meaningful Participation (33%) 
School Connectedness (35%) 
 
Student to student surveys conducted in Spring 2017 - Multiple student 
responses indicate that students would like more playground activities and 
choices during recess. 
 
CALPADS: 
Attendance Rates -- 96% 
Truancy Rate -- .38% 
Suspension Rates -- 2.8% 
Expulsion Rate - 0% 
 
FIT: 
Facilities: Sustained Exemplary Status 
Williams Instructional Materials -- sustained 100% access. 
California Commission on Teacher Credentialing: 
100% Teachers appropriately assigned and fully credentialed. 
        

 

42



Page 12 of 148

Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.1 Continue implementation of 
social-emotional curriculum, 
including Toolbox and  No Bully! 
 

 1.1 Continued implementation of 
social-emotional curriculum, 
including Toolbox and  No Bully! 

 1.1.a Professional development 
to support on-going 
implementation of Toolbox/No 
Bully!  No additional costs as 
consultant is now employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional  

 1.1.a Professional development 
to support on-going 
implementation of Toolbox/No 
Bully!  No additional costs as 
consultant is now employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional 

1.1.b My Voice Surveys 
(students, staff, and parents)                    
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SG01) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $779  

 1.1.b My Voice Surveys 
(students, staff, and parents)                    
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SG01) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $779 

1.1.c Toolbox Consumable 
Materials                             (0000-
1110-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $50  

 1.1.c Toolbox Consumable 
Materials                             (0000-
1110-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $514 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.2 Provide each student with 
highly qualified teaching staff to 
support learning and positive 
school climate. 
 

 1.2 Provide each student with 
highly qualified teaching staff to 
support learning and positive 
school climate. 

 1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300/3xxx-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$155,934  

 1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300/3xxx-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$159,998 

43



Page 13 of 148

1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100/3xxx-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$1,225,525  

 1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100/3xxx-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$1,289,877 

1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base see 
1.2.b  

 1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-
600-BG01) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base see 1.2.b 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.3 Provide in school and after 
school engagement activities such 
as sports, arts, clubs, etc. 
 

 1.3 Provided in school and after 
school engagement activities such 
as sports, arts, clubs, etc. 

 1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                 
(0000-1530-1000-2100/3xxx-
SG01) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$30,186  

 1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                 
(0000-1530-1000-2100/3xxx-
SG01) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$30,186 

1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)  (1650-1000-
1130/1149/3xxx-SG01) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $1,200  

 1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)  (1650-1000-
1130/1149/3xxx-SG01) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $1,200 

1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE 
shared by 3 K-6 sites)       (0000-
1510-1000-1100/3xxx-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$26,078  

 1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE 
shared by 3 K-6 sites)       (0000-
1510-1000-1100/3xxx-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$30,045 

1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club -
Shared by 3 K6 programs          
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG01) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $1,500  

 1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club -
Shared by 3 K6 programs          
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG01) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $1,500 

44



Page 14 of 148

1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-
1660-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500  

 1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-
1660-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.4 Provide clean and safe school 
facilities that support student 
engagement and positive school 
culture. Maintain clean and safe 
school facilities. 
 

 1.4 Provided clean and safe school 
facilities that support student 
engagement and positive school 
culture. Maintain clean and safe 
school facilities. 

 1.4.a Maintenance Supervisor 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base $68,527  

 1.4.a Maintenance Supervisor 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base $77,433 

1.4.b Grounds Supervisor 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base Included in 1.4.a  

 1.4.b Grounds Supervisor 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base Included in 1.4.a 

1.4.c Custodial Staff including 
benefits 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$250,834  

 1.4.c Custodial Staff including 
benefits 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$250,834 

1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 4370,4380,4400 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$43,000  

 1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 4370,4380,4400 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$43,000 

1.4.e   Maintenance repairs 
including transfer to Def Maint 
Fund 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Base $78,000  

 1.4.e   Maintenance repairs 
including transfer to Def Maint 
Fund 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Base $78,000 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.5 Design classroom space and 
facilities to promote greater 
collaboration, creative expression 
and project-based learning. 

 1.5 Designed classroom space 
and facilities to promote greater 
collaboration, creative expression 
and project-based learning. 

 1.5 21st century modernization 
project (0000-0-1110-1000-4310-
RLC) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $5,000  

 1.5 21st century modernization 
project (0000-0-1110-1000-4310-
RLC) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $0 

45



Page 15 of 148

 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.6 Provide before/after school and 
recess student supervision. 
 

 1.6 Provided before/after school 
and recess student supervision. 

 1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors including benefits 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base $43,270  

 1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors including benefits 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base $43,270 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.7 Provide tiers of social-
emotional and behavioral 
intervention to support students in 
developing self-regulation 
strategies and positive social 
relationships. 
 

 1.7 Provided tiers of social-
emotional and behavioral 
intervention to support students in 
developing self-regulation 
strategies and positive social 
relationships. 

 1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$25,000  

 1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$25,750 

1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental See 1.1.c  

 1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental See 1.1.c 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.8 Provide Student Attendance 
Mediation services. 
 

 1.8 Provided Student Attendance 
Mediation services. 

 1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,000  

 1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $0 

1.8.a Counseling time 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental See 1.7.a  

 1.8.a Counseling time 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental See 1.7.a 

 

46



Page 16 of 148

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we created a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students by 
implementing social-emotional curriculum, providing highly qualified staff, providing engagement activities, designed classroom space 
and facilities, supervision, social/emotional and behavior intervention, and attendance mediation.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*My Voice Survey results for "Comfortable asking questions" (3rd-5th grade) 
*Attendance Rates 
*Chronic Absenteeism Rates 
*Suspension Rates 
*Expulsion Rate 
*FIT survey 
*Williams Complaints 
*Appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers 
 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*My Voice Survey results for "Feel Important" (3rd-5th grade), "Valued Member" (6th), Comfortable asking questions (6th) 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

47



Page 17 of 148

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California Common Core Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 

48



Page 18 of 148

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
Teachers were provided opportunities for professional learning and to 
develop and refine teaching practices that support the California Common 
Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
% of teachers who participated in professional development related to 
CCSS, ELA, CCSS Math and ELD. 
 
Establish baseline for evidence of classroom practices related to the 
California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes  (student 
work products, lessons/units, rubrics developed) 
 
% of classrooms w/ evidence of core instructional practices aligned to the 
California Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered: % positive 
feedback received. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: 
Foundational Skills --% report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- % readily utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- % report ease with these types of tasks. 
Digital Citizenship Skills - % report knowledge of these skills. 
Confidence with Technology - % report confidence in learning about new 
technologies. 
        

 Teachers were provided opportunities for professional learning and to 
develop and refine teaching practices that support the California Common 
Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who participated in professional development related to 
CCSS, ELA, CCSS Math and ELD. 
 
Establish baseline for evidence of classroom practices related to the 
California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes (student 
work products, lessons/units, rubrics developed): 12 of 12 teachers 
 
100% of classrooms w/ evidence of core instructional practices aligned to the 
California Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered: 82% 
positive feedback received (according to MyVoice Survey Results Question 
#22) 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: Not provided during 18-19 school year 
 

49



Page 19 of 148

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Teachers were provided opportunities for professional learning and to 
develop and refine teaching practices that support the California Common 
Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who participated in professional development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math and ELD. 
 
10% increase based on baseline for evidence of classroom practices related 
to the California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes  
(student work products, lessons/units, rubrics developed) 
 
Maintain 100 % of classrooms w/ evidence of core instructional practices 
aligned to the Common Core State Standards in ELA and Math. 
 
Maintain Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered: 
100 % positive feedback was received. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey 2019: 
Foundational Skills -- 78% report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 60% readily utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 20% report ease with these types of tasks. 
Digital Citizenship Skills - 25% report knowledge of these skills. 
Confidence with Technology - 70% report confidence in learning about new 
technologies. 
        

50



Page 20 of 148

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Teachers were provided opportunities for professional learning and to 
develop and refine teaching practices that support the California Common 
Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who participated in professional development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math and ELD. 
 
Establish baseline for evidence of classroom practices related to the 
California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes  (student 
work products, lessons/units, rubrics developed) 
 
 
Established baseline for 100 % of classrooms w/ evidence of core 
instructional practices aligned to the Common Core State Standards in ELA 
and Math. 
 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered: 100 % 
positive feedback was received. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey 2017: 
Foundational Skills -- 69% report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 46% readily utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 8% report ease with these types of tasks. 
Digital Citizenship Skills - 8% report knowledge of these skills. 
Confidence with Technology - 62% report confidence in learning about new 
technologies. 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.1 Regular schedule for grade 
level, cross grade level 
collaboration (1-2x per month 
during school day, after school, 

 2.1 Provided regular schedule for 
grade level, cross grade level 
collaboration (1-2x per month 
during school day, after school, 

 2.1 Changed schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students, allowing staff time to 

 2.1 Changed schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students, allowing staff time to 

51



Page 21 of 148

district faculty meetings) for 
teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction 
and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 
 

district faculty meetings) for 
teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction 
and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

collaborate, review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction, 
and reflect on teaching practice.  
Costs included in 
Salaries/Benefits for Highly 
Qualified Teachers.  (0000-1110-
1000-1149-SUBX 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

collaborate, review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction, 
and reflect on teaching practice.  
Costs included in 
Salaries/Benefits for Highly 
Qualified Teachers.  (0000-1110-
1000-1149-SUBX 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and 
support instructional practices 
aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next 
Generation Science Standards. 
 

 2.2 Provided professional learning 
opportunities to develop and 
support instructional practices 
aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next 
Generation Science Standards. 

 2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-
1570-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$37,676  

 2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-
1570-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$37,676 

2.2.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
schools)   (0000-1230-1000-
1100-600-SGPD) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $34,647  

 2.2.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
schools)   (0000-1230-1000-
1100-600-SGPD) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $39,523 

2.2.c Continue Writing PD   
(0000-0-1110-1000-5202-
SGWW) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$15,000  

 2.2.c Continue Writing PD   
(0000-0-1110-1000-5202-
SGWW) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$15,204 

2.2.d Continue Writing PD - 
Teacher time            (0000-0-
1110-1000-1130-SGWW) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $7,000  

 2.2.d Continue Writing PD - 
Teacher time            (0000-0-
1110-1000-1130-SGWW) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $7,000 

52



Page 22 of 148

2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional 
Development (Teacher release 
time and/or SCOE Contract) 
(0000-5830-SG02/0000-1110-
1000-1130) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,000  

 2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional 
Development (Teacher release 
time and/or SCOE Contract) 
(0000-5830-SG02/0000-1110-
1000-1130) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,000 

2.2.f Not anticipating any need for 
participation in NCTIP Program in 
2018-2019 (0000-5830-BTSA) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Base $0  

 2.2.f Not anticipating any need for 
participation in NCTIP Program in 
2018-2019 (0000-5830-BTSA) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Base $0 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
for teachers to develop 
instructional practices aligned to 
the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next 
Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math. 
 

 2.3 Provided formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
for teachers to develop 
instructional practices aligned to 
the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next 
Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math. 

 2.3.a  Revised student schedule 
to allow staff time on shortened 
Wednesdays 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 2.3.a  Revised student schedule 
to allow staff time on shortened 
Wednesdays 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title II 
$2,500  

 2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title II 
$2,500 

2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $4,000  

 2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $4,000 

53



Page 23 of 148

2.3.d Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%)              (0000-
1110-2100-1300-600-SG02) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$23,209  

 2.3.d Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%)              (0000-
1110-2100-1300-600-SG02) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$24,268 

2.3.e Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (4035-
1110-1000-1149) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Title II $2,000  

 2.3.e Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (4035-
1110-1000-1149) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Title II $2,000 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.4 Develop pilot program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6 
 

 2.4 Developed pilot program for 
Math performance tasks - K-6 

 2.4 Math coach- consultant time 
and release time (0000-1460-
1000-1149/5830) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $500  

 2.4 Math coach- consultant time 
and release time (0000-1460-
1000-1149/5830) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $500 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.5 Design units of instruction 
aligned with CCS Math, ELA, 
including formative and summative 
assessments across K-6. 
 

 2.5 Design units of instruction 
aligned with CCS Math, ELA, 
including formative and summative 
assessments across K-6. 

 2.5 Collaboration time for 
teachers-release time and/or 
extra-duty time. Teacher costs 
embedded in Salaries 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 2.5 Collaboration time for 
teachers-release time and/or 
extra-duty time. Teacher costs 
embedded in Salaries 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

54



Page 24 of 148

2.6 Develop proposal for 
Integration of arts education across 
curricular areas. 
 

 2.6 Developed proposal for 
Integration of arts education 
across curricular areas. 

 2.6.a Professional development 
for general education teachers to 
learn arts integration strategies to 
use across curriculum-release 
time and/or extra-duty time. 
(1130-1000-1130-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $1,000  

 2.6.a Professional development 
for general education teachers to 
learn arts integration strategies to 
use across curriculum-release 
time and/or extra-duty time. 
(1130-1000-1130-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $4,708 

2.6.b Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 2.3.d  

 2.6.b Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 2.3.d 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.7 Implement ELD instructional 
strategies to promote strategies 
academic discourse, structured 
language practices across core 
curricular areas and designated 
English Language Development 
during the school day. 
 

 2.7 Implemented ELD instructional 
strategies to promote strategies 
academic discourse, structured 
language practices across core 
curricular areas and designated 
English Language Development 
during the school day. 

 2.7.a Consultation with SCOE 
ELD Coordinator to develop 
schoolwide practices to support 
EL students in all curricular areas. 
(4760-1000-5830-SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,800  

 2.7.a Consultation with SCOE 
ELD Coordinator to develop 
schoolwide practices to support 
EL students in all curricular 
areas. (4760-1000-5830-SG02) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,800 

2.7.b Collaboration time to plan 
ELD instruction, review 
assessments of student progress 
and refine instructional practices.  
(01-0000-0-1110-1000-1130)  
Schedule change to shortened 
Wednesdays allowed, 
collaboration time within regularly 
scheduled day 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 2.7.b Collaboration time to plan 
ELD instruction, review 
assessments of student progress 
and refine instructional practices.  
(01-0000-0-1110-1000-1130)  
Schedule change to shortened 
Wednesdays allowed, 
collaboration time within regularly 
scheduled day 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

Action 8 
    

55



Page 25 of 148

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.8 Provide professional 
development opportunities for 
integrating tiers of intervention 
support for students in ELA and 
Math. 
 

 2.8 Provided professional 
development opportunities for 
integrating tiers of intervention 
support for students in ELA and 
Math. 

 2.8.a Instructional Coach 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.2.a  

 2.8.a Instructional Coach 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.2.a 

2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional costs  

 2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional costs 

2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools 
and SCOE Network (0000-5830) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental No 
additional costs  

 2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools 
and SCOE Network (0000-5830) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental No 
additional costs 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes by providing collaboration time, professional learning time, developing 
instructional practices, developing math performance tasks, developing units of instruction in Math and ELA, integrating Art education, 
implementing ELD Instructional Strategies, integrating tiers of intervention support.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*Professional Learning Opportunities 
*Evidence of Classroom Practices 
*Evidence of Core instructional practices 
*Positive teacher feedback on professional learning. 
 

56



Page 26 of 148

We met all of our outcomes! 
 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

57



Page 27 of 148

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 

58



Page 28 of 148

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

59



Page 29 of 148

Expected Actual 

60



Page 30 of 148

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational text 
with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): % of students scored at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -  % of students met grade level benchmarks. 
CAASPP -  % increase from 2015-16 in ELA and Math overall. 
 
POUSD CAASPP (% met or exceeded standard) 
ELA         Math 
Grade 3 %            % 
Grade 4 %            % 
Grade 5 %           % 
Grade 6 %             % 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English --  %-met target 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency --%-met target 
 
 
 
 
EL Reclassification - % of students who Redesignated Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP) 
 
CELDT/ELPAC - EL student progress as measured by CELDT/ELPAC (% of 
students who gain at least one level) 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey 2016: 
31% of students asked to write online at least monthly. 
56% of students collaborate with classmates online at least monthly. 
31% use digital tools to solve authentic problems at least monthly. 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey Levels: 
Foundational Skills 
Online Skills 
Multimedia Skills 
Classroom Skills 
 
Evidence of outcomes as demonstrated by student work products as well as 
online publishing of student writing and project work. 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- % 
Body Composition -- % 
 
All students (Gr. 1-6) have access to a broad course of study (English, 
math, social science, science, visual and performing arts, health and PE) 
 
        

18-19 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
60% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational 
text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 60% of students scored at or above proficiency on 
grade level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -  42% of students met grade level benchmarks. 
CAASPP -  a 10% increase from 2017-18 in ELA and Math for all students. 
 
POUSD 2018 CAASPP (% met or exceeded standard) 
ELA         Math 
Grade 3 57%  43% 
Grade 4 54%  37% 
Grade 5 45%         33% 
Grade 6 32%   24% 
 
Title III Accountability (based on 16-17 data) 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English --  70%-met target 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 40%-met target 
 
 
2018 EL Reclassification - 23% or more students Redesignated Fluent 
English Proficient (RFEP) 
 
2018 CELDT/ELPAC -  38% of students gained at least one level (measured 
by CELDT/ELPAC) 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey 2019: 
Foundational Skills - Advanced 
Online Skills - Advanced 
Multimedia Skills - Advanced 
Classroom Skills - Advanced (use of 4C's) 
 
Evidence of outcomes as demonstrated by student work products as well as 
online publishing of student writing and project work. 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 63% (Based on data from Spring 2017) 
 
Body Composition -- 68% (Based on data from Spring 2017) 
 
 
All students (Gr. 1-6) have access to a broad course of study (English, 
math, social science, science, visual and performing arts, health and PE) 
 
        

Baseline 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
50% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational 
text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 50% of students scored at or above proficiency on 
grade level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -  32% of students met grade level benchmarks. 
CAASPP: 
English Language Arts:  All students maintained (+1.3 points) 
Mathematics:  All students declined significantly (14.4 points) 
 
POUSD 2016 CAASPP (% met or exceeded standard) 
ELA         Math 
Grade 3 37%  23% 
Grade 4 44%  17% 
Grade 5 35%         13% 
Grade 6 22%     4% 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English --  60.5%-met target 
(14-15 data aggregated data is lagging by two years) 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 29%-met target 
(14-15 data aggregated data is lagging by two years) 
 
 
2016 EL Reclassification - 13% or more students Redesignated Fluent 
English Proficient (RFEP) 
 
2016 CELDT -  28% of students gained at least one level (measured by 
CELDT) 
 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey 2016: 
31% of students asked to write online at least monthly. 
56% of students collaborate with classmates online at least monthly. 
31% use digital tools to solve authentic problems at least monthly. 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey 2017: 
Foundational Skills - Advanced 
Online Skills - Proficient 
Multimedia Skills - Advanced 
Classroom Skills - Advanced (use of 4C's) 
 
Evidence of outcomes as demonstrated by student work products as well as 
online publishing of student writing and project work. 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 56.4% (Based on data from Spring 2015. Data for 
Spring 2016 not available yet.) 
 
Body Composition -- 60% (Based on data from Spring 2015. Data for Spring 
2016 not available yet.) 
 
All students (Gr. 1-6) have access to a broad course of study (English, 
math, social science, science, visual and performing arts, health and PE) 
 
        

 Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
40% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational text 
with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 60% of students scored at or above proficiency on 
grade level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) - 31% of students met grade level benchmarks. 
CAASPP - 3% increase from 2015-16 in ELA overall. 
CAASPP - 1% increase from 2015-16 in Math overall. 
 
POUSD CAASPP (% met or exceeded standard) 
ELA 
Grade 3 38% 
Grade 4 29% 
Grade 5 53% 
Grade 6 36% 
 
Math 
Grade 3 36% 
Grade 4 30 % 
Grade 5 22% 
Grade 6 9% 
 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - NA 
AMAO II -- NA 
 
EL Reclassification - 0% of students who Redesignated Fluent English 
Proficient (RFEP) 
 
CELDT/ELPAC - EL student progress as measured by CELDT/ELPAC NA for 
18-19 school year 
 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 59% 
Body Composition -- 51% 
 
All students (Gr. 1-6) have access to a broad course of study (English, math, 
social science, science, visual and performing arts, health and PE) 
 

61



Page 31 of 148

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.1 Assess student progress 
toward curricular goals. 
 

 3.1 Assessed student progress 
toward curricular goals. 

 3.1.a Renaissance Learning 
(STAR Reading & Star Math) 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $4,400  

 3.1.a Renaissance Learning 
(STAR Reading & Star Math) 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $4,463 

3.1.b DIBELS - annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $1,750  

 3.1.b DIBELS - annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $1,750 

3.1.c Collaboration time for teams 
of teachers to develop 
assessment practices aligned 
with District Student Outcomes. - 
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students to allow collaboration 
time for staff 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 3.1.c Collaboration time for teams 
of teachers to develop 
assessment practices aligned 
with District Student Outcomes. - 
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students to allow collaboration 
time for staff 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

62



Page 32 of 148

3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused 
on integrated units of instruction 
aligned with District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards. 
 

 3.2 Implemented Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused 
on integrated units of instruction 
aligned with District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards. 

 3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Changed student schedule to 
include shortened Wednesdays 
allowing collaboration time for 
staff 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

 3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Changed student schedule to 
include shortened Wednesdays 
allowing collaboration time for 
staff 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b 

3.2.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.d  

 3.2.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.d 

3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Textbook Adoption Gr 6 (0000-0-
1110-1000-4110-7156) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$20,000  

 3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Textbook Adoption Gr 6 (0000-0-
1110-1000-4110-7156) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$35,965 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.3 Provide instruction to students 
in developing literacy, media 
literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills. 
 

 3.3 Provided instruction to 
students in developing literacy, 
media literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills. 

 3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200/3xxx) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $34,528  

 3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200/3xxx) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $29,823 

3.3.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
sites) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 2.2.b  

 3.3.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
sites) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 2.2.b 

3.3.c Conduct needs assessment 
for resources for balanced literacy 

 3.3.c Conduct needs assessment 
for resources for balanced 

63



Page 33 of 148

instruction (0000-1110-1000-
1130-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $500  

literacy instruction (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $500 

3.3.d Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.d  

 3.3.d Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.d 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.4 Provide arts education (visual, 
digital, music, performing arts) for 
students to develop 
communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 
 

 3.4 Provided arts education 
(visual, digital, music, performing 
arts) for students to develop 
communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE 
shared between 3 K-6 schools) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.3.d  

 3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE 
shared between 3 K-6 schools) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.3.d 

3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500  

 3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.5 Provide students with 
instruction to develop motor 
skills/physical fitness. 
 

 3.5 Provided students with 
instruction to develop motor 
skills/physical fitness. 

 3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.3.a  

 3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.3.a 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.6 Provide academic support for 
students with disabilities to access 
a rigorous curriculum aligned with 

 3.6 Provided academic support for 
students with disabilities to access 
a rigorous curriculum aligned with 

 3.6.a Special Ed Teachers for 
RSP (2 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-1120-1100-

 3.6.a Special Ed Teachers for 
RSP (2 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-1120-1100-

64



Page 34 of 148

California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 

California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 

0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $50,895  

0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $56,122 

3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC 
(1 FTE for District K-6 Program) 
(6500-5770-1110-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,016  

 3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for 
SDC (1 FTE for District K-6 
Program) (6500-5770-1110-1100-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,439 

3.6.c RSP Assistant (6500-5770-
1120-2100) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $16,519  

 3.6.c RSP Assistant (6500-5770-
1120-2100) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $16,519 

3.6.d Specialized Assistants 
(SDC) (6500-5770-1110-2100) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Special Education 
$22,116  

 3.6.d Specialized Assistants 
(SDC) (6500-5770-1110-2100) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Special Education 
$22,116 

3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-
12 Program) (6500-5770-3150-
1200) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,008  

 3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-
12 Program) (6500-5770-3150-
1200) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,008 

3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-2100-1300-) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $32,882  

 3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-2100-1300-) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $33,936 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.7 Math Curriculum Committee to 
assist with math adoption 
implementation. 

 3.7 Math Curriculum Committee 
assisted with math adoption 
implementation. 

 3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum to research math 

 3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum to research math 

65



Page 35 of 148

 instructional materials 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.4  

instructional materials 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.4 

3.7.b Implement Math 
instructional materials 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base See 
3.2.e  

 3.7.b Implement Math 
instructional materials 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base See 
3.2.e 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 
 

 3.8 Provided Community 
Connected Learning opportunities 

 3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) 
(0000-5806-FT03)  (Based on 
$25/ADA) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $7,500  

 3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) 
(0000-5806-FT03)  (Based on 
$25/ADA) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $7,500 

3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $500  

 3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $500 

3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-
5808-FT03)  (Based on $180/6th 
Grade Students)  (Projecting 41 
6th Grade Students in 2018-
2019) 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Base $7,380  

 3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-
5808-FT03)  (Based on $180/6th 
Grade Students)  (Projecting 41 
6th Grade Students in 2018-
2019) 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Base $7,380 

Action 9 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

66



Page 36 of 148

3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted 
instruction and academic 
intervention. 
 

 3.9 Provided tiers of support (RtI) 
for students who need targeted 
instruction and academic 
intervention. 

 3.9.a Collaboration time for 
teachers to review benchmark 
data, plan interventions, and 
assess student progress. 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 1.2.b  

 3.9.a Collaboration time for 
teachers to review benchmark 
data, plan interventions, and 
assess student progress. 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 1.2.b 

3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500  

 3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500 

3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental No 
Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017  

 3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental No 
Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017 

3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention 
Program) (0000-1110-2100-1300-
600) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$9,395  

 3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention 
Program) (0000-1110-2100-1300-
600) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$10,495 

Action 10 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.10 Provide extended instructional 
time before and after school for 
students who need additional 
academic support in ELA and 
Math. 
 

 3.10 Provided extended 
instructional time before and after 
school for students who need 
additional academic support in 
ELA and Math. 

 3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                                                  
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$600  

 3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                                                  
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$600 

3.10 Intervention materials                                                            
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500  

 3.10 Intervention materials                                                            
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500 

Action 11 
    

67



Page 37 of 148

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.11 Provide extended learning 
time for students during summer. 
 

 3.11 Provided extended learning 
time for students during summer. 

 3.11 Teacher hourly rate                             
(0000-1650-1000-1130-
SG03/SGMK) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $9,470  

 3.11 Teacher hourly rate                             
(0000-1650-1000-1130-
SG03/SGMK) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $15,262 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we worked towards ensuring all students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and 
behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers by assessing student progress, implementing project-based 
learning/inquiry methods, developing literacy, media literacy, research and digital citizenship skills, and providing arts education, 
physical fitness, academic support, Math Curriculum Committee, Community Connected Learning Opportunities, tiers of support (Rti), 
Before and After School Support (ELA and Math) and summer extended learning time.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*ELA CAASPP results 
*Math CAASPP results 
*STAR Math 
*Broad Course of Study 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*STAR Reading 
*Dibels 
*Physical Fitness testing (Aerobic Capacity and Body Composition) 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

68



Page 38 of 148

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

69



Page 39 of 148

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 

70



Page 40 of 148

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
Parents accessed up-to-date information on school events, student learning 
activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their 
child's education. 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, felt a sense of connection and engagement with the 
school community. 
Parents participated in volunteer opportunities and events to connect with 
the school community and to learn about academic goals and progress 
(Back To School, Math Night, Earth Day, Open House, ELAC, Parent Club, 
etc.). 
 
Metrics: 
Parent participation in LCAP engagement sessions -- % increased 
 
Parent participation in surveys to gather feedback via BrightBytes and 
MyVoice - % increased 
 
Improved parent volunteer and event sign ins by % increased 
 
Engagement statistics on social media sites -- improved parent engagement 
on Facebook page by % increased, based on page likes and comments. 
        

 Metrics: 
Parent participation in LCAP engagement sessions -- 3% increased 
 
Parent participation in surveys to gather feedback via BrightBytes and 
MyVoice: 8 participants 
 
Improved parent volunteer and event sign ins:  # of consistent parent 
volunteers was 25, # of volunteers 155, # of event attendees: 2,095 
 
Engagement statistics on social media sites -- improved parent engagement 
on Facebook: 320 likes and 326 follows 
 

71



Page 41 of 148

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Parents accessed up-to-date information on school events, student learning 
activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their 
child's education. 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, felt a sense of connection and engagement with the 
school community. 
Parents participated in volunteer opportunities and events to connect with 
the school community and to learn about academic goals and progress 
(Back To School, Math Night, Earth Day, Open House, ELAC, Parent Club, 
etc.). 
 
Metrics: 
Parent participation on LCAP engagement sessions -- increase to 15%. 
Parent participation in surveys to gather feedback via BrightBytes and 
MyVoice - increase to 25%. 
 
Sustain or improve # parent volunteer sign ins. 
 
Engagement statistics on social media sites -- improve parent engagement 
on Facebook page by 10%. 
        

72



Page 42 of 148

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Parents accessed up-to-date information on school events, student learning 
activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their 
child's education. 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, felt a sense of connection and engagement with the 
school community. 
Parents participated in volunteer opportunities and events to connect with 
the school community and to learn about academic goals and progress 
(Back To School, Math Night, Earth Day, Open House, ELAC, Parent Club, 
etc.). 
 
 
 
Metrics: 
Parent participation in LCAP engagement sessions -- increased by 10%. 
 
Parent participation in surveys to gather feedback via BrightBytes and 
MyVoice - increased by 50%. 
 
Improved parent volunteer and event sign ins by 3% or more. 
 
Engagement statistics on social media sites -- improved parent engagement 
on Facebook page by 10%, based on page likes and comments. 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, 
Numeracy, technology, English 
language, Student Outcomes, 
4C's, Social-Emotional learning, 
and Positive Parenting. 
 

 4.1 Provided Parent Education: 
Literacy, Numeracy, technology, 
English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130/3xxx-SG04) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$600  

 4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130/3xxx-SG04) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$200 

73



Page 43 of 148

4.1.b Materials (0000-4390) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $200  

 4.1.b Materials (0000-4390) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $0 

4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-
4760-1000-2100/3xxx-SG04) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $20,146  

 4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-
4760-1000-2100/3xxx-SG04) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $20,588 

4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-
1000-2100/3xxx-SG04) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $200  

 4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-
1000-2100/3xxx-SG04) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $200 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.2 Develop tools to communicate 
with parents regarding student 
progress 
 

 4.2 Developed tools to 
communicate with parents 
regarding student progress 

 4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-5830-SG04) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental $500  

 4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-5830-SG04) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental $500 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an 
understanding of educational 
programs and parent engagement 
such as social media, district and 
school websites, SchoolGo mobile 
app, e-newsletters, LCAP 
Infographics and virtual meetings 
(AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, 
etc.) including School/Community 
events that showcase student 
learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 

 4.3 Used a variety of 
communication platforms to 
promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, 
district and school websites, 
SchoolGo mobile app, e-
newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, 
Google Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that 
showcase student learning 
(exhibitions, performances, etc.) 

 4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $100  

 4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $100 

4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $160  

 4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $160 

4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-

 4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-

74



Page 44 of 148

 4340) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $160  

4340) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $160 

4.3.d Photography 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base No 
addtional costs  

 4.3.d Photography 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base No 
addtional costs 

4.3.e SchoolGo annual 
subscription ($1 per student) 
(0000-1110-1000-4340) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$50  

 4.3.e SchoolGo annual 
subscription ($1 per student) 
(0000-1110-1000-4340) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$50 

4.3.f LCAP Infographics for 
Website                                
(1110-5830) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $1,600  

 4.3.f LCAP Infographics for 
Website                                
(1110-5830) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $0 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.4 Provide parent education 
through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including 
English language support, 
strategies for supporting students 
in academic learning at home. 
 

 4.4 Provided parent education 
through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including 
English language support, 
strategies for supporting students 
in academic learning at home. 

 4.4.a Consultant Donna 
Champion  (0000-4760-1000-
5830-SG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $600  

 4.4.a Consultant Donna 
Champion  (0000-4760-1000-
5830-SG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $800 

4.4.b Outreach Worker 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.c  

 4.4.b Outreach Worker 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.c 

4.4.c Program Coordinator 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.3.d  

 4.4.c Program Coordinator 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.3.d 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

75



Page 45 of 148

4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 
 

 4.5 Provided parents with access 
to information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 4.5 Teacher hourly rate 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 4.5 Teacher hourly rate 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation 
services 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.1.c  

 4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation 
services 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.1.c 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we improved parent engagement by providing parent education, communicating to parents 
about student progress, utilizing communication platforms, providing a community based tutoring program, and providing access to 
parents related to supporting students.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 

 2,108 newsletter views 
 155 volunteers 
 25 consistent volunteers 
 2095 event participants 
 320 Facebook Likes 

The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 

 8 parent surveys 

 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 

76



Page 46 of 148

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

77



Page 47 of 148

Stakeholder Engagement 
 

 

LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

 

Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

1. Governing Board  
 
LCAP Stakeholder Engagement: Meeting Dates: 

 April 10 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 May 15 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 June 5- (public hearing) 
 June 19 (adoption) 

2. School Site Council: Met on 9/13, 10/25, 11/29, 12/20, 3/28        
3. DELAC Meeting -- participation from all sites.  1/23/2019        
4. ELAC Meeting- 1/17/19        
5. Students 

 My Voice Survey: 2/22-3/8 

6. Teachers 
 Certificated Bargaining Unit Meeting 1/23/2019 
 Staff Meetings: In Weekly Howler in January Notes from ILT 12/17 
 My Voice Survey: 2/3-2/17 
 Instructional Leadership Team: 12/17 
 District Survey: 1/28-2/1/19 

7. Classified Staff 

78



Page 48 of 148

 Classified bargaining unit consulted on 1/23/2019 

8. Parents 
 My Voice Survey: 2/12-2/26 
 Coffee with the Principal: 9/11 and 9/14 
 Events (various throughout the year) 

9. Staff 
 Districtwide meeting 
 District Staff Survey 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting: 1/31/2019        
         

 

Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

1. Governing Board  

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

2. School Site Council 

 School Site Council requested the following : 

3. DELAC Meeting 

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

4. ELAC Meeting 

 The ELAC was happy with the direction of the school and LCAP goals, actions and services. 

5. Students 
79



Page 49 of 148

 My Voice Survey: Indications that we must continue our work with LCAP Goal 1: Culture: Create a positive, learning focused 
environment and culture for all students, include the following data points which represent the percentage of students in total 
agreement: Grades 3-5: "Other students listen to my ideas" 32%, "I feel important in my classroom" 50%, "Students respect 
each other" 48%, "My teacher hangs up my work in the classroom or hallway." 50%, "My teacher knows what I like to do" 
50%, "Students help make classroom rules." 46%. Grades 6: "Students respect each other." 45%, "Teachers care if I am 
absent from school." 41%, "Teachers recognize me when I try my best." 45%, "Adults and students work together to make 
our school better." 45%, "Teachers have fun at school." 35%, "I enjoy working on projects with other students." 41%, "My 
classes help me understand what is happening in my everyday life" 28%, "I find homework helpful to my overall learning." 
10%, "I know the goals my school is working on this year." 41% 

 Student Council 

No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time.  
 
6. Teachers 

 Certificated Bargaining Unit : Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. Professional learning- teachers would like to have 
their meeting in May as per the contract to give input for each site. Shortened Wednesdays- The would like them planned in 
advance and alternate with little changes into the year. 

 Staff Meetings: No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

 My Voice Survey: 11 respondents: We plan to include more metrics from this survey in the 19-20 LCAP. Indications that we 
must continue our work with LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching Implement teaching practices that support students in the 
achievement of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. The percentages represent the % of 
teachers in agreement: "I feel comfortable in the staff room " 73%, "Our school is a dynamic and creative learning 
environment." 73%, "Meaningful professional development opportunities exist in my district." 73%, "Setting yearly goals with 
my supervisor is important for my work." 73%, "Continuing my education is important for my future." 73% 

 Instructional Leadership Team 

7. Classified Staff 

 Classified would like to meet and give input on Professional learning for 19-20. No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, 
metrics were requested at this time. 

80



Page 50 of 148

8. Parents 

 My Voice Survey: 8 respondents. We must continue our LCAP Goal 4: Improve Parent Engagement actions. We plan to add 
the following questions from this survey to the LCAP: Feel welcome at school, Parent evenings/meetings are worth 
attending, Parents feel comfortable going to parent-teacher conferences, Input and opinions are valued at my child's school. 
We also plan to increase the # of responses from parents. 

 PTO Meeting 

 Events: We had about 750 event participants and 181 volunteers in all of our events. Each of the events help build 
community and develop relationship with our stakeholders so they can share their opinions and develop trust. 

9. Staff 

 District-wide Staff LCAP Meeting Feedback: Professional learning- teachers would like to have their meeting in May as per 
the contract to give input for each site. Shortened Wednesdays- The would like them planned in advance and alternate with 
little changes into the year. 

 District Staff Survey: 62 Respondents: The school effectively supports professional learning to facilitate all students 
achieving the academic standards.77%, I have an adequate curriculum at this time to effectively implement the standards 
53%, Assessment data and students' work is analyzed and used to make instructional decisions as a grade level team. 
85%, *The school implements strategies and processes for the regular involvement of the parent community including non 
English speaking parents. 65%, The school has an atmosphere of trust, respect, and professionalism. 94%, The school 
offers adequate services, including referral services, to support students in areas of health, counseling, academic assistance 
including English language development, etc. 33%, most important state priorities: Basic Services 64% and Course Access 
71%. Implication on LCAP: Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting 
 
        

         
 

81



Page 51 of 148

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to feel safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with others. 
Students need to feel engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their school community. 
Students need to feel that bullying is not problem at school. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers and parents) 2019-2020: 
70 % of students in grades 3-5 reported feeling important in their classrooms 
85 % of 6th graders reported feeling like a valued member of the school community 
75% of students in grades 3-5 reported feeling comfortable asking questions in class 
80% of students in grade 6 reported feeling comfortable asking questions in class 
 
Healthy Kids Survey 2019-2020: 
Feel safe at school (85%) 
Caring Relationship w/Adults (50%) 
Meaningful Participation (70%) 

82



Page 52 of 148

School Connectedness (70%) 
 
Student to student surveys conducted in Spring 2020 - decrease in reporting of playground conflict and absence of positive activities 
and increase in reporting of positive feelings at recess and at play. 
 
Attendance Rates -- 98% 
Truancy Rate -- .2% 
Suspension Rates -- .5% 
Expulsion Rate - 0% 
 
Facilities: Sustained Exemplary Status 
Williams Instructional Materials -- sustained 100% access. 
Maintain 100% Teachers appropriately assigned and fully credentialed. 
 
CST (2013): 50.4% ELA; 55.7% Math. 
API - N/A 
% Students Completing A-G Requirements - N/A 
Number of CTE classes -- N/A 
% Middle School Drop Out Rate -- N/A 
% High School Drop Out Rate -- N/A 
% High School Graduation Rate -- N/A 
% Students passes AP - N/A 
% students who passed EAP - N/A 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

My Voice Survey 
(students, teachers, and 
parents): 
% of students in grades 
3-5 reported feeling 
important in their 
classrooms 
 
 
 

 My Voice Survey 
(students, teachers and 
parents) 2016-2017: 
 
41 % 
 

 My Voice Survey 
(students, teachers and 
parents) 2017-2018: 
 
46.4 % 
 

 My Voice Survey 
(students, teachers and 
parents) 2018-2019 
 
50% 
 

 My Voice Survey 
(students, teachers and 
parents) 2019-2020 
 
55% 
 

83



Page 53 of 148

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

. 
 
        
% of 6th graders 
reported feeling like a 
valued member of the 
school community        

 68 %  52 %  24%  29% 

% of students grades 3-
5 reported feeling 
comfortable asking 
questions in class        

 49 %  48 %  62%  67% 

% of students in grade 6 
reported feeling 
comfortable asking 
questions in class        

 60%  70.4 %  48%  53% 

CHKS: 
Feel safe at school % 
        

 79%  69%  NA  74% 

Caring Relationship 
w/Adults %        

 14%  46%  NA  51% 

Meaningful Participation 
%        

 33%  8%  NA  13% 

School Connectedness 
%        

 35%  35%  NA  40% 

Attendance Rates -- %  
(April of Current Year)        

 96%  97% before fires; 95% 
after fires 

 (April 2019):95%  95% 

Chronic Absenteeism 
(Previous Year) 
 
Status 
Change 
Performance Color 
 

   Dashboard-NA 
 
 
7.7% 
NA 
NA 
 

 Dashboard 
(New Indicator-2017-
2018 Data) 
 
5.9% 
Decreased 1.8% 
Green 

 Dashboard 
(2018-2019 Goal) 
 
5% 
Decrease 0.9% 
Green 
 

84



Page 54 of 148

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Current Year as of April 
        

 
 

(April 2020):_______ 
 

Suspension Rates 
(Previous Year) 
 
Status 
Change 
Performance Color 
 
Current Year as of April 
        

  
 
 
 
 
2.8% 
 

 Dashboard 
(2016-2017 Data) 
 
3.4% 
+2% 
Orange 
 
(April 2018) 2.63 % 
 
 
 

 Dashboard 
(2017-2018 Data) 
 
3.4% 
0% 
Orange 
 
(April 2019):2% 
 

 Dashboard 
(2018-2019 Goal) 
 
3% 
0.4% 
Green 
 
(April 2020):_______ 
 
 
 
 

Expulsion Rate - %         0%  0%  0%  0% 

FIT Facilities: Sustained 
Exemplary Status        

 Exemplary Status  Exemplary Status  Exemplary Status  Exemplary Status 

Williams Instructional 
Materials -- sustained 
100% access.        

 100%  100%  100%  100% 

California Commission 
on Teacher 
Credentialing: 
Maintain 100% 
Teachers appropriately 
assigned and fully 
credentialed. 
        

 100%  100%  100%  100% 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 

85



Page 55 of 148

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully!        

 1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully! 

 1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and Restorative Practices. 
 
 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

86



Page 56 of 148

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No additional cost  No additional  No additional 
        No additional cost  No additional  No additional Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No additional cost  No additional  No additional Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox/No Bully!  No additional 
costs as consultant is now 
employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox/No Bully!  No additional 
costs as consultant is now 
employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox and Restorative Practices.  
No additional costs as consultant is 
now employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202) 

Amount        $779  $779  $779 
        $779  $779  $779 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $779  $779  $779 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)                   (0000-
1110-1000-5880-SG01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)                    
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SG01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)          (0000-1110-
1000-5880-SG01) 

Amount        $50  $50  $250 
        $50  $50  $250 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $50  $50  $250 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                             
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                             
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                             
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

87



Page 57 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.2 Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate.        

 1.2 Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate. 

 1.2 Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $149,315  $155,934  $162,102 
        $149,315  $155,934  $162,102 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $149,315  $155,934  $162,102 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300/3xxx-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300/3xxx-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300/3xxx-0000) 

Amount        $1,416,000  $1,225,525  $1,237,345 
        $1,416,000  $1,225,525  $1,237,345 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,416,000  $1,225,525  $1,237,345 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100/3xxx-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100/3xxx-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100/3xxx-0000) 

88



Page 58 of 148

Amount        see 1.2.b  see 1.2.b  see 1.2.b 
        see 1.2.b  see 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        see 1.2.b  see 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving-No 
additional cost; embedded in 
salaries 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 

Amount        $0    $4,000 
        $0    $4,000 Source        Base    LCFF Base 
        $0    $4,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
Counselor contracted, did not use 
personnel 

  
 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.d Grade Level Team Meetings 
(Site Based) / Student Assessment 
Team Meetings (Site Based)    
(0000-1110-1000-1149/3xxx-BG01) 
 
 

Amount            $6,700 
            $6,700 Source            LCFF Supplemental and 

Concentration 
            $6,700 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.2.e Develop District & School 
Identity/Branding Statement - Kamm 
Solutions      (0000-1110-1000-5830-
SG01) 
 
 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

89



Page 59 of 148

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc.        

 1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc. 

 1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $32,136  $30,186  $26,114 
        $32,136  $30,186  $26,114 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $32,136  $30,186  $26,114 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                       
(0000-1530-1000-2100/3xxx-SG01) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                 (0000-
1530-1000-2100/3xxx-SG01) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                 (0000-
1530-1000-2100/3xxx-SG01) 

90



Page 60 of 148

Amount        $1,167  $1,200  $1,200 
        $1,167  $1,200  $1,200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,167  $1,200  $1,200 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)  (1110-1000-
1130/3xxx-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)  (1650-1000-
1130/1149/3xxx-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)  (1650-1000-
1130/1149/3xxx-SG01) 

Amount        $500     
        $500     Source        Supplemental     
        $500     Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.3.c Artist in Residence (community 
partnerships to support arts 
education)             (0000-1130-1000-
5830) 

  
 

  
 

Amount        $29,113  $26,078  $31,173 
        $29,113  $26,078  $31,173 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $29,113  $26,078  $31,173 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)          (0000-1510-
1000-1100/3xxx-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)       (0000-1510-1000-
1100/3xxx-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)          (0000-1510-
1000-1100-3xxx-SG01) 

Amount        $0  $1,500  $1,500 
        $0  $1,500  $1,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $1,500  $1,500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club -
Shared by 3 K6 programs          
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club -
Shared by 3 K6 programs          
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
11.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club -
Shared by 3 K6 programs (STEAM)     
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG01) 

91



Page 61 of 148

Amount        $500  $500  $1,000 
        $500  $500  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-1660-
1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-1660-
1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-1660-
1000-4310-SG01) 

Amount            $5,800 
            $5,800 Source            LCFF Supplemental and 

Concentration 
            $5,800 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.g Homework Club (0000-1110-
1000-2100/3xxx-SG01) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
92



Page 62 of 148

1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities.        

 1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities. 

 1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 
        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance Supervisor 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance Supervisor 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance Supervisor 

Amount        Included in 1.4.a  Included in 1.4.a  Included in 1.4.a 
        Included in 1.4.a  Included in 1.4.a  Included in 1.4.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        Included in 1.4.a  Included in 1.4.a  Included in 1.4.a Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.b Grounds Supervisor 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.b Grounds Supervisor 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.b Grounds Supervisor 

Amount        $253,687  $250,834  $260,328 
        $253,687  $250,834  $260,328 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $253,687  $250,834  $260,328 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff including 
benefits 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff including 
benefits 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff including 
benefits 

Amount        $22,000  $43,000  $28,000 
        $22,000  $43,000  $28,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $22,000  $43,000  $28,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 4370,4380,4400 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 4370,4380,4400 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 4370,4380,4400 
 
 

93



Page 63 of 148

Amount        $78,000  $78,000  $78,000 
        $78,000  $78,000  $78,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $78,000  $78,000  $78,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4.e   Maintenance repairs including 
transfer to Def Maint Fund 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4.e   Maintenance repairs including 
transfer to Def Maint Fund 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4.e   Maintenance repairs including 
transfer to Def Maint Fund 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning.        

 1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning. 

 1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

94



Page 64 of 148

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $5,000  $5,000  $5,000 
        $5,000  $5,000  $5,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $5,000  $5,000  $5,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st century modernization 
project (0000-0-1110-1000-4310-
RLC) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st century modernization 
project (0000-0-1110-1000-4310-
RLC) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st century modernization 
project (0000-0-1110-1000-4310-
RLCP) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision.        

 1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision. 

 1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

95



Page 65 of 148

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $25,850  $43,270  $44,313 
        $25,850  $43,270  $44,313 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $25,850  $43,270  $44,313 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors including benefits 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors including benefits 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors including benefits 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.7 Provide tiers of social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 
in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships.        

 1.7 Provide tiers of social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 
in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships. 

 1.7 Provide tiers of social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 
in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships. 

96



Page 66 of 148

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $26,000  $25,000  $25,750 
        $26,000  $25,000  $25,750 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $26,000  $25,000  $25,750 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 

Amount        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c 
        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

97



Page 67 of 148

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.8 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services.        

 1.8 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services. 

 1.8 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $0  $1,000  $0 
        $0  $1,000  $0 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $1,000  $0 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) 

Amount        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a 
        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a Counseling time 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a Counseling time 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a Counseling time 

 

98



Page 68 of 148

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California Common Core Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Teachers will continue to receive opportunities for professional learning and to develop and refine teaching practices that support the 
California Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who participated in professional development related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math and ELD. 
 
20% increase based on baseline for evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes  (student work products, lessons/units, rubrics developed) 
 
Maintain 100 % of classrooms w/ evidence of core instructional practices aligned to the Common Core State Standards in ELA and 
Math. 
 
Maintain Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered: 100 % positive feedback was received. 
 
BrightBytes Survey 2020: 
Foundational Skills -- 82% report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 70% readily utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 30% report ease with these types of tasks. 
Digital Citizenship Skills - 35% report knowledge of these skills. 

99



Page 69 of 148

Confidence with Technology - 75% report confidence in learning about new technologies. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

% of teachers who 
participated in 
professional 
development related to 
CCSS, ELA, CCSS 
Math and ELD. 
 
 
 
 
        

 100%.  100%  100%  100% 

Establish baseline for 
evidence of classroom 
practices related to the 
California Content 
Standards and the 
District's Student 
Outcomes  (student 
work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics 
developed)        

   7% increase  12 of 12 teachers  12 of 12 teachers 

% of classrooms w/ 
evidence of core 
instructional practices 
aligned to the California 
Common Core 
Standards and the 
District's Student 
Outcomes.        

 100 %  100 % of classrooms  100 % of classrooms  100 % of classrooms 

Teacher feedback on 
professional learning 

 100 % positive feedback  100 % positive feedback 
was received 

 82 % positive feedback 
was received 

 90 % positive feedback 

100



Page 70 of 148

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

opportunities offered: % 
positive feedback 
received. 
 
        
My Voice Survey- 
Teacher 
Number of Respondents 
        

   23  11  12 

% of teachers who feel 
like a valued member of 
school community 
 
        

 91% (17-18)  91%  91%  >90% 

% of teachers who feel 
professional 
development is 
important to educational 
growth        

 86% (17-18)  86%  82%  87% 

% of teachers who feel  
staff work in 
collaborative manner        

 86% (17-18)  86%  91%  >90% 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

101



Page 71 of 148

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels.        

 2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

 2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

102



Page 72 of 148

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1 Changed schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students, 
allowing staff time to collaborate, 
review student work, develop 
rubrics, plan instruction, and reflect 
on teaching practice.  Costs included 
in Salaries/Benefits for Highly 
Qualified Teachers.  (0000-1110-
1000-1149-SUBX 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1 Changed schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students, 
allowing staff time to collaborate, 
review student work, develop rubrics, 
plan instruction, and reflect on 
teaching practice.  Costs included in 
Salaries/Benefits for Highly Qualified 
Teachers.  (0000-1110-1000-1149-
SUBX 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1 Changed schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students, 
allowing staff time to collaborate, 
review student work, develop rubrics, 
plan instruction, and reflect on 
teaching practice.  Costs included in 
Salaries/Benefits for Highly Qualified 
Teachers.  (0000-1110-1000-1149-
SUBX 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners           X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

103



Page 73 of 148

2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards.        

 2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards. 

 2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $41,000  $37,676  See 3.2.f 
        $41,000  $37,676  See 3.2.f Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $41,000  $37,676  See 3.2.f Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

Amount        $33,600  $34,647  $39,714 
        $33,600  $34,647  $39,714 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $33,600  $34,647  $39,714 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)   
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)   
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)   
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

Amount        $25,000  $15,000  $5,000 
        $25,000  $15,000  $5,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Other 
        $25,000  $15,000  $5,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.c Continue Writing PD   (0000-0-
1110-1000-5202-SGWW) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.c Continue Writing PD   (0000-0-
1110-1000-5202-SGWW) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.c Continue Writing PD   (7510-0-
1110-1000-5202-0000) 

104



Page 74 of 148

Amount        $8,833  $7,000  $9,200 
        $8,833  $7,000  $9,200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Other 
        $8,833  $7,000  $9,200 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD - Teacher 
time            (0000-0-1110-1000-
1130-SGWW) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD - Teacher 
time            (0000-0-1110-1000-
1130-SGWW) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD - Teacher 
time            (7510-0-1110-1000-
1130-0000) 

Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02/0000-
1110-1000-1130) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02/0000-
1110-1000-1130) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02/0000-
1110-1000-1130) 

Amount        $6,600  $0  $0 
        $6,600  $0  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $6,600  $0  $0 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.f Participation in NCTIP Program 
(0000-5830-BTSA) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.f Not anticipating any need for 
participation in NCTIP Program in 
2018-2019 (0000-5830-BTSA) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.f Not anticipating any need for 
participation in NCTIP Program in 
2019-2020 (0000-5830-BTSA) 

105



Page 75 of 148

Amount        See 1.2.b    $5,000 
        See 1.2.b    $5,000 Source        Base    LCFF Supplemental and 

Concentration 
        See 1.2.b    $5,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.g Develop New Teacher Support 
Network (contract with SCOE), 
Teacher costs embedded in salaries 
- Did not work on this program in 
2017-2018 

  
 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.g Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development. (0000-1110-1000-
1149-SGPD) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X Schoolwide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 

 2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 

 2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 

106



Page 76 of 148

teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math.        

teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math. 

teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.a  Revised student schedule to 
allow staff time on shortened 
Wednesdays 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.a  Revised student schedule to 
allow staff time on shortened 
Wednesdays 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.a  Revised student schedule to 
allow staff time on shortened 
Wednesdays 

Amount        $1,700  $2,500  $2,500 
        $1,700  $2,500  $2,500 Source        Title II  Title II  Title II 
        $1,700  $2,500  $2,500 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff,  (4035-
5202) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-1110-1000-5202-
T2PD) 

Amount        $4,000  $4,000  $4,000 
        $4,000  $4,000  $4,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $4,000  $4,000  $4,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 

107



Page 77 of 148

Amount        $20,100  $23,209  $29,475 
        $20,100  $23,209  $29,475 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $20,100  $23,209  $29,475 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600-SG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(50%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600-SG02) 

Amount        $0  $2,000  $2,000 
        $0  $2,000  $2,000 Source        Title II  Title II  Title II 
        $0  $2,000  $2,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.e Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (4035-1110-
1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.e Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (4035-1110-
1000-1149) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.e Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (4035-1110-
1000-1149) 

Amount            $4,000 
            $4,000 Source            Other 
            $4,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.f Professional development for 
staff on new math series. (7510-
1110-1000-1149-0000) 
 
 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
108



Page 78 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.4 Develop pilot program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6        

 2.4 Develop pilot program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6 

 2.4 Develop program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $500  $0 
        $500  $500  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $0 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.4 Continue to Pilot Math 
performance tasks program-
consultant time and release time 
(0000-1110-1000-1149/5830) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.4 Math coach- consultant time and 
release time (0000-1460-1000-
1149/5830) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.4 Implement Math performance 
tasks program-consultant time and 
release time (0000-1460-1000-
1149/5830) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
109



Page 79 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6.        

 2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6. 

 2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time. 
Teacher costs embedded in Salaries 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time. 
Teacher costs embedded in Salaries 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time. 
Teacher costs embedded in Salaries 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

110



Page 80 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas.        

 2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas. 

 2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $0  $1,000  $1,000 
        $0  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
general education teachers to learn 
arts integration strategies to use 
across curriculum-release time 
and/or extra-duty time. (1110-1000-
1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
general education teachers to learn 
arts integration strategies to use 
across curriculum-release time 
and/or extra-duty time. (1130-1000-
1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
general education teachers to learn 
arts integration strategies to use 
across curriculum-release time 
and/or extra-duty time. (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

111



Page 81 of 148

Amount        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide          
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote strategies academic discourse, 
structured language practices across core 
curricular areas and designated English 
Language Development during the school 
day.        

 2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote strategies academic discourse, 
structured language practices across core 
curricular areas and designated English 
Language Development during the school 
day. 

 2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote strategies academic discourse, 
structured language practices across core 
curricular areas and designated English 
Language Development during the school 
day. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

112



Page 82 of 148

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,800  $1,800  $1,800 
        $1,800  $1,800  $1,800 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,800  $1,800  $1,800 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (4760-1000-
5830)  No expenditures in 2017-
2018 as of 05/08/18 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (4760-1000-
5830-SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (4760-1000-
5830-SG02) 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.  (01-0000-0-
1110-1000-1130)  Schedule change 
to shortened Wednesdays allowed, 
collaboration time within regularly 
scheduled day 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.  (01-0000-0-
1110-1000-1130)  Schedule change 
to shortened Wednesdays allowed, 
collaboration time within regularly 
scheduled day 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.  (01-0000-0-
1110-1000-1130)  Schedule change 
to shortened Wednesdays allowed, 
collaboration time within regularly 
scheduled day 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

113



Page 83 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math.        

 2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math. 

 2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a 
        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

Amount        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs 
        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830) 

114



Page 84 of 148

Amount        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs 
        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830) 

 

115



Page 85 of 148

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        

X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in skills for future success such as literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive 
collaboration, critical and creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students need to develop proficiency in academic language (all) and English language skills (EL). 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in the use of digital tools for research (accessing information), evaluating sources, digital 
citizenship, communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career readiness. 
Students need to develop physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
65% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 65% of students scored at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -  47% of students met grade level benchmarks. 
 
POUSD CAASPP (increase in % met or exceeded standard) 
ELA         Math 
Grade 3 72%  58% 

116



Page 86 of 148

Grade 4 69%  52% 
Grade 5 60%         48% 
Grade 6 47%   39% 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English --  70%-met target 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 50%-met target 
 
EL Reclassification - 30% or more students Redesignated Fluent English Proficient (RFEP) 
CELDT/ELPAC -  45% of students gained at least one level (measured by CELDT/ELPAC) 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey 2019: 
Foundational Skills - Advanced 
Online Skills - Advanced 
Multimedia Skills - Advanced 
Classroom Skills - Advanced (use of 4C's) 
 
Evidence of outcomes as demonstrated by student work products as well as online publishing of student writing and project work. 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 65% 
 
Body Composition -- 70% 
 
All students (Gr. 1-6) have access to a broad course of study (English, math, social science, science, visual and performing arts, 
health and PE) 
 
Maintain access for all students (Gr. 1-6) to have access to a broad course of study (English, math, social science, science, visual and 
performing arts, health and PE) 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Renaissance Learning 
Assessments STAR 
Reading (Gr. 3-6): % of 
students in grades 3-6 
read grade level literary 

 50%  50%  40%  45% 

117



Page 87 of 148

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

and informational text 
with accuracy and 
comprehension. 
 
        
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): % 
of students scored at or 
above proficiency on 
grade level standards.        

 50%  50%  60%  65% 

DIBELS (K-6) -  % of 
students met grade level 
benchmarks.        

 32%  32%  31%  36% 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 3-6) 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
        

 (2016-2017 Data) 
30 points below 
standards 
Decreased 1 point 
Orange 
 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
30 points below 
standards 
Decreased 1 point 
Orange 
 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
16 points below 
standards 
Increased 14 points 
Yellow 
 

 (2018-2019 Goal) 
5 points below 
standards 
Increased 11 points 
Green 
 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 3-6) 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange 
        

 (2016-2017 Data) 
3 Orange (EL, Hispanic, 
SED) 
0 Red 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
3 Orange (EL, Hispanic, 
SED) 
0 Red 
 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
0 Orange 
0 Red 
 
 

 (2018-2019 Goal) 
0 Orange 
0 Red 
 

Math Academic 
Indicator (CAASPP 3-6) 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
        

 (2016-2017 Data) 
 
75 points below 
standards 
Decreased 4 point 
Orange 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
 
75 points below 
standards 
Decreased 4 point 
Orange 
 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
 
60 points below 
standards 
Increased 16 points 
Yellow 
 

 (2018-2019 Goal) 
 
45 points below 
standards 
Increased 15 points 
Yellow 
 

Math Academic 
Indicator (CAASPP 3-6) 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
 
1 Orange (Hispanic) 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
 
1 Orange (Hispanic) 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
 
0 Orange 

 (2018-2019 Goal) 
 
0 Orange 

118



Page 88 of 148

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange: 
        

2 Red (EL, SED) 
 

2 Red (EL, SED) 
 

0 Red 
 

0 Red 
 

English Learner 
Indicator        

 2015: 64% 
2016: 77% 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
71% 
 

 TBD-Indicator Changing  TBD 

Physical Fitness Test 
(5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- % in 
HFZ 
Body Composition -- % 
in HFZ 
        

 (2015-2016 Data) 
68% 
61% 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
68% 
64% 
 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
59% 
51% 
 

 (2018-2019 Goal) 
64% 
56% 
 

All students (Gr. 1-6) 
have access to a broad 
course of study (English, 
math, social science, 
science, visual and 
performing arts, health 
and PE)        

 100%  100%  100%  100% 
 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

119



Page 89 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals.        

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals. 

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $4,390  $4,400  $4,400 
        $4,390  $4,400  $4,400 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $4,390  $4,400  $4,400 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

Amount        $1,771  $1,750  $1,750 
        $1,771  $1,750  $1,750 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,771  $1,750  $1,750 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.b DIBELS - annual subscription 
(0000-1110-1000-4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.b DIBELS - annual subscription 
(0000-1110-1000-4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.b DIBELS and ESGI - annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340/5840) 

120



Page 90 of 148

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes. - Revised daily 
schedule to include shortened 
Wednesdays for students to allow 
collaboration time for staff 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes. - Revised daily 
schedule to include shortened 
Wednesdays for students to allow 
collaboration time for staff 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes. 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

121



Page 91 of 148

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards.        

 3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards. 

 3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Changed student schedule to 
include shortened Wednesdays 
allowing collaboration time for staff 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Changed student schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays allowing 
collaboration time for staff 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL 

Amount        $0     
        $0     Source        Base     
        $0     Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-1000-
4310) 

  
 

  
 

Amount        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

122



Page 92 of 148

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        $79,860  $20,000  $1,000 
        $79,860  $20,000  $1,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $79,860  $20,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Committee; purchased 
Pilot materials for Gr 6 and 
purchased implementation materials 
for Gr TK-5. (0000-0-1110-1000-
4110-7156) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Textbook Adoption Gr 6 (0000-0-
1110-1000-4110-7156) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Committee Development 
-minimal replacement costs (6300-0-
1110-1000-4110-7156) 

Amount            $17,000 
            $17,000 Source            LCFF Base 
            $17,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.2.f Implement STEAM lab (Lindsay 
Hunter) (0000-1110-1000-5830-
STEM) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

123



Page 93 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills.        

 3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills. 

 3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $33,555  $34,528  $35,058 
        $33,555  $34,528  $35,058 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $33,555  $34,528  $35,058 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200/3xxx) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200/3xxx) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200/3xxx) 

Amount        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b 
        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

124



Page 94 of 148

Amount        $500  $500  $0 
        $500  $500  $0 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $0 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction (0000-1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction (0000-1110-1000-1130-
SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction (0000-1110-1000-1130-
SG03) 

Amount        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

125



Page 95 of 148

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills.        

 3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d 
        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

126



Page 96 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness.        

 3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness. 

 3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a 
        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 Specific Student Groups: Special Education         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

127



Page 97 of 148

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes.        

 3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes. 

 3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $48,667  $50,895  $52,284 
        $48,667  $50,895  $52,284 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $48,667  $50,895  $52,284 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers for RSP 
(2 FTE for District K-12 Program) 
(6500-5770-1120-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers for RSP 
(2 FTE for District K-12 Program) 
(6500-5770-1120-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers for RSP 
(2 FTE for District K-12 Program) 
(6500-5770-1120-1100-0000) 

Amount        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 
        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

128



Page 98 of 148

Amount        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 
        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (6500-5770-
1120-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (6500-5770-
1120-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (6500-5770-
1120-2100) 

Amount        $20,942  $22,116  $23,788 
        $20,942  $22,116  $23,788 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $20,942  $22,116  $23,788 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(6500-5770-1110-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(6500-5770-1110-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(6500-5770-1110-2100) 

Amount        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 
        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 
and (6500-5770-3150-5830) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 

Amount        $26,489  $32,882  $34,220 
        $26,489  $32,882  $34,220 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $26,489  $32,882  $34,220 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

129



Page 99 of 148

Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.7 Develop Math Curriculum Committee 
to research and explore math instructional 
resources.        

 3.7 Math Curriculum Committee to assist 
with math adoption implementation. 

 3.7 Math Curriculum Committee to assist 
with math adoption implementation. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 2.4  See 2.4  See 2.4 
        See 2.4  See 2.4  See 2.4 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 2.4  See 2.4  See 2.4 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum Committee to research 
math instructional materials 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum to research math 
instructional materials 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum Committee to research 
math instructional materials 

130



Page 100 of 148

Amount        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e 
        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.7.b Implement Math instructional 
materials 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.7.b Implement Math instructional 
materials 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities        

 3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 

 3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

131



Page 101 of 148

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $7,000  $7,500  $7,500 
        $7,000  $7,500  $7,500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $7,000  $7,500  $7,500 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5880-FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5806-FT03)  (Based on $25/ADA) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5806-FT03)  (Based on $25/ADA) 

Amount        $500  $500  $1,000 
        $500  $500  $1,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 

Amount        $8,041  $7,380  $8,460 
        $8,041  $7,380  $8,460 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $8,041  $7,380  $8,460 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03)  (Based on $180/6th Grade 
Students)  (Projecting 41 6th Grade 
Students in 2018-2019) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03)  (Based on $180/6th Grade 
Students)  (Projecting 41 6th Grade 
Students in 2019-2020) 

Action 9 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
132



Page 102 of 148

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention.        

 3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention. 

 3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

133



Page 103 of 148

Amount        $500  $500  $1,000 
        $500  $500  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310) 

Amount        No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017 

 No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017 

 $8,370 

        No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017 

 No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017 

 $8,370 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 

Subscription in 2016-2017 
 No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 

Subscription in 2016-2017 
 $8,370 Budget 

Reference        
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - 3-year 
subscription (0000-1570-1000-5840-
SG03) 

Amount        $8,830  $9,395  $9,777 
        $8,830  $9,395  $9,777 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $8,830  $9,395  $9,777 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600) 

Action 10 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

134



Page 104 of 148

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math.        

 3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math. 

 3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $600  $600  $600 
        $600  $600  $600 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $600  $600  $600 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                                                  
(0000-1660-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                                                  
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                                                  
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10 Intervention materials                                                            
(0000-1660-1000-4310) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10 Intervention materials                                                            
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10 Intervention materials                                                            
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

Action 11 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

135



Page 105 of 148

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer.        

 3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer. 

 3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 
        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11 Teacher hourly rate                             
(0000-1650-1000-1130-
SG03/SGMK) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11 Teacher hourly rate                             
(0000-1650-1000-1130-
SG03/SGMK) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11 Teacher hourly rate                             
(0000-1650-1000-1130-
SG03/SGMK) 

 

136



Page 106 of 148

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Parents need access to up-to-date information on school events, student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional 
goals to support their child's education. 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs, need to feel a sense of connection and 
engagement with the school community. Parents need to participate in volunteer opportunities and events to connect with the school 
community and to learn about academic goals and progress (Back To School, Math Night, Earth Day, Open House, ELAC, Parent 
Club, etc.). 
 
Metrics: 
Parent participation on LCAP engagement sessions -- increase to 20%. 
Parent participation in surveys to gather feedback via BrightBytes and MyVoice - increase to 25%. 
Sustain or improve # parent volunteer sign ins. 
Engagement statistics on social media sites -- improve parent engagement on Facebook page by 10% (as measured by followers, 
likes, and comments) 
 
 

137



Page 107 of 148

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

# of Event Sign-ins or 
attendees 
 
 
 
        

 693 as of April 16, 2018 
 
 

 693 as of April 16, 2018 
 
 

 EVENT Attendees 
Total: 2,085 
 
Ice Cream Social: 150 
Dads and Donuts: 200 
Back to School: 250 
Monster Mash Bash: 
200 
Winter Wonderland: 300 
Movie Night: 70 
Crab Feed: 275 
Book Lovers Ball: 100 
Movie Night: 40 
Open House: 200 
Moms and Muffins: 200 
Color Run: All Students 
End of Year BBQ: 100 
 
 

 EVENT Attendees 
Total: 2000+ 
 

My Voice Parent Survey 
# of Respondents 
 
        

 18-19 baseline year of 8  NA  8  >9 

% Feel welcome at 
school        

 18-19 baseline year of 
100% 

 NA  100%  80%+ 

% Parent 
evenings/meetings are 
worth attending        

 18-19 baseline year of 
100% 

  
NA 
 

 100%  80%+ 

% Feel comfortable 
going to parent-teacher 
conferences        

 18-19 baseline year of 
100% 

 NA  100%  80%+ 

# of consistent parent 
volunteers        

 18-19 baseline year of 
25 

 NA  25  30 

138



Page 108 of 148

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

# of volunteers         18-19 baseline year:155  NA  155  155+ 

Facebook Engagement         18-19 baseline year of 
321 Likes 
327 Follows 
 

 NA  320 Likes 
326 Follows 
 

 321+ Likes 
327+ Follows 
 

Newsletter Readership         According to Smores 
Analytics 

 NA  14 Newsletters 
2,108 views 
 

 14 Newsletters 
2,000 views 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

139



Page 109 of 148

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting.        

 4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $0  $600  $600 
        $0  $600  $600 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $600  $600 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130/3xxx)  No expense 
in 2017-2018 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130/3xxx-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130/3xxx-SG04) 

Amount        $0  $200  $200 
        $0  $200  $200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $200  $200 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390) 

Amount        $17,250  $20,146  $21,475 
        $17,250  $20,146  $21,475 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $17,250  $20,146  $21,475 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100/3xxx) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100/3xxx-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100/3xxx-SG04) 

140



Page 110 of 148

Amount        $0  $200  $200 
        $0  $200  $200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $200  $200 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100/3xxx) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100/3xxx-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100/3xxx-SG04) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress        

 4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress 

 4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

141



Page 111 of 148

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $500  $0 
        $500  $500  $0 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $0 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-1130) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-5830-SG04) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 

 4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 

 4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 

142



Page 112 of 148

app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.)        

app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 

app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $100  $100  $0 
        $100  $100  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $100  $100  $0 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

Amount        $160  $160  $0 
        $160  $160  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $160  $160  $0 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

Amount        $160  $160  $160 
        $160  $160  $160 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $160  $160  $160 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340) 

Amount        No additional costs  No addtional costs  No additional costs 
        No additional costs  No addtional costs  No additional costs Source        Base  Base  Base 
        No additional costs  No addtional costs  No additional costs Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

143



Page 113 of 148

Amount        $50  $50  $0 
        $50  $50  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $50  $50  $0 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription 
($1 per student) (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription 
($1 per student) (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription 
($1 per student) (0000-1110-1000-
4340) 

Amount        $1,600  $1,600  $1,600 
        $1,600  $1,600  $1,600 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,600  $1,600  $1,600 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website                                
(1110-5830) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website                                
(1110-5830) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website                                
(1110-5830) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
144



Page 114 of 148

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home.        

 4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home. 

 4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $300  $600  $600 
        $300  $600  $600 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $300  $600  $600 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.a Consultant Donna Champion  
(0000-4760-1000-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.a Consultant Donna Champion  
(0000-4760-1000-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.a Consultant Donna Champion  
(0000-4760-1000-5830-SG04) 

Amount        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

Amount        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

145



Page 115 of 148

Amount        See 4.1.a     
        See 4.1.a     Source        Supplemental     
        See 4.1.a     Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-4760-
1000-5830) 

  
 

  
 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support.        

 4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 
146



Page 116 of 148

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Teacher hourly rate 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Teacher hourly rate 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Teacher hourly rate 

Amount        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 

147



Page 117 of 148

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$227,548  9.96% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses the non-charter school, 
Jack London Elementary School. Piner-Olivet Union School District is essentially a one-school district with Jack London as the one 
public non-charter school. Jack London's unduplicated percentage is 51.3% which is higher than the 40% required to use 
supplemental grant funds on a school-wide basis, but slightly less than the 55% required to use supplemental grants on a district-wide 
basis. Jack London Elementary School's unduplicated count exceeds 40%, so some of the supplemental grant funds were expended 
on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English learner students. Jack London 
Elementary School plans to expend $265,340 in 2019-20 on supplemental grant programs, exceeding the estimated revenue for 
supplemental grants by over $37,792. The $227,548 estimated supplemental grant revenue is based on the BASF LCFF Calculator 
utilizing the Governor's January budget information. 
 
Jack London Elementary School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs 
of low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based 
on staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 
site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input.  
 
Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Supporting research information as listed in 2017 LCAP as "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services" in 2017-2018 section:  

148



Page 118 of 148

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behaviorial, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6 ($25,000). 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6 ($25,000). 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4 ($2,900). 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4 ($2,900). 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4 ($1,800). 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Piner Olivet Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
Supporting Research Document for Effective Programs/Services can be found in the 2017-2018 section. 
 
------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$212,197  8.71% 
 

149



Page 119 of 148

Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses the non-charter school, 
Jack London Elementary School. Piner-Olivet Union School District is essentially a one-school district with Jack London as the one 
public non-charter school. Jack London's unduplicated percentage is 44.36% which is higher than the 40% required to use 
supplemental grant funds on a school-wide basis, but slightly less than the 55% required to use supplemental grants on a district-wide 
basis. Jack London Elementary School's unduplicated count exceeds 40%, so some of the supplemental grant funds were expended 
on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English learner students. Jack London 
Elementary School plans to expend $293,764 in 2018-19 on supplemental grant programs, exceeding the estimated revenue for 
supplemental grants by over $81,000. The $212,197 estimated supplemental grant revenue is based on the BASF LCFF Calculator 
utilizing the Governor's January budget information. 
 
Jack London Elementary School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs 
of low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based 
on staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 
site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input.  
 
Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Supporting research information as listed in 2017 LCAP as "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services":  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behaviorial, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6 ($25,000). 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6 ($25,000). 

150



Page 120 of 148

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4 ($2,900). 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4 ($2,900). 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4 ($1,800). 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Piner Olivet Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$246,985  9.17% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

151



Page 121 of 148

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses the non-charter school, 
Jack London Elementary School. Piner-Olivet Union School District is essentially a one-school district with Jack London as the one 
public non-charter school. Jack London's unduplicated percentage is 50.10% which is higher than the 40% required to use 
supplemental grant funds on a school-wide basis, but less than the 55% required to use supplemental grants on a district-wide basis. 
Jack London Elementary School's unduplicated count exceeds 40%, so some of the supplemental grant funds were expended on 
school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English learner students. Jack London 
Elementary School expended $281,983 in 2017-18 on supplemental grant programs. The $246,985 supplemental grant funding is 
based on the BASF LCFF Calculator utilizing the Governor's May Revise information. 
 
Jack London Elementary School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs 
of low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based 
on staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 
site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input.  
 
Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services":  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behaviorial, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6 ($25,000). 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6 ($25,000). 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4 ($2,900). 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4 ($2,900). 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 

152



Page 122 of 148

implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4 ($1,800). 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Piner Olivet Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
Supporting Research Document for Programs/Services 

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behaviorial, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 

Reviews of the research on school counseling show that the services of school counselors have a positive effect on children: 
 
1. Borders, L.D., & Drury, S.M. (1992). Comprehensive school counseling programs: A review for policymakers and practitioners. 
Journal of Counseling and Development, 70, 487-498.  
 
2. Whitson, S.C., & Sexton, T.L. (1998). A review of school counseling outcome research: implications for practice. Journal of 
Counseling & Development, 76, 412-426.  
 
Quantitative analyses of research (meta-analyses) also substantiate the beneficial effects of school counseling programs: 
 
1. Prout, H.T. & Demartino, R.A. (1986). A meta-analysis of school-based studies of psychotherapy. Journal of School 
Psychology, 24, 285-292.  
 
2. Sprinthall, N.A. (1981). A new model for research in the science of guidance and counseling. The Personnel and Guidance Journal, 
59, 487-493. 
 
School counseling programs have significant influence on discipline problems. Baker and Gerler reported that students who 
participated in a school counseling program had significantly less inappropriate behaviors and more positive attitudes toward school 
than those students who did not participate in the program. Another study reported that group counseling provided by school 
counselors significantly decreased participants' aggressive and hostile behaviors: 
 

153



Page 123 of 148

1. Baker, S. B., & Gerler, E. R. (2001). Counseling in schools. In D. C. Locke, J. E. Myers, and E. L. Herr (Eds.), The Handbook of 
Counseling, Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications.  
 
2. Omizo, M.M., Hershberger, J.M., & Omizo, S.A. (1988). Teaching children to cope with anger. Elementary School Guidance & 
Counseling, 22, 241-245. 
 
School counselors are also very effective in assisting middle school children in the area of career development (Whiston, S. C., 
Sexton, T. L., & Lasoff, D. L. (1998). Career-intervention outcome: A replication and extension of Oliver and Spokane (1988). Journal 
of Counseling Psychology, 45, 150-165). 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention. 

The heart of any Response-to-Intervention (RTI) model lies in the use of tiered instructional processes. Although the assessment 
components of RTI (universal screening and progress monitoring) are essential elements of implementation, it is the instruction that 
occurs as a function of the outcomes of the assessments that truly drives the changes we hope to see in students who are identified 
as being at risk for not meeting academic expectations. Tiered instruction represents a model in which the instruction delivered to 
students varies on several dimensions that are related to the nature and severity of the student's difficulties.  
 
When a tiered framework is applied schoolwide, with all students and addressing academic and/or behavioral curricular instruction, it 
is often termed a multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS). Researchers interested in MTSS in early reading have suggested that if high 
quality reading instruction and reading interventions are not provided, at-risk readers will continue to struggle into later grades and will 
routinely be identified for special education programs (Juel, 1998; Lyon, 2005; Moats, 1999; Torgesen, 2007). The quality of instruction 
has been found to be influential on student academic outcomes (Darling-Hammond, 2000; Foorman, Francis, Fletcher, 
Schatschneider, Mehta, 1998; Haager, Klingner, & Vaughn, 2007; O’Connor, Fulmer, Harty, & Bell, 2005).  
 
When implementing MTSS/RTI, professional development focuses on instructional features, as well as the academic or behavior 
content and skills, to build teacher capacity and improve instruction (Vaughn, et al., 2008; Knight & Michel, 2011). Universal supports, 
also referred to as Tier 1 instruction, are the initial focus of MTSS/RTI implementation. Universal supports are provided in general 
education and are provided to all students (Speece, Case, & Molloy, 2003). This level of support is characterized by its focus on high-
quality initial instruction, grounded in research, and provided to all students. Providing evidence-based instruction and supports for an 
academic content area or for the social, emotional, or behavioral development in all students has been supported as a way to prevent 
future deficits (Doabler, Cary, Jungjohann, Clarke, Fien, Baker, Smolkowski, & Chard, 2012; Greenwood, Horner, & Kratochwill, 2008). 
A strong implementation of universal level support is the first step in reducing the number of students who will require more targeted 
and/or intensive supports (Nelson, Hurley, Synhorst, & Epstein, 2008; Torgesen, Alexander, Wagner, Rashotte, Voeller, & Conway, 
2001).  

154



Page 124 of 148

 
The term Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) has been described as a comprehensive system of differentiated supports that 
includes evidence-based instruction, universal screening, progress monitoring, formative assessment, research-based interventions 
matched to student needs, and educational decision-making using student outcome data (Chard, Harn, Horner, Simmons, & Kame-
enui, 2008). MTSS/RTI helps provide all students, from all backgrounds, equal educational opportunity - regardless of the academic or 
behavioral difficulties they face - especially as issues of disproportionality exist in learning disability identification (Harry & Klingner, 
2006; McCall & Skrtic, 2009). Considering the focus of MTSS/RTI is prevention (Chard, et al., 2008), reflecting on system issues 
provides focus to improve schools and instruction and therefore student success (Sailor, 2009a). 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. 

The following research indicates a critical need for effective professional development to support providing designated and integrated 
ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices: 
 
1. California Department of Education. (2010). Improving education for English learners: Research-based approaches. 
Sacramento, CA: Author.  
 
2. Calderón, M., August, D., Slavin, R., Duran, D., Madden, N., and Cheung, A. (2005). Bring words to life in classrooms with English 
language learners. In E. H. Hiebert and M. L. Kamil (Eds.), Teaching and learning vocabulary: Bringing research to practice. Mahwah, 
NJ: Erlbraum. 
 
3. Dutro, S., and Kinsella, K. (2010). English language development: Issues and implementation at grades six through twelve. In F. 
Ong and V. Aguilar (Eds.) Improving Education for English Learners: Research?Based Approaches. Sacramento, CA: California 
Department of Education. 
 
4. Goldenberg, C. (2008). Teaching English language learners: What the research does—and does not—say. American Educator, 
32(2), p. 8–23, 42–44. 
 
5. Sato, E., Lagunoff, R., & Yeagley, P. (in press). Academic Language and the Common Core State Standards: Implications for State 
and District Implementation and Supporting the Achievement of English Language Learners. San Francisco, CA: WestEd. 
 
6. Short, D., Echevarría, J., and Richards?Tutor, C. (2011). Research on academic literacy development in sheltered classrooms. 
Language Teaching Research 15(3), 363–380. 

155



Page 125 of 148

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. 

Regardless of the overall program structure in school systems, the Institute of Education Sciences, the Education Department's 
research agency, has identified rigorous evidence that the following teaching practices are effective in teaching academic content to 
ELLs: 
 
? Teach a set of academic vocabulary words intensively, over several days and a variety of activities. 
 
? Integrate instruction in spoken and written English into content-area teaching, such as using science laboratory reports to teach 
writing in English. 
 
? Provide ongoing, structured chances to develop writing skills. 
 
? Provide small-group interventions for students struggling with specific problems in literacy or language development. 
 
Additional research reinforces that these core practices are essential to providing designated and integrated ELD and supporting 
second language learners academic achievement: 
 
1. Gibbons, P. (2009). English learners, academic literacy, and thinking: Learning in the challenge zone. Portsmouth, NH: 
Heinemann.  
 
2. Gibbons, P. (2006). Bridging discourses in the ESL classroom: Students, teachers and researchers. London: Continuum. 
 
3. Kieffer, M., and Lesaux, N. (2010). Morphing into adolescents: Active word learning for English? language learners and their 
classmates in middle school. Journal of Adolescent and Adult Literacy, 54(1), 47–56. 
 
4. Veel, R. (1999). Language, knowledge and authority in school mathematics. In F. Christie (Ed.), Pedagogy and the shaping of 
consciousness: Linguistic and social processes. London: Continuum 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 

156



Page 126 of 148

site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. 

The National Comprehensive Center for Teacher Quality provides guidance for teacher professional development and encourages the 
implementation of job-embedded professional development in high-need schools (U.S. Department of Education, 2009a; U.S. 
Department of Education, 2009b). The National Staff Development Council (2010) also emphasizes the importance of school-based 
learning and job-embedded coaching as necessary components of effective professional development. Job-embedded professional 
development (JEPD) refers to teacher learning that is grounded in day-to-day teaching practice and is designed to enhance teachers’ 
content-specific instructional practices with the intent of improving student learning (Darling-Hammond & McLaughlin, 1995; Hirsh, 
2009).  
 
The best professional development support is primarily school or classroom-based and is integrated into the workday allowing 
teachers to assess and develop solutions for authentic and immediate problems of practice as part of cycles of continuous 
improvement (Hawley & Valli, 1999; National Staff Development Council, 2010). 
 
------- 
------- 
 

157



Page 127 of 148

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county 
superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

158



Page 128 of 148

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 

Annual Update 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals, Actions, and Services 

Planned Actions/Services 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the California School Dashboard data reports) if desired 
and/or include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and 
actual expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to California School Dashboard means the California School Dashboard adopted by 
the State Board of Education under EC Section 52064.5.    
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

 Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

 Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in 
developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based 
interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the 
implementation of the CSI plan. 

 Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate 
the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school 
improvement. 

159

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


Page 129 of 148

 

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the California School 
Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 
in the California School Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 

160



Page 130 of 148

charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

161



Page 131 of 148

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the California School Dashboard, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 
Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

162



Page 132 of 148

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter "LEA-wide." 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

163



Page 133 of 148

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

 

New/Modified/Unchanged:  

 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 
the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  

 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 

164



Page 134 of 148

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  
 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 
If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

165



Page 135 of 148

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

166



Page 136 of 148

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

167



Page 137 of 148

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

168



Page 138 of 148

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of K-8 students who were absent 10 percent or more of the school days 

excluding students who were: 
(A) enrolled less than 31 days 
(B) enrolled at least 31 days but did not attend at least one day 
(C) flagged as exempt in the district attendance submission. K-8 students are considered to 
be exempt if they: 
 (i) are enrolled in a Non-Public School 
 (ii) receive instruction through a home or hospital instructional setting 
 (iii) are attending a community college full-time. 

(2) The number of students who meet the enrollment requirements. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

 (b) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  
(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 

“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(c) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) For a 4-Year Cohort Graduation Rate: 

(A) The number of students in the cohort who earned a regular high school diploma by the 
end of year 4 in the cohort. 

(B) The total number of students in the cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(2) For a Dashboard Alternative Schools Status (DASS) Graduation Rate: 
(A) The number of students who either graduated as grade 11 students or who earned any 

of the following: 
(i) a regular high school diploma 
(ii) a High School Equivalency Certificate 
(iii) an adult education diploma 
(iv)  a Certificate of Completion and was eligible for the California Alternative 

Assessment if under the age of 20. 
(B) The number of students in the DASS graduation cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
169



Page 139 of 148

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  

170



Page 140 of 148

 

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

171



Page 141 of 148

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, January 2019 
 

172



Page 142 of 148

 

LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 

Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Funding Sources 2,396,990.00 2,506,701.00 2,608,225.00 2,396,990.00 2,456,184.00 7,461,399.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Base 1,909,790.00 1,996,477.00 2,112,018.00 1,909,790.00 1,906,433.00 5,928,241.00 
LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 
LCFF Supplemental and Concentration 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,500.00 17,500.00 
Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 18,200.00 18,200.00 
Special Education 188,436.00 195,140.00 190,504.00 188,436.00 226,483.00 605,423.00 
Supplemental 294,264.00 310,584.00 304,003.00 294,264.00 262,068.00 860,335.00 
Title II 4,500.00 4,500.00 1,700.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 10,700.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

173



Page 143 of 148

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types 2,396,990.00 2,506,701.00 2,608,225.00 2,396,990.00 2,456,184.00 7,461,399.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 1,684,635.00 1,779,857.00 1,870,714.00 1,684,635.00 1,732,502.00 5,287,851.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 486,326.00 490,969.00 458,650.00 486,326.00 508,363.00 1,453,339.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 78,370.00 89,662.00 115,541.00 78,370.00 53,630.00 247,541.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

107,659.00 107,863.00 117,520.00 107,659.00 122,439.00 347,618.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 

40,000.00 38,350.00 45,800.00 40,000.00 39,250.00 125,050.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

174



Page 144 of 148

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2018-19 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 2,396,990.00 2,506,701.00 2,608,225.00 2,396,990.00 2,456,184.00 7,461,399.00 
  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 1,381,459.00 1,449,875.00 1,565,315.00 1,381,459.00 1,399,447.00 4,346,221.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,200.00 13,200.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Special Education 149,801.00 156,505.00 150,156.00 149,801.00 181,283.00 481,240.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 151,375.00 171,477.00 155,243.00 151,375.00 127,572.00 434,190.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Title II 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 4,000.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 362,631.00 371,537.00 335,361.00 362,631.00 374,516.00 1,072,508.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,800.00 5,800.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Special Education 38,635.00 38,635.00 40,348.00 38,635.00 45,200.00 124,183.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 85,060.00 80,797.00 82,941.00 85,060.00 82,847.00 250,848.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Base 70,220.00 81,185.00 109,101.00 70,220.00 35,910.00 215,231.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Supplemental 8,150.00 8,477.00 6,440.00 8,150.00 17,720.00 32,310.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Base 85,380.00 85,380.00 86,041.00 85,380.00 86,460.00 257,881.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

LCFF Supplemental and 
Concentration 

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,700.00 6,700.00 

175



Page 145 of 148

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2018-19 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Supplemental 19,779.00 19,983.00 29,779.00 19,779.00 4,779.00 54,337.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Title II 2,500.00 2,500.00 1,700.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 6,700.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Base 10,100.00 8,500.00 16,200.00 10,100.00 10,100.00 36,400.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Supplemental 29,900.00 29,850.00 29,600.00 29,900.00 29,150.00 88,650.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

176



Page 146 of 148

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
Goal 1 1,956,383.00 2,032,886.00 2,095,921.00 1,956,383.00 1,989,229.00 6,041,533.00 

Goal 2 130,332.00 140,179.00 144,133.00 130,332.00 104,689.00 379,154.00 

Goal 3 285,959.00 310,878.00 348,051.00 285,959.00 337,431.00 971,441.00 

Goal 4 24,316.00 22,758.00 20,120.00 24,316.00 24,835.00 69,271.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
 
  

177



Page 147 of 148

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 
  

178



Page 148 of 148

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures NOT Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 

179



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
  

Action Item:  9.2 Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum for the 
Olivet Charter School  
 
Special Meeting of:  June 19, 2019      Action Item Report Format: Oral 
Attachment:  Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum        
 
Background 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) legislation was signed into law by the Governor and 
took effect on July 1, 2013. Under the LCFF, school districts are required to develop, adopt, and 
annually update a three-year Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), beginning on July 1, 
2014. According to Ed Code 52060, school districts are required to consult with staff, students, 
parents, and the community in developing the LCAP.  
 
The final Olivet LCAP includes a description of the stakeholder engagement process, goals, 
actions and services for all students as well as subgroups.  
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP in order to ensure that eligible 
LEAs will meet the LEA Plan Provisions of the ESSA.  The LCAP Addendum must be submitted 
to the CDE to apply for ESSA funding.    
  
 
Plan 
Prior to approval of the budget under LCFF, a draft of the LCAP and the budget must be 
presented for public hearing.  That occurred at the June 5, 2019 Board meeting.  Both the LCAP 
and the budget are to be adopted at a subsequent meeting. 
 
There is one change in the Olivet LCAP from the Public Hearing version.  An item regarding the 
renewal and visioning process that Olivet staff has been involved in during 2017-2018 was 
included in the 2018-2019 projection.  The budget for that item has been increased from $4,000 
to $9,000 as the staff was interested in having both consultants that assisted with the process in 
2017-2018 return in 2018-2019. 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum answers the required questions from the state.  This Federal 
Addendum must be approved by the board and submitted to the state by July 1, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
Expenditures outlined in the LCAP 
 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt the Olivet LCAP and Federal Addendum as presented 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Motion: 
 
Moved by:  Second: 
Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent: 
FRANICEVIC       HINTON           MOHR               PRYOR  WAY 
 

180



Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)  
Federal Addendum Template 
 

LEA Name 
Piner-Olivet Union School District - Olivet 
Charter         

 

CDS Code: 
49-70870-6066344         

 

Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 

 
 

For which ESSA programs apply to your LEA? 
 
Choose From: 
 
X TITLE I, PART A 

Improving Basic Programs Operated by  
State and Local Educational Agencies        

X TITLE II, PART A 
Supporting Effective Instruction        

X TITLE III, PART A  
Language Instruction for English Learners  
and Immigrant Students        

X TITLE IV, PART A 
Student Support and Academic  
Enrichment Grants        

 
(note: This list only includes ESSA programs with LEA plan 
requirements; not all ESSA programs.) 
 

 
 
 

In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 
 

181



 
Instructions 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs have the 
opportunity to meet the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the ESSA.  

The LCAP Federal Addendum Template must be completed and submitted to the California 
Department of Education (CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are encouraged to review the LCAP 
Federal Addendum annually with their LCAP, as ESSA funding should be considered in yearly strategic 
planning.  

The LEA must address the Strategy and Alignment prompts provided on the following page.  

Each provision for each program must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA.  

In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template.  

Under State Priority Alignment, state priority numbers are provided to demonstrate where an ESSA 
provision aligns with state priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in determining where ESSA provisions 
may already be addressed in the LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support the state 
priorities. 

The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA funds 
are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are 
encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic 
planning of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff 
will evaluate the LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. 
LEAs will be asked to clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 

California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in 
support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs with the opportunity 
to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved 
students. 

The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their federally-
funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  

LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning process supports 
continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement.  

Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for making 
the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local programs as 
described in the LEA’s LCAP. 

182



 

Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or initiatives funded with state 
funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of federal 
funds within the context of the LEA’s broader strategy reflected in the LCAP. 
 
Olivet Elementary Charter School is a single school-site district.  We use federal funds to supplement and enhance local 
priority or initiatives funded with state funds by increasing or improving existing actions to support students in meeting the 
challenging state academic standards. 
 
Our rationale/evidence for the selected uses of federal funds is to use the funds to assist in the successful completion of 
actions and goals described in our LCAP to ensure the academic achievement of all students, especially our low-income 
students. 
 
Title I funds are used for intervention services, assessment and data management system, supplemental materials and 
adaptive software to assist students in obtaining skills specific to them needed to master the challenging state academic 
standards. 
 
Title II funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities that have a demonstrated result in improving teacher 
and principal quality. 
 
Title III funds are used to improve educational outcomes for our English Language Learners and support students in their 
attainment of the English Language.  The county office ELD coordinator, collaboration time to plan ELD instruction and 
professional development focused on intervention strategies all assist in supporting our English Language Learners. 
 
Title IV funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities to promote the effective use of technology and to 
offer and/or expand programs that will provide students with a well rounded education. 
 
 
 
 

 
Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local funds and, 
as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 
 
Olivet Elementary Charter School aligns its use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local fund and across 
different federal grant programs.  Our LCAP is used as our district strategic plan and so provides us with an overarching 
plan complete with metrics, stakeholder engagement, goals, actions, and analysis. 
 
This plan encompasses activities to support all students in the areas of : 
 
LCAP GOAL 1:  Culture: Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching:  Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
LCAP GOAL 3: Proficiency: All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary 
for future success in college and careers. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement 
 
Any challenges can usually fit under one of these goals and can be addressed with state, local or federal funds. 
 
 
 
 

 

183



 
ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those goals, for each of the 
LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the descriptions of the goals, actions, and services 
how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state 
accountability system. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic standards by: 
 

(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic needs of all students; 
(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school determines need help in 

meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 
(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen academic programs and 

improve school conditions for student learning. 
 
Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the 
classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of 
the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2). 
 
Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 
If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that coordinate and integrate: 
 

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional strategies, that may 
incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills attainment important to in-demand occupations 
or industries in the State; and 

(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry professionals and, if 
appropriate, academic credit. 

 

184



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Title II, Part A Activities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 
Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these activities will be 
aligned with challenging State academic standards. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching: Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes (collaboration time, professional learning, 
instructional practices, math performance tasks, units of instruction, integration of arts education, ELD instructional 
strategies, integrating tiers of intervention support) 
 
 
 

 

185



TITLE III, PART A 
 
Parent, Family, and Community Engagement 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

3116(b)(3) 3, 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the education of English 
learners. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement (parent education, communicate student progress, communication 
platforms, community based tutoring program, access to information related to support students) and LCAP Goal 2 
Teaching  Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes (ELD Instructional Strategies) 
 
 

186



 
ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System 
 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System (CARS). 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Poverty Criteria 
 

ESSA SECTION(S) STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(4) N/A 
 
Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113. 
 
The poverty criteria used for Title 1, Part A School Allocations is the percent of students who qualify for Free & Reduced 
Price Meals (FRPM). 
 

 

187



 
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP  
 
For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities. Each provision 
for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the 
LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this addendum. 
 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged 
to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of all 
resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s 
responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to clarify 
insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) 
 
Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any 
disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
100% of the teachers at Olivet Elementary Charter School are considered Highly Qualified 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(B)(3) AND 1112(B)(7) 
 
Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d).  
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

188



(ESSA Section 1112(b)(3)-responsibilities under 1111(d)) 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 
(ESSA 1112(b)(7)) 
The strategies the LEA uses to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116, which includes 
how the LEA and its schools build capacity for parent and family engagement is demonstrated in the following ways: 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(a)). 
Olivet Elementary Charter School has an adopted parent involvement policy which is described in BP 6020 and AR 6020. 
The Policy and Administrative Regulations provides details on how parents and families are engaged in the school 
community. The LEA parent and family engagement policy, was developed jointly with and agreed on with parents. The 
parent and family engagement policy is distributed to, parents and family members of participating children annually with 
the annual notification packet that is sent home at the beginning of the year. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(1)) 
Olivet Elementary Charter School provides assistance to parents in understanding such topics as the challenging State 
academic standards, State and local academic assessments, the requirements of this part, and how to monitor a child’s 
progress and work with educators to improve the achievement of their children through parent conferences, back to school 
night, and school events.  Report cards are sent home quarterly so parents are able to identify how their students are 
doing. Other items include: LCAP Action 4.3 Use a variety of communication platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent engagement such as social media, district and school websites, SchoolGo mobile app, 
e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, etc.) including School/Community 
events that showcase student learning (exhibitions, performances, etc.), LCAP Action 4.4 Provide parent education 
through Community-Based Tutoring program, including English language support, strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home and LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(2)) 
Olivet Elementary Charter School provides materials and training to help parents work with their children to improve their 
children’s achievement, such as literacy training and using technology (including education about the harms of copyright 
piracy), as appropriate, to foster parental involvement by  providing parents with varying opportunities to engage in multiple 
areas of their students’ education and ensuring parents are invited to: parent conferences, Back to School Night, Open 
House. During these events parents engage in activities that assist in improving their children's achievement.  Other items 
include: LCAP Action 4.3 Use a variety of communication platforms to promote an understanding of educational programs 
and parent engagement such as social media, district and school websites, SchoolGo mobile app, e-newsletters, LCAP 
Infographics and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, etc.) including School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, performances, etc.), LCAP Action 4.4 Provide parent education through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including English language support, strategies for supporting students in academic learning at home 
and LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(3)) 
Olivet Elementary Charter School educates teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, and other 
school leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the value and utility of contributions of parents, and in 
how to reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents as equal partners, implement and coordinate parent 
programs, and build ties between parents and the school during early release days (professional development) and as 
needed throughout the year.  In addition, LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(4)) 
Olivet Elementary Charter School coordinates and integrates parent involvement programs and activities with other 
Federal, State, and local programs, including public preschool programs, and conduct other activities, such as parent 
resource centers, that encourage and support parents in more fully participating in the education of their children through 
the use of community organizations of Sonoma County and Sonoma County Office of Education. We have increased hours 
outreach workers who can speak Spanish.  These additional hours will provide more frequent opportunities for parent 
communication in various venues.  We will continue to provide English classes for our community. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(5)) 
Olivet Elementary Charter School ensures that information related to school and parent programs, meetings, and other 
activities is sent to the parents of participating children in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents 
can understand.  All notifications and information are sent home in English and Spanish. 
 

189



(ESSA Section 1116(e)(14). 
Olivet Elementary Charter School provides other reasonable support for parental involvement activities as parents may 
request. Surveys are conducted annually and attendance at school events is good. Parents are willing to communicate 
needs at school events, with teachers, in the office, at meetings, and via emails. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(f)) 
Olivet Elementary Charter School provides opportunities for the informed participation of parents and family members 
(including parents and family members who have limited English proficiency, parents and family members with disabilities, 
and parents and family members of migratory children), including providing information and school reports in a format and, 
to the extent practicable, in a language such parents understand.  All report cards and information are sent home in both 
English and Spanish.  Surveys are sent home in English and Spanish.  Translation services are available during school 
meetings. 
 
Olivet Elementary Charter School aligns the parent involvement items required in Section 1116 with the LCAP stakeholder 
engagement process. As part of the LCAP process we seek input from parents and families and we have an entire LCAP 
goal dedicated to parent involvement. The following items and results of the item demonstrates how we sought input from 
parents and how their input informed LCAP goals and actions and is stated in our CA Dashboard Local Indicator report for 
parent involvement: Olivet is most proud of creating a student-centered learning environment for all students where 
students feel safe and love learning. Increased parent engagement has taken place through monthly coffee talk meetings 
with the principal at drop off time. The meetings are coordinated with the school's PTO, and LCAP questions are answered 
and discussed. Olivet has increased attendance rates and decreased truancy rates, and decreased suspension rates. 
Students report meaningful participation in school and feeling connected to the school. Olivet is able to enlist highly 
qualified teachers. Olivet’s stakeholder engagement has been high because we have found different ways to engage 
stakeholders through board meetings, workshops, surveys, and LCAP informational/review sessions. Olivet partners with 
educational research organizations to learn more about parents’ perspectives and experience(s) at our school. Parent 
surveys utilize parent perspectives on school culture and climate in order to utilize the input in deciding student needs, 
goals, services, and programs for the 18-19 school year. Survey participants also provided input on student needs related 
to school safety, school climate, and intervention support. Survey results were used to develop actions in Olivet’s LCAP 
Goals 2, 3, and 4. Based on feedback from stakeholder groups, Olivet is utilizing LCFF funds to improve student 
achievement and meet the needs of all students. The overall effectiveness of Olivet’s goal 4 is evidenced by increased 
participation in parent events and student learning activities. Survey results indicated that parents were better able to 
access information on school events and to gain a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their child's 
education. Parents felt an increased sense of connection and engagement with the school community. Attendance at 
Olivet Parent Meetings was low (but growing). Results from the Spring My Voice parent survey show that 15% of Olivet 
parents agree or strongly agree that “parent evenings/meetings are worth attending." Olivet has improved in making sure 
communications with families are in both Spanish and English. The improved website and grading/report card portal are 
now available to students and their families. This year, Olivet also increased parent workshops and made Outreach worker 
translation available at more school events, as well. 220 Olivet parents attended the end-of-year BBQ. The annual Olivet 
Harvest Fair was cancelled due to the Northern California fires. There were also 25 consistent and regular parent 
volunteers. Engagement statistics increased on social media sites, website, and e-newsletters as follows: 75 Twitter 
followers; 5.0/5.0 stars on Facebook; 150 Facebook followers; and 155 Facebook page likes. Programs for the 17-18 
school year. Survey participants also provided input on student needs related to school safety, school climate, and 
intervention support. Survey results were used to develop actions in Olive 
 
 
 

 
 
Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under sections 1114 and 1115 and, 
where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children living in local institutions for neglected or 
delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent children in community day school programs. 
 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, paraprofessionals, and specialized 
instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted assistance school program under Section 1115, will identify 
the eligible children most in need of services under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

190



Our single school district operates as a schooolwide program. 
 
 

 
Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 
 
Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided with funds reserved 
under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success of homeless children and youths, in 
coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States 
Code 11301 et seq.). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Olivet Elementary Charter School ensures that homeless students have access to the same free and appropriate public 
education provided to other students within the district. The district shall provide homeless students with access to 
education and other services necessary for these students to meet the same challenging academic standards as other 
students. Detailed description of processes and procedures for Education for Homeless Children can be found in BP 
6173, AR6173, E6173. The services we provide homeless children and youths are the following: 
 
Olivet Elementary Charter School hired a Director of Student Services to include duties that address providing needs for 
homeless students.  The Director or Student Services works closely with Sonoma County Office of Education to identify 
and provide resources as needed.  During the 2017-2018 school year due to the fires the homeless greatly increased as 
did services available.  The county at large through Sonoma County Office of Education (SCOE) provided resources and 
timely information to address the needs of all families. 
 
The services provided are used to support the (1) enrollment, (2) attendance, and (3) success of homeless children and 
youths, in coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
Student Transitions 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8), 1112(b)(10), and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under this part with early 
childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including plans for the transition of participants in 
such programs to local elementary school programs. 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for students from middle 
grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education including: 

(A) coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners; and 
(B) increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment opportunities, or career 

counseling to identify student interests and skills. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) Olivet Elementary Charter School coordinates with the following institutions of higher education, employers, and 
other local partners: Santa Rosa Junior College, Sonoma State University, Community Action Partnership, and Sonoma 
County Office of Education to facilitate effective transitions from high school to postsecondary education.   Olivet 
Elementary Charter School works with its charter schools and local high schools to facilitate effective transitions from 
middle grades to high school.  Parent meetings are held so that parents and students can learn about the programs 
offered at each school and district so they can make the most appropriate choice for their child/ren. 
 
(B) NA 
 
 
 
 

191



 
Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 
Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this part, and that the LEA 
determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will: 
 

(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an opportunity to develop 

digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) NA 
(B) As a district we assist in developing effective school library program to provide students an opportunity to develop 
literacy skills and improve academic achievement by implementing the following actions: providing weekly library time for 
students, providing weekly computer time for students, providing devices (computers, chromebooks, and tablets) for 
classroom use. 
 
 
 
 
 

192



 
TITLE I, PART D 
 
Description of Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(1) 
 
Provide a description of the program to be assisted [by Title I, Part D]. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Formal Agreements 
ESSA SECTION 1423(2) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the LEA and correctional 
facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice system, including such 
facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Comparable Education Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(3) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how participating schools will coordinate with facilities working with delinquent 
children and youth to ensure that such children and youth are participating in an education program comparable to one 
operating in the local school such youth would attend. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Successful Transitions 
ESSA SECTION 1423(4) 
 
Provide a description of the program operated by participating schools to facilitate the successful transition of children and 
youth returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, the types of services that such schools will provide such 
children and youth and other at-risk children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Educational Needs 
ESSA SECTION 1423(5) 
 
Provide a description of the characteristics (including learning difficulties, substance abuse problems, and other special 
needs) of the children and youth who will be returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, other at-risk children 
and youth expected to be served by the program, and a description of how the school will coordinate existing educational 
programs to meet the unique educational needs of such children and youth. 

193



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Social, Health, and Other Services 
ESSA SECTION 1423(6) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will coordinate with existing social, health, and other services to meet 
the needs of students returning from correctional facilities, at-risk children or youth, and other participating children or youth, 
including prenatal health care and nutrition services related to the health of the parent and the child or youth, parenting and 
child development classes, child care, targeted reentry and outreach programs, referrals to community resources, and 
scheduling flexibility. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships 
ESSA SECTION 1423(7) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of any partnerships with institutions of higher education or local businesses to facilitate 
postsecondary and workforce success for children and youth returning from correctional facilities, such as through 
participation in credit-bearing coursework while in secondary school, enrollment in postsecondary education, participation 
in career and technical education programming, and mentoring services for participating students. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Involvement 
ESSA SECTION 1423(8) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the 
 

(A) LEA; and  
(B) correctional facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice 

system, including such facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Program Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(9–10) 
 
Provide a description of how the program under this subpart will be coordinated with other Federal, State, and local 
programs, such as programs under title I of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act and career and technical 
education programs serving at-risk children and youth. 
 
Include how the program will be coordinated with programs operated under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 
Act of 1974 and other comparable programs, if applicable. 

194



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Probation Officer Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(11) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will work with probation officers to assist in meeting the needs of 
children and youth returning from correctional facilities. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Individualized Education Program Awareness 
ESSA SECTION 1423(12) 
 
Provide a description of the efforts participating schools will make to ensure correctional facilities working with children and 
youth are aware of a child’s or youth’s existing individualized education program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Alternative Placements 
ESSA SECTIONS 1423(13) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of the steps participating schools will take to find alternative placements for children 
and youth interested in continuing their education but unable to participate in a traditional public school program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

195



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 
 
Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as induction for teachers, 
principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity of teachers and opportunities to develop 
meaningful teacher leadership. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

196



Olivet Elementary Charter School has an organized delivery of professional learning for all certificated staff. 
 
Principals: 
Professional growth and improvement is provided to the principal through the following process: at the beginning of their 
career as a principal they are mentored and coached until they are ready to take on more leadership opportunities.  As 
principals progress they are supported based on their individual needs. As principals become more seasoned it is expected 
that they take on more and more responsibility in ensuring academic success for all students. Principals utilize services 
from the Sonoma County Office of Education and fellow principals in the county. Growth and improvement are measured 
by staff, teacher and parent survey results, California Student Dashboard Results, number of LCAP metrics and actions 
completed. 
 
Teachers: 
Professional growth and improvement is provided to teachers during beginning of the year professional development, 
ongoing early release days, County Office Workshops, and Specialists in the Field. At the beginning of their career as a 
teacher they are supported through the induction program at the county office. Teachers are then supported as needed 
throughout their career depending on each teachers individual needs, strengths and growth areas.  Teachers often support 
each other and bounce ideas off each other in informal meetings..  We provide professional development to all teachers 
in writing, balanced literacy, and mathematics in order to build capacity in alignment with the standards and target all 
subgroups.  Growth and improvement for teachers are measured by state assessment data, benchmark data, student 
surveys. Identification of growth and improvement areas as a school are measured by California School Dashboard results. 
Teachers are provided professional learning opportunities to develop and support instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California Content Standards for English Language Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next Generation Science Standards. There is an instructional coach and technology integration 
coach to support teachers.  Santa Rosa City Schools network and Sonoma County Office of Education also provide 
support. 
 
School Leaders: 
As a small school district we do not have any additional school leaders, however, many experienced teachers serve various 
roles to assist with special projects or initiatives that help to improve student learning. 
 
The systems in place promote professional growth and ensure improvement.  We measure the success of our program by 
utilizing the Annual Update in the LCAP and Dashboard data. We review our LCAP student outcome data with all 
stakeholders (parents, students, teachers, staff, leadership, community members) as part of the Annual Update process.  
This provides an effective way in discussing our successes and growth areas as a school community and determining any 
necessary actions to be added for the following year.  As part of the Local Indicator: Implementation of the Standards 
Dashboard requirement we report annually on teachers progress in 1) providing professional learning for teaching to the 
recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks 2) making instructional materials that are aligned to 
the recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks, 3) implementing policies or programs to support 
staff in identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walk throughs, 
teacher pairing) for the following content areas: English Language Arts, Mathematics, History-Social Studies, English 
Language Development, Next Generation Science Standards.  In addition, we report on implementing each of the following 
academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for all students (Career Technical Education, Physical 
Education Model Content Standards, World Language, Health Education Content Standards, Visual and Performing Arts  
and we report on success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school administrators during the prior 
school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year): Identifying the professional learning needs of groups 
of teachers or staff as a whole, Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers, providing support for 
teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered. As a school community understand the importance of continuous 
improvement within these systems and are focused on professional growth and improvement. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are implementing 
comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and improvement activities under Section 1111(d) 
and have the highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
 

197



THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 

 
Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually 
update and improve activities supported under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The sources of data our district uses to monitors and evaluate Title II, Part A activities is: California School Dashboard 
data (including Local Indicator reports), survey results from professional development opportunities, student achievement 
data (benchmark),  STAR data, Teacher Survey data (including CCSS Implementation questions), ELPAC data, and 
student survey results.  This data is analyzed annually as part of the planning process for the following year.  Benchmark 
data and STAR Data is analyzed throughout the year to inform instruction. In addition to above, Olivet Elementary Charter 
School has purchased Illuminate in order to quickly and easily analyze student data on a regular basis during professional 
learning communities. 
 
Olivet Elementary Charter School meaningfully consults with all stakeholders (teachers, principals and other school 
leaders, paraprofessionals, specialized instructional support personnel,  parents, community partners, organizations) to 
update and improve Title II, Part-A funded activities. This is completed through annual survey data, monthly staff meetings, 
monthly leadership meetings and annually (or as needed) parent meetings.  After compiling information from all 
stakeholder group we determine what are common needs expressed throughout stakeholders and then needs based on 
each stakeholder group. Olivet Elementary Charter School meaningfully consults with these stakeholders in the following 
frequency: teachers-monthly, principals and other school leaders-monthly, paraprofessionals-quarterly, specialized 
instructional support personnel-quarterly, parents-surveys are annually/events are about 4 times per year, community 
partners-yearly, organizations-as needed/at least yearly) 
 
Our Sonoma County Office of Education also provides valuable resources, support and training to our school districts in 
the county.   By utilizing Sonoma County Office of Education resources we are able to quickly understand what various 
schools in the county are doing and use those ideas and success to improve our school community. Olivet Elementary 
Charter School utilizes shortened Wednesdays for collaboration efforts that will be focused on student achievement, setting 
goals for students, and building capacity of staff. 
 
 
 
 

 

198



 
TITLE III, PART A 
 
Title III Professional Development 
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom teachers, principals and other 
school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The following actions from LCAP describe how our LEA effectively assists English Learners. These actions can be found 
under Goal 2 of 2018-2019 the LCAP : 
 
2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies to promote strategies academic discourse, structured language practices 
across core curricular areas and designated English Language Development during the school day. This is completed 
through: Consultation with SCOE ELD Coordinator to develop schoolwide practices to support EL students in all curricular 
areas; Collaboration time to plan ELD instruction, review assessments of student progress and refine instructional 
practices; Schedule change to shortened Wednesdays allowed, collaboration time within regularly scheduled day 
 
2.8 Provided professional development opportunities for integrating tiers of intervention support for students in ELA and 
Math. This is completed through: Professional development focused on intervention strategies, Instructional Coach, Santa 
Rosa City Schools and SCOE Network 
 
These professional development opportunities are designed to improve the instruction and assessment of English learners; 
enhance the ability of such teachers, principals, and other school leaders to understand and implement curricula, 
assessment practices and measures, and instructional strategies for English learners. They are also effective in increasing 
children's English language proficiency or substantially increasing the subject matter knowledge, teaching knowledge, and 
teaching skills of such teachers; and are of sufficient intensity and duration (which shall not include activities such as one-
day or short-term workshops and conferences) to have a positive and lasting impact on the teachers' performance in the 
classroom. 
 
 
 
 
 
Enhanced Instructional Opportunities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Olivet Charter School will provide professional learning in integrated English Language Development strategies 
incorporating the Next Generation Science Standards.  Olivet Charter School also provides supplemental activities that 
provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth: Summer programs, tutorials, supplemental 
staff, family literacy services, family outreach, mentoring, . In determining the best use of funds we consult with 
stakeholders and use funds strategically with other funding streams to support Title III immigrant activities. 
 
 

 
Title III Programs and Activities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(1) 
 
Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, proposed to be 
developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English learners increase their English 
language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic standards. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

199



Our goal is to increase the effectiveness of our programs and our professional learning is focused on differentiation and 
personalized learning.  The major focus is language learner strategies and best practices.  Olivet Charter School develops, 
implements, and administers effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, to 
help English learners increase English language proficiency and meet the challenging state academic standards by 
providing additional staff, working with SCOE, tutorial, supplemental curricular materials. We determine effectiveness by 
evaluating ELPAC data, CA Dashboard data specific to EL students, and RFEP data. 
 
 

 
English Proficiency and Academic Achievement 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(2)(A-B) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving funds under Subpart 
1 assist English learners in: 
 

(C) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment under Section 
1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and 

(D) meeting the challenging State academic standards. 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
We have streamlined our areas of focus, have planned a thorough professional learning plan including differentiating for 
our English learners, and will provide time for teachers to collaborate and focus on student goals.  We believe this will 
increase student achievement for all students including our English learners.  The details of how we ensure our school 
assists English learners in achieving English proficiency and meeting the challenging state academic standards can be 
found in our EL Master Plan. 
 
 

 

200



 
TITLE IV, PART A 
 
Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs 
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1) 
 
Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out under Subpart 1, 
including a description of: 
 

(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization, community-based 
organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of success in implementing activities under 
this subpart;  

(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education under Section 4107;  
(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy students under Section 

4108; 
(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of technology in schools 

under Section 4109; and 
(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the LEA, or consortium of 

such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the activities carried out under this section based on 
such objectives and outcomes. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Title IV, Part A funds will support the effective use of technology through professional development opportunities and will 
expand and/or create programs such as STEAM to support a well-rounded education for all of our students. 
 
 
 
 

201



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Olivet Charter School
CDS Code: 49708706066344
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Year: 2019-20
LEA contact information: Felicia Koha, CBO (707) 522-3008 fkoha@pousd.org

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2019-20 LCAP Year

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Olivet Charter School expects to receive in the 
coming year from all sources.

The total revenue projected for Olivet Charter School is $3,325,005.00, of which $2,838,162.00 is Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $71,738.00 is other state funds, $339,448.00 is local funds, and 
$75,657.00 is federal funds. Of the $2,838,162.00 in LCFF Funds, $270,851.00 is generated based on 
the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students).

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Acccountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

LCFF supplemental & 
concentration grants , 

$270,851 , 8%

All Other LCFF funds, 
$2,567,311 , 77%

All other state funds, 
$71,738 , 2%

All local funds, 
$339,448 , 10%

All federal funds, $75,657 , 
3%

Total LCFF funds, 
$2,838,162 , 85%

Projected Revenue by Fund Source

 Page 1 of 3202



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Olivet Charter School plans to spend for 2019-20. It 
shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

Olivet Charter School plans to spend $3,345,086.00 for the 2019-20 school year. Of that amount, 
$2,451,389.00 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $893,697.00 is not included in the LCAP. The 
budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 

The total expenditures not included in the LCAP amount include such costs as overhead (i.e. utilitites, 
maintenance, legal costs, insurance, etc.), contributions, and mandatory contributions.

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2019-20

In 2019-20, Olivet Charter School is projecting it will receive $270,851.00 based on the enrollment of 
foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Olivet Charter School must demonstrate the 
planned actions and services will increase or improve services for high needs students compared to the 
services all students receive in proportion to the increased funding it receives for high needs students. In 
the LCAP, Olivet Charter School plans to spend $275,319.00 on actions to meet this requirement.

Total Budgeted General 
Fund Expenditures

$3,345,086 Total Budgeted 
Expenditures in LCAP

$2,451,389 

$ 0

$ 500,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 1,500,000

$ 2,000,000

$ 2,500,000

$ 3,000,000

$ 3,500,000

$ 4,000,000

Budgeted Expenditures

 Page 2 of 3203



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2018-19

This chart compares what Olivet Charter School budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and services 
that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Olivet Charter 

School estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving services 
for high needs students in the current year.

In 2018-19, Olivet Charter School's LCAP budgeted $262,059.00 for planned actions to increase or 
improve services for high needs students. Olivet Charter School estimates that it will actually spend 
$322,351.00 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2018-19.

$322,351 

$262,059 

$ 0 $ 50,000 $ 100,000 $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 250,000 $ 300,000 $ 350,000

Current Year Expenditures: Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students

Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs
Students in the LCAP

Estimated Actual Expenditures for High
Needs Students in LCAP

 Page 3 of 3204



Page 1 of 144

 
LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 

 

            2019-20    

 

 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

California School Dashboard: Essential data to support completion of 
this LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template. 

 
LEA Name 

Piner-Olivet Union School District            

Contact Name and Title 

Anna Moore            
Principal 

Email and Phone 

amoore@pousd.org            
6195223000 

 
 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) was subjected to the Northern California wildfires in 
2017. The Tubbs Fire destroyed over 5,500 structures and Coffey Park, a neighborhood directly 
across the street from our district office, was one of the most densely populated areas in Santa Rosa 
affected by the fire.  About 1,500 homes were destroyed in the small neighborhood.  Our resilient 
community has come through this natural disaster with hope and unity despite having housed 200 
students for three months that were displaced from Morrice Schaefer Charter School as a result of 
the fires on our campus.  Staff and community of Olivet Elementary Charter School value a school 
where every student is free to learn and play in an environment that is safe, supportive, comfortable, 
and free from outside interference and harm.  Our staff and the school discipline plan emphasize the 
development of courtesy, self-responsibility, and self-esteem. There are 320 students currently 
enrolled at our school .  The students at Olivet are 47% Hispanic, 35% White, 6% two or more races, 
3% Asian, and 4% Black or African America.  26% of students are identified as English Learners 
(EL). 48% of students are identified as socioeconomically disadvantaged (SED). Students attend the 
following grade levels at Olivet: Transitional kindergarten through 6th grade. The Olivet Vision 
states: We provide 21st Century teaching and learning for ALL students. Our community of students, 
staff, and families works collaboratively as a team. Our families and community members are 

205

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/reports/49708706066344/2018


Page 2 of 144

valued, respected, and included. Our team recently went through a renewal process and has 
committed to goals in the areas of social-emotional wellness and mathematics in order to strive for 
excellence for our students.  We demonstrate our commitment to the whole child by nurturing their 
intellectual growth and social-emotional well-being. We appreciate one another and are recognized 
for our shared successes. Our school motto is: Small School, Big Heart.         

 
 

LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

From the study of the surveys, the dashboard, financial documents, stakeholder meetings, and 
other measures, the following trends were identified. Trends indicating our strengths include: 
Students and staff like coming to school and feel safe at school. Parents feel that staff care about 
their children. Parents feel that the communication between home and school is adequate and 
appreciate all the information we provide in Spanish. Staff value the support they get from each 
other. Whether it is from administrators, classroom support staff, or classified staff; support from 
everyone is valued. Teachers value collaboration time and ratified a negotiation that allowed for 
shortened Wednesdays. Staff, students, and parents are pleased with our implementation of 
technology. Trends indicating our opportunities include: Student subgroups are not achieving 
academically as compared to their peers. Strengthen relationships between all stakeholders 
through honesty, transparency, and communication. Parents would like standardization of 
procedures and practices at our school sites. All staff would like more opportunities to learn new 
skills and strategies specific to their roles but in a streamlined manner. Behavior and mental health 
support and training is needed. We will focus on four goals: 

• Goal 1- Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
• Goal 2- Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of 

California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
• Goal 3- All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for 

future success in college and careers. 
• Goal 4- Improve parent engagement. 

Some highlights of Actions/Services within these goals include but are not limited to: 
 Teachers will receive professional development supported by instructional coaching in the 

classroom in mathematics and balanced literacy. 
 Each site utilizes a Response to Intervention (RtI) Framework with defined interventions to 

be done by the classroom teacher, intervention teachers, or special education providers. 
 Use of the highest research, evidence based teaching strategies. 
 Staff receive knowledge and skill training during professional development sessions 

including classified staff in Making Words, SIPPs, and more! 
 Administrators and teachers work during collaboration time, analyzing student work on the 

implementation of the adopted materials and use of the high leverage strategies. 
 Each site utilizes a positive discipline approach and works diligently to ensure students and 

teachers are at school each day. 

206



Page 3 of 144

 Staff, parents, and students participate annually in a culture and climate survey. 
 A District Counselor position has been created to support all stakeholders; the district will 

also host Behavioral Specialists. 
 The district will provide professional development in mathematics in support of the new 

Bridges math adoption. 
 A full time Director of Student Services position has been created to address the multiple 

levels of need in the area of Special Education to ensure best practices at every site. 
 The district will provide professional development in balanced literacy including guided 

reading with supplemental materials. 
 The district will support a curriculum committee to adopt the next adoption and roll-out. 

207



Page 4 of 144
 208



Page 5 of 144

 

Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
California School Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or 
other information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build 
upon that success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements 
in services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
We have a lot to be proud of this year, most notably: 

 Teachers taking on math and teaching our students to be fierce mathematicians! 
 Staff and new principals coming together as united teams and developing collaborative 

culture at each site. 
 ALL staff classified and certificated engaging in collaboration and professional learning! 
 After school enrichment programs. 
 Outreach worker increased time to meet the needs of our Spanish speaking families. 

On the Dashboard Performance indicators we obtained a "Green" performance level for Suspension 
rate (Status:1%, Change: 0%) and we obtained a "Blue" performance level (the highest level) for 
English Learners and White students under the suspension rate indicator. 
 
Highlights from each of our LCAP goals are the following: 
 
Goal 1: Culture 

 Arts & Sciences (Music weekly and STEAM Labs) 
 Athletics (PE Tech) 
 Academics (Year 1 of Math curriculum, Leadership & Social Justice, Toolbox, Increased 

Technology, Curriculum Committee) 

Goal 2: Teaching 
 Math Professional Learning and coaching 
 Writer’s Workshop Professional Learning and Coaching 
 Off-site visits 
 Release time 
 Conferences 
 Peer to peer observations 

Goal 3: Proficiency 
 Math Professional Learning and coaching 
 Writer’s Workshop Professional Learning and Coaching 
 Balanced literacy coaching including guided reading and supplemental materials 
 Off-site visits 
 Release time 
 Conferences 
 Peer to peer observations 
 Collaboration time 

Goal 4: Parent Involvement 
 Established SSCs and ELAC 
 Toolbox parent workshop, Back to School, Winter Performance, Coffee with the Principal 

209



Page 6 of 144

 Student Recognition Parties 

 
Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for 
which overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a 
“Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has 
determined need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local 
indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for 
improvement? 
 
Greatest Needs 
In the CDE’s LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, LEA or school sites receive a performance level based upon 
how every student group (for which there is data for 30 or more students in the group) performs on 
each applicable state indicator. The performance levels for Mathematics or English Language Arts 
show how far the average student is below (or exceeding) the Level 3 threshold for each indicator. It 
should be noted that the data reflected on the current dashboard is from the 2017-2018 school year, 
which is the school year when the devastating fires impacted our community significantly.  
 
The following indicators received an "red" and "orange" performance level and the steps the LEA 
planning to take to address these areas 

 English Language Arts (Orange-Status: 49 below standard, Change: Maintained at +2 
points ) 

 Mathematics (Orange-Status: 73 below standard, Change: Declined at 5 points ) 

We anticipate an improvement in the results for the 2018-2019 school year, however, our school 
community is still healing and we were impacted by school closures due to smoke and in addition 
there was significant flooding in the area. The following steps are being taking to address these 
areas of improvement: 
 
English Language Arts/Mathematics 

 Continue with all items in Goal 2: Implement teaching practices that support students in the 
achievement of California Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes 
and Goal 3: All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary 
for future success in college and careers. 

The following is a list of challenges and impact on LCAP and Actions 
 
Goal 1: Culture 

 Challenges: The wildfires impacted attendance rates, truancy and chronic absenteeism, 
Improve My Voice Survey data results 

 Planned Improvement: Social/Emotional and Behavior Intervention services, Provide in 
school and after school engagement activities such as sports, arts, clubs, etc 

Goal 2: Teaching 

210



Page 7 of 144

 Challenges: Math Professional Development and time limitations, Academic achievement 
for English language learners and low socio-economic subgroup, Vertical alignment and 
implementation of instruction, Consistent collaboration across grade levels 

 Planned Improvements: Focus on mathematics professional learning,Tiers of Intervention 
Support including training in SIPPs, Making Words, and more! 

Goal 3: Proficiency 

 Challenges: Streamlined and consistent professional development opportunity in 
mathematics and tiered intervention process 

 Planned Improvements: Math focus (professional learning, curriculum, supplies), Tiers of 
support, Curriculum Committee 

Goal 4: Parent Involvement 

 Challenges: Last year was a devastating year for our community, Attendance 

 Planned Improvements: Develop systemic ways to increase parent involvement, Increase 
outreach worker time at each site for bilingual support, Enrichment programs after school 

 
 
Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 

211



Page 8 of 144

Performance Gaps 
The suspension rate for students with disabilities is three levels below all students (Students with 
disabilities: Red Performance Level, Status: 6.3%, Change +1.5%).  The number of students in this 
subgroup is 32 students, so if one students gets suspended then that will increase the suspension 
rate by 3%. All other subgroups have 90+ students in the group, making it hard to compare this 
subgroup with others.  However, this subgroup is at the red level so we must address and identify 
ways to improve this area. The ways in which we plan to do this are through our renewal process 
that focused on social-emotional well-being of our students, implementing consistent and positive 
behavior management strategies, building capacity of both certificated and classified in the areas of 
positive behavior management, and collaboratively setting a site based goal on social-emotional 
learning school-wide. 
 
 

 
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every 
Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts. 
 
Schools Identified 
Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 

NA 

 

212



Page 9 of 144

Support for Identified Schools 
Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level 
needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be 
addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

NA 

 
Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to 
support student and school improvement. 

NA 

 

213



Page 10 of 144

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 

214



Page 11 of 144

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
My Voice Survey (students): 
 
% Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their 
classrooms. 
%Students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their 
school community. 
% Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking 
questions in class." 
% Students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking 
questions in class." 
 
Healthy Kids Survey 
 
Attendance Rates % 
Truancy Rate % 
Suspension Rates % 
Expulsion Rate % 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey status 
Williams Act: % access to instructional materials. 
        

 My Voice Survey (students): 
 
37 % Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their 
classrooms. 
39 %Students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their 
school community. 
42% Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking 
questions in class." 
65% Students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking 
questions in class." 
 
Healthy Kids Survey-NA for 2018-2019 School year 
 
Attendance Rates 95% 
Chronic Absenteeism Rate 12% 
Suspension Rates 1% 
Expulsion Rate 0% 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey status: Exemplary 
Williams Act: 100% access to instructional materials. 
Credentialed Teachers: 100% appropriately assigned and credentialed 
 

215



Page 12 of 144

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and felt a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students): 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their 
classrooms.  55% 
Students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their 
school community. 65% 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions 
in class." 75% 
Students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions 
in class." 75% 
 
Healthy Kids Survey data 
 
Attendance Rates -- 96% or more 
Truancy Rate -- 1% or less 
Suspension Rates -- 1% or less 
Expulsion Rate - 0% 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey - Sustain status 
Williams Act: Sustain 100% access to instructional materials. 
        

216



Page 13 of 144

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and felt a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students): 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their 
classrooms.  42% 
Students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their 
school community. 55% 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions 
in class." 60% 
Students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions 
in class." 71% 
 
Healthy Kids Survey -- To be administered during 2017-2018. 
Attendance Rates -- 95% or more 
Truancy Rate -- 1% or less 
Suspension Rates -- 1% or less 
Expulsion Rate - 0% 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey - Sustain status (met) 
Williams Act: Sustain 100% access to instructional materials. 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.1 Continue implementation of 
social-emotional curriculum, 
including Toolbox and  No Bully! 
 

 1.1 Continued implementation of 
social-emotional curriculum, 
including Toolbox and  No Bully! 

 1.1.a Professional development 
to support on-going 
implementation of Toolbox/No 
Bully!  No additional costs as 
consultant is now employee.                    
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 

 1.1.a Professional development 
to support on-going 
implementation of Toolbox/No 
Bully!  No additional costs as 
consultant is now employee.                    
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 

217



Page 14 of 144

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No Additional Cost  

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No Additional Cost 

1.1.b My Voice Surveys 
(students, staff, and parents)             
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SG01) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $658  

 1.1.b My Voice Surveys 
(students, staff, and parents)             
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SG01) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $658 

1.1.c Toolbox Consumable 
Materials                                    
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $300  

 1.1.c Toolbox Consumable 
Materials                                    
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $434 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.2 Provide each student with 
highly qualified teaching staff to 
support learning and positive 
school climate. 
 

 1.2 Provided each student with 
highly qualified teaching staff to 
support learning and positive 
school climate. 

 1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$136,917  

 1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$136,917 

1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$1,380,087  

 1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$1,450,018 

1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

 1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-
600-BG01) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

1.2.d Counselor-District-wide split 
between all sites (3110-1200-

 1.2.d Counselor-District-wide split 
between all sites (3110-1200-

218



Page 15 of 144

SG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$34,203  

SG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$34,203 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.3 Provide in school and after 
school engagement activities such 
as sports, arts, clubs, etc. 
 

 1.3 Provided in school and after 
school engagement activities such 
as sports, arts, clubs, etc. 

 1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $30,274  

 1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $24,769 

1.3.b Teacher and Program 
Assistant hourly rate(after school 
activities)                                                    
(0000-1660-1000-1130/2130-
SG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$4,810  

 1.3.b Teacher and Program 
Assistant hourly rate(after school 
activities)                                                    
(0000-1660-1000-1130/2130-
SG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$5,765 

1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE 
shared by 3 K-6 sites)                 
0000-1510-1000-1100-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$26,078  

 1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE 
shared by 3 K-6 sites)                 
0000-1510-1000-1100-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$30,046 

1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-
SGMK) 
 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $  

 1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-
SGMK) 
 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $ 

1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                            (0000-
1660-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500  

 1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                            (0000-
1660-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500 

Action 4 
    

219



Page 16 of 144

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.4 Provide clean and safe school 
facilities that support student 
engagement and positive school 
culture. Maintain clean and safe 
school facilities. 
 

 1.4 Provided clean and safe school 
facilities that support student 
engagement and positive school 
culture. Maintain clean and safe 
school facilities. 

 1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds 
Staff 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Base $68,527  

 1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds 
Staff 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Base $68,527 

1.4.c Custodial Staff 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base $147,365  

 1.4.c Custodial Staff 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base $147,365 

1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies (8210-4370/8110-4380) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base $23,000  

 1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies (8210-4370/8110-4380) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base $23,000 

1.4 e Maintenance Repairs 
including Transfer to Deferred 
Maintenance Fund (8110-
5630)(9200-7614) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $63,333  

 1.4 e Maintenance Repairs 
including Transfer to Deferred 
Maintenance Fund (8110-
5630)(9200-7614) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $63,333 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.5 Design classroom space and 
facilities to promote greater 
collaboration, creative expression 
and project-based learning. 
 

 1.5 Designed classroom space 
and facilities to promote greater 
collaboration, creative expression 
and project-based learning. 

 1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project - Reimagine Learning 
(4310/440-RLC) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $  

 1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project - Reimagine Learning 
(4310/440-RLC) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $0 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.6 Provide before/after school and 
recess student supervision. 
 

 1.6 Provided before/after school 
and recess student supervision. 

 1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors, KinderCare 2000-
3999 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Base $60,939  

 1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors, KinderCare 2000-
3999 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Base $60,939 

Action 7 
    

220



Page 17 of 144

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.7 Provide tiers of social-
emotional and behavioral 
intervention to support students in 
developing self-regulation 
strategies and positive social 
relationships. 
 

 1.7 Provide tiers of social-
emotional and behavioral 
intervention to support students in 
developing self-regulation 
strategies and positive social 
relationships. 

 1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$30,000  

 1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$25,750 

1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental See 
1.1.c  

 1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental See 
1.1.c 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.8 Provide Student Attendance 
Mediation services. 
 

 1.8 Provided Student Attendance 
Mediation services. 

 1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only Charged if 
used 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,000  

 1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only Charged if 
used 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $0 

1.8.a Counseling time 5800 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental See 1.7.a  

 1.8.a Counseling time 5800 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental See 1.7.a 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we created a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students by 
implementing social-emotional curriculum, providing highly qualified staff, providing engagement activities, designed classroom space 
and facilities, supervision, social/emotional and behavior intervention, and attendance mediation.         
 

221



Page 18 of 144

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*My Voice Survey results for "Feel Important" (3rd-5th grade), "Valued Member" (6th), Comfortable asking questions (6th) 
*Attendance Rates 
*Chronic Absenteeism Rates 
*Suspension Rates 
*Expulsion Rate 
*FIT survey 
*Williams Complaints 
*Appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*My Voice Survey results for "Comfortable asking questions" (3rd-5th grade) 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

222



Page 19 of 144

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Common Core Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
% of teachers who have participated in professional development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes  (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed). 
 
% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative conversations, 
writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to the Common 
Core. 
 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered: % positive 
feedback. 
 
BrightBytes Survey (Teacher Results): 
Foundational Skills --% reporting ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- % utilizing these skills. 
Multimedia Skills --% reporting ease with these types of tasks. 
        

 100% of teachers who have participated in professional learning related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed): 13 of 13. 
 
100% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered: 94% 
positive feedback (according to MyVoice Survey #22). 
 

223



Page 20 of 144

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Teachers had opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine 
teaching practices that support the California Common Core Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who have participated in professional development 
related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes  (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed). 
 
98% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered:  90% 
positive feedback. 
 
BrightBytes Survey  (Teacher Results): 
Foundational Skills -- 70% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 51% will utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 95% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
        

224



Page 21 of 144

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Teachers had opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine 
teaching practices that support the California Common Core Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who have participated in professional development 
related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes  (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed). 
 
98% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered:  90% 
positive feedback. 
 
BrightBytes Survey (Teacher Results): 
Foundational Skills -- 68% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 49% will utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 93% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.1 Regular schedule for grade 
level, cross grade level 
collaboration (1-2x per month 
during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for 
teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction 

 2.1 Provided Regular schedule for 
grade level, cross grade level 
collaboration (1-2x per month 
during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for 
teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction 

 2.1.a Changed schedule to 
include shortened Wednesdays 
for students, allowing staff time to 
collaborate, review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction, 
and reflect on teaching practice.  
Costs included in 

 2.1.a Changed schedule to 
include shortened Wednesdays 
for students, allowing staff time to 
collaborate, review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction, 
and reflect on teaching practice.  
Costs included in 

225



Page 22 of 144

and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 
 

and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

salaries/benefits for highly 
qualified teachers. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

salaries/benefits for highly 
qualified teachers. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and 
support instructional practices 
aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next 
Generation Science Standards. 
 

 2.2 Provided professional learning 
opportunities to develop and 
support instructional practices 
aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next 
Generation Science Standards. 

 2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-
1570-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$37,676  

 2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-
1570-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$37,676 

2.2.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
schools)             (0000-1230-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $34,647  

 2.2.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
schools)             (0000-1230-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $39,523 

2.2.c Momentum in Teaching - 
Writing PD                (1110-1000-
5202-SGWW) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$3,000  

 2.2.c Momentum in Teaching - 
Writing PD                (1110-1000-
5202-SGWW) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$5,665 

2.2.d Continue Writing PD - 
Teacher time (1110-1000-1130-
SGWW) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $3,000  

 2.2.d Continue Writing PD - 
Teacher time (1110-1000-1130-
SGWW) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,500 

2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional 
Development (Teacher release 
time and/or SCOE Contract) 
(0000-5830-SG02/0000-1110-

 2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional 
Development (Teacher release 
time and/or SCOE Contract) 
(0000-5830-SG02/0000-1110-

226



Page 23 of 144

1000-1130-SG02) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,000  

1000-1130-SG02) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,000 

2.2.f Participation in NCTIP 
Program (0000-5830-BTSA) - It is 
anticipated that there will be no 
staff members who need to 
participate in this program in 
2018-2019 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $0  

 2.2.f Participation in NCTIP 
Program (0000-5830-BTSA) - It is 
anticipated that there will be no 
staff members who need to 
participate in this program in 
2018-2019 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $0 

2.2.g Continue New Teacher 
Support Network (contract with 
SCOE), Release Time, 
Collaboration Time (0000-1110-
1000-1130-BG02) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 2.2.g Continue New Teacher 
Support Network (contract with 
SCOE), Release Time, 
Collaboration Time (0000-1110-
1000-1130-BG02) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
for teachers to develop 
instructional practices aligned to 
the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next 
Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math. 
 

 2.3 Provided formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
for teachers to develop 
instructional practices aligned to 
the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next 
Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math. 

 2.3.a Continue to conduct 21st 
Century School Renewal work to 
help determine school-wide 
priorities resulting in Renewal 
Action plans to support improved 
student achievement for all 
students. Ensure that Renewal 
Action Plans are data and 
research-based, support systemic 
change and are collaboratively 
researched and developed by 
staff. Provide funding for School 
Renewal coaching, coaching 
support, school a/o district-level 

 2.3.a Continue to conduct 21st 
Century School Renewal work to 
help determine school-wide 
priorities resulting in Renewal 
Action plans to support improved 
student achievement for all 
students. Ensure that Renewal 
Action Plans are data and 
research-based, support systemic 
change and are collaboratively 
researched and developed by 
staff. Provide funding for School 
Renewal coaching, coaching 
support, school a/o district-level 

227



Page 24 of 144

Renewal Cadre work, associated 
Professional Learning and 
supplies and services.  (1110-
1000-5830-SG02) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$9,000  

Renewal Cadre work, associated 
Professional Learning and 
supplies and services.  (1110-
1000-5830-SG02) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$18,343 

2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title II 
$1,161  

 2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title II 
$1,161 

2.3.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%)              (0000-
1110-2100-1300-600-SG02) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$22,577  

 2.3.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%)              (0000-
1110-2100-1300-600-SG02) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$24,268 

2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SGWW) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $1,000  

 2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SGWW) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $1,000 

2.3.e                      (1110-1000-
5830-SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,500  

 2.3.e                      (1110-1000-
5830-SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,500 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.5 Design units of instruction 
aligned with CCS Math, ELA, 

 2.5 Designed units of instruction 
aligned with CCS Math, ELA, 

 2.5 Collaboration time for 
teachers-release time and/or 

 2.5 Collaboration time for 
teachers-release time and/or 

228



Page 25 of 144

including formative and summative 
assessments across K-6. 
 

including formative and summative 
assessments across K-6. 

extra-duty time - Teacher costs 
embedded in salaries through 
schedule change allowing for 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students. 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

extra-duty time - Teacher costs 
embedded in salaries through 
schedule change allowing for 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students. 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.6 Develop proposal for 
Integration of arts education across 
curricular areas. 
 

 2.6 Developed proposal for 
Integration of arts education 
across curricular areas. 

 2.6.a Professional development 
for visioning work (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $2,000  

 2.6.a Professional development 
for visioning work (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $2,000 

2.6.b Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 2.3.c  

 2.6.b Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 2.3.c 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.7 Implement ELD instructional 
strategies to promote academic 
discourse, structured language 
practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English 
Language Development during the 
school day. 
 

 2.7 Implemented ELD instructional 
strategies to promote academic 
discourse, structured language 
practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English 
Language Development during the 
school day. 

 2.7.a Consultation with SCOE 
ELD Coordinator to develop 
schoolwide practices to support 
EL students in all curricular areas. 
(0000-5830-SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,200  

 2.7.a Consultation with SCOE 
ELD Coordinator to develop 
schoolwide practices to support 
EL students in all curricular 
areas. (0000-5830-SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,200 

2.7.b Collaboration time to plan 
ELD instruction, review 
assessments of student progress 
and refine instructional practices.  
Collaboration time embedded into 

 2.7.b Collaboration time to plan 
ELD instruction, review 
assessments of student progress 
and refine instructional practices.  
Collaboration time embedded into 

229



Page 26 of 144

regular staff schedule on 
shortened Wednesdays. (0000-
1110-1000-1100-0000) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

regular staff schedule on 
shortened Wednesdays. (0000-
1110-1000-1100-0000) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.8 Provide professional 
development opportunities for 
integrating tiers of intervention 
support for students in ELA and 
Math. 
 

 2.8 Provided professional 
development opportunities for 
integrating tiers of intervention 
support for students in ELA and 
Math. 

 2.8.a Instructional Coach 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.2.a  

 2.8.a Instructional Coach 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.2.a 

2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830-SGPD) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No Additional 
Costs  

 2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830-SGPD) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No Additional 
Costs 

2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools 
and SCOE Network (0000-5830-
SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No Addtional Costs  

 2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools 
and SCOE Network (0000-5830-
SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No Addtional Costs 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes by providing collaboration time, professional learning time, developing 
instructional practices, developing math performance tasks, developing units of instruction in Math and ELA, integrating Art education, 
implementing ELD Instructional Strategies, integrating tiers of intervention support.         
 

230



Page 27 of 144

Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*Professional Learning Opportunities 
*Evidence of Classroom Practices 
*Evidence of Core instructional practices 
*Positive teacher feedback on professional learning. 
 
We met all of our outcomes! 
 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

231



Page 28 of 144

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 

232



Page 29 of 144

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6) - % students 
score at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6) - % students score at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
 
DIBELS (K-6) -- % of students who meet grade level benchmarks. 
 
CAASPP - % Increase from previous year in ELA and Math. 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English -- % of students 
meeting target. 
AMAO II -- % of students meeting target. 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results in the following areas: 1)  Student 
Classroom Skills, 2) Student Access, 3) Student Skills general, 4) 
Environment Overall 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade) % increased in aerobic capacity and body 
composition. 
 
        

 Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6) - 37% students 
score at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6) - 50% students score at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
 
DIBELS (K-6) -- 33% of students who meet grade level benchmarks. 
 
CAASPP - 4% Increase from previous year in ELA 
CAASPP - 5% Increase from previous year in Math. 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - NA 
AMAO II -- NA 
 
BrightBytes NA 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade) 
36% aerobic capacity 
36%  body composition 
 

233



Page 30 of 144

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students need to develop proficiency in academic language (all) and 
English language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
70% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational 
text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 70% students score at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
 
DIBELS (K-6) -- 60% of students are meeting grade level benchmarks. 
 
CAASPP - Increase from previous year in ELA and Math (6% overall). 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English --  65%-meet target 
 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 30%-meet target 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- Exemplary 
Digital Citizenship- Exemplary 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- Exemplary 
At Home- Exemplary 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: Exemplary 
Online: Exemplary 
Multimedia: Exemplary 
 
4) Environment Overall: 
Policies and Procedures: Advanced 
Support: Advanced 
Beliefs: Exemplary 
Prof. Learning: Advanced 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 70% 
Body Composition -- 74% 
 
        

Baseline 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students need to develop proficiency in academic language (all) and 
English language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
70% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational 
text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 70% students score at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
 
DIBELS (K-6) -- 57% of students are meeting grade level benchmarks. 
 
CAASPP - 
Increase from 2015-16 in ELA (maintained) 
Math increased by 6% overall. 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English --  62%-meet target 
(14-15 data aggregated data is lagging by two years)AMAO II -- Less than 5 
yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 29%-meet target (14-15 data aggregated 
data is lagging by two years) 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results 2017: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- Proficient 
Digital Citizenship- Proficient 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- Proficient 
At Home- Proficient 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: Proficient 
Online: Advanced 
Multimedia: Advanced 
 
4) Environment Overall (Teachers and Students) 
Policies and Procedures: Emerging 
Support: Emerging 
Beliefs: Advanced 
Prof. Learning: Emerging 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 66% 
Body Composition -- 71% 
 
        

234



Page 31 of 144

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.1 Assess student progress 
toward curricular goals. 
 

 3.1 Assessed student progress 
toward curricular goals. 

 3.1.a Renaissance Learning 
(STAR Reading & Star Math) 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $2,000  

 3.1.a Renaissance Learning 
(STAR Reading & Star Math) 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $5,169 

3.1.b DIBELS - annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG03) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $1,450  

 3.1.b DIBELS - annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG03) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $1,450 

3.1.c Collaboration time for teams 
of teachers to develop 
assessment practices aligned 
with District Student Outcomes. 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

 3.1.c Collaboration time for teams 
of teachers to develop 
assessment practices aligned 
with District Student Outcomes. 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b 

3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused 
on integrated units of instruction 
aligned with District Student 

 3.2 Implemented Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused 
on integrated units of instruction 
aligned with District Student 

 3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Changed student schedule to 
include shortened Wednesdays 

 3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Changed student schedule to 
include shortened Wednesdays 

235



Page 32 of 144

Outcomes and California Content 
Standards. 
 

Outcomes and California Content 
Standards. allowing collaboration time for 

staff. 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

allowing collaboration time for 
staff. 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b 

3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-
1000-4310-BG03) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $500  

 3.2.b Digital and print 
instructional resources - PBL 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-BG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base $500 

3.2.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.c  

 3.2.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.c 

3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Adoption 
(0000-1110-1000-4110-7156 ) 
 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base Purchased by District - 
Fund 01  

 3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Adoption 
(0000-1110-1000-4110-7156 ) 
 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base Purchased by District - 
Fund 01 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.3 Provide instruction to students 
in developing literacy, media 
literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills. 
 

 3.3 Provided instruction to 
students in developing literacy, 
media literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills. 

 3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $31,679  

 3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $29,823 

3.3.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
sites) 1000-1999: Certificated 

 3.3.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
sites) 1000-1999: Certificated 

236



Page 33 of 144

Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 2.2.b  

Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 2.2.b 

3.3.c Conduct needs assessment 
for resources for balanced literacy 
instruction 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 3.3.c Conduct needs assessment 
for resources for balanced 
literacy instruction 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

3.3.d Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.c  

 3.3.d Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.c 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.4 Provide arts education (visual, 
digital, music, performing arts) for 
students to develop 
communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 
 

 3.4 Provided arts education 
(visual, digital, music, performing 
arts) for students to develop 
communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE 
shared between 3 K-6 schools) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.3.d  

 3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE 
shared between 3 K-6 schools) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.3.d 

3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental See 1.3.f  

 3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental See 1.3.f 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.5 Provide students with 
instruction to develop motor 
skills/physical fitness. 
 

 3.5 Provided students with 
instruction to develop motor 
skills/physical fitness. 

 3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.3.a  

 3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.3.a 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

237



Page 34 of 144

3.6 Provide academic support for 
students with disabilities to access 
a rigorous curriculum aligned with 
California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 

 3.6 Provided academic support for 
students with disabilities to access 
a rigorous curriculum aligned with 
California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 

 3.6.a Special Ed Teachers (2 FTE 
for District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-1120-1100-0000) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Special Education 
$50,895  

 3.6.a Special Ed Teachers (2 
FTE for District K-12 Program) 
(6500-5770-1120-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $56,122 

3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC 
(1 FTE for District K-6 Program) 
(6500-5770-1110-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,016  

 3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for 
SDC (1 FTE for District K-6 
Program) (6500-5770-1110-1100-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,439 

3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $16,519  

 3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $16,519 

3.6.d Specialized Assistants 
(SDC) (3310-5770-1110-2100) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Special Education 
$22,116  

 3.6.d Specialized Assistants 
(SDC) (3310-5770-1110-2100) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Special Education 
$22,116 

3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-
12 Program) (6500-5770-3150-
1200) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,008  

 3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-
12 Program) (6500-5770-3150-
1200) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,008 

3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-2100-1300-) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $32,882  

 3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-2100-1300-) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $33,936 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

238



Page 35 of 144

3.7 Develop Math Curriculum 
Committee to research and explore 
math instructional resources. 
 

 3.7 Developed Math Curriculum 
Committee to research and 
explore math instructional 
resources. 

 3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum Committee to 
research math instructional 
materials 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 2.4  

 3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum Committee to 
research math instructional 
materials 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 2.4 

3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base See 3.2.e  

 3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base See 3.2.e 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 
 

 3.8 Provided Community 
Connected Learning opportunities 

 3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) 
(0000-5806-FT03)  (Based on 
$25/ADA) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $7,000  

 3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) 
(0000-5806-FT03)  (Based on 
$25/ADA) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $7,000 

3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $500  

 3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $500 

3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-
5808-FT03)  (Based on $180/6th 
Grade Student)  (Projecting 25 
6th Grade Students) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $4,500  

 3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-
5808-FT03)  (Based on $180/6th 
Grade Student)  (Projecting 25 
6th Grade Students) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $4,500 

Action 9 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

239



Page 36 of 144

3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted 
instruction and academic 
intervention. 
 

 3.9 Provided tiers of support (RtI) 
for students who need targeted 
instruction and academic 
intervention. 

 3.9.a Collaboration time for 
teachers to review benchmark 
data, plan interventions, and 
assess student progress. 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 1.2.b  

 3.9.a Collaboration time for 
teachers to review benchmark 
data, plan interventions, and 
assess student progress. 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 1.2.b 

3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500  

 3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500 

3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental No 
Cost - 3 Yr Subscription 
Purchased in 2016-2017  

 3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental No 
Cost - 3 Yr Subscription 
Purchased in 2016-2017 

3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention 
Program) (0000-1110-2100-1300-
600-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $9,395  

 3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention 
Program) (0000-1110-2100-1300-
600-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $10,495 

Action 10 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.10 Provide extended instructional 
time before and after school for 
students who need additional 
academic support in ELA and 
Math. 
 

 3.10 Provided extended 
instructional time before and after 
school for students who need 
additional academic support in 
ELA and Math. 

 3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                       
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$500  

 3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                       
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$500 

3.10.b Intervention materials                                     
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental See 1.3.f  

 3.10.b Intervention materials                                     
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental See 1.3.f 

Action 11 
    

240



Page 37 of 144

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.11 Provide extended learning 
time for students during summer. 
 

 3.11 Provided extended learning 
time for students during summer. 

 3.11 Teacher hourly rate                                       
0000-1650-1000-1130-600-
SGMK 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$9,470  

 3.11 Teacher hourly rate                                       
0000-1650-1000-1130-600-
SGMK 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$15,262 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we worked towards ensuring all students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and 
behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers by assessing student progress, implementing project-based 
learning/inquiry methods, developing literacy, media literacy, research and digital citizenship skills, and providing arts education, 
physical fitness, academic support, Math Curriculum Committee, Community Connected Learning Opportunities, tiers of support (Rti), 
Before and After School Support (ELA and Math) and summer extended learning time.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*ELA CAASPP results (increase met/exceed from prior year) 
*Math CAASPP results (increase met/exceed from prior year) 
*Broad Course of Study 
*Distance away from standard met ELA 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*STAR Reading 
*Dibels 
*Physical Fitness testing (Aerobic Capacity and Body Composition) 
*Distance away from standard met Math 
*STAR Math 
         
 

241



Page 38 of 144

Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

242



Page 39 of 144

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
# of parents at EOY BBQ 
# of parents at Harvest Fair 
# of consistent and regular parent volunteers. 
 
Engagement statistics for social media sites, website, and e-newsletters. ie- 
Twitter followers, stars on Facebook, Facebook followers, Facebook page 
likes. 
 
        

 750 participants 
(Harvest Faire, Bingo Night, Winter Wonderland, PJ Party, Luau, Movie 
Night, Outdoor Adventure Day, Spring Clean-up, Color Run, End of year 
BBQ) 
 
35 consistent and regular parent volunteers. 
181 volunteers 
 
Engagement statistics for social media sites, website, and e-newsletters. ie- 
Twitter followers, stars on Facebook, Facebook followers, Facebook page 
likes. 
201 Likes 
202 Follows 
407 views for the newsletter. 
2324 website views 
 

243



Page 40 of 144

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, accessed up-to-date information on school events, 
student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals 
to support their child's education. 
 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, felt a sense of connection and engagement with the 
school community. 
 
110 parents at EOY BBQ, 160 parents at Harvest Fair = attendance at 
school events. 
35 consistent and regular parent volunteers. 
Engagement statistics on social media sites, website, and e-newsletters. 75 
Twitter followers, 5.0/5.0 stars on Facebook. 145 Facebook followers, 145 
Facebook page likes. 
 
        

Baseline 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, accessed up-to-date information on school events, 
student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals 
to support their child's education. 
 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, felt a sense of connection and engagement with the 
school community. 
 
100 parents at EOY BBQ, 150 parents at Harvest Fair = attendance at 
school events. 
25 consistent and regular parent volunteers. 
Engagement statistics on social media sites, website, and e-newsletters. 64 
Twitter followers, 4.9/5.0 stars on Facebook. 131 Facebook followers, 135 
Facebook page likes. 
 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

    

244



Page 41 of 144

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, 
Numeracy, technology, English 
language, Student Outcomes, 
4C's, Social-Emotional learning, 
and Positive Parenting. 
 

 4.1 Provide Parent Education: 
Literacy, Numeracy, technology, 
English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $539  

 4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $539 

4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-
SG04) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500  

 4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-
SG04) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500 

4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-
4760-1000-2100-SG04) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $22,245  

 4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-
4760-1000-2100-SG04) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $22,726 

4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-
1000-2100-SG04) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 4.1.c  

 4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-
1000-2100-SG04) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 4.1.c 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.2 Develop tools to communicate 
with parents regarding student 
progress 
 

 4.2 Developed tools to 
communicate with parents 
regarding student progress 

 4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-1130-SG04) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.1.a  

 4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-1130-SG04) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.1.a 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an 
understanding of educational 
programs and parent engagement 
such as social media, district and 
school websites, SchoolGo mobile 

 4.3 Used a variety of 
communication platforms to 
promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, 
district and school websites, 

 4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $200  

 4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $200 

245



Page 42 of 144

app, e-newsletters, LCAP 
Infographics and virtual meetings 
(AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, 
etc.) including School/Community 
events that showcase student 
learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 
 

SchoolGo mobile app, e-
newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, 
Google Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that 
showcase student learning 
(exhibitions, performances, etc.) 

4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $100  

 4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $100 

4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $150  

 4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $150 

4.3.d Photography 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base No 
additional cost  

 4.3.d Photography 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base No 
additional cost 

4.3.e SchoolGo annual 
subscription  (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $50  

 4.3.e SchoolGo annual 
subscription  (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $50 

4.3.f LCAP Infographics for 
Website                                
(1110-5830-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $2,000  

 4.3.f LCAP Infographics for 
Website                                
(1110-5830-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $2,000 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.4 Provide parent education 
through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including 
English language support, 
strategies for supporting students 
in academic learning at home. 
 

 4.4 Provided parent education 
through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including 
English language support, 
strategies for supporting students 
in academic learning at home. 

 4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.a  

 4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.a 

4.4.b Outreach Worker 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.c  

 4.4.b Outreach Worker 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.c 

4.4.c Program Coordinator 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.3.c  

 4.4.c Program Coordinator 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.3.c 

246



Page 43 of 144

4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-
4760-1000-5830-SG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,100  

 4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-
4760-1000-5830-SG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,100 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 
 

 4.5 Provided parents with access 
to information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 4.5.a Teacher hourly rate 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 4.5.a Teacher hourly rate 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

4.5.b Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation 
services 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.1.c  

 4.5.b Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation 
services 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.1.c 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we improved parent engagement by providing parent education, communicating to parents 
about student progress, utilizing communication platforms, providing a community based tutoring program, and providing access to 
parents related to supporting students.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*407 newsletter views 
*201 likes on Facebook 
*202 follows on Facebook 
*181 volunteers 
*750 event participants 

247



Page 44 of 144

 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*26 parent survey respondents 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

248



Page 45 of 144

Stakeholder Engagement 
 

 

LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

 

Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

1. Governing Board 
 
LCAP Stakeholder Engagement: Meeting Dates: 

 April 10 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 May 15 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 June 5- (public hearing) 
 June 19 (adoption) 

2. School Site Council: Met on 10/11/18, 11/8/18, 12/13/18, 1/17/19, 4/22/19)        
3. DELAC Meeting -- participation from all sites.  1/23/2019        
4. ELAC Meeting- 2/12/19        
5. Students 

 My Voice Survey (2/4-2/18) 
 Student Council (1/15, 4/11) 

6. Teachers 
 Certificated Bargaining Unit Meeting 1/23/2019 
 Staff Meetings (8/14, 10/17, 11/26, 1/23, 2/20, 3/27, 4/10, 5/15) 
 My Voice Survey: 2/3-2/17 
 Instructional Leadership Team (11/30, 1/29, 3/04, 4/02, 4/24, 5/20) 
 District Teacher Survey: 1/28-2/1/19 

7. Classified Staff 

249



Page 46 of 144

 Classified bargaining unit consulted on 1/23/2019 

8. Parents 
 My Voice Survey (1/23-2/13) 
 PTO Meeting 
 Events (various throughout the year) 

9. Staff 
 Elementary Districtwide LCAP Meeting: 1/23/2019 
 District Staff Survey: 1/23/2019 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting: 1/31/2019        
         

 

Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

1. Governing Board 
No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 
        
2. School Site Council 
School Site Council requested the following : Another PA (or 3), 2 or 3 who are trained as a PA/SA II (who can serve our physically 
challenged students), Stipend for Girls on the Run lead coach, Maintenance of Counseling (or more - we need more group/friendship 
circles). In the future SSC would like to have actions/services that lend toward having a charter school with a focus on 
gardens/agriculture 
        
3. DELAC Meeting 
No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 
        
4. ELAC Meeting 
The ELAC was happy with the direction of the school and LCAP goals, actions and services. 
        
5. Students 

250



Page 47 of 144

 My Voice Survey: We saw an increase in the LCAP metrics related to My Voice Survey: Feel important (3-5) 27% to 37%, 
Valued member (6th) 30% to 39%, Comfortable asking questions (3-5) 41% to 42%, Comfortable asking questions (6) 37% 
to 65%. Indications that we must continue our work with LCAP Goal 1: Culture: Create a positive, learning focused 
environment and culture for all students, include the following data points which represent the percentage of students in total 
agreement: Grades 3-5 "Other students are kind to me" 39%, "students respect teachers" 24%, "If I am upset, I can tell my 
teacher why" 36%, "Other students listen to my ideas" 26%, "I am a good decision maker" 34%, "Students help make 
classroom rules" 21%. Grades 6: "I have never been recognized for something positive at school" 22%, "Teachers have fun 
at school" 30% 

"I find homework helpful to my overall learning" 30%, "Students develop programs that improve the whole school" 22% 

 Student Council: No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

6. Teachers 

 Certificated Bargaining Unit :Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

 Staff Meetings: No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

 My Voice Survey: 16 respondents: We saw an increase in the LCAP metrics related to My Voice Survey. We plan to include 
more metrics from this survey in the 19-20 LCAP. "Professional development is an important part of my educational growth" 
86% to 94%. Indications that we must continue our work with LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching Implement teaching practices that 
support students in the achievement of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. The percentages 
represent the % of teachers in agreement. "At school I am encouraged to be creative." 75%, "Our school is a dynamic and 
creative learning environment." 69%, "Meaningful professional development opportunities exist in my district." 69%, "Setting 
yearly goals with my supervisor is important for my work." 56%, "I am excited to tell my colleagues when I do something 
well" 75%, "I have a voice in decision making at school." 75%, "I know the goals my school is working on this year." 69%, "I 
feel confident voicing my honest opinions and concerns." 69%, "Central office understands the unique culture of our school." 
73%, "Building administration knows my professional goals." 67% 

 Instructional Leadership Team: Would like to have actions/services in the future that lend toward have a charter school with a 
focus on gardens/agriculture. 

7. Classified Staff 
Classified would like to meet and give input on Professional learning for 19-20. No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics 
were requested at this time. 

251



Page 48 of 144

        
8. Parents 

 My Voice Survey: 26 respondents. We must continue our LCAP Goal 4: Improve Parent Engagement actions. We plan to 
add the following questions from this survey to the LCAP: Feel welcome at school 89%, Parent evenings/meetings are worth 
attending: 92%, Parents feel comfortable going to parent-teacher conferences 42%, Input and opinions are valued at my 
child's school 60%, We also plan to increase the # of responses from parents. 

 PTO Meeting 

 Events: We had about 750 event participants and 181 volunteers in all of our events. Each of the events help build 
community and develop relationship with our stakeholders so they can share their opinions and develop trust. 

9. Staff 

 District-wide Staff LCAP Meeting Feedback: Professional learning- teachers would like to have their meeting in May as per 
the contract to give input for each site. Shortened Wednesdays- The would like them planned in advance and alternate with 
little changes into the year. 

 District Staff Survey: 62 Respondents: The school effectively supports professional learning to facilitate all students 
achieving the academic standards 77%; I have an adequate curriculum at this time to effectively implement the standards 
53%; Assessment data and students' work is analyzed and used to make instructional decisions as a grade level team 85%; 
The school implements strategies and processes for the regular involvement of the parent community including non English 
speaking parents 65%; The school has an atmosphere of trust, respect, and professionalism 94%; The school offers 
adequate services, including referral services, to support students in areas of health, counseling, academic assistance 
including English language development, etc 33%; most important state priorities: Basic Services 64% and Course Access 
71%. Implication on LCAP: Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting 
 
        

         
 

252



Page 49 of 144

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        

X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Students need to feel safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with others. 
Students need to feel engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their school community. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students): 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their classrooms - 75% 
Students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their school community" - 85% 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions in class" - 90% 
Students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions in class" - 90% 
 
Healthy Kids Survey data 
 
Attendance Rates -- 96% or more 
Truancy Rate -- 1% or less 
Suspension Rates -- 1% or less 
Expulsion Rate - 0% 
 

253



Page 50 of 144

Facilities: FIT Survey - Sustain status 
Williams Act: Sustain 100% access to instructional materials. 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

My Voice Survey 
(students): 
 
% Students in grades 3-
5 reporting that they 
"feel important" in their 
classrooms. 
 
        

 42%  27%  37%  42% 

%Students in grade 6 
reporting that they are "a 
valued member of" their 
school community.        

 55%  30%  39%  44% 

% Students in grades 3-
5 reporting that they are 
"comfortable asking 
questions in class."        

 60%  41%  42%  47% 

% Students in grades 6 
reporting that they are 
"comfortable asking 
questions in class."        

 71%  37%  65%  70% 

Feel safe at school 
(CHKS) 
 
        

 Baseline 17-18: 72%  72%  NA  77% 
 
 

Caring Relationships 
with adults (CHKS)        

 Baseline 17-18: 31%  31%  NA  36% 

Meaningful Participation 
(CHKS)        

 Baseline 17-18: 7%  7%  NA  12% 

254



Page 51 of 144

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

School Connectedness 
(CHKS)        

 Baseline 17-18: 29%  29%  NA  34% 

Attendance Rates         95%  96%  95%  95% 

Chronic Absenteeism 
(previous year) 
 
Status 
Change 
Performance Color 
Current data as of April 
        

 (2016-2017 Data) 
 
 
14.4% 
NA 
NA 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
 
 
14.4% 
NA 
NA 
 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
 
 
11.5% 
Declined 2.9% 
Yellow 
 
As of April 2019: 14% 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
9.5% 
Declined 2% 
Green 
 
As of April 2020: 
 

Suspension Rates 
(previous year) 
 
Status 
Change 
Performance Color 
# of Subgroups in 
Orange or Red 
 
Current data as of April 
 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
0.9% 
Declined 0.8% 
Green 
3 (EL, SWD, White) 
 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
 
 
0.9% 
Declined 0.8% 
Green 
3 (EL, SWD, White) 
 
 
 
 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
 
 
0.9% 
0% 
Green 
3 (SWD, His, SED) 
 
As of April 2019: 1% 
 
 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
<1% 
0% 
Green 
0 
 
 
As of April 2020: <3% 
 

Expulsion Rate %         0%  0%  0%  0% 

FIT Survey status         Exemplary  Exemplary  Exemplary  Exemplary 

Williams Act: % access 
to instructional 
materials.        

 100% access to 
instructional materials. 

 100%  100%  100% 

Appropriately assigned 
credential        

 100%  100%  100%  100% 

 

255



Page 52 of 144

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully!        

 1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully! 

 1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully! 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

256



Page 53 of 144

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Cost  No Additional Cost  No Additional Cost 
        No Additional Cost  No Additional Cost  No Additional Cost Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No Additional Cost  No Additional Cost  No Additional Cost Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox/No Bully!  No additional 
costs as consultant is now 
employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox/No Bully!  No additional 
costs as consultant is now 
employee.                    (0000-1110-
1000-5202-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox/No Bully!  No additional 
costs as consultant is now 
employee.                  (0000-1110-
1000-5202-SGPD) 

Amount        $658  $658  $658 
        $658  $658  $658 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $658  $658  $658 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)                                  
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SG01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)             (0000-
1110-1000-5880-SG01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)             (0000-
1110-1000-5880-SG01) 

Amount        $300  $300  $400 
        $300  $300  $400 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $300  $300  $400 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                             
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                                    
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                                      
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

257



Page 54 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.2  Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate.        

 1.2 Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate. 

 1.2 Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $131,279  $136,917  $142,747 
        $131,279  $136,917  $142,747 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $131,279  $136,917  $142,747 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 

Amount        $1,293,298  $1,380,087  $1,413,861 
        $1,293,298  $1,380,087  $1,413,861 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,293,298  $1,380,087  $1,413,861 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 

258



Page 55 of 144

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 

Amount        $0  $34,203  $38,000 
        $0  $34,203  $38,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $34,203  $38,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.d Counselor-District-wide split 
between all sites (3110-1200)  
Because of Coffey Park fire, outside 
counselor was contracted with for 
Olivet (3110-5830-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.d Counselor-District-wide split 
between all sites (3110-1200-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.2.d Counselor-District-wide split 
between all sites (3110-1200) 
Because of Coffey Park fire, outside 
counselor was contracted with for 
Olivet (3110-5830-SG01) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

259



Page 56 of 144

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc.        

 1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc. 

 1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $25,000  $30,274  $25,500 
        $25,000  $30,274  $25,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $25,000  $30,274  $25,500 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 

Amount        $5,000  $4,810  $5,700 
        $5,000  $4,810  $5,700 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $5,000  $4,810  $5,700 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher and Program 
Assistant hourly rate(after school 
activities)                                                    
(0000-1110/1600-1000-1130/2130-
SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher and Program 
Assistant hourly rate(after school 
activities)                                                    
(0000-1660-1000-1130/2130-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher and Program 
Assistant hourly rate(after school 
activities)                                                    
(0000-1660-1000-1130/2130-SG01) 

260



Page 57 of 144

Amount        $500     
        $500     Source        Base     
        $500     Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.3.c Artist in Residence (community 
partnerships to support arts 
education) Not able to find someone 
to fill this position         (0000-1130-
1000-5830-SG01) 

  
 

  
 

Amount        $27,701  $26,078  $30,093 
        $27,701  $26,078  $30,093 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $27,701  $26,078  $30,093 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)                                                   
(0000-1510-1000-1100- SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)                 0000-1510-
1000-1100-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)                   (0000-
1510-1000-1100-SG01) 

Amount        $0  $  $ 
        $0  $  $ Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $  $ Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-SGMK) 
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-SGMK) 
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-SGMK) 
 

Amount        $0  $500  $1,500 
        $0  $500  $1,500 Source        Base  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $500  $1,500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                                                                
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                            (0000-
1660-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                                 (0000-
1660-1000-4310-SG01) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

261



Page 58 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities.        

 1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities. 

 1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 
        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds Staff 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds Staff 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds Staff 

262



Page 59 of 144

Amount        $144,391  $147,365  $149,871 
        $144,391  $147,365  $149,871 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $144,391  $147,365  $149,871 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff (8210-2200) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff 

Amount        $16,850  $23,000  $20,500 
        $16,850  $23,000  $20,500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $16,850  $23,000  $20,500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies (8210-4370) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies (8210-4370/8110-4380) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies (8210-4370/8110-4380) 

Amount        $45,533  $63,333  $63,333 
        $45,533  $63,333  $63,333 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $45,533  $63,333  $63,333 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4 e Maintenance Repairs including 
Transfer to Deferred Maintenance 
Fund (8110-5630)(9200-7614) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4 e Maintenance Repairs including 
Transfer to Deferred Maintenance 
Fund (8110-5630)(9200-7614) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4 e Maintenance Repairs including 
Transfer to Deferred Maintenance 
Fund (8110-5630)(9200-7614) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

263



Page 60 of 144

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning.        

 1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning. 

 1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $6,700  $  $ 
        $6,700  $  $ Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $6,700  $  $ Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project - Reimagine Learning 
(4310/440-RLC) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project - Reimagine Learning 
(4310/440-RLC) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project - Reimagine Learning 
(4310/440-RLC) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All        
 [Add Students to be Served selection here] 

  [Add Location(s) selection here] 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

264



Page 61 of 144

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        
 [Add Students to be Served selection here] 

 X LEA-wide        
 [Add Scope of Services selection here] 

  [Add Location(s) selection here] 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision.        

 1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision. 

 1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $48,082  $60,939  $51,572 
        $48,082  $60,939  $51,572 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $48,082  $60,939  $51,572 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors 2000-2999 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors, KinderCare 2000-3999 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors, KinderCare 2000-3999 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

265



Page 62 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action          
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.7 Provide tiers of social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 
in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships.        

 1.7 Provide tiers of social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 
in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships. 

  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $35,000  $30,000  $0 
        $35,000  $30,000  $0 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $35,000  $30,000  $0 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor           (0000-1110-
3110-5830-SG01) 

Amount        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c 
        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999 

266



Page 63 of 144

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action          
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.8 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services.        

 1.8 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services. 

  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $0 
        $1,000  $1,000  $0 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $1,000  $0 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only Charged if used 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only Charged if used 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only Charged if used 

267



Page 64 of 144

Amount        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a 
        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a Counseling time 5800 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a Counseling time 5800 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a Counseling time 5800 

 

268



Page 65 of 144

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Common Core Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Teachers need opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine teaching practices that support the California Common 
Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who have participated in professional development related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based 
Learning. 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes  (student work 
products, lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
98% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies 
aligned to the Common Core. 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered:  90% positive feedback. 
 
BrightBytes Survey (Teacher Results): 
Foundational Skills -- 71% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 52% will utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 96% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
 
 

269



Page 66 of 144

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

% of teachers who have 
participated in 
professional 
development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project Based 
Learning. 
 
 
 
        

 100% 
 
 
 
 

 100%  100%  100% 

Evidence of classroom 
practices related to the 
California Content 
Standards and the 
District's Student 
Outcomes  (student 
work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics 
developed).        

 Evidence of classroom 
practices related to the 
California Content 
Standards and the 
District's Student 
Outcomes  (student 
work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics 
developed). 
 
 

 NA  13 of 13 teachers  13 of 13 teachers 

% of classrooms w/ 
evidence of close 
reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing 
activities, and math 
instructional strategies 
aligned to the Common 
Core. 
 
        

 98% of classrooms w/ 
evidence of close 
reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing 
activities, and math 
instructional strategies 
aligned to the Common 
Core. 

 100%  100%  100% 

Teacher feedback on 
professional learning 

 90% positive feedback.  86% positive feedback.  94% positive feedback  90%+ 

270



Page 67 of 144

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

opportunities offered: % 
positive feedback. 
 
        
MyVoice Survey-
Teachers 
Number of Respondents 
        

 Baseline year 17-18: 21 
 
 

 21  16  All teachers 

% of teachers who feel 
like a valued member of 
school community        

 Baseline year 17-18: 
95% 

 95%  87%  90% 

% of teachers who feel 
professional 
development is 
important to educational 
growth        

 Baseline year 17-18: 
100% 

 100%  94%  >90% 

% of teachers who feel 
staff work in a 
collaboartive manner        

 Baseline year 17-18: 
80% 

 80%  80%  85% 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

271



Page 68 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action          
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels.        

 2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

 2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1.a Changed schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students, 
allowing staff time to collaborate, 
review student work, develop 
rubrics, plan instruction, and reflect 
on teaching practice.  Costs included 
in salaries/benefits for highly 
qualified teachers. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1.a Changed schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students, 
allowing staff time to collaborate, 
review student work, develop rubrics, 
plan instruction, and reflect on 
teaching practice.  Costs included in 
salaries/benefits for highly qualified 
teachers. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1.a Changed schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students, 
allowing staff time to collaborate, 
review student work, develop rubrics, 
plan instruction, and reflect on 
teaching practice.  Costs included in 
salaries/benefits for highly qualified 
teachers. 

Action 2 
272



Page 69 of 144

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards.        

 2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards. 

 2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

273



Page 70 of 144

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $41,000  $37,676  see 3.2.f 
        $41,000  $37,676  see 3.2.f Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $41,000  $37,676  see 3.2.f Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

Amount        $33,600  $34,647  $39,075 
        $33,600  $34,647  $39,075 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $33,600  $34,647  $39,075 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)             
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)             
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)             
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

Amount        $18,100  $3,000  $3,000 
        $18,100  $3,000  $3,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $18,100  $3,000  $3,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.c Momentum in Teaching - 
Writing PD                (1110-1000-
5202-SGWW) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.c Momentum in Teaching - 
Writing PD                (1110-1000-
5202-SGWW) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.c Momentum in Teaching - 
Writing PD                (1110-1000-
5202-SGWW) 

Amount        $4,585  $3,000  $3,000 
        $4,585  $3,000  $3,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $4,585  $3,000  $3,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD - Teacher 
time (1110-1000-1130-SGWW) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD - Teacher 
time (1110-1000-1130-SGWW) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD - Teacher 
time (1110-1000-1130-SGWW) 

274



Page 71 of 144

Amount        $0  $1,000  $1,000 
        $0  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02/0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG02) - Paid by 
District 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02/0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG02) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02/0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG02) 

Amount        $3,600  $0  $0 
        $3,600  $0  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $3,600  $0  $0 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.f Participation in NCTIP Program 
(0000-5830-BTSA) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.f Participation in NCTIP Program 
(0000-5830-BTSA) - It is anticipated 
that there will be no staff members 
who need to participate in this 
program in 2018-2019 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2.f Participation in NCTIP Program 
(0000-5830-BTSA) - It is anticipated 
that there will be no staff members 
who need to participate in this 
program in 2019-2020 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.g Develop New Teacher Support 
Network (contract with SCOE), 
Release Time, Collaboration Time 
(0000-1110-1000-1130-BG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.g Continue New Teacher 
Support Network (contract with 
SCOE), Release Time, Collaboration 
Time (0000-1110-1000-1130-BG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.g Continue New Teacher 
Support Network (contract with 
SCOE), Release Time, Collaboration 
Time (0000-1110-1000-1130-BG02) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

275



Page 72 of 144

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 
teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math.        

 2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 
teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math. 

 2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 
teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

276



Page 73 of 144

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $9,000  $9,000  $5,000 
        $9,000  $9,000  $5,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $9,000  $9,000  $5,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.a Continue to conduct 21st 
Century School Renewal work to 
help determine school-wide priorities 
resulting in Renewal Action plans to 
support improved student 
achievement for all students. Ensure 
that Renewal Action Plans are data 
and research-based, support 
systemic change and are 
collaboratively researched and 
developed by staff. Provide funding 
for School Renewal coaching, 
coaching support, school a/o district-
level Renewal Cadre work, 
associated Professional Learning 
and supplies and services. 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.a Continue to conduct 21st 
Century School Renewal work to 
help determine school-wide priorities 
resulting in Renewal Action plans to 
support improved student 
achievement for all students. Ensure 
that Renewal Action Plans are data 
and research-based, support 
systemic change and are 
collaboratively researched and 
developed by staff. Provide funding 
for School Renewal coaching, 
coaching support, school a/o district-
level Renewal Cadre work, 
associated Professional Learning 
and supplies and services.  (1110-
1000-5830-SG02) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.a Continue to conduct 21st 
Century School Renewal work to 
help determine school-wide priorities 
resulting in Renewal Action plans to 
support improved student 
achievement for all students. Ensure 
that Renewal Action Plans are data 
and research-based, support 
systemic change and are 
collaboratively researched and 
developed by staff. Provide funding 
for School Renewal coaching, 
coaching support, school a/o district-
level Renewal Cadre work, 
associated Professional Learning 
and supplies and services.   (1110-
1000-5830-SG02) 

Amount        $1,161  $1,161  $1,710 
        $1,161  $1,161  $1,710 Source        Title II  Title II  Title II 
        $1,161  $1,161  $1,710 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 

Amount             
Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

  
 

277



Page 74 of 144

Amount        $20,100  $22,577  $22,946 
        $20,100  $22,577  $22,946 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $20,100  $22,577  $22,946 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600-SG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600-SG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600-SG02) 

Amount        $4,144  $1,000  $1,000 
        $4,144  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $4,144  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGWW) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGWW) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGWW) 

Amount        $1,500  $1,500  $1,500 
        $1,500  $1,500  $1,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,500  $1,500  $1,500 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.3.e                      (1110-1000-5830-
SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.3.e                      (1110-1000-5830-
SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.3.e                      (1110-1000-5830-
SG02) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

278



Page 75 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.4 Develop pilot program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6        

    

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500     
        $500     Source        Base     
        $500     Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.4 Pilot Math performance tasks 
program-consultant time and release 
time (1110-1000-5830-BG02) 

  
 

  
 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

279



Page 76 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6.        

 2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6. 

 2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time - 
Teacher costs embedded in salaries 
through schedule change allowing 
for shortened Wednesdays for 
students. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time - 
Teacher costs embedded in salaries 
through schedule change allowing 
for shortened Wednesdays for 
students. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

280



Page 77 of 144

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas.        

 2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas. 

 2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $2,000  $2,000  $2,450 
        $2,000  $2,000  $2,450 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $2,000  $2,000  $2,450 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
general education teachers to learn 
arts integration strategies to use 
across curriculum-release time 
and/or extra-duty time (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
visioning work (0000-1110-1000-
1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
general education teachers to learn 
arts integration strategies to use 
across curriculum-release time 
and/or extra-duty time (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

281



Page 78 of 144

Amount        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c 
        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners            
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English Language 
Development during the school day.        

 2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English Language 
Development during the school day. 

 2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English Language 
Development during the school day. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 

282



Page 79 of 144

Amount        $0  $1,200  $1,200 
        $0  $1,200  $1,200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $1,200  $1,200 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (0000-5830-
SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (0000-5830-
SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (0000-5830-
SG02) 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.  Collaboration 
time embedded into regular staff 
schedule on shortened 
Wednesdays. (0000-1110-1000-
1130-SG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.  Collaboration 
time embedded into regular staff 
schedule on shortened Wednesdays. 
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.   
Collaboration time embedded into 
regular staff schedule on shortened 
Wednesdays. (0000-1110-1000-
1130-SG02) 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

283



Page 80 of 144

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math.        

 2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math. 

 2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a 
        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

Amount        No Additional Costs  No Additional Costs  No Additional Costs 
        No Additional Costs  No Additional Costs  No Additional Costs Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No Additional Costs  No Additional Costs  No Additional Costs Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830-SGPD) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830-SGPD) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830-SGPD) 

284



Page 81 of 144

Amount        No Addtional Costs  No Addtional Costs  No Addtional Costs 
        No Addtional Costs  No Addtional Costs  No Addtional Costs Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No Addtional Costs  No Addtional Costs  No Addtional Costs Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830-SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830-SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830-SG02) 

 

285



Page 82 of 144

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in skills for future success such as literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive 
collaboration, critical and creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students need to develop proficiency in academic language (all) and English language skills (EL). 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in the use of digital tools for research (accessing information), evaluating sources, digital 
citizenship, communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career readiness. 
Students need to develop physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
70% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 70% students score at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -- 57% of students are meeting grade level benchmarks. 
 
CAASPP - Increase from previous year in ELA and Math (6% overall). 

286



Page 83 of 144

 
Title III Accountability - 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English --  67%-meet target 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 31%-meet target 
Reclassification rate - 0% 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- Exemplary 
Digital Citizenship- Exemplary 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- Exemplary 
At Home- Exemplary 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: Exemplary 
Online: Exemplary 
Multimedia: Exemplary 
 
4) Environment Overall: 
Policies and Procedures: Exemplary 
Support: Exemplary 
Beliefs: Exemplary 
Prof. Learning: Exemplary 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 72% 
Body Composition -- 76% 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Renaissance Learning 
Assessments STAR 
Reading (Gr. 3-6) - % 
students score at or 

 40% 
 
 

 40%  37%  42% 
 
 

287



Page 84 of 144

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

above proficiency on 
grade level standards. 
 
 
        
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6) - 
% students score at or 
above proficiency on 
grade level standards. 
 
        

 70%  38%  50%  55% 

DIBELS (K-6) -- % of 
students who meet 
grade level benchmarks.        

 57%  28%  33%  48% 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 3-6) 
 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
51 points below 
Declined 8 points 
Orange 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
51 points below 
Declined 8 points 
Orange 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
49 points below 
Increased 2.4 points 
Orange 
 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
46 points below 
Increased 3 points 
Yellow 
 
 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 3-6) 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange 
 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
3 (EL, Hispanic, SED) 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
3 (EL, Hispanic, SED) 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
2 (EL, Hispanic) 
 
 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
1 
 

Math Academic 
Indicator (CAASPP 3-6) 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
68 points below 
Declined 21 points 
Orange 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
68 points below 
Declined 21 points 
Orange 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
73 points below 
Declined 5.1 points 
Orange 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
70 points below 
Increased 3 points 
Yellow 
 

288



Page 85 of 144

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Math Academic 
Indicator (CAASPP 3-6) 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange: 
 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
4 (EL, Hispanic, SED, 
White) 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
4 (EL, Hispanic, SED, 
White) 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
2 (EL, Hispanic) 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
1 
 

English Learner 
Indicator        

 2015: 64% 
2016:75% 
 
 

 61%  Not Applicable--
Changes to Indicator 

 TBD 

Physical Fitness Test 
(5th): 
Aerobic Capacity -HFZ 
 
 
        

 2015-2016 Data 
61% 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
63% 
 

 2017-2018 data 
36% 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
41% 
 

Body Composition-HFZ 
 
        

 58% 
 
 

 54%  36%  41% 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

289



Page 86 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals.        

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals. 

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $2,889  $2,000  $3,500 
        $2,889  $2,000  $3,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $2,889  $2,000  $3,500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310/5840-SG03) 

Amount        $1,450  $1,450  $1,450 
        $1,450  $1,450  $1,450 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,450  $1,450  $1,450 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.1.b DIBELS - annual subscription 
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG03) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.1.b DIBELS - annual subscription 
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.b DIBELS - annual subscription 
(0000-1110-1000-4340/5840-BG03) 

290



Page 87 of 144

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes. 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

291



Page 88 of 144

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards.        

 3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards. 

 3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Changed student schedule to 
include shortened Wednesdays 
allowing collaboration time for staff. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Changed student schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays allowing 
collaboration time for staff. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-1000-
4310-BG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-1000-
4310-BG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-1000-
4310-BG03) 

Amount        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c 
        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

292



Page 89 of 144

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        Purchased by District - Fund 01  Purchased by District - Fund 01  $0 
        Purchased by District - Fund 01  Purchased by District - Fund 01  $0 Source        Base  Base  Lottery 
        Purchased by District - Fund 01  Purchased by District - Fund 01  $0 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Pilot texts for 6th Grade, 
Purchased texts for Grades TK-5.. 
(0000-1110-1000-4110-7156 ) 
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Adoption 
(0000-1110-1000-4110-7156 ) 
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum minimal replacement 
texts as needed 
(6300-1110-1000-4310 ) 
 

Amount            $17,000 
            $17,000 Source            LCFF Base 
            $17,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.2.f Implement STEAM Lab - 
contract with Lindsay Hunter (0000-
1110-1000-5830-STEM) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

293



Page 90 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills.        

 3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills. 

 3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $30,145  $31,679  $31,056 
        $30,145  $31,679  $31,056 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $30,145  $31,679  $31,056 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 

Amount        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b 
        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

294



Page 91 of 144

Amount        $500  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        $500  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction (0000-1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction 

Amount        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c 
        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
295



Page 92 of 144

3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills.        

 3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount             
Amount        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d 
        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

Amount        See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f 
        See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1130-1000-4310-
SG03) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
296



Page 93 of 144

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness.        

 3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness. 

 3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a 
        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 Specific Student Groups: Special Education          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 

297



Page 94 of 144

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes.        

 3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes. 

 3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $49,478  $50,895  $52,284 
        $49,478  $50,895  $52,284 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $49,478  $50,895  $52,284 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers (2 FTE 
for District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-1120-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers (2 FTE 
for District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-1120-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers (2 FTE 
for District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-1120-1100-0000) 

Amount        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 
        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

298



Page 95 of 144

Amount        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 
        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 

Amount        $21,289  $22,116  $23,788 
        $21,289  $22,116  $23,788 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $21,289  $22,116  $23,788 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(3310-5770-1110-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(3310-5770-1110-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(3310-5770-1110-2100) 

Amount        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 
        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 

Amount        $29,550  $32,882  $34,220 
        $29,550  $32,882  $34,220 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $29,550  $32,882  $34,220 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

299



Page 96 of 144

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.7 Develop Math Curriculum Committee 
to research and explore math instructional 
resources.        

 3.7 Develop Math Curriculum Committee 
to research and explore math instructional 
resources. 

 3.7 Develop Math Curriculum Committee 
to research and explore math instructional 
resources. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 2.4  See 2.4  See 2.4 
        See 2.4  See 2.4  See 2.4 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 2.4  See 2.4  See 2.4 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum Committee to research 
math instructional materials 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum Committee to research 
math instructional materials 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum Committee to research 
math instructional materials 

300



Page 97 of 144

Amount        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e 
        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities        

 3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 

 3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

301



Page 98 of 144

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $6,700  $7,000  $7,500 
        $6,700  $7,000  $7,500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $6,700  $7,000  $7,500 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5880-FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5806-FT03)  (Based on $25/ADA) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5806-FT03)  (Based on $25/ADA) 

Amount        $500  $500  $2,000 
        $500  $500  $2,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $2,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 

Amount        $5,400  $4,500  $5,168 
        $5,400  $4,500  $5,168 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $5,400  $4,500  $5,168 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03)  (Based on $180/6th Grade 
Student)  (Projecting 25 6th Grade 
Students) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03)  (Based on $180/6th Grade 
Student)  (Projecting 30 6th Grade 
Students) 

Action 9 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

302



Page 99 of 144

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention.        

 3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention. 

 3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

303



Page 100 of 144

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 

Amount        No Cost - 3 Yr Subscription 
Purchased in 2016-2017 

 No Cost - 3 Yr Subscription 
Purchased in 2016-2017 

 $9,486 

        No Cost - 3 Yr Subscription 
Purchased in 2016-2017 

 No Cost - 3 Yr Subscription 
Purchased in 2016-2017 

 $9,486 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No Cost - 3 Yr Subscription 

Purchased in 2016-2017 
 No Cost - 3 Yr Subscription 

Purchased in 2016-2017 
 $9,486 Budget 

Reference        
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - 3-Year  
Subscription 

Amount        $9,325  $9,395  $9,777 
        $9,325  $9,395  $9,777 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $9,325  $9,395  $9,777 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.20 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600-SG03) 

Action 10 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

304



Page 101 of 144

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math.        

 3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math. 

 3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $5,300  $500  $500 
        $5,300  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $5,300  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                              
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                       
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                            
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 

Amount        $0  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f 
        $0  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10.b Intervention materials                                    
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10.b Intervention materials                                     
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10.b Intervention materials                                
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

Action 11 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

305



Page 102 of 144

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer.        

 3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer. 

 3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 
        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11 Teacher hourly rate                                            
0000-1650-1000-1130-600-SGMK 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11 Teacher hourly rate                                       
0000-1650-1000-1130-600-SGMK 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11 Teacher hourly rate                                             
0000-1650-1000-1130-600-SGMK 

 

306



Page 103 of 144

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs, need access to up-to-date information on 
school events, student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their child's education. 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs, need to feel a sense of connection and 
engagement with the school community. 
 
Metrics: 
120 parents at EOY BBQ, 170 parents at Harvest Fair = attendance at school events. 
40 consistent and regular parent volunteers. 
Engagement statistics on social media sites, website, and e-newsletters. 80 Twitter followers, 5.0/5.0 stars on Facebook. 150 
Facebook followers, 150 Facebook page likes. 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

# of event attendees 
 
 

 Baseline 2018-2019: 
750 attendees 

 NA 
 
 

 750 
(Harvest Faire, Bingo 
Night, Winter 

 750+ 
 
 

307



Page 104 of 144

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

        Wonderland, PJ Party, 
Luau, Movie Night, 
Outdoor Adventure Day, 
Spring Clean-up, Color 
Run, End of year BBQ) 
 

# of parent volunteers.         25 parent volunteers.  25  35-Consistent 
181-volunteers 
 

 36+ 
181+ 
 

Facebook Likes/Follows 
 
 
 
 
        

 135 Facebook page 
likes. 
131 Facebook followers 
4.9/5.0 stars 
 
 
 

 135 Facebook page 
likes. 
131 Facebook followers 
4.9/5.0 stars 
 

 201 Likes 
202 Follows 
4.9/5.0 Stars 
 
 

 201+ Likes 
202+ Follows 
 

Newsletter Readership         According to Smores 
Analytics 
Baseline: 167 Views per 
publication 
 

 NA  167 Views per 
publication 
407 views 
2324 website views 
 

 168+ 

MyVoice Parent Survey 
Results 
# of Respondents 
        

 Baseline Year 18-19: 26  NA  26  27+ 

% of parents who feel 
welcome at school        

 Baseline Year 18-19: 
89% 

 NA  89%  80%+ 

% of parents who feel 
evening/meetings are 
worth reading        

 Baseline Year 18-19: 
92% 

 NA  92%  80%+ 

% of parents who feel 
comfortable going to 
parent-teacher 
conferences        

 Baseline Year 18-19: 
42% 

 NA  42%  80%+ 

308



Page 105 of 144

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting.        

 4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

309



Page 106 of 144

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $539  $539  $600 
        $539  $539  $600 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $539  $539  $600 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-SG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-SG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-SG04) 

Amount        $16,928  $22,245  $22,245 
        $16,928  $22,245  $22,245 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $16,928  $22,245  $22,245 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100-SG04) 

Amount        $0  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c 
        $0  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100-SG04) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

310



Page 107 of 144

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress        

 4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress 

 4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,050  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a 
        $1,050  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,050  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

311



Page 108 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 
app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.)        

 4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 
app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 

 4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 
app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $200  $200  $200 
        $200  $200  $200 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $200  $200  $200 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

312



Page 109 of 144

Amount        $100  $100  $100 
        $100  $100  $100 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $100  $100  $100 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

Amount        $150  $150  $150 
        $150  $150  $150 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $150  $150  $150 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

Amount        No additional cost  No additional cost  No additional cost 
        No additional cost  No additional cost  No additional cost Source        Base  Base  Base 
        No additional cost  No additional cost  No additional cost Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

Amount        $50  $50  $50 
        $50  $50  $50 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $50  $50  $50 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription   
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription  
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription  
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG04) 

Amount        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 
        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website                                
(1110-5830-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website                                
(1110-5830-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website                                
(1110-5830-BG04) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

313



Page 110 of 144

Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners            
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home.        

 4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home. 

 4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a 
        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 

314



Page 111 of 144

Amount        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

Amount        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c 
        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c  See 2.3.c Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

Amount        $1,100  $1,100  $1,100 
        $1,100  $1,100  $1,100 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,100  $1,100  $1,100 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-4760-
1000-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-4760-
1000-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-4760-
1000-5830-SG04) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners            
 

Actions/Services 

315



Page 112 of 144

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support.        

 4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.a Teacher hourly rate 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.a Teacher hourly rate 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.a Teacher hourly rate 

Amount        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.b Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.b Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.b Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 

316



Page 113 of 144

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$270,851  10.55% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses one of the charter 
schools, Olivet Elementary Charter School. Olivet's unduplicated count percentage for 2019-2020 is 50.4%, exceeding the 40% 
threshold needed to expend supplemental grant funds on a school-wide basis. Therefore, some of the supplemental grant funds were 
expended on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English learner students. 
Olivet has budgeted over $275,319 for supplemental grant programs. The District offered an extended day and extended year 
program to targeted K-6 students (low income and English learners) which increased the instructional minutes for the year by 
approximately 5,000 or 9.25%. The 10.55% percentage to increase or improve services and the estimated supplemental grant 
revenue are based on the BASF LCFF Calculator using the Governor's May revise budget.  
 
Services explicitly for unduplicated students which are not being utilized on a school-wide basis include: 1) counseling for low-income 
and foster youth, 2) Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and 
designated ELD (33% FTE instructional coach to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL 
Coordinator and follow-up at sites, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the 
development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students, 3) Extended learning 
opportunities (after-school tutoring, summer literacy program, summer maker camp, PE Technician time after school to provide 
opportunities for additional PE/Sports enrichment for low income and EL students, and 4) Parent education -- Parent English classes 
provided by an adult ESL instructor to facilitate engagement of parents of English Learners. Costs for supplemental programs exceed 
the amount of funds projected to be received for this purpose. 
 

317



Page 114 of 144

Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services":  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Olivet Charter School has determined these actions described in 
the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established processes to ensure 
that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$262,059  9.95% 

318



Page 115 of 144

 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses one of the charter 
schools, Olivet Elementary Charter School. Olivet's unduplicated count percentage for 2017-2018 is 57.4%, exceeding the 40% 
threshold needed to expend supplemental grant funds on a school-wide basis. Therefore, some of the supplemental grant funds were 
expended on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English learner students. 
Olivet has budgeted over $296,000 for supplemental grant programs. The District offered an extended day and extended year 
program to targeted K-6 students (low income and English learners) which increased the instructional minutes for the year by 
approximately 5,000 or 9.25%. The 9.95% percentage to increase or improve services and the estimated supplemental grant revenue 
are based on the BASF LCFF Calculator using the Governor's January budget.  
 
Services explicitly for unduplicated students which are not being utilized on a school-wide basis include: 1) counseling for low-income 
and foster youth, 2) Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and 
designated ELD (33% FTE instructional coach to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL 
Coordinator and follow-up at sites, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the 
development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students, 3) Extended learning 
opportunities (after-school tutoring, summer literacy program, summer maker camp, PE Technician time after school to provide 
opportunities for additional PE/Sports enrichment for low income and EL students, and 4) Parent education -- Parent English classes 
provided by an adult ESL instructor to facilitate engagement of parents of English Learners. Costs for supplemental programs exceed 
the amount of funds projected to be received for this purpose. 
 
Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services":  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

319



Page 116 of 144

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Olivet Charter School has determined these actions described in 
the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established processes to ensure 
that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$230,012  10.7% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 

320



Page 117 of 144

 

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses one of the charter 
schools, Olivet Elementary Charter School. Olivet's unduplicated count exceeds (160 students 15-16)%, so some of the supplemental 
grant funds were expended on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English 
learner students. Olivet has over $200,000 for supplemental grant programs. The District offered an extended day and extended year 
program to targeted K-6 students (low income and English learners) which increased the instructional minutes for the year by 
approximately 5,000 or 9.25%. The 10.7% MPP is based on the BASF LCFF Calculator using May Revise information.  
 
Services explicitly for unduplicated students which are not being utilized on a school-wide basis include: 1) counseling for low-income 
and foster youth, 2) Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and 
designated ELD (33% FTE instructional coach to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL 
Coordinator and follow-up at sites, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the 
development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students, 3) Extended learning 
opportunities (after-school tutoring, summer literacy program, summer maker camp, PE Technician time after school to provide 
opportunities for additional PE/Sports enrichment for low income and EL students, and 4) Parent education -- Parent English classes 
provided by an adult ESL instructor to facilitate engagement of parents of English Learners. Costs for supplemental programs exceed 
the amount of funds projected to be received for this purpose. 
 
Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services":  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 

321



Page 118 of 144

site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Olivet Charter School has determined these actions described in 
the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established processes to ensure 
that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
Supporting Research Document for Programs/Services 

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 

Reviews of the research on school counseling show that the services of school counselors have a positive effect on children: 
 
1. Borders, L.D., & Drury, S.M. (1992). Comprehensive school counseling programs: A review for policymakers and practitioners. 
Journal of Counseling and Development, 70, 487-498.  
 
2. Whitson, S.C., & Sexton, T.L. (1998). A review of school counseling outcome research: implications for practice. Journal of 
Counseling & Development, 76, 412-426.  
 
Quantitative analyses of research (meta-analyses) also substantiate the beneficial effects of school counseling programs: 
 
1. Prout, H.T. & Demartino, R.A. (1986). A meta-analysis of school-based studies of psychotherapy. Journal of School 
Psychology, 24, 285-292.  
 
2. Sprinthall, N.A. (1981). A new model for research in the science of guidance and counseling. The Personnel and Guidance Journal, 
59, 487-493. 
 
School counseling programs have significant influence on discipline problems. Baker and Gerler reported that students who 
participated in a school counseling program had significantly less inappropriate behaviors and more positive attitudes toward school 
than those students who did not participate in the program. Another study reported that group counseling provided by school 
counselors significantly decreased participants' aggressive and hostile behaviors: 
 
1. Baker, S. B., & Gerler, E. R. (2001). Counseling in schools. In D. C. Locke, J. E. Myers, and E. L. Herr (Eds.), The Handbook of 
Counseling, Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications.  

322



Page 119 of 144

 
2. Omizo, M.M., Hershberger, J.M., & Omizo, S.A. (1988). Teaching children to cope with anger. Elementary School Guidance & 
Counseling, 22, 241-245. 
 
School counselors are also very effective in assisting middle school children in the area of career development (Whiston, S. C., 
Sexton, T. L., & Lasoff, D. L. (1998). Career-intervention outcome: A replication and extension of Oliver and Spokane (1988). Journal 
of Counseling Psychology, 45, 150-165). 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention. 

The heart of any Response-to-Intervention (RTI) model lies in the use of tiered instructional processes. Although the assessment 
components of RTI (universal screening and progress monitoring) are essential elements of implementation, it is the instruction that 
occurs as a function of the outcomes of the assessments that truly drives the changes we hope to see in students who are identified 
as being at risk for not meeting academic expectations. Tiered instruction represents a model in which the instruction delivered to 
students varies on several dimensions that are related to the nature and severity of the student's difficulties.  
 
When a tiered framework is applied schoolwide, with all students and addressing academic and/or behavioral curricular instruction, it 
is often termed a multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS). Researchers interested in MTSS in early reading have suggested that if high 
quality reading instruction and reading interventions are not provided, at-risk readers will continue to struggle into later grades and will 
routinely be identified for special education programs (Juel, 1998; Lyon, 2005; Moats, 1999; Torgesen, 2007). The quality of instruction 
has been found to be influential on student academic outcomes (Darling-Hammond, 2000; Foorman, Francis, Fletcher, 
Schatschneider, Mehta, 1998; Haager, Klingner, & Vaughn, 2007; O’Connor, Fulmer, Harty, & Bell, 2005).  
 
When implementing MTSS/RTI, professional development focuses on instructional features, as well as the academic or behavior 
content and skills, to build teacher capacity and improve instruction (Vaughn, et al., 2008; Knight & Michel, 2011). Universal supports, 
also referred to as Tier 1 instruction, are the initial focus of MTSS/RTI implementation. Universal supports are provided in general 
education and are provided to all students (Speece, Case, & Molloy, 2003). This level of support is characterized by its focus on high-
quality initial instruction, grounded in research, and provided to all students. Providing evidence-based instruction and supports for an 
academic content area or for the social, emotional, or behavioral development in all students has been supported as a way to prevent 
future deficits (Doabler, Cary, Jungjohann, Clarke, Fien, Baker, Smolkowski, & Chard, 2012; Greenwood, Horner, & Kratochwill, 2008). 
A strong implementation of universal level support is the first step in reducing the number of students who will require more targeted 
and/or intensive supports (Nelson, Hurley, Synhorst, & Epstein, 2008; Torgesen, Alexander, Wagner, Rashotte, Voeller, & Conway, 
2001).  
 

323



Page 120 of 144

The term Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) has been described as a comprehensive system of differentiated supports that 
includes evidence-based instruction, universal screening, progress monitoring, formative assessment, research-based interventions 
matched to student needs, and educational decision-making using student outcome data (Chard, Harn, Horner, Simmons, & Kame-
enui, 2008). MTSS/RTI helps provide all students, from all backgrounds, equal educational opportunity - regardless of the academic or 
behavioral difficulties they face - especially as issues of disproportionality exist in learning disability identification (Harry & Klingner, 
2006; McCall & Skrtic, 2009). Considering the focus of MTSS/RTI is prevention (Chard, et al., 2008), reflecting on system issues 
provides focus to improve schools and instruction and therefore student success (Sailor, 2009a). 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. 

The following research indicates a critical need for effective professional development to support providing designated and integrated 
ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices: 
 
1. California Department of Education. (2010). Improving education for English learners: Research-based approaches. 
Sacramento, CA: Author.  
 
2. Calderón, M., August, D., Slavin, R., Duran, D., Madden, N., and Cheung, A. (2005). Bring words to life in classrooms with English 
language learners. In E. H. Hiebert and M. L. Kamil (Eds.), Teaching and learning vocabulary: Bringing research to practice. Mahwah, 
NJ: Erlbraum. 
 
3. Dutro, S., and Kinsella, K. (2010). English language development: Issues and implementation at grades six through twelve. In F. 
Ong and V. Aguilar (Eds.) Improving Education for English Learners: Research?Based Approaches. Sacramento, CA: California 
Department of Education. 
 
4. Goldenberg, C. (2008). Teaching English language learners: What the research does—and does not—say. American Educator, 
32(2), p. 8–23, 42–44. 
 
5. Sato, E., Lagunoff, R., & Yeagley, P. (in press). Academic Language and the Common Core State Standards: Implications for State 
and District Implementation and Supporting the Achievement of English Language Learners. San Francisco, CA: WestEd. 
 
6. Short, D., Echevarría, J., and Richards?Tutor, C. (2011). Research on academic literacy development in sheltered classrooms. 
Language Teaching Research 15(3), 363–380. 

324



Page 121 of 144

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. 

Regardless of the overall program structure in school systems, the Institute of Education Sciences, the Education Department's 
research agency, has identified rigorous evidence that the following teaching practices are effective in teaching academic content to 
ELLs: 

 Teach a set of academic vocabulary words intensively, over several days and a variety of activities. 
 Integrate instruction in spoken and written English into content-area teaching, such as using science laboratory reports to 

teach writing in English. 
 Provide ongoing, structured chances to develop writing skills. 
 Provide small-group interventions for students struggling with specific problems in literacy or language development. 

Additional research reinforces that these core practices are essential to providing designated and integrated ELD and supporting 
second language learners academic achievement: 
 
1. Gibbons, P. (2009). English learners, academic literacy, and thinking: Learning in the challenge zone. Portsmouth, NH: 
Heinemann.  
 
2. Gibbons, P. (2006). Bridging discourses in the ESL classroom: Students, teachers and researchers. London: Continuum. 
 
3. Kieffer, M., and Lesaux, N. (2010). Morphing into adolescents: Active word learning for English? language learners and their 
classmates in middle school. Journal of Adolescent and Adult Literacy, 54(1), 47–56. 
 
4. Veel, R. (1999). Language, knowledge and authority in school mathematics. In F. Christie (Ed.), Pedagogy and the shaping of 
consciousness: Linguistic and social processes. London: Continuum 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. 

The National Comprehensive Center for Teacher Quality provides guidance for teacher professional development and encourages the 
implementation of job-embedded professional development in high-need schools (U.S. Department of Education, 2009a; U.S. 
Department of Education, 2009b). The National Staff Development Council (2010) also emphasizes the importance of school-based 
learning and job-embedded coaching as necessary components of effective professional development. Job-embedded professional 
development (JEPD) refers to teacher learning that is grounded in day-to-day teaching practice and is designed to enhance teachers’ 

325



Page 122 of 144

content-specific instructional practices with the intent of improving student learning (Darling-Hammond & McLaughlin, 1995; Hirsh, 
2009).  
 
The best professional development support is primarily school or classroom-based and is integrated into the workday allowing 
teachers to assess and develop solutions for authentic and immediate problems of practice as part of cycles of continuous 
improvement (Hawley & Valli, 1999; National Staff Development Council, 2010). 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 

326



Page 123 of 144

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county 
superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

327



Page 124 of 144

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 

Annual Update 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals, Actions, and Services 

Planned Actions/Services 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the California School Dashboard data reports) if desired 
and/or include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and 
actual expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to California School Dashboard means the California School Dashboard adopted by 
the State Board of Education under EC Section 52064.5.    
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

 Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

 Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in 
developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based 
interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the 
implementation of the CSI plan. 

 Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate 
the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school 
improvement. 

328

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


Page 125 of 144

 

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the California School 
Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 
in the California School Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 

329



Page 126 of 144

charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

330



Page 127 of 144

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the California School Dashboard, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 
Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

331



Page 128 of 144

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter "LEA-wide." 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

332



Page 129 of 144

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

 

New/Modified/Unchanged:  

 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 
the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  

 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 

333



Page 130 of 144

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  
 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 
If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

334



Page 131 of 144

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

335



Page 132 of 144

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

336



Page 133 of 144

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

337



Page 134 of 144

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of K-8 students who were absent 10 percent or more of the school days 

excluding students who were: 
(A) enrolled less than 31 days 
(B) enrolled at least 31 days but did not attend at least one day 
(C) flagged as exempt in the district attendance submission. K-8 students are considered to 
be exempt if they: 
 (i) are enrolled in a Non-Public School 
 (ii) receive instruction through a home or hospital instructional setting 
 (iii) are attending a community college full-time. 

(2) The number of students who meet the enrollment requirements. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

 (b) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  
(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 

“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(c) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) For a 4-Year Cohort Graduation Rate: 

(A) The number of students in the cohort who earned a regular high school diploma by the 
end of year 4 in the cohort. 

(B) The total number of students in the cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(2) For a Dashboard Alternative Schools Status (DASS) Graduation Rate: 
(A) The number of students who either graduated as grade 11 students or who earned any 

of the following: 
(i) a regular high school diploma 
(ii) a High School Equivalency Certificate 
(iii) an adult education diploma 
(iv)  a Certificate of Completion and was eligible for the California Alternative 

Assessment if under the age of 20. 
(B) The number of students in the DASS graduation cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
338



Page 135 of 144

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  

339



Page 136 of 144

 

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

340



Page 137 of 144

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, January 2019 
 

341



Page 138 of 144

 

LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 

Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Funding Sources 2,408,566.00 2,505,264.00 2,267,955.00 2,408,566.00 2,451,389.00 7,127,910.00 
Base 1,896,618.00 1,966,549.00 1,764,107.00 1,896,618.00 1,930,877.00 5,591,602.00 
LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 
Lottery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Special Education 188,436.00 195,140.00 194,723.00 188,436.00 226,483.00 609,642.00 
Supplemental 322,351.00 342,414.00 307,964.00 322,351.00 275,319.00 905,634.00 
Title II 1,161.00 1,161.00 1,161.00 1,161.00 1,710.00 4,032.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

342



Page 139 of 144

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types 2,408,566.00 2,505,264.00 2,267,955.00 2,408,566.00 2,451,389.00 7,127,910.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 1,849,700.00 1,944,717.00 1,739,864.00 1,849,700.00 1,864,065.00 5,453,629.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 399,664.00 392,784.00 361,065.00 399,664.00 395,319.00 1,156,048.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 27,800.00 31,103.00 28,739.00 27,800.00 38,836.00 95,375.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

79,602.00 91,610.00 75,902.00 79,602.00 74,701.00 230,205.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 

51,800.00 45,050.00 62,385.00 51,800.00 78,468.00 192,653.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

343



Page 140 of 144

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2018-19 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 2,408,566.00 2,505,264.00 2,267,955.00 2,408,566.00 2,451,389.00 7,127,910.00 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 1,517,004.00 1,586,935.00 1,425,077.00 1,517,004.00 1,556,608.00 4,498,689.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Special Education 149,801.00 156,505.00 154,028.00 149,801.00 181,283.00 485,112.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 182,895.00 201,277.00 160,759.00 182,895.00 126,174.00 469,828.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 276,831.00 276,831.00 248,297.00 276,831.00 271,318.00 796,446.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Special Education 38,635.00 38,635.00 40,695.00 38,635.00 45,200.00 124,530.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 84,198.00 77,318.00 72,073.00 84,198.00 78,801.00 235,072.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Base 24,000.00 24,000.00 24,550.00 24,000.00 22,950.00 71,500.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Lottery 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Supplemental 3,800.00 7,103.00 4,189.00 3,800.00 15,886.00 23,875.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Base 64,783.00 64,783.00 46,983.00 64,783.00 63,333.00 175,099.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Supplemental 13,658.00 25,666.00 27,758.00 13,658.00 9,658.00 51,074.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Title II 1,161.00 1,161.00 1,161.00 1,161.00 1,710.00 4,032.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Base 14,000.00 14,000.00 19,200.00 14,000.00 16,668.00 49,868.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Supplemental 37,800.00 31,050.00 43,185.00 37,800.00 44,800.00 125,785.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 

344



Page 141 of 144

  

345



Page 142 of 144

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
Goal 1 2,007,991.00 2,072,224.00 1,837,116.00 2,007,991.00 2,013,610.00 5,858,717.00 

Goal 2 117,761.00 134,836.00 139,290.00 117,761.00 81,881.00 338,932.00 

Goal 3 255,930.00 270,839.00 268,932.00 255,930.00 328,953.00 853,815.00 

Goal 4 26,884.00 27,365.00 22,617.00 26,884.00 26,945.00 76,446.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
 
  

346



Page 143 of 144

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 
  

347



Page 144 of 144

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures NOT Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 

348



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
  

Action Item:  9.3 Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum for the 
Schaefer Charter School 
 
Special Meeting of:  June 19, 2019      Action Item Report Format:Oral 
Attachment:  Local Control Accountability Plan   (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum        
 
Background 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) legislation was signed into law by the Governor and 
took effect on July 1, 2013. Under the LCFF, school districts are required to develop, adopt, and 
annually update a three-year Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), beginning on July 1, 
2014. According to Ed Code 52060, school districts are required to consult with staff, students, 
parents, and the community in developing the LCAP.  
 
The final Schaefer LCAP includes a description of the stakeholder engagement process, goals, 
actions and services for all students as well as subgroups.   
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP in order to ensure that eligible 
LEAs will meet the LEA Plan Provisions of the ESSA.  The LCAP Addendum must be submitted 
to the CDE to apply for ESSA funding.     
 
Plan 
Prior to approval of the budget under LCFF, a draft of the LCAP and the budget must be 
presented for public hearing.  That occurred at the June 5, 2019 Board meeting.  Both the LCAP 
and the budget are to be adopted at a subsequent meeting.  There have been minimal changes 
made to the Schaefer LCAP from the Public Hearing version. 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum answers the required questions from the state.  This Federal 
Addendum must be approved by the board and submitted to the state by July 1, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
Expenditures outlined in the LCAP 
 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt the Schaefer LCAP and Federal Addendum as presented 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Motion: 
 
Moved by:  Second: 
Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent: 
FRANICEVIC       HINTON           MOHR               PRYOR  WAY 
 

349



Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)  
Federal Addendum Template 
 

LEA Name 
Schaefer Charter School -Piner-Olivet Union 
School District         

 

CDS Code: 
49-70870-6109144         

 

Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 

 
 

For which ESSA programs apply to your LEA? 
 
Choose From: 
 
X TITLE I, PART A 

Improving Basic Programs Operated by  
State and Local Educational Agencies        

X TITLE II, PART A 
Supporting Effective Instruction        

X TITLE III, PART A  
Language Instruction for English Learners  
and Immigrant Students        

X TITLE IV, PART A 
Student Support and Academic  
Enrichment Grants        

 
(note: This list only includes ESSA programs with LEA plan 
requirements; not all ESSA programs.) 
 

 
 
 

In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 
 

350



 
Instructions 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs have the 
opportunity to meet the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the ESSA.  

The LCAP Federal Addendum Template must be completed and submitted to the California 
Department of Education (CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are encouraged to review the LCAP 
Federal Addendum annually with their LCAP, as ESSA funding should be considered in yearly strategic 
planning.  

The LEA must address the Strategy and Alignment prompts provided on the following page.  

Each provision for each program must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA.  

In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template.  

Under State Priority Alignment, state priority numbers are provided to demonstrate where an ESSA 
provision aligns with state priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in determining where ESSA provisions 
may already be addressed in the LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support the state 
priorities. 

The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA funds 
are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are 
encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic 
planning of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff 
will evaluate the LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. 
LEAs will be asked to clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 

California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in 
support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs with the opportunity 
to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved 
students. 

The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their federally-
funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  

LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning process supports 
continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement.  

Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for making 
the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local programs as 
described in the LEA’s LCAP. 

351



 

Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or initiatives funded with state 
funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of federal 
funds within the context of the LEA’s broader strategy reflected in the LCAP. 
 
Schaefer Charter School is a single school-site district.  We use federal funds to supplement and enhance local priority or 
initiatives funded with state funds by increasing or improving existing actions to support students in meeting the challenging 
state academic standards. 
 
Our rationale/evidence for the selected uses of federal funds is to use the funds to assist in the successful completion of 
actions and goals described in our LCAP to ensure the academic achievement of all students, especially our low-income 
students. 
 
Title I funds are used for intervention services, assessment and data management system, supplemental materials and 
adaptive software to assist students in obtaining skills specific to them needed to master the challenging state academic 
standards. 
 
Title II funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities that have a demonstrated result in improving teacher 
and principal quality. 
 
Title III funds are used to improve educational outcomes for our English Language Learners and support students in their 
attainment of the English Language.  The county office ELD coordinator, collaboration time to plan ELD instruction and 
professional development focused on intervention strategies all assist in supporting our English Language Learners. 
 
Title IV funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities to promote the effective use of technology and to 
offer and/or expand programs that will provide students with a well rounded education. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local funds and, 
as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 
 
Schaefer Charter School aligns its use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local fund and across different 
federal grant programs.  Our LCAP is used as our district strategic plan and so provides us with an overarching plan 
complete with metrics, stakeholder engagement, goals, actions, and analysis. 
 
This plan encompasses activities to support all students in the areas of : 
 
LCAP GOAL 1:  Culture: Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching:  Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
LCAP GOAL 3: Proficiency: All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary 
for future success in college and careers. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement 
 
Any challenges can usually fit under one of these goals and can be addressed with state, local or federal funds. 
 
 
 
 

352



 
 
ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those goals, for each of the 
LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the descriptions of the goals, actions, and services 
how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state 
accountability system. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic standards by: 
 

(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic needs of all students; 
(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school determines need help in 

meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 
(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen academic programs and 

improve school conditions for student learning. 
 
Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the 
classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of 
the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2). 
 
Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 
If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that coordinate and integrate: 
 

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional strategies, that may 
incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills attainment important to in-demand occupations 
or industries in the State; and 

(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry professionals and, if 
appropriate, academic credit. 

 

353



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Title II, Part A Activities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 
Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these activities will be 
aligned with challenging State academic standards. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching: Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes (collaboration time, professional learning, 
instructional practices, math performance tasks, units of instruction, integration of arts education, ELD instructional 
strategies, integrating tiers of intervention support) 
 
 
 

 

354



TITLE III, PART A 
 
Parent, Family, and Community Engagement 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

3116(b)(3) 3, 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the education of English 
learners. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement (parent education, communicate student progress, communication 
platforms, community based tutoring program, access to information related to support students) and LCAP Goal 2 
Teaching  Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes (ELD Instructional Strategies) 
 
 

355



 
ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System 
 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System (CARS). 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Poverty Criteria 
 

ESSA SECTION(S) STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(4) N/A 
 
Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113. 
 
The poverty criteria used for Title 1, Part A School Allocations is the percent of students who qualify for Free & Reduced 
Price Meals (FRPM). 
 

 

356



 
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP  
 
For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities. Each provision 
for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the 
LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this addendum. 
 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged 
to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of all 
resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s 
responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to clarify 
insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) 
 
Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any 
disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
100% of the teachers at Schaefer Charter School are considered Highly Qualified. 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(B)(3) AND 1112(B)(7) 
 
Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d).  
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

357



(ESSA Section 1112(b)(3)-responsibilities under 1111(d)) 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 
(ESSA 1112(b)(7)) 
The strategies the LEA uses to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116, which includes 
how the LEA and its schools build capacity for parent and family engagement is demonstrated in the following ways: 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(a)). 
Schaefer Charter School has an adopted parent involvement policy which is described in BP 6020 and AR 6020. The 
Policy and Administrative Regulations provides details on how parents and families are engaged in the school community. 
The LEA parent and family engagement policy, was developed jointly with and agreed on with parents. The parent and 
family engagement policy is distributed to, parents and family members of participating children annually with the annual 
notification packet that is sent home at the beginning of the year. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(1)) 
Schaefer Charter School provides assistance to parents in understanding such topics as the challenging State academic 
standards, State and local academic assessments, the requirements of this part, and how to monitor a child’s progress 
and work with educators to improve the achievement of their children through parent conferences, back to school night, 
and school events.  Report cards are sent home quarterly so parents are able to identify how their students are doing. 
Other items include: LCAP Action 4.3 Use a variety of communication platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent engagement such as social media, district and school websites, SchoolGo mobile app, 
e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, etc.) including School/Community 
events that showcase student learning (exhibitions, performances, etc.), LCAP Action 4.4 Provide parent education 
through Community-Based Tutoring program, including English language support, strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home and LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(2)) 
Schaefer Charter School provides materials and training to help parents work with their children to improve their children’s 
achievement, such as literacy training and using technology (including education about the harms of copyright piracy), as 
appropriate, to foster parental involvement by  providing parents with varying opportunities to engage in multiple areas of 
their students’ education and ensuring parents are invited to: parent conferences, Back to School Night, Open House. 
During these events parents engage in activities that assist in improving their children's achievement.  Other items include: 
LCAP Action 4.3 Use a variety of communication platforms to promote an understanding of educational programs and 
parent engagement such as social media, district and school websites, SchoolGo mobile app, e-newsletters, LCAP 
Infographics and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, etc.) including School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, performances, etc.), LCAP Action 4.4 Provide parent education through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including English language support, strategies for supporting students in academic learning at home 
and LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(3)) 
Schaefer Charter School educates teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, and other school 
leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the value and utility of contributions of parents, and in how to 
reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents as equal partners, implement and coordinate parent programs, and 
build ties between parents and the school during early release days (professional development) and as needed throughout 
the year.  In addition, LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(4)) 
Schaefer Charter School coordinates and integrates parent involvement programs and activities with other Federal, State, 
and local programs, including public preschool programs, and conduct other activities, such as parent resource centers, 
that encourage and support parents in more fully participating in the education of their children through the use of 
community organizations of Sonoma County and Sonoma County Office of Education. We have increased hours outreach 
workers who can speak Spanish.  These additional hours will provide more frequent opportunities for parent 
communication in various venues.  We will continue to provide English classes for our community. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(5)) 
Schaefer Charter School ensures that information related to school and parent programs, meetings, and other activities is 
sent to the parents of participating children in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents can 
understand.  All notifications and information are sent home in English and Spanish. 
 

358



(ESSA Section 1116(e)(14). 
Schaefer Charter School provides other reasonable support for parental involvement activities as parents may request. 
Surveys are conducted annually and attendance at school events is good. Parents are willing to communicate needs at 
school events, with teachers, in the office, at meetings, and via emails. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(f)) 
Schaefer Charter School provides opportunities for the informed participation of parents and family members (including 
parents and family members who have limited English proficiency, parents and family members with disabilities, and 
parents and family members of migratory children), including providing information and school reports in a format and, to 
the extent practicable, in a language such parents understand.  All report cards and information are sent home in both 
English and Spanish.  Surveys are sent home in English and Spanish.  Translation services are available during school 
meetings. 
 
Schaefer Charter School aligns the parent involvement items required in Section 1116 with the LCAP stakeholder 
engagement process. As part of the LCAP process we seek input from parents and families and we have an entire LCAP 
goal dedicated to parent involvement. The following items and results of the item demonstrates how we sought input from 
parents and how their input informed LCAP goals and actions and is stated in our CA Dashboard Local Indicator report for 
parent involvement: The Schaefer staff and community are proud of creating a student-centered learning environment for 
all students where students feel safe and love learning. Increased parent engagement has taken place through additional 
parent meetings and LCAP input and feedback sessions. Schaefer has made strides in increasing attendance rates and 
decreasing truancy rates. Schaefer is able to enlist highly qualified teachers. Schaefer’s stakeholder engagement has 
increased because we have found different ways to engage stakeholders through board meetings, workshops, surveys, 
and LCAP informational/review sessions. Schaefer partners with educational research organizations to learn more about 
parents’ perspectives and experience(s) at our school. Parent surveys utilize parent perspectives on school culture and 
climate in order to utilize the input in deciding student needs, goals, services, and programs for the 18-19 school year. 
Survey participants also provided input on student needs related to school safety, school climate, and intervention support. 
Survey results were used to develop actions in Schaefer’s LCAP Goals 2, 3, and 4. Based on feedback from stakeholder 
groups, Schaefer is utilizing LCFF funds to improve student safety and achievement and meet the needs of all students. 
The overall effectiveness of Schaefer’s goal 4 is evidenced by increased participation in parent volunteering, attendance 
at events, and student learning activities. Survey results indicated that parents were better able to access information on 
school events and to gain a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their child's education, and that parents 
felt an increased sense of connection and engagement with the school community. Schaefer’s LCAP Goal 4 focus on 
improving parent participation and seeking additional input from parents/guardians in school and district decision making 
was effective overall, and is evidenced by several measures. Attendance at Schaefer Parent Meetings is growing. Results 
from the Spring 2018 My Voice parent survey show that 20% of parents agree or strongly agree that “parent 
evenings/meetings are worth attending." Schaefer has improved in making sure communications with families are in both 
Spanish and English. The improved website and grading/report card portal are now available to students and their families. 
This year, Schaefer also offered parent LCAP workshops and made Outreach worker translation available at more school 
events, as well. 60% of parents attended school events, with numbers varying by event. There were also 30 consistent 
and regular parent volunteers. Engagement statistics on social media sites, website, and e-newsletters indicate that 100% 
of parents receive email newsletters/flyers and engage with the school Facebook page. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under sections 1114 and 1115 and, 
where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children living in local institutions for neglected or 
delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent children in community day school programs. 
 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, paraprofessionals, and specialized 
instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted assistance school program under Section 1115, will identify 
the eligible children most in need of services under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

359



Our single school district operates as a schooolwide program. 
 
 

 
Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 
 
Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided with funds reserved 
under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success of homeless children and youths, in 
coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States 
Code 11301 et seq.). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Schaefer Charter School ensures that homeless students have access to the same free and appropriate public 
education provided to other students within the district. The district shall provide homeless students with access to 
education and other services necessary for these students to meet the same challenging academic standards as other 
students. Detailed description of processes and procedures for Education for Homeless Children can be found in BP 
6173, AR6173, E6173. The services we provide homeless children and youths are the following: 
 
Schaefer Charter School hired a Director of Student Services to include duties that address providing needs for 
homeless students.  The Director or Student Services works closely with Sonoma County Office of Education to identify 
and provide resources as needed.  During the 2017-2018 school year due to the fires the homeless greatly increased as 
did services available.  The county at large through Sonoma County Office of Education (SCOE) provided resources and 
timely information to address the needs of all families. 
 
The services provided are used to support the (1) enrollment, (2) attendance, and (3) success of homeless children and 
youths, in coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
Student Transitions 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8), 1112(b)(10), and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under this part with early 
childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including plans for the transition of participants in 
such programs to local elementary school programs. 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for students from middle 
grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education including: 

(A) coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners; and 
(B) increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment opportunities, or career 

counseling to identify student interests and skills. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) Schaefer Charter School coordinates with the following institutions of higher education, employers, and other local 
partners: Santa Rosa Junior College, Sonoma State University, Community Action Partnership, and Sonoma County 
Office of Education to facilitate effective transitions from high school to postsecondary education.   Schaefer Charter 
School works with its charter schools and local high schools to facilitate effective transitions from middle grades to high 
school.  Parent meetings are held so that parents and students can learn about the programs offered at each school and 
district so they can make the most appropriate choice for their child/ren. 
 
(B) NA 
 
 
 
 

360



 
Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 
Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this part, and that the LEA 
determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will: 
 

(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an opportunity to develop 

digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) NA 
(B) As a district we assist in developing effective school library program to provide students an opportunity to develop 
literacy skills and improve academic achievement by implementing the following actions: providing weekly library time for 
students, providing weekly computer time for students, providing devices (computers, chromebooks, and tablets) for 
classroom use. 
 
 
 
 
 

361



 
TITLE I, PART D 
 
Description of Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(1) 
 
Provide a description of the program to be assisted [by Title I, Part D]. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Formal Agreements 
ESSA SECTION 1423(2) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the LEA and correctional 
facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice system, including such 
facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Comparable Education Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(3) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how participating schools will coordinate with facilities working with delinquent 
children and youth to ensure that such children and youth are participating in an education program comparable to one 
operating in the local school such youth would attend. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Successful Transitions 
ESSA SECTION 1423(4) 
 
Provide a description of the program operated by participating schools to facilitate the successful transition of children and 
youth returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, the types of services that such schools will provide such 
children and youth and other at-risk children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Educational Needs 
ESSA SECTION 1423(5) 
 
Provide a description of the characteristics (including learning difficulties, substance abuse problems, and other special 
needs) of the children and youth who will be returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, other at-risk children 
and youth expected to be served by the program, and a description of how the school will coordinate existing educational 
programs to meet the unique educational needs of such children and youth. 

362



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Social, Health, and Other Services 
ESSA SECTION 1423(6) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will coordinate with existing social, health, and other services to meet 
the needs of students returning from correctional facilities, at-risk children or youth, and other participating children or youth, 
including prenatal health care and nutrition services related to the health of the parent and the child or youth, parenting and 
child development classes, child care, targeted reentry and outreach programs, referrals to community resources, and 
scheduling flexibility. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships 
ESSA SECTION 1423(7) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of any partnerships with institutions of higher education or local businesses to facilitate 
postsecondary and workforce success for children and youth returning from correctional facilities, such as through 
participation in credit-bearing coursework while in secondary school, enrollment in postsecondary education, participation 
in career and technical education programming, and mentoring services for participating students. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Involvement 
ESSA SECTION 1423(8) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the 
 

(A) LEA; and  
(B) correctional facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice 

system, including such facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Program Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(9–10) 
 
Provide a description of how the program under this subpart will be coordinated with other Federal, State, and local 
programs, such as programs under title I of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act and career and technical 
education programs serving at-risk children and youth. 
 
Include how the program will be coordinated with programs operated under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 
Act of 1974 and other comparable programs, if applicable. 

363



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Probation Officer Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(11) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will work with probation officers to assist in meeting the needs of 
children and youth returning from correctional facilities. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Individualized Education Program Awareness 
ESSA SECTION 1423(12) 
 
Provide a description of the efforts participating schools will make to ensure correctional facilities working with children and 
youth are aware of a child’s or youth’s existing individualized education program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Alternative Placements 
ESSA SECTIONS 1423(13) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of the steps participating schools will take to find alternative placements for children 
and youth interested in continuing their education but unable to participate in a traditional public school program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

364



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 
 
Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as induction for teachers, 
principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity of teachers and opportunities to develop 
meaningful teacher leadership. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

365



Schaefer Charter School has an organized delivery of professional learning for all certificated staff. 
 
Principals: 
Professional growth and improvement is provided to the principal through the following process: at the beginning of their 
career as a principal they are mentored and coached until they are ready to take on more leadership opportunities.  As 
principals progress they are supported based on their individual needs. As principals become more seasoned it is expected 
that they take on more and more responsibility in ensuring academic success for all students. Principals utilize services 
from the Sonoma County Office of Education and fellow principals in the county. Growth and improvement are measured 
by staff, teacher and parent survey results, California Student Dashboard Results, number of LCAP metrics and actions 
completed. 
 
Teachers: 
Professional growth and improvement is provided to teachers during beginning of the year professional development, 
ongoing early release days, County Office Workshops, and Specialists in the Field. At the beginning of their career as a 
teacher they are supported through the induction program at the county office. Teachers are then supported as needed 
throughout their career depending on each teachers individual needs, strengths and growth areas.  Teachers often support 
each other and bounce ideas off each other in informal meetings..  We provide professional development to all teachers 
in writing, balanced literacy, and mathematics in order to build capacity in alignment with the standards and target all 
subgroups.  Growth and improvement for teachers are measured by state assessment data, benchmark data, student 
surveys. Identification of growth and improvement areas as a school are measured by California School Dashboard results. 
Teachers are provided professional learning opportunities to develop and support instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California Content Standards for English Language Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next Generation Science Standards. There is an instructional coach and technology integration 
coach to support teachers.  Santa Rosa City Schools network and Sonoma County Office of Education also provide 
support. 
 
School Leaders: 
As a small school district we do not have any additional school leaders, however, many experienced teachers serve various 
roles to assist with special projects or initiatives that help to improve student learning. 
 
The systems in place promote professional growth and ensure improvement.  We measure the success of our program by 
utilizing the Annual Update in the LCAP and Dashboard data. We review our LCAP student outcome data with all 
stakeholders (parents, students, teachers, staff, leadership, community members) as part of the Annual Update process.  
This provides an effective way in discussing our successes and growth areas as a school community and determining any 
necessary actions to be added for the following year.  As part of the Local Indicator: Implementation of the Standards 
Dashboard requirement we report annually on teachers progress in 1) providing professional learning for teaching to the 
recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks 2) making instructional materials that are aligned to 
the recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks, 3) implementing policies or programs to support 
staff in identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walk throughs, 
teacher pairing) for the following content areas: English Language Arts, Mathematics, History-Social Studies, English 
Language Development, Next Generation Science Standards.  In addition, we report on implementing each of the following 
academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for all students (Career Technical Education, Physical 
Education Model Content Standards, World Language, Health Education Content Standards, Visual and Performing Arts  
and we report on success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school administrators during the prior 
school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year): Identifying the professional learning needs of groups 
of teachers or staff as a whole, Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers, providing support for 
teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered. As a school community understand the importance of continuous 
improvement within these systems and are focused on professional growth and improvement. 
 
 
 
 
 
Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are implementing 
comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and improvement activities under Section 1111(d) 
and have the highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
 

366



THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 

 
Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually 
update and improve activities supported under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The sources of data our district uses to monitors and evaluate Title II, Part A activities is: California School Dashboard 
data (including Local Indicator reports), survey results from professional development opportunities, student achievement 
data (benchmark),  STAR data, Teacher Survey data (including CCSS Implementation questions), ELPAC data, and 
student survey results.  This data is analyzed annually as part of the planning process for the following year.  Benchmark 
data and STAR Data is analyzed throughout the year to inform instruction. In addition to above, Schaefer Charter School 
has purchased Illuminate in order to quickly and easily analyze student data on a regular basis during professional learning 
communities. 
 
Schaefer Charter School meaningfully consults with all stakeholders (teachers, principals and other school leaders, 
paraprofessionals, specialized instructional support personnel,  parents, community partners, organizations) to update and 
improve Title II, Part-A funded activities. This is completed through annual survey data, monthly staff meetings, monthly 
leadership meetings and annually (or as needed) parent meetings.  After compiling information from all stakeholder group 
we determine what are common needs expressed throughout stakeholders and then needs based on each stakeholder 
group. Schaefer Charter School meaningfully consults with these stakeholders in the following frequency: teachers-
monthly, principals and other school leaders-monthly, paraprofessionals-quarterly, specialized instructional support 
personnel-quarterly, parents-surveys are annually/events are about 4 times per year, community partners-yearly, 
organizations-as needed/at least yearly) 
 
Our Sonoma County Office of Education also provides valuable resources, support and training to our school districts in 
the county.   By utilizing Sonoma County Office of Education resources we are able to quickly understand what various 
schools in the county are doing and use those ideas and success to improve our school community. Schaefer Charter 
School utilizes shortened Wednesdays for collaboration efforts that will be focused on student achievement, setting goals 
for students, and building capacity of staff. 
 
 
 
 

 

367



 
TITLE III, PART A 
 
Title III Professional Development 
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom teachers, principals and other 
school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The following actions from LCAP describe how our LEA effectively assists English Learners: 
 
2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies to promote strategies academic discourse, structured language practices 
across core curricular areas and designated English Language Development during the school day. This is completed 
through: Consultation with SCOE ELD Coordinator to develop schoolwide practices to support EL students in all curricular 
areas; Collaboration time to plan ELD instruction, review assessments of student progress and refine instructional 
practices; Schedule change to shortened Wednesdays allowed, collaboration time within regularly scheduled day 
 
2.8 Provided professional development opportunities for integrating tiers of intervention support for students in ELA and 
Math. This is completed through: Professional development focused on intervention strategies, Instructional Coach, Santa 
Rosa City Schools and SCOE Network 
 
These professional development opportunities are designed to improve the instruction and assessment of English learners; 
enhance the ability of such teachers, principals, and other school leaders to understand and implement curricula, 
assessment practices and measures, and instructional strategies for English learners. They are also effective in increasing 
children's English language proficiency or substantially increasing the subject matter knowledge, teaching knowledge, and 
teaching skills of such teachers; and are of sufficient intensity and duration (which shall not include activities such as one-
day or short-term workshops and conferences) to have a positive and lasting impact on the teachers' performance in the 
classroom. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enhanced Instructional Opportunities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Schaefer Charter School will provide professional learning in integrated English Language Development strategies 
incorporating the Next Generation Science Standards.  We also provide supplemental activities that provide enhanced 
instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth: Summer programs, tutorials, supplemental staff, family literacy 
services, family outreach, mentoring, . In determining the best use of funds we consult with stakeholders and use funds 
strategically with other funding streams to support Title III immigrant activities 
 
 

 
Title III Programs and Activities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(1) 
 
Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, proposed to be 
developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English learners increase their English 
language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic standards. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

368



Our goal is to increase the effectiveness of our programs and our professional learning is focused on differentiation and 
personalized learning.  The major focus is language learner strategies and best practices.  Schaefer Charter School 
develops, implements, and administers effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational 
programs, to help English learners increase English language proficiency and meet the challenging state academic 
standards by providing additional staff, working with SCOE, tutorial, supplemental curricular materials. We determine 
effectiveness by evaluating ELPAC data, CA Dashboard data specific to EL students, and RFEP data. 
 
 

 
English Proficiency and Academic Achievement 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(2)(A-B) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving funds under Subpart 
1 assist English learners in: 
 

(C) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment under Section 
1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and 

(D) meeting the challenging State academic standards. 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
We have streamlined our areas of focus, have planned a thorough professional learning plan including differentiating for 
our English learners, and will provide time for teachers to collaborate and focus on student goals.  We believe this will 
increase student achievement for all students including our English learners.  The details of how we ensure our school 
assists English learners in achieving English proficiency and meeting the challenging state academic standards can be 
found in our EL Master Plan. 
 
 

 

369



 
TITLE IV, PART A 
 
Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs 
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1) 
 
Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out under Subpart 1, 
including a description of: 
 

(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization, community-based 
organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of success in implementing activities under 
this subpart;  

(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education under Section 4107;  
(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy students under Section 

4108; 
(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of technology in schools 

under Section 4109; and 
(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the LEA, or consortium of 

such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the activities carried out under this section based on 
such objectives and outcomes. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Title IV, Part A funds will support the effective use of technology through professional development opportunities and will 
expand and/or create programs such as STEAM to support a well-rounded education for all of our students. 
 
 
 
 

370



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Morrice Schaefer Charter School
CDS Code: 49-70870-61-09144
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Year: 2019-20
LEA contact information: Felicia Koha, CBO (707) 522-3008 fkoha@pousd.org

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2019-20 LCAP Year

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Morrice Schaefer Charter School expects to receive 
in the coming year from all sources.

The total revenue projected for Morrice Schaefer Charter School is $3,536,801.00, of which 
$2,986,978.00 is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $74,037.00 is other state funds, $355,772.00 is 
local funds, and $120,014.00 is federal funds. Of the $2,986,978.00 in LCFF Funds, $347,652.00 is 
generated based on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income 
students).

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Acccountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

LCFF supplemental & 
concentration grants , 

$347,652 , 10%

All Other LCFF funds, 
$2,639,326 , 75%

All other state funds, 
$74,037 , 2%

All local funds, 
$355,772 , 10%

All federal funds, $120,014 
, 3%

Total LCFF funds, 
$2,986,978 , 85%

Projected Revenue by Fund Source

 Page 1 of 3371



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Morrice Schaefer Charter School plans to spend for 
2019-20. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

Morrice Schaefer Charter School plans to spend $3,569,181.00 for the 2019-20 school year. Of that 
amount, $2,589,352.00 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $979,829.00 is not included in the 
LCAP. The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 

The total expenditures not included in the LCAP amount include such costs as overhead (i.e. utilitites, 
maintenance, legal costs, insurance, etc.), contributions, and mandatory contributions.

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2019-20

In 2019-20, Morrice Schaefer Charter School is projecting it will receive $347,652.00 based on the 
enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Morrice Schaefer Charter School 
must demonstrate the planned actions and services will increase or improve services for high needs 
students compared to the services all students receive in proportion to the increased funding it receives 
for high needs students. In the LCAP, Morrice Schaefer Charter School plans to spend $237,150.00 on 
actions to meet this requirement. The additional improved services described in the LCAP include the 
following: 

[Respond to the prompt here; if there is no prompt a response is not required.]

Total Budgeted General 
Fund Expenditures

$3,569,181 Total Budgeted 
Expenditures in LCAP

$2,589,352 

$ 0

$ 500,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 1,500,000

$ 2,000,000

$ 2,500,000

$ 3,000,000

$ 3,500,000

$ 4,000,000

Budgeted Expenditures

 Page 2 of 3372



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2018-19

This chart compares what Morrice Schaefer Charter School budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions 
and services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Morrice 

Schaefer Charter School estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or 
improving services for high needs students in the current year.

In 2018-19, Morrice Schaefer Charter School's LCAP budgeted $294,949.00 for planned actions to 
increase or improve services for high needs students. Morrice Schaefer Charter School estimates that it 
will actually spend $331,349.00 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 
2018-19.

$331,349 

$294,949 

$ 0 $ 50,000 $ 100,000 $ 150,000 $ 200,000 $ 250,000 $ 300,000 $ 350,000

Current Year Expenditures: Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students

Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs
Students in the LCAP

Estimated Actual Expenditures for High
Needs Students in LCAP

 Page 3 of 3373



Page 1 of 139

 
LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 

 

            2019-20    

 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

California School Dashboard: Essential data to support completion of 
this LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template. 

 
LEA Name 

Schaefer Charter School -Piner-
Olivet Union School District            

Contact Name and Title 

Kathy Harris            
Principal 

Email and Phone 

kharris@pousd.org            
707-522-3015 

 
 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) was subjected to the Northern California wildfires in 
2017. The Tubbs Fire destroyed over 5,500 structures and Coffey Park, a neighborhood directly 
across the street from Morrice Schaefer Charter School, was one of the most densely populated 
areas in Santa Rosa affected by the fire.  About 1,500 homes were destroyed in the small 
neighborhood.  One consequence of undergoing this natural disaster is a loss of enrollment due to 
displaced families.  The district serves a student population of approximately 1300  students, in 
grades TK - 12.  This document addresses Morrice Schaefer Charter School and in addition there 
are three charter schools and one district school.  Morrice Schaefer Charter school has 
approximately 430 students.  Around 29% of our students are English Learners. Approximately 43% 
of our students are socioeconomically disadvantaged. There are three elementary schools serving 
students in Grades TK - 6, two of which are charter schools, another charter school serving Grades 
7-8, and a secondary charter school that serving Grades 7-12.  Much effort is given to support 
effective instructional practices that provide our students with a child-centered, standards-based 
education that also incorporates our student outcomes: Personal Integrity, Productive Collaboration, 
Critical and Creative Thinking, Effective Communication, Reflective Learning, Citizenship and Global 
Responsibility, and Resiliency and Drive.   The school's classroom instruction is aligned with 
Common Core and English Language Arts and Mathematics standards and assessments. With open 
communication between the school and the community, strong support from parents, and clearly 
defined educational goals, we believe that all children will have the opportunity to meet their full 
potential and be productive members of society. The District employs more than 137 certificated and 
classified employees, substitutes, and others. The district and the Sonoma County Office of 
Education provide our employees extensive professional development opportunities for both 
experienced and newly inducted teachers. The Piner-Olivet Union School District is committed to 
academic excellence. We believe in community advocacy for the whole child. 
 

374

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/reports/49708706109144/2018


Page 2 of 139

         

 

LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

From the study of the surveys, the dashboard, financial documents, stakeholder meetings, and 
other measures, the following trends were identified. Trends indicating our strengths include: 
Students and staff like coming to school and feel safe at school. Parents feel that staff care about 
their children. Parents feel that the communication between home and school is adequate and 
appreciate all the information we provide in Spanish. Staff value the support they get from each 
other. Whether it is from administrators, classroom support staff, or classified staff; support from 
everyone is valued. Teachers value collaboration time and ratified a negotiation that allowed for 
shortened Wednesdays. Staff, students, and parents are pleased with our implementation of 
technology. Trends indicating our opportunities include: Student subgroups are not achieving 
academically as compared to their peers. Strengthen relationships between all stakeholders 
through honesty, transparency, and communication. Parents would like standardization of 
procedures and practices at our school sites. All staff would like more opportunities to learn new 
skills and strategies specific to their roles but in a streamlined manner. Behavior and mental health 
support and training is needed. We will focus on four goals: 

• Goal 1- Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
• Goal 2- Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of 

California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
• Goal 3- All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for 

future success in college and careers. 
• Goal 4- Improve parent engagement. 

Some highlights of Actions/Services within these goals include but are not limited to: 
 Teachers will receive professional learning supported by instructional coaching in the 

classroom in mathematics and balanced literacy. 
 Each site utilizes a Response to Intervention (RtI) Framework with defined interventions to 

be done by the classroom teacher, intervention teachers, or special education providers. 
 Use of the highest research, evidence based teaching strategies including writer's 

workshop, GLAD, and differentiation. 
 Staff including classified receive knowledge and skill training during professional learning 

sessions to include SIPPs, Making Words, and math interventions. 
 Administrators and teachers work in Professional Learning Communities, analyzing 

student work on the implementation of the adopted materials and use of the high leverage 
strategies. 

 Each site utilizes a positive discipline approach and works diligently to ensure students and 
teachers are at school each day. 

 Staff, parents, and students participate annually in a culture and climate survey. 
 A District Counselor position has been created to support all stakeholders; the district will 

also host Behavioral Specialists. 
 The district will provide professional development in mathematics in support of the new 

Bridges math adoption. 
 A full time Director of Student Services position has been created to address the multiple 

levels of need in the area of Special Education to ensure best practices at every site. 
 The district will provide professional development in balanced literary. 

 
375



Page 3 of 139

Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
California School Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or 
other information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build 
upon that success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements 
in services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
We have a lot to be proud of this year, most notably: 

 Teachers taking on math and teaching our students to be fierce mathematicians! 
 Staff and new principals coming together as united teams and developing collaborative 

culture at each site. 
 ALL staff classified and certificated engaging in collaboration and professional learning 

including mathematics, balanced literacy, Making Words, SIPPs, and more! 
 After school enrichment programs. 
 Outreach worker increased time to meet the needs of our Spanish speaking families. 

On the Dashboard Performance indicators we did not have any green or blue performance colors, 
however, our community suffered a natural disaster during the 17-18 school year which impacted 
the dashboard results. We are optimistic for the 2018-2019 Dashboard results which will be released 
December 2019. 
 
Highlights from each of our LCAP goals are the following: 
 
Goal 1: Culture 

 Arts & Sciences (Music weekly and STEAM Labs) 
 Athletics (PE Tech) 
 Academics (Year 1 of Math curriculum, Toolbox, Increased Technology, Curriculum 

Committee) 

Goal 2: Teaching 
 Math Professional Learning and coaching 
 Writer’s Workshop Professional Learning and Coaching 
 Off-site visits 
 Release time 
 Conferences 
 Peer to peer observations 

Goal 3: Proficiency 
 Math Professional Learning and coaching 
 Writer’s Workshop Professional Learning and Coaching 
 Off-site visits 
 Release time 
 Conferences 
 Peer to peer observations 
 Collaboration time 

Goal 4: Parent Involvement 
 Established SSCs and ELAC 

376



Page 4 of 139

 Toolbox parent workshop, Back to School, Winter Performance, Coffee with the Principal 
 Student Recognition Parties 

 
Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for 
which overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a 
“Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has 
determined need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local 
indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for 
improvement? 
 
Greatest Needs 
In the CDE’s LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, LEA or school sites receive a performance level based upon 
how every student group (for which there is data for 30 or more students in the group) performs on 
each applicable state indicator. The performance levels for Mathematics or English Language Arts 
show how far the average student is below (or exceeding) the Level 3 threshold for each indicator. It 
should be noted that the data reflected on the current dashboard is from the 2017-2018 school year, 
which is the school year when the devastating fires impacted our community significantly.  
 
The following indicators received an "red" and "orange" performance level and the steps the LEA 
planning to take to address these areas 

 Chronic Absenteeism (Red-Status: 18.3%, Change: Increased 6.2% ) 
 Suspension Rate (Orange-Status: 1.6%, Change: Increased 1.1% ) 
 English Language Arts (Orange-Status: 42 below standard, Change: Maintained at +1.8 

points ) 
 Mathematics (Orange-Status: 65 below standard, Change: Declined at 6.3 points ) 

We anticipate an improvement in the results for the 2018-2019 school year, however, our school 
community is still healing and we were impacted by school closures due to smoke and in addition 
there was significant flooding in the area. The following steps are being taking to address these 
areas of improvement: 
 
Chronic Absenteeism/Suspension Rate:  

 Continue with all items in Goal 1: Create a positive, learning focused environment and 
culture for all students in order to improve student engagement and attendance. 

English Language Arts/Mathematics 

 Continue with all items in Goal 2: Implement teaching practices that support students in the 
achievement of California Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes 
and Goal 3: All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary 
for future success in college and careers. 

The following is a list of challenges and impact on LCAP and Actions 
 
Goal 1: Culture 

 Challenges: The wildfires impacted attendance rates, truancy and chronic absenteeism, 
Improve My Voice Survey data results 

377



Page 5 of 139

 Planned Improvement: Social/Emotional and Behavior Intervention services, Provide in 
school and after school engagement activities such as sports, arts, clubs, etc 

Goal 2: Teaching 

 Challenges: Math Professional Learning, Academic achievement for English language 
learners and low socio-economic subgroup, Vertical alignment and implementation of 
instruction, Consistent collaboration across grade levels 

 Planned Improvements: Focus on mathematics professional learning, Tiers of Intervention 
Support 

Goal 3: Proficiency 

 Challenges: Streamlined and consistent professional development opportunity in 
mathematics and tiered intervention process 

 Planned Improvements: Math focus (professional learning, curriculum, supplies), Tiers of 
support (SIPPs, Making Words, math interventions), Curriculum Committee 

Goal 4: Parent Involvement 

 Challenges: Last year was a tough year for our community due to the devastating Tubbs 
fire, Attendance 

 Planned Improvements: Develop systemic ways to increase parent involvement, Increase 
outreach worker time at each site for bilingual support, Enrichment programs after school 

 
 

378



Page 6 of 139

Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 
Performance Gaps 
There were no student group who were two or more performance levels below the "all student" 
performance. 

 
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every 
Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts. 
 
Schools Identified 
Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 

Morrice Schaefer Charter School has been identified for CSI. 

 
Support for Identified Schools 
Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level 
needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be 
addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

Morrice Schaefer Charter School will conduct a needs assessment in the beginning of 2019-20.  
This data will be used to inform the three-year LCAP for 2019-2022. 

379



Page 7 of 139

 
Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to 
support student and school improvement. 

The LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan (the LCAP) 
through monitoring of student achievement data based on the goals, actions and services section in 
the LCAP. 

 

380



Page 8 of 139

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 

381



Page 9 of 139

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
My Voice Survey (students grades 3-6): 
 
% of students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their 
classrooms. 
% of students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their 
school community. 
% of students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking 
questions in class." 
% of students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking 
questions in class." 
 
Healthy Kids Survey 
 
Attendance Rates -- % 
Truancy Rate -- % 
Suspension Rates -- % 
Expulsion Rates -- % 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey - Sustain Exemplary status 
Williams Act: % access to instructional materials. 
 
        

 My Voice Survey (students grades 3-6): 
 
42 % of students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their 
classrooms. 
28 % of students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their 
school community. 
39 % of students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking 
questions in class." 
58% of students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking 
questions in class." 
 
Healthy Kids Survey-NA for 2018-2019 school year. 
 
Attendance Rates -- 95% 
Chronic Absenteeism --18% 
Suspension Rates -- 1.6% 
Expulsion Rates -- 0% 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey - Sustained Exemplary status 
Williams Act: 100% access to instructional materials. 
100% appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers. 
 

382



Page 10 of 139

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students grades 3-6): 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their 
classrooms.  35% 
Students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their 
school community.  38% 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions 
in class."  50% 
Students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions 
in class." 65% 
 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey - Sustain Exemplary status (met) 
Williams Act: Sustain 100% access to instructional materials. 
 
        

Baseline 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students grades 3-6): 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their 
classrooms.  70% 
Students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their 
school community.  68% 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions 
in class."  72% 
Students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions 
in class." 87% 
 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey - Sustain Exemplary status (met) 
Williams Act: Sustain 100% access to instructional materials. (met) 
        

 
383



Page 11 of 139

Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.1 Continue implementation of 
social-emotional curriculum, 
including Toolbox and  No Bully! 
 

 1.1 Continued implementation of 
social-emotional curriculum, 
including Toolbox and  No Bully! 

 1.1.a Professional development 
to support on-going 
implementation of Toolbox/No 
Bully!  No additional costs as 
consultant is now employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional cost  

 1.1.a Professional development 
to support on-going 
implementation of Toolbox/No 
Bully!  No additional costs as 
consultant is now employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional cost 

1.1.b My Voice Surveys 
(students, staff, and parents)      
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SG01) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $900  

 1.1.b My Voice Surveys 
(students, staff, and parents)      
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SG01) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $815 

1.1.c Toolbox Consumable 
Materials                             (0000-
1110-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $50  

 1.1.c Toolbox Consumable 
Materials                             (0000-
1110-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $154 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.2  Provide each student with 
highly qualified teaching staff to 
support learning and positive 
school climate. 
 

 1.2  Provided each student with 
highly qualified teaching staff to 
support learning and positive 
school climate. 

 1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$125,004  

 1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$125,751 

384



Page 12 of 139

1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$1,496,057  

 1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base 
$1,564,483 

1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

 1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-
600-BG01) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

1.2.d Counselor district wide - .30 
FTE @ Schaefer  (1110-3110-
1200) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base $34,202  

 1.2.d Counselor district wide - .30 
FTE @ Schaefer  (1110-3110-
1200) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base $53,236 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.3 Provide in school and after 
school engagement activities such 
as sports, arts, clubs, etc. 
 

 1.3 Provided in school and after 
school engagement activities such 
as sports, arts, clubs, etc. 

 1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $42,999  

 1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $30,154 

1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)            (0000-
1660-1000-1130/2130-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$1,000  

 1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)            (0000-
1660-1000-1130/2130-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$1,000 

1.3.c Artist in Residence 
(community partnerships to 
support arts education)             
(0000-1130-1000-5830-SG01) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental $500  

 1.3.c Artist in Residence 
(community partnerships to 
support arts education)             
(0000-1130-1000-5830-SG01) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental $500 

385



Page 13 of 139

1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE 
shared by 3 K-6 sites)                   
(0000-1510-1000-1100-600-
SG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$34,771  

 1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE 
shared by 3 K-6 sites)                   
(0000-1510-1000-1100-600-
SG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$30,045 

1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club                    
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-
SGMK) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $100  

 1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club                    
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-
SGMK) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $100 

1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-
1110-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$500  

 1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-
1110-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$500 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.4 Provide clean and safe school 
facilities that support student 
engagement and positive school 
culture. Maintain clean and safe 
school facilities. 
 

 1.4 Provided clean and safe school 
facilities that support student 
engagement and positive school 
culture. Maintain clean and safe 
school facilities. 

 1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds 
staff 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Base $68,527  

 1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds 
staff 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Base $68,527 

1.4.c Custodial Staff 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base $128,002  

 1.4.c Custodial Staff 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base $128,002 

1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $14,000  

 1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $14,000 

1.4 e Maintenance Repairs 
including transfer to Deferred 
Maintenance Fund 0000: 
Unrestricted Base $43,333  

 1.4 e Maintenance Repairs 
including transfer to Deferred 
Maintenance Fund 0000: 
Unrestricted Base $43,333 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

386



Page 14 of 139

1.5 Design classroom space and 
facilities to promote greater 
collaboration, creative expression 
and project-based learning. 
 

 1.5 Designed classroom space 
and facilities to promote greater 
collaboration, creative expression 
and project-based learning. 

 1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project (4310-RLC) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $5,000  

 1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project (4310-RLC) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $5,000 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.6 Provide before/after school and 
recess student supervision. 
 

 1.6 Provided before/after school 
and recess student supervision. 

 1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base $47,452  

 1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base $47,452 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.7 Provide tiers of social-
emotional and behavioral 
intervention to support students in 
developing self-regulation 
strategies and positive social 
relationships. 
 

 1.7 Provided tiers of social-
emotional and behavioral 
intervention to support students in 
developing self-regulation 
strategies and positive social 
relationships. 

 1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$30,000  

 1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$30,000 

1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental See 1.1.c  

 1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental See 1.1.c 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.8 Provide Student Attendance 
Mediation services. 
 

 1.8 Provided Student Attendance 
Mediation services. 

 1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only charged if used 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,000  

 1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only charged if used 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,000 

387



Page 15 of 139

1.8.b Counseling time 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental See 1.7.a  

 1.8.b Counseling time 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental See 1.7.a 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we created a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students by 
implementing social-emotional curriculum, providing highly qualified staff, providing engagement activities, designed classroom space 
and facilities, supervision, social/emotional and behavior intervention, and attendance mediation.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*My Voice Survey results for "Feel Important" (3rd-5th grade), 
*Attendance Rates 
*Suspension Rates (Status) 
*Expulsion Rate 
*FIT survey 
*Williams Complaints 
*Appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*My Voice Survey results for  "Valued Member" (6th), Comfortable asking questions (6th), "Comfortable asking questions" (3rd-5th 
grade) 
*Chronic Absenteeism Rates 
*Suspension Rates (Change) 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 

388



Page 16 of 139

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

389



Page 17 of 139

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Content Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
% of teachers participating in professional development related to the CCSS 
ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes  (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed). 
% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative conversations, 
writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to the Common 
Core. 
% of teachers giving feedback on professional learning opportunities offered 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: 
Foundational Skills -- % reporting ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- % utilizing these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- % reporting ease with these types of tasks. 
        

 95% of teachers participating in professional development related to the 
CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed): 13 of 13 
 
100% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
 
80% of teachers giving feedback on professional learning opportunities 
offered (according to question #22 on MyVoice Survey) 
 

390



Page 18 of 139

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Teachers had opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine 
teaching practices that support the California Common Core Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who have participated in professional development 
related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes  (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed). 
 
95% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered:  90% 
positive feedback expected. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: 
Foundational Skills -- 65% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 50% will utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 55% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
        

391



Page 19 of 139

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Teachers had opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine 
teaching practices that support the California Common Core Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers participated in professional development related to the 
CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes  (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed). 
 
85% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered:  80% 
positive feedback. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: 
Bright Bytes Survey Results 2017 Spring: 
Foundational Skills -- Proficient 
Online Skills -- Proficient 
Multimedia Skills -- Advanced 
Classroom Skills - Emerging (use of 4C's) 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.1 Regular schedule for grade 
level, cross grade level 
collaboration (1-2x per month 
during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for 
teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction 

 2.1 Provided Regular schedule for 
grade level, cross grade level 
collaboration (1-2x per month 
during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for 
teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction 

 2.1.a Substitute teachers to 
provide release time for teacher 
collaboration. Extra funds not 
needed for this as student 
schedule was revised to allow 
time for staff to collaborate, 
review student work, develop 

 2.1.a Substitute teachers to 
provide release time for teacher 
collaboration. Extra funds not 
needed for this as student 
schedule was revised to allow 
time for staff to collaborate, 
review student work, develop 

392



Page 20 of 139

and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 
 

and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

rubrics, plan instruction, and 
reflect on teaching practice.  
Costs included in 
salaries/benefits for highly 
qualified teachers. (0000-1110-
1000-1149-SUB) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

rubrics, plan instruction, and 
reflect on teaching practice.  
Costs included in 
salaries/benefits for highly 
qualified teachers. (0000-1110-
1000-1149-SUB) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and 
support instructional practices 
aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next 
Generation Science Standards. 
 

 2.2 Provided professional learning 
opportunities to develop and 
support instructional practices 
aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next 
Generation Science Standards. 

 2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-
1570-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$50,235  

 2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-
1570-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$50,235 

2.2.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
schools)             (0000-1230-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $46,195  

 2.2.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 
schools)             (0000-1230-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $39,523 

2.2.c Continue Writing PD       
Additional cost-see below      
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$5,000  

 2.2.c Continue Writing PD       
Additional cost-see below      
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$11,597 

2.2.d Continue Writing PD  - Extra 
time for Staff/Subs for release 
time                                  (0000-
1110-1000-1130/1149-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$3,000  

 2.2.d Continue Writing PD  - 
Extra time for Staff/Subs for 
release time                                  
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-
SGPD) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$3,000 

393



Page 21 of 139

2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional 
Development (Teacher release 
time and/or SCOE Contract) 
(0000-5830-SG02) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $1,000  

 2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional 
Development (Teacher release 
time and/or SCOE Contract) 
(0000-5830-SG02) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $1,000 

2.2.f Participation in NCTIP 
Program (0000-5830-BTSA) - 
None anticipated for 18-19 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $0  

 2.2.f Participation in NCTIP 
Program (0000-5830-BTSA) - 
None anticipated for 18-19 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $0 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
for teachers to develop 
instructional practices aligned to 
the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next 
Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math. 
 

 2.3 Provided formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
for teachers to develop 
instructional practices aligned to 
the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next 
Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math. 

 Revised student schedule to 
allow staff time on shortened 
Wednesdays 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 Revised student schedule to 
allow staff time on shortened 
Wednesdays 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title II 
$1,222  

 2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Title II 
$1,222 

2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $5,000  

 2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $5,000 

2.3.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%)              (0000-
1110-2100-1300-600-SG02) 

 2.3.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%)              (0000-
1110-2100-1300-600-SG02) 

394



Page 22 of 139

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$22,577  

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$24,268 

2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-
1110-1000-1130) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.2.d  

 2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-
1110-1000-1130) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.2.d 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.4 Develop pilot program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6 
 

 2.4 Developed pilot program for 
Math performance tasks - K-6 

  

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.5 Design units of instruction 
aligned with CCS Math, ELA, 
including formative and summative 
assessments across K-6. 
 

 2.5 Designed units of instruction 
aligned with CCS Math, ELA, 
including formative and summative 
assessments across K-6. 

 2.5 Collaboration time for 
teachers-release time and/or 
extra-duty time - teacher time is 
embedded in new schedule with 
shortened Wednesdays (0000-
1110-1000-1130/1149-BG02) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

 2.5 Collaboration time for 
teachers-release time and/or 
extra-duty time - teacher time is 
embedded in new schedule with 
shortened Wednesdays (0000-
1110-1000-1130/1149-BG02) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.6 Develop proposal for 
Integration of arts education across 
curricular areas. 
 

 2.6 Developed proposal for 
Integration of arts education 
across curricular areas. 

 2.6.a Professional development 
for general education teachers to 
use across curriculum-release 
time and/or extra-duty time (0000-

 2.6.a Professional development 
for general education teachers to 
use across curriculum-release 
time and/or extra-duty time 

395



Page 23 of 139

1110-1000-1130-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $1,000  

(0000-1110-1000-1130-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$1,000 

2.6.b Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 2.3.d  

 2.6.b Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 2.3.d 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.7 Implement ELD instructional 
strategies to promote academic 
discourse, structured language 
practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English 
Language Development during the 
school day. 
 

 2.7 Implemented ELD instructional 
strategies to promote academic 
discourse, structured language 
practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English 
Language Development during the 
school day. 

 2.7.a Consultation with SCOE 
ELD Coordinator to develop 
schoolwide practices to support 
EL students in all curricular areas. 
(0000-5830-SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $600  

 2.7.a Consultation with SCOE 
ELD Coordinator to develop 
schoolwide practices to support 
EL students in all curricular 
areas. (0000-5830-SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $600 

2.7.b Collaboration time to plan 
ELD instruction, review 
assessments of student progress 
and refine instructional 
practices.(0000-1110-1000-1130-
SGPD) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.2.b  

 2.7.b Collaboration time to plan 
ELD instruction, review 
assessments of student progress 
and refine instructional 
practices.(0000-1110-1000-1130-
SGPD) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.2.b 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.8 Provide professional 
development opportunities for 
integrating tiers of intervention 
support for students in ELA and 
Math. 
 

 2.8 Provided professional 
development opportunities for 
integrating tiers of intervention 
support for students in ELA and 
Math. 

 2.8.a Instructional Coach 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.2.a  

 2.8.a Instructional Coach 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.2.a 

2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 

 2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 

396



Page 24 of 139

(0000-5830-SGPD) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional costs  

(0000-5830-SGPD) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional costs 

2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools 
and SCOE Network (0000-5830-
SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional costs  

 2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools 
and SCOE Network (0000-5830-
SG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental No additional costs 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes by providing collaboration time, professional learning time, developing 
instructional practices, developing math performance tasks, developing units of instruction in Math and ELA, integrating Art education, 
implementing ELD Instructional Strategies, integrating tiers of intervention support.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
the following measurable outcomes: 
*Professional Learning Opportunities 
*Evidence of Classroom Practices 
*Evidence of Core instructional practices 
*Positive teacher feedback on professional learning. 
 
We met all of our outcomes! 
 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 

397



Page 25 of 139

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

398



Page 26 of 139

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 

399



Page 27 of 139

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
% of students in grades 3-6 reading grade level literary and informational 
text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): % students scoring at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -- % of students meeting grade level benchmarks 
CAASP ELA- % increased from previous year 
CAASP Math - % increased from previous year 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - % of Students making progress learning English --  %-meeting 
target 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- %-meeting target 
 
EL Reclassification - % of Students Redesignated English Proficient 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results ratings for: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- 
Digital Citizenship- 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- 
At Home- 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: 
Online: 
Multimedia: 
 
4) Environment Overall (Teachers and Students) 
Policies and Procedures: 
Support: 
Beliefs: 
Prof. Learning: 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- % 
Body Composition -- % 
        

 Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
40% of students in grades 3-6 reading grade level literary and informational 
text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 56% students scoring at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -- 36% of students meeting grade level benchmarks 
CAASP ELA- 4% increased from previous year 
CAASP Math - 5% increased from previous year 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - NA 
AMAO II --NA 
 
EL Reclassification - 0% of Students Redesignated English Proficient 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey NA 
 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 42% 
Body Composition -- 62% 
 

400



Page 28 of 139

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
80% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational 
text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 72% students scored at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -- 60% of students met grade level benchmarks 
CAASP ELA- 5% increased from previous year 
CAASP Math - 5% increased from previous year 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students made progress learning English --  70%-meet target 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 45%-met target 
 
EL Reclassification - Students Redesignated English Proficient - 10% 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results 2017: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- Proficient 
Digital Citizenship- Proficient 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- Exemplary 
At Home- Exemplary 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: Advanced 
Online: Advanced 
Multimedia: Exemplary 
 
4) Environment Overall (Teachers and Students) 
Policies and Procedures: Emerging 
Support: Advanced 
Beliefs: Exemplary 
Prof. Learning: Proficient 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 78% 
Body Composition -- 55% 
        

Baseline 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
74% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational 
text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 67% students scored at or above proficiency on grade 
level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -- 54% of students met grade level benchmarks 
CAASP - 8% increased from 2015-2016 in ELA and an 8 % decline in Math. 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students made progress learning English --  63%-meet target (14-
15 data aggregated data is lagging by two years) 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 29%-met target 
(14-15 data aggregated data is lagging by two years) 
 
EL Reclassification - Students Redesignated English Proficient - 6% 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results 2017: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- Emerging 
Digital Citizenship- Beginning 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- Advanced 
At Home- Advanced 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: Proficient 
Online: Proficient 
Multimedia: Advanced 
 
4) Environment Overall (Teachers and Students) 
Policies and Procedures: Emerging 
Support: Emerging 
Beliefs: Advanced 
Prof. Learning: Emerging 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 70% 
Body Composition -- 50% 
        

401



Page 29 of 139

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.1 Assess student progress 
toward curricular goals. 
 

 3.1 Assessed student progress 
toward curricular goals. 

 3.1.a Renaissance Learning 
(STAR Reading & Star Math) 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $5,500  

 3.1.a Renaissance Learning 
(STAR Reading & Star Math) 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $5,704 

3.1.b DIBELS - annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG03) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $2,000  

 3.1.b DIBELS - annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG03) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $2,000 

3.1.c Collaboration time for teams 
of teachers to develop 
assessment practices aligned 
with District Student Outcomes - 
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students to allow collaboration 
time for staff. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 3.1.c Collaboration time for teams 
of teachers to develop 
assessment practices aligned 
with District Student Outcomes - 
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students to allow collaboration 
time for staff. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

402



Page 30 of 139

3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused 
on integrated units of instruction 
aligned with District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards. 
 

 3.2 Implemented Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused 
on integrated units of instruction 
aligned with District Student 
Outcomes and California Content 
Standards. 

 3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL -
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students to allow collaboration 
time for staff. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b  

 3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL -
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for 
students to allow collaboration 
time for staff. 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-
1000-4310-BG03) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $500  

 3.2.b Digital and print 
instructional resources - PBL 
(0000-1110-1000-4310-BG03) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base $500 

3.2.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.d  

 3.2.c Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.3.d 

3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Pilot texts - Paid by 
District (0000-1110-1000-4310-
7156) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $0  

 3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Pilot texts - Paid by 
District (0000-1110-1000-4310-
7156) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $0 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.3 Provide instruction to students 
in developing literacy, media 
literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills. 
 

 3.3 Provided instruction to 
students in developing literacy, 
media literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills. 

 3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $27,332  

 3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $28,157 

3.3.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 

 3.3.b Technology Integration 
Coach (1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 

403



Page 31 of 139

sites) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 2.2.b  

sites) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 2.2.b 

3.3.c Conduct needs assessment 
for resources for balanced literacy 
instruction (0000-1110-1000-
1130) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

 3.3.c Conduct needs assessment 
for resources for balanced 
literacy instruction (0000-1110-
1000-1130) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.b 

3.3.d Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 2.3.b  

 3.3.d Director of Innovative 
Learning (40%) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 2.3.b 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.4 Provide arts education (visual, 
digital, music, performing arts) for 
students to develop 
communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 
 

 3.4 Provided arts education 
(visual, digital, music, performing 
arts) for students to develop 
communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE 
shared between 3 K-6 schools) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.3.d  

 3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE 
shared between 3 K-6 schools) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.3.d 

3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1660-1000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental See 1.3.f  

 3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1660-1000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental See 1.3.f 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.5 Provide students with 
instruction to develop motor 
skills/physical fitness. 
 

 3.5 Provide students with 
instruction to develop motor 
skills/physical fitness. 

 3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.3.a  

 3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.3.a 

Action 6 
    

404



Page 32 of 139

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.6 Provide academic support for 
students with disabilities to access 
a rigorous curriculum aligned with 
California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 

 3.6 Provided academic support for 
students with disabilities to access 
a rigorous curriculum aligned with 
California Content Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 

 3.6.a Special Ed Teachers, RSP 
(2 FTE for District K-12 Program) 
(6500-5770-1120-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $50,715  

 3.6.a Special Ed Teachers, RSP 
(2 FTE for District K-12 Program) 
(6500-5770-1120-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $56,122 

3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC 
(1 FTE for District K-6 Program) 
(6500-5770-1110-1100-0000) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,016  

 3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for 
SDC (1 FTE for District K-6 
Program) (6500-5770-1110-1100-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,493 

3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $16,519  

 3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $16,519 

3.6.d Specialized Assistants 
(SDC) (3310-5770-1110-2100) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Special Education 
$22,061  

 3.6.d Specialized Assistants 
(SDC) (3310-5770-1110-2100) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Special Education 
$22,061 

3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-
12 Program) (6500-5770-3150-
1200) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,008  

 3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-
12 Program) (6500-5770-3150-
1200) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Special 
Education $33,008 

3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.80 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-2100-1300-) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $30,882  

 3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.80 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-2100-1300-) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Special Education $33,936 

Action 7 
    

405



Page 33 of 139

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.7 Continue Math Curriculum 
Committee to research and explore 
math instructional resources for 
Grade 6. 
 

 3.7 Continued Math Curriculum 
Committee to research and 
explore math instructional 
resources for Grade 6. 

 3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum to research math 
instructional materials 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.4  

 3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum to research math 
instructional materials 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 2.4 

3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base See 3.2.e  

 3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base See 3.2.e 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 
 

 3.8 Provided Community 
Connected Learning opportunities 

 3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) 
(0000-5806-FT03)  (Based on 
$25/ADA)  Anticipating 364 ADA 
in 2018-2019 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $9,025  

 3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) 
(0000-5806-FT03)  (Based on 
$25/ADA)  Anticipating 364 ADA 
in 2018-2019 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $9,025 

3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5830-
FT03) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $500  

 3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5830-
FT03) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $500 

3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-
5808-FT03)  (Based on $180/6th 
Grade Student)  Estimating 55 
6th Grade Students in 2018-2019 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Base $9,900  

 3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-
5808-FT03)  (Based on $180/6th 
Grade Student)  Estimating 55 
6th Grade Students in 2018-2019 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Base $9,900 

Action 9 
406



Page 34 of 139

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted 
instruction and academic 
intervention. 
 

 3.9 Provided tiers of support (RtI) 
for students who need targeted 
instruction and academic 
intervention. 

 3.9.a Collaboration time for 
teachers to review benchmark 
data, plan interventions, and 
assess student progress. 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 1.2.b  

 3.9.a Collaboration time for 
teachers to review benchmark 
data, plan interventions, and 
assess student progress. 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 1.2.b 

3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500  

 3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500 

3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental No 
Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017  

 3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Supplemental No 
Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017 

3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.40 for 
District K-12 Intervention 
Program) (0000-1110-2100-1300-
600-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $9,377  

 3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.40 for 
District K-12 Intervention 
Program) (0000-1110-2100-1300-
600-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $10,495 

Action 10 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.10 Provide extended instructional 
time before and after school for 
students who need additional 
academic support in ELA and 
Math. 
 

 3.10 Provided extended 
instructional time before and after 
school for students who need 
additional academic support in 
ELA and Math. 

 3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                          
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$500  

 3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                          
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$500 

3.10 Intervention materials                                           
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

 3.10 Intervention materials                                           
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

407



Page 35 of 139

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental See 3.3.c  

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental See 3.3.c 

Action 11 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.11 Provide extended learning 
time for students during summer. 
 

 3.11 Provided extended learning 
time for students during summer. 

 3.11Teacher hourly rate                                        
(0000-1650-1000-1130-600-
SGMK) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$9,470  

 3.11Teacher hourly rate                                        
(0000-1650-1000-1130-600-
SGMK) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$15,262 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we worked towards ensuring all students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and 
behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers by assessing student progress, implementing project-based 
learning/inquiry methods, developing literacy, media literacy, research and digital citizenship skills, and providing arts education, 
physical fitness, academic support, Math Curriculum Committee, Community Connected Learning Opportunities, tiers of support (Rti), 
Before and After School Support (ELA and Math) and summer extended learning time.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*ELA CAASPP results (increase % met or exceed) & status/change 
*Math CAASPP results (increase % met or exceed) 
*Broad Course of Study 
*Physical Fitness testing (Body Composition) 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*Math CAASPP results  status/change 
*STAR Reading 
*Dibels 
*Physical Fitness testing (Aerobic Capacity) 

408



Page 36 of 139

*STAR Math 
         

 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

409



Page 37 of 139

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
% of parents attending school events 
1% of parent population participating in Parent Organization. 
# of Parent volunteers school-wide daily 
% of parents receiving email newsletters/flyers and engaging in social media 
- school Facebook page 
        

 % of parents attending school events (not collected in 19-20) 
2% of parent population participating in Parent Organization. 
13 Parent volunteers 
100% of parents receiving email newsletters/flyers (according to Smores 
Analytics) 
 
Engaging in social media - school Facebook page 180 Likes 
 

410



Page 38 of 139

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, accessed up-to-date information on school events, 
student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals 
to support their child's education. 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, felt a sense of connection and engagement with the 
school community. 
 
Metrics: 
47%-70% attended school events - numbers varied per event 
5% of parent population participated in Parent Organization. 
32 Parent volunteers school-wide daily 
100% of parents receive email newsletters/flyers (4% receive hard copy 
newsletters/flyers) and engage in social media - school Facebook page 
        

Baseline 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, accessed up-to-date information on school events, 
student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals 
to support their child's education. 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with 
exceptional needs, felt a sense of connection and engagement with the 
school community. 
 
Metrics: 
47%-60% attended school events - numbers varied per event 
1% of parent population participated in Parent Organization. 
25 Parent volunteers school-wide daily 
94% of parents receive email newsletters/flyers (6% receive hard copy 
newsletters/flyers) and engage in social media - school Facebook page 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

411



Page 39 of 139

4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, 
Numeracy, technology, English 
language, Student Outcomes, 
4C's, Social-Emotional learning, 
and Positive Parenting. 
 

 4.1 Provided Parent Education: 
Literacy, Numeracy, technology, 
English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $500  

 4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $500 

4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-
SG04) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500  

 4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-
SG04) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Supplemental $500 

4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-
4760-1000-2100-SG04) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $29,543  

 4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-
4760-1000-2100-SG04) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $20,588 

4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-
1000-2100-SG04) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 4.1.b  

 4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-
1000-2100-SG04) 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 4.1.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.2 Develop tools to communicate 
with parents regarding student 
progress 
 

 4.2 Developed tools to 
communicate with parents 
regarding student progress 

 4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-5830-SG04) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,000  

 4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-5830-SG04) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,000 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an 
understanding of educational 
programs and parent engagement 
such as social media, district and 
school websites, SchoolGo mobile 
app, e-newsletters, LCAP 

 4.3 Used a variety of 
communication platforms to 
promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, 
district and school websites, 
SchoolGo mobile app, e-

 4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $200  

 4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $200 

4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-

 4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-

412



Page 40 of 139

Infographics and virtual meetings 
(AnyMeeting, Google Hangouts, 
etc.) including School/Community 
events that showcase student 
learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 
 

newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, 
Google Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that 
showcase student learning 
(exhibitions, performances, etc.) 

4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $100  

4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $100 

4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $150  

 4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $150 

4.3.d Photography 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base No 
additional costs  

 4.3.d Photography 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base No 
additional costs 

4.3.e SchoolGo annual 
subscription ($1 per student) 
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG04) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base $50  

 4.3.e SchoolGo annual 
subscription ($1 per student) 
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG04) 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base $50 

4.3.f LCAP Infographics for 
Website - Illuminate                                
(1110-5830-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $2,000  

 4.3.f LCAP Infographics for 
Website - Illuminate                                
(1110-5830-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $2,000 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.4 Provide parent education 
through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including 
English language support, 
strategies for supporting students 
in academic learning at home. 
 

 4.4 Provided parent education 
through Community-Based 
Tutoring program, including 
English language support, 
strategies for supporting students 
in academic learning at home. 

 4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.a  

 4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.a 

4.4.b Outreach Worker 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.c  

 4.4.b Outreach Worker 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 4.1.c 

4.4.c Program Coordinator 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.3.d  

 4.4.c Program Coordinator 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental See 2.3.d 

413



Page 41 of 139

4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-
4760-1000-5830-SG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,200  

 4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-
4760-1000-5830-SG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,200 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 
 

 4.5 Provided parents with access 
to information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 4.5 Teacher hourly rate 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b  

 4.5 Teacher hourly rate 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.b 

4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation 
services 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.1.c  

 4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation 
services 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.1.c 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we improved parent engagement by providing parent education, communicating to parents 
about student progress, utilizing communication platforms, providing a community based tutoring program, and providing access to 
parents related to supporting students.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
 
*Newsletter engagement 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
 

414



Page 42 of 139

*Parent organization involvement 
 
*# of consistent volunteers 

 # of parent surveys submitted 

 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
There are no material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

415



Page 43 of 139

Stakeholder Engagement 
 

 

LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

 

Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

1. Governing Board  
 
LCAP Stakeholder Engagement: Meeting Dates: 

 April 10 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 May 15 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 June 5- (public hearing) 
 June 19 (adoption) 

2. School Site Council: Met on  1/15, 2/19, 3/26, 4/16, 5/21        
3. DELAC Meeting -- participation from all sites.  1/23/2019        
4. ELAC Meeting-        
5. Students 

 My Voice Survey: 1/22-2/5 
 Student Council: 12/11, 1/30, 2/6, 2/27, 3/27, 4/22, 4/25, 5/29 

6. Teachers 
 Certificated Bargaining Unit Meeting 1/23 
 Staff Meetings 9/12, 10/17, 12/19, 1/23, 2/20, 3/13, 4/10, 5/1, 5/15 
 My Voice Survey: 1/22-2/5 
 Instructional Leadership Team: 9/24, 10/22, 11/26, 1/28, 2/25, 4/8, 4/22, 5/27 
 Grade level Teams: 10/16, 1/22, 1/28, 1/29 

7. Classified Staff 

416



Page 44 of 139

 Classified bargaining unit consulted on 1/23 

8. Parents 
 My Voice Survey (1/19-2/2) 
 PTO Meeting: 9/11, 10/9, 11/15, 12/11, 2/12, 3/12, 4/9, 5/14 
 Events (various throughout the year): Back to School night: 9/6 Mr. Brown family night (SEL): 10/10 Volunteer Tea 5/23 

9. Staff 
 Elementary Districtwide LCAP Meeting: 1/23/2019 
 Districtwide Survey (1/23/2019) 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting: 1/31/2019 
 
        

         
 

Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

1. Governing Board  

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

2. School Site Council 

 School Site Council requested the following : 

3. DELAC Meeting  

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

4. ELAC Meeting 

417



Page 45 of 139

 The ELAC was happy with the direction of the school and LCAP goals, actions and services. 

5. Students 

 My Voice Survey: 40 respondents: Indications that we must continue our work with LCAP Goal 1: Culture: Create a positive, 
learning focused environment and culture for all students, include the following data points which represent the percentage 
of students in total agreement: Grades 3-5: "Other students are kind to me" 35%; "Students respect teachers" 34%; 
"Students respect each other" 39%; "Learning can be fun" 38%; "I like going to school" 39%; "Other students listen to my 
ideas" 20%; "Students help make classroom rules" 27%. Grades 6: "I am a valued member of my school community" 28%; 
"Students respect teachers" 33%; "I find homework helpful to my overall learning." 38%; "Students develop programs that 
improve the whole school." 23% 

 Student Council: No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

6. Teachers 

 Certificated Bargaining Unit : Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

 Staff Meetings: No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

 My Voice Survey: 16 respondents: We saw an increase in the LCAP metrics related to My Voice Survey. We plan to include 
more metrics from this survey in the 19-20 LCAP. "Professional development is an important part of my educational growth" 
86% to 94%. Indications that we must continue our work with LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching Implement teaching practices that 
support students in the achievement of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. The percentages 
represent the % of teachers in agreement. "Our school celebrates the accomplishments of the staff." 64%; "I enjoy working 
here." 69%, "School inspires me to learn." 63%; "Setting yearly goals with my supervisor is important for my work."50%, "I 
have a voice in decision making at school." 63%; "I feel confident voicing my honest opinions and concerns." 69%; "I am 
excited about my future career in education." 50%; "We communicate effectively in our building." 69%; "Building 
administration knows my professional goals." 

 Instructional Leadership Team 

7. Classified Staff:  

418



Page 46 of 139

 Classified would like to meet and give input on Professional learning for 19-20. No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, 
metrics were requested at this time. 

8. Parents 

 My Voice Survey: 13 respondents. We must continue our LCAP Goal 4: Improve Parent Engagement actions. We plan to 
add the following questions from this survey to the LCAP: Feel welcome at school 100%; Parent evenings/meetings are 
worth attending: 83%; Parents feel comfortable going to parent-teacher conferences 100%; Input and opinions are valued at 
my child's school 83%. We also plan to increase the # of responses from parents. 

 PTO Meeting 

 Events: Each of the events help build community and develop relationship with our stakeholders so they can share their 
opinions and develop trust. 

9. Staff 

 District-wide Staff LCAP Meeting Feedback: Professional learning- teachers would like to have their meeting in May as per 
the contract to give input for each site. Shortened Wednesdays- The would like them planned in advance and alternate with 
little changes into the year. 

 District Staff Survey: 62 Respondents: The school effectively supports professional learning to facilitate all students 
achieving the academic standards.77%; I have an adequate curriculum at this time to effectively implement the standards 
53%; Assessment data and students' work is analyzed and used to make instructional decisions as a grade level team. 
85%; The school implements strategies and processes for the regular involvement of the parent community including non 
English speaking parents. 65%; The school has an atmosphere of trust, respect, and professionalism. 94%; The school 
offers adequate services, including referral services, to support students in areas of health, counseling, academic assistance 
including English language development, etc. 33%; most important state priorities: Basic Services 64% and Course Access 
71%. Implication on LCAP: Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting        
         
 

419



Page 47 of 139

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to feel safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with others. 
Students need to feel engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their school community. 
 
As measured by: 
My Voice Survey (students grades 3-6): 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they "feel important" in their classrooms.  80% 
Students in grade 6 reporting that they are "a valued member of" their school community.  68% 
Students in grades 3-5 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions in class."  80% 
Students in grades 6 reporting that they are "comfortable asking questions in class." 97% 
 
Facilities: FIT Survey - Sustain Exemplary status. 
Williams Act: Sustain 100% access to instructional materials. 
 
 
 

420



Page 48 of 139

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

My Voice Survey 
(students grades 3-6): 
 
% of students in grades 
3-5 reporting that they 
"feel important" in their 
classrooms. 
 
 
        

   29% 
 
 
 
 
 

 42% 
 
 
 
 

 47% 

% of students in grade 6 
reporting that they are "a 
valued member of" their 
school community.        

 68%  33%  28%  32% 

% of students in grades 
3-5 reporting that they 
are "comfortable asking 
questions in class."        

 72%  44%  39%  44% 

% of students in grades 
6 reporting that they are 
"comfortable asking 
questions in class."        

 87%  59%  58%  63% 

Feel safe at school 
(CHKS)        

 Baseline year 17-18: 
74% 

 74%  NA  79% 

Caring Relationships 
with adults (CHKS)        

 Baseline year 17-18: 
33% 

 33%  NA  38% 

Meaningful Participation 
(CHKS)        

 Baseline year 17-18: 8%  8% 
 
 

 NA  13% 

School Connectedness 
(CHKS)        

 Baseline year 17-18: 
31% 

 31% 
 
 

 NA  36% 

421



Page 49 of 139

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Attendance Rates -- %  
(April )        

 95%  88% 
 
 

 95%  95% 

Chronic Absenteeism 
 
 
Status 
Change 
Performance Color 
 
Rate as of April of 
current year 
        

 Baseline year 17-18 
 
 
18% 
+6% 
Red 
 
April 2019:15% 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
12% 
NA 
NA 
 
 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
18% 
Increased 6% 
Red 
 
April 2019:15% 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
17% 
Decrease 1% 
Yellow 
 
April 2019:14% 
 

Suspension Rates 
 
 
Status 
Change 
Performance Color 
 
Rate as of April of 
current year 
        

 Baseline Year: 2016-
2017 Data 
 
 
0.4% 
declined 0.7% 
Blue 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
0.4% 
declined 0.7% 
Blue 
 
 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
1.6% 
Increased 1.1% 
Orange 
 
April 2019:1.6% 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 

Expulsion Rates -- %         0%  0%  0%  0% 

FIT Survey         Exemplary  Exemplary  Exemplary  Exemplary 

Williams Act: % access 
to instructional 
materials.        

 100%  100%  100%  100% 

Appropriately Assigned 
Credentialed        

 100%  100%  100%  100% 

 

422



Page 50 of 139

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully!        

 1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully! 

 1.1 Continue implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully! 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

423



Page 51 of 139

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No additional cost  No additional cost  No additional cost 
        No additional cost  No additional cost  No additional cost Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No additional cost  No additional cost  No additional cost Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox/No Bully!  No additional 
costs as consultant is now 
employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox/No Bully!  No additional 
costs as consultant is now 
employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.a Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Toolbox/No Bully!  No additional 
costs as consultant is now 
employee.                                               
(0000-1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 

Amount        $900  $900  $900 
        $900  $900  $900 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $900  $900  $900 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)      (0000-1110-
1000-5880-SG01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)      (0000-1110-
1000-5880-SG01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff, and parents)      (0000-1110-
1000-5880-SG01) 

Amount        $50  $50  $200 
        $50  $50  $200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $50  $50  $200 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                             
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                             
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.c Toolbox Consumable Materials                             
(0000-1110-1000-4310-SG01) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

424



Page 52 of 139

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.2 Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate.        

 1.2  Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate. 

 1.2  Provide each student with highly 
qualified teaching staff to support learning 
and positive school climate. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $143,500  $125,004  $131,055 
        $143,500  $125,004  $131,055 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $143,500  $125,004  $131,055 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a Highly Qualified Principal                    
(0000-1110-2700-1300-0000) 

Amount        $1,650,626  $1,496,057  $1,552,306 
        $1,650,626  $1,496,057  $1,552,306 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,650,626  $1,496,057  $1,552,306 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b Highly Qualified Teachers                     
(0000-1110-1000-1100-0000) 

425



Page 53 of 139

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.c District-wide team for 
collaborative problem solving                 
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-600-
BG01) 

Amount        $66,200  $34,202  $42,863 
        $66,200  $34,202  $42,863 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $66,200  $34,202  $42,863 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.d Counselor district wide - .60 
FTE @ Schaefer in 17-18 only  
(1110-3110-1200) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.d Counselor district wide - .30 
FTE @ Schaefer  (1110-3110-1200) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.d Counselor district wide - .50 
FTE @ Schaefer (1110-3110-1200) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        

426



Page 54 of 139

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc.        

 1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc. 

 1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as sports, arts, 
clubs, etc. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $34,800  $42,999  $30,061 
        $34,800  $42,999  $30,061 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $34,800  $42,999  $30,061 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a PE Technician (6 
Hours/Day/School)                                   
(0000-1530-1000-2100-SG01) 

Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)                       
(0000-1110-1000-1130-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)            (0000-1660-
1000-1130/2130-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities)              (0000-
1660-1000-1130/2130-SG01) 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.3.c Artist in Residence (community 
partnerships to support arts 
education)             (0000-1130-1000-
5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.3.c Artist in Residence (community 
partnerships to support arts 
education)             (0000-1130-1000-
5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.3.c Artist in Residence (community 
partnerships to support arts 
education)             (0000-1130-1000-
5830-SG01) 

427



Page 55 of 139

Amount        $31,346  $34,771  $30,963 
        $31,346  $34,771  $30,963 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $31,346  $34,771  $30,963 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)                   (0000-
1510-1000-1100-600-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)                   (0000-
1510-1000-1100-600-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.d Music teacher (1.0 FTE shared 
by 3 K-6 sites)                   (0000-
1510-1000-1100-600-SG01) 

Amount        $0  $100  $100 
        $0  $100  $100 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $100  $100 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club                    
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-SGMK) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club                    
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-SGMK) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.e Supplies -- Makers Club                    
(0000-1110-1000-4310-600-SGMK) 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3.f Supplies -- After school 
programs                      (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG01) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

428



Page 56 of 139

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities.        

 1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities. 

 1.4 Provide clean and safe school facilities 
that support student engagement and 
positive school culture. Maintain clean and 
safe school facilities. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 
        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $55,824  $68,527  $69,875 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds staff 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds staff 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Maintenance & Grounds staff 

Amount        Included in 1.4.a     
        Included in 1.4.a     Source        Base     
        Included in 1.4.a     Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.b Grounds Supervisor 

  
 

  
 

Amount        $147,000  $128,002  $130,465 
        $147,000  $128,002  $130,465 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $147,000  $128,002  $130,465 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.c Custodial Staff 

429



Page 57 of 139

Amount        $14,000  $14,000  $27,000 
        $14,000  $14,000  $27,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $14,000  $14,000  $27,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.4.d Custodial/Maintenance 
supplies 

Amount        $43,333  $43,333  $43,333 
        $43,333  $43,333  $43,333 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $43,333  $43,333  $43,333 Budget 
Reference        

0000: Unrestricted 
1.4 e Maintenance Repairs including 
transfer to Deferred Maintenance 
Fund 

 0000: Unrestricted 
1.4 e Maintenance Repairs including 
transfer to Deferred Maintenance 
Fund 

 0000: Unrestricted 
1.4 e Maintenance Repairs including 
transfer to Deferred Maintenance 
Fund 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

430



Page 58 of 139

1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning.        

 1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning. 

 1.5 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression and project-based learning. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $17,100  $5,000  $5,000 
        $17,100  $5,000  $5,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $17,100  $5,000  $5,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project (4310-RLC) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project (4310-RLC) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 21st Century Modernization 
Project (4310-RLC) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision.        

 1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision. 

 1.6 Provide before/after school and recess 
student supervision. 

431



Page 59 of 139

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $45,000  $47,452  $49,643 
        $45,000  $47,452  $49,643 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $45,000  $47,452  $49,643 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6 Yard Duty Supervisors, Traffic 
Supervisors 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action        
X Unchanged Action        

 X Modified Action         X Modified Action        

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.7 Provide tiers of social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 

 1.7 Provide tiers of social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 

 1.7 Provide tiers of social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 

432



Page 60 of 139

in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships.        

in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships. 

in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $0  $30,000  see 1.2.d 
        $0  $30,000  see 1.2.d Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $30,000  see 1.2.d Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor  - Counselor was 
District employee.  No outside 
contracted time was used in 2017-
2018                (0000-1110-3110-
5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Counselor                           
(0000-1110-3110-5830-SG01) 

Amount        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c 
        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c  See 1.1.c Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.b Tier 2 Toolbox Curriculum 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

    

433



Page 61 of 139

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.8 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services.        

 1.8 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services. 

 1.8 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only charged if used 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only charged if used 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.a SAM Program (1110-1000-
5830-SG01) Only charged if used 

Amount        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a 
        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a  See 1.7.a Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.b Counseling time 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.b Counseling time 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.8.b Counseling time 

 

434



Page 62 of 139

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Content Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Teachers need to have opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine teaching practices that support the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
100% of teachers who have participated in professional development related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based 
Learning. 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes  (student work 
products, lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
85% of classrooms w/ evidence of close reading, collaborative conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies 
aligned to the Common Core. 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered: 80% positive feedback expected. 
 
BrightBytes Survey: Not Applicable this year. 
Foundational Skills -- 70% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 55% will utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 60% will report ease with these types of tasks. 
 
 
 

435



Page 63 of 139

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

% of teachers 
participating in 
professional 
development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project Based 
Learning. 
 
        

 100% 
 
 

 100% 
 
 
 

 100%  100% 

Evidence of classroom 
practices related to the 
California Content 
Standards and the 
District's Student 
Outcomes  (student 
work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics 
developed).        

 13 of 13  NA  13 of 13  13 of 13 

% of classrooms w/ 
evidence of close 
reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing 
activities, and math 
instructional strategies 
aligned to the Common 
Core.        

 85%  95%  100%  100% 

% of teachers giving 
feedback on 
professional learning 
opportunities offered        

 80% positive feedback  95%  80%  85% 

My Voice Teacher 
Survey 
 
# of Respondents 

  
 
17-18 baseline:15 
 

  
 
15 
 

  
 
16 
 

  
 
16 
 

436



Page 64 of 139

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

        

% of teachers 
responding they are a 
valued member of the 
school community        

 17-18 baseline:60%  60%  71%  76% 

% of teachers 
responding professional 
development is 
important to educational 
growth        

 17-18 baseline: 80%  80%  86%  90% 

% of teachers 
responding staff work in 
a collaborative manner        

 17-18 baseline: 73%  73%  71%  76% 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 

437



Page 65 of 139

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels.        

 2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

 2.1 Regular schedule for grade level, 
cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per 
month during school day, after school, 
district faculty meetings) for teachers to 
review student work, develop rubrics, plan 
instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1.a Substitute teachers to provide 
release time for teacher 
collaboration. Extra funds not 
needed for this as student schedule 
was revised to allow time for staff to 
collaborate, review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction, and 
reflect on teaching practice.  Costs 
included in salaries/benefits for 
highly qualified teachers. (0000-
1110-1000-1149-SUB) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1.a Substitute teachers to provide 
release time for teacher 
collaboration. Extra funds not 
needed for this as student schedule 
was revised to allow time for staff to 
collaborate, review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction, and 
reflect on teaching practice.  Costs 
included in salaries/benefits for 
highly qualified teachers. (0000-
1110-1000-1149-SUB) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1.a Substitute teachers to provide 
release time for teacher 
collaboration. Extra funds not 
needed for this as student schedule 
was revised to allow time for staff to 
collaborate, review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction, and 
reflect on teaching practice.  Costs 
included in salaries/benefits for 
highly qualified teachers. (0000-
1110-1000-1149-SUB) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

438



Page 66 of 139

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards.        

 2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards. 

 2.2 Provide professional learning 
opportunities to develop and support 
instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards for English Language 
Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based 
Learning, and Next Generation Science 
Standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $41,000  $50,235  see 3.2.f 
        $41,000  $50,235  see 3.2.f Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $41,000  $50,235  see 3.2.f Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.a Instructional Coach (1 FTE 
District-wide)                 (0000-1570-
1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

439



Page 67 of 139

Amount        $33,600  $46,195  $39,075 
        $33,600  $46,195  $39,075 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $33,600  $46,195  $39,075 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)             
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)             
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 schools)             
(0000-1230-1000-1100-600-SGPD) 

Amount        $25,000  $5,000  $1,000 
        $25,000  $5,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Other 
        $25,000  $5,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.c Continue Writing PD       
Additional cost-see below   (01-
4035-1110-1000-5202-PD) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.c Continue Writing PD       
Additional cost-see below      (0000-
1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.c Continue Writing PD       
Additional cost-see below      (7510-
1110-1000-5202-0000) 

Amount        $3,000  $3,000  $5,800 
        $3,000  $3,000  $5,800 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Other 
        $3,000  $3,000  $5,800 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD  - Extra 
time for Staff/Subs for release time                                  
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD  - Extra 
time for Staff/Subs for release time                                  
(0000-1110-1000-1130/1149-SGPD) 

 0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally 
Defined 
2.2.d Continue Writing PD  - Extra 
time for Staff/Subs for release time                                  
(7510-1110-1000-1130/1149-0000) 

Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.e  21st Century Teaching and 
Learning Professional Development 
(Teacher release time and/or SCOE 
Contract) (0000-5830-SG02) 

440



Page 68 of 139

Amount        $14,400  $0  $0 
        $14,400  $0  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $14,400  $0  $0 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.f Participation in NCTIP Program 
(0000-5830-BTSA) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.f Participation in NCTIP Program 
(0000-5830-BTSA) - None 
anticipated for 18-19 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.f Participation in NCTIP Program 
(0000-5830-BTSA) - None 
anticipated for 19-20 

Amount        See 1.2.b    $24,000 
        See 1.2.b    $24,000 Source        Base    Other 
        See 1.2.b    $24,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2.g Continue to Develop New 
Teacher Support Network (contract 
with SCOE), Release Time, 
Collaboration Time (0000-1110-
1000-1130-BG02) 

  
 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.2.h Implement Renewal work 
(7510-1110-1000-5830-0000) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

441



Page 69 of 139

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 
teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math.        

 2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 
teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math. 

 2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities for 
teachers to develop instructional practices 
aligned to the District Student Outcomes, 
focused on writing, PBL, Next Generation 
Science Standards, technology and math. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
Revised student schedule to allow 
staff time on shortened Wednesdays 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
Revised student schedule to allow 
staff time on shortened Wednesdays 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
Revised student schedule to allow 
staff time on shortened Wednesdays 

Amount        $1,222  $1,222  $2,629 
        $1,222  $1,222  $2,629 Source        Title II  Title II  Title II 
        $1,222  $1,222  $2,629 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional development 
workshops for teachers, classified 
instructional support staff, and 
principals.(4035-5202-PD) 

Amount        $5,000  $5,000  $5,000 
        $5,000  $5,000  $5,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $5,000  $5,000  $5,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SG02) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.c Conferences -- Literacy, 
technology, math. (0000-5202-
SGPD) 

442



Page 70 of 139

Amount        $20,100  $22,577  $22,946 
        $20,100  $22,577  $22,946 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $20,100  $22,577  $22,946 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600-SG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600-SG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%)              (0000-1110-2100-
1300-600-SG02) 

Amount        See 2.2.d  See 2.2.d   
        See 2.2.d  See 2.2.d   Source        Base  Base   
        See 2.2.d  See 2.2.d   Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-1110-
1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.d Release time for teacher 
participation in professional 
development for writing (0000-1110-
1000-1130) 

  
 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        

443



Page 71 of 139

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.4 Develop pilot program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6        

 2.4 Develop pilot program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6 

 2.4 Develop pilot program for Math 
performance tasks - K-6 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,633     
        $1,633     Source        Base     
        $1,633     Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.4 Pilot Math performance tasks 
program-consultant time and release 
time (5830-0000) 

  
 

  
 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

444



Page 72 of 139

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6.        

 2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6. 

 2.5 Design units of instruction aligned with 
CCS Math, ELA, including formative and 
summative assessments across K-6. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time - 
teacher time is embedded in new 
schedule with shortened 
Wednesdays (0000-1110-1000-
1130/1149-BG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time - 
teacher time is embedded in new 
schedule with shortened 
Wednesdays (0000-1110-1000-
1130/1149-BG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5 Collaboration time for teachers-
release time and/or extra-duty time -  
teacher time is embedded in new 
schedule with shortened 
Wednesdays 0000-1110-1000-
1130/1149-BG02) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

445



Page 73 of 139

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas.        

 2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas. 

 2.6 Develop proposal for Integration of arts 
education across curricular areas. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
general education teachers to learn 
arts integration strategies to use 
across curriculum-release time 
and/or extra-duty time (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
general education teachers to use 
across curriculum-release time 
and/or extra-duty time (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.a Professional development for 
general education teachers to learn 
arts integration strategies to use 
across curriculum-release time 
and/or extra-duty time (0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

Amount        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6.b Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

446



Page 74 of 139

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners            
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English Language 
Development during the school day.        

 2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English Language 
Development during the school day. 

 2.7 Implement ELD instructional strategies 
to promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices across core curricular 
areas and designated English Language 
Development during the school day. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $0  $600  $600 
        $0  $600  $600 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $0  $600  $600 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (0000-5830-
SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (0000-5830-
SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.7.a Consultation with SCOE ELD 
Coordinator to develop schoolwide 
practices to support EL students in 
all curricular areas. (0000-5830-
SG02) 

447



Page 75 of 139

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.(0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.(0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Collaboration time to plan ELD 
instruction, review assessments of 
student progress and refine 
instructional practices.(0000-1110-
1000-1130-SGPD) 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math.        

 2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math. 

 2.8 Provide professional development 
opportunities for integrating tiers of 
intervention support for students in ELA 
and Math. 

448



Page 76 of 139

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a 
        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a  See 2.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8.a Instructional Coach 

Amount        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs 
        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830-SGPD) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830-SGPD) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.b Professional development 
focused on intervention strategies 
(0000-5830-SGPD) 

Amount        $No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs 
        $No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830-SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830-SG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.8.c Santa Rosa City Schools and 
SCOE Network (0000-5830-SG02) 

 

449



Page 77 of 139

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in skills for future success such as literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive 
collaboration, critical and creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in academic language (all) and English language skills (EL). 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in the use of digital tools for research (accessing information), evaluating sources, digital 
citizenship, communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career readiness. 
Students need to develop physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
Renaissance Learning Assessments STAR Reading (Gr. 3-6): 
82% of students in grades 3-6 read grade level literary and informational text with accuracy and comprehension. 
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): 75% students scored at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
DIBELS (K-6) -- 62% of students met grade level benchmarks 
CAASP ELA- 15% increased from previous year 
CAASP Math - 15% increased from previous year 

450



Page 78 of 139

 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students made progress learning English --  75%-meet target 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency -- 45%-met target 
 
EL Reclassification - Students Redesignated English Proficient - 12% 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results 2017: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- Advanced 
Digital Citizenship- Advanced 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- Exemplary 
At Home- Exemplary 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: Advanced 
Online: Advanced 
Multimedia: Exemplary 
 
4) Environment Overall (Teachers and Students) 
Policies and Procedures: Emerging 
Support: Exemplary 
Beliefs: Exemplary 
Prof. Learning: Advanced 
 
Physical Fitness Test (5th grade): 
Aerobic Capacity -- 80% 
Body Composition -- 57% 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Renaissance Learning 
Assessments STAR 
Reading (Gr. 3-6): 

 74%  49%  40%  45% (goal) 

451



Page 79 of 139

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

% of students in grades 
3-6 reading grade level 
literary and informational 
text with accuracy and 
comprehension. 
        
STAR Math (Gr. 3-6): % 
students scoring at or 
above proficiency on 
grade level standards.        

 67%  69%  56%  61% (goal) 

DIBELS (K-6) -- % of 
students meeting grade 
level benchmarks        

 54%  52%  36%  41% (goal) 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 3-6) 
Previous Year 
 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
43 points below 
Declined 7 
Orange 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
43 points below 
Declined 7 
Orange 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
42 points below 
Increased 2 points 
Orange 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
39 points below 
Increase 3 points 
Yellow 
 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 3-6) 
Previous Year 
 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange 
 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
4 (EL, His, SED, White) 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
4 (EL, His, SED, White) 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
3 (EL, Hispanic, SED) 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
2 
 

Math Academic 
Indicator (CAASPP 3-6) 
(Previous Year) 
 
Status: 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
59 points below 
Increased 0.7 points 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
59 points below 
Increased 0.7 points 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
65 points below 
Declined 6 points 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
62 points below 
Increase 3 points 

452



Page 80 of 139

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
        

Orange 
 

Orange 
 

Orange 
 

Yellow 
 

Math Academic 
Indicator (CAASPP 3-6) 
 
 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange: 
 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
2 (Hispanic, SED) 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
2 (Hispanic, SED) 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
4 (EL, Hispanic, SED, 
White) 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
3 
 

English Learner 
Indicator        

 2015: 73% 
2016: 73% 
 
 

 2017:74%  NA-Indicator changing  TBD 

Physical Fitness Test 
(5th Grade) 
Aerobic Capacity 
 
 
        

 2015-2016 
61% 
 

 2016-2017 
78.6% 
 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
42% 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
47% 
 

Body Composition         2015-2016 
57% 
 

 2016-2017 
53.6% 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
62% 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
67% 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

453



Page 81 of 139

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals.        

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals. 

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
curricular goals. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $5,500  $5,500  $6,000 
        $5,500  $5,500  $6,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $5,500  $5,500  $6,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1.a Renaissance Learning (STAR 
Reading & Star Math) (0000-1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

Amount        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 
        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.1.b DIBELS - annual subscription 
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG03) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.1.b DIBELS - annual subscription 
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG03) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.1.b DIBELS - annual subscription 
(0000-1110-1000-4340-BG03) 

454



Page 82 of 139

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes - Revised daily 
schedule to include shortened 
Wednesdays for students to allow 
collaboration time for staff. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes - Revised daily 
schedule to include shortened 
Wednesdays for students to allow 
collaboration time for staff. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.c Collaboration time for teams of 
teachers to develop assessment 
practices aligned with District 
Student Outcomes - Revised daily 
schedule to include shortened 
Wednesdays for students to allow 
collaboration time for staff. 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

455



Page 83 of 139

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards.        

 3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards. 

 3.2 Implement Project-Based 
Learning/Inquiry methods focused on 
integrated units of instruction aligned with 
District Student Outcomes and California 
Content Standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  see 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL - 
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students 
to allow collaboration time for staff. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL -
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students 
to allow collaboration time for staff. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Collaboration Time - PBL -
Revised daily schedule to include 
shortened Wednesdays for students 
to allow collaboration time for staff. 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-1000-
4310-BG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-1000-
4310-BG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Digital and print instructional 
resources - PBL (0000-1110-1000-
4310-BG03) 

Amount        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.c Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

456



Page 84 of 139

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.d Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        $0  $0  $0 
        $0  $0  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $0  $0  $0 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Pilot texts - Paid by 
District (0000-1110-1000-4310-
7156) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Pilot texts - Paid by 
District (0000-1110-1000-4310-7156) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.e Instructional Materials-Math 
Curriculum Pilot texts - Paid by 
District (0000-1110-1000-4310-7156) 

Amount            $17,000 
            $17,000 Source            LCFF Base 
            $17,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.2.f Implement STEAM Lab - 
contract with Lindsay Hunter (0000-
1110-1000-5830-STEM) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

457



Page 85 of 139

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills.        

 3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills. 

 3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, media literacy, 
research and digital citizenship skills. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $24,851  $27,332  $29,208 
        $24,851  $27,332  $29,208 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $24,851  $27,332  $29,208 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a Library Tech  (30 hours per 
week per K-6 school)        (0000-
1110-2420-2200-SG03) 

Amount        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b 
        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b  See 2.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b Technology Integration Coach 
(1 FTE shared by 3 K-6 sites) 

458



Page 86 of 139

Amount        $500  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        $500  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction (0000-1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction (0000-1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.c Conduct needs assessment for 
resources for balanced literacy 
instruction (0000-1110-1000-1130) 

Amount        See 2.3.b  See 2.3.b  See 2.3.b 
        See 2.3.b  See 2.3.b  See 2.3.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.b  See 2.3.b  See 2.3.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.d Director of Innovative Learning 
(40%) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
459



Page 87 of 139

3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills.        

 3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 3.4 Provide arts education (visual, digital, 
music, performing arts) for students to 
develop communication, creativity and 
critical thinking skills. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount             
Amount        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d 
        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d  See 1.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Music teacher (1 FTE shared 
between 3 K-6 schools) 

Amount        See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f 
        See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f  See 1.3.f Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1660-1000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1660-1000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4.b Materials for after school art 
projects (0000-1660-1000-4310-
SG03) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
460



Page 88 of 139

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness.        

 3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness. 

 3.5 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a 
        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a  See 1.3.a Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5 PE Technician (6 
Hrs/Day/School) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 Specific Student Groups: Special Education          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 

461



Page 89 of 139

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes.        

 3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes. 

 3.6 Provide academic support for students 
with disabilities to access a rigorous 
curriculum aligned with California Content 
Standards and the District's Student 
Outcomes. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $48,667  $50,715  $52,284 
        $48,667  $50,715  $52,284 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $48,667  $50,715  $52,284 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers (2 FTE 
for District K-12 Program) (6500-
5770-1120-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers, RSP (2 
FTE for District K-12 Program) 
(6500-5770-1120-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.a Special Ed Teachers, RSP (2 
FTE for District K-12 Program) 
(6500-5770-1120-1100-0000) 

Amount        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 
        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $29,333  $33,016  $34,508 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.b Special Ed Teacher for SDC (1 
FTE for District K-6 Program) (6500-
5770-1110-1100-0000) 

462



Page 90 of 139

Amount        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 
        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $19,406  $16,519  $21,412 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.c RSP Assistant (3310-5770-
1120-2100) 

Amount        $20,942  $22,061  $23,788 
        $20,942  $22,061  $23,788 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $20,942  $22,061  $23,788 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(3310-5770-1110-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(3310-5770-1110-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.d Specialized Assistants (SDC) 
(3310-5770-1110-2100) 

Amount        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 
        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $45,667  $33,008  $60,271 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.e Speech & Language 
Specialists (1.4 FTE for District K-12 
Program) (6500-5770-3150-1200) 

Amount        $26,489  $30,882  $34,220 
        $26,489  $30,882  $34,220 Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        $26,489  $30,882  $34,220 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.60 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.80 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6.f Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.80 for 
District K-12 Program) (6500-5770-
2100-1300-) 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

463



Page 91 of 139

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.7 Develop Math Curriculum Committee 
to research and explore math instructional 
resources.        

 3.7 Continue Math Curriculum Committee 
to research and explore math instructional 
resources for Grade 6. 

  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 2.4  See 2.4   
        See 2.4  See 2.4   Source        Base  Base   
        See 2.4  See 2.4   Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum Committee to pilot math 
instructional materials 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Collaboration time for Math 
Curriculum to research math 
instructional materials 

  
 

464



Page 92 of 139

Amount        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e   
        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e   Source        Base  Base   
        See 3.2.e  See 3.2.e   Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.7.b Sample Math instructional 
materials 

  
 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities        

 3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 

 3.8 Provide Community Connected 
Learning opportunities 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

465



Page 93 of 139

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $9,500  $9,025  $8,750 
        $9,500  $9,025  $8,750 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $9,500  $9,025  $8,750 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5880-FT03) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5806-FT03)  (Based on $25/ADA)  
Anticipating 364 ADA in 2018-2019 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.8.a Off-Campus Community 
Learning events (field trips) (0000-
5806-FT03)  (Based on $25/ADA)  
Estimating 350 ADA in 2019-2020 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5880-
FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5830-
FT03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.b On-Campus Community 
Learning events (guest speakers, 
presentations, etc) (0000-5830-
FT03) 

Amount        $0  $9,900  $9,000 
        $0  $9,900  $9,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $0  $9,900  $9,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03)  (Schaefer did not use this 
funding in 2017-2018) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03)  (Based on $180/6th Grade 
Student)  Estimating 55 6th Grade 
Students in 2018-2019 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.8.c 6th grade Science Outdoor 
Education (0000-1515-1000-5808-
FT03)  (Based on $180/6th Grade 
Student)  Estimating 43 6th Grade 
Students in 2019-2020 

Action 9 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

466



Page 94 of 139

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention.        

 3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention. 

 3.9 Provide tiers of support (RtI) for 
students who need targeted instruction 
and academic intervention. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Collaboration time for teachers 
to review benchmark data, plan 
interventions, and assess student 
progress. 

467



Page 95 of 139

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.b Intervention materials 
(Rewards, SIPPS) (0000-4310-
SG03) 

Amount        No Cost - Purchased 3-Yr 
subscription in 2016-2017 

 No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017 

 $10,044 

        No Cost - Purchased 3-Yr 
subscription in 2016-2017 

 No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 
Subscription in 2016-2017 

 $10,044 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No Cost - Purchased 3-Yr 

subscription in 2016-2017 
 No Cost - Purchased 3 Yr 

Subscription in 2016-2017 
 $10,044 Budget 

Reference        
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - Annual 
Subscription 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.9.c Lexia Reading - 3-year 
Subscription (1570-1000-4340-SG03 

Amount        $8,830  $9,377  $9,777 
        $8,830  $9,377  $9,777 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $8,830  $9,377  $9,777 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.40 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.40 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.d Director of Special 
Education/Intervention (.40 for 
District K-12 Intervention Program) 
(0000-1110-2100-1300-600-SG03) 

Action 10 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

468



Page 96 of 139

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math.        

 3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math. 

 3.10 Provide extended instructional time 
before and after school for students who 
need additional academic support in ELA 
and Math. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                           
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                          
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10.a Teacher hourly rate                                              
(0000-1660-1000-1130-SG03) 

Amount        See 3.3.c  See 3.3.c  See 3.3.c 
        See 3.3.c  See 3.3.c  See 3.3.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 3.3.c  See 3.3.c  See 3.3.c Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10 Intervention materials                                           
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10 Intervention materials                                           
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.10 Intervention materials                                               
(0000-1660-1000-4310-SG03) 

Action 11 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

469



Page 97 of 139

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Low Income        

    

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer.        

 3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer. 

 3.11 Provide extended learning time for 
students during summer. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 
        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $11,000  $9,470  $14,033 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11Teacher hourly rate                                  
(0000-1650-1000-1130-600-SGMK) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11Teacher hourly rate                                        
(0000-1650-1000-1130-600-SGMK) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11Teacher hourly rate                                         
(0000-1650-1000-1130-600-SGMK) 

 

470



Page 98 of 139

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs, need to access up-to-date information on 
school events, student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their child's education. 
Parents, including the parents of unduplicated students and students with exceptional needs, need to feel a sense of connection and 
engagement with the school community. 
 
Metrics: 
47%-75% attended school events - numbers varied per event 
10% of parent population participated in Parent Organization. 
35 Parent volunteers school-wide daily 
97% of parents receive email newsletters/flyers (3% receive hard copy newsletters/flyers) and engage in social media - school 
Facebook page 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

# of events 
# of total attendees 
 

 NA 
 
 

 NA  NA  Baseline Establishment 

471



Page 99 of 139

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 
        
# of parent volunteers         25 Parent volunteers  25  13  13+ 

Newsletter Engagement         According to smores 
analytics 

   100%  90%+ 

Facebook 
Likes 
 
        

     180  180+ 

MyVoice Survey-
Parents 
Number of Respondents 
 
        

 Baseline year 18-19: 13  NA  13  14+ 

% of parents feel 
welcome at school        

 Baseline year 18-19: 
100% 

 NA  100%  90%+ 

% of parents feel 
evenings/meetings are 
worth attending        

 Baseline year 18-19: 
83% 

 NA  83%  85%+ 

% of parents feel 
comfortable going to 
parent-teacher 
conferences        

 Baseline year 18-19: 
100% 

 NA  100%  90%+ 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

472



Page 100 of 139

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting.        

 4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 4.1 Parent Education: Literacy, Numeracy, 
technology, English language, Student 
Outcomes, 4C's, Social-Emotional 
learning, and Positive Parenting. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
1110-1000-1130-SG04) 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-SG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-SG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Materials (0000-4390-SG04) 

473



Page 101 of 139

Amount        $8,700  $29,543  $29,543 
        $8,700  $29,543  $29,543 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $8,700  $29,543  $29,543 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.c Outreach Worker  (0000-4760-
1000-2100-SG04) 

Amount        See 4.1.b  See 4.1.b  See 4.1.b 
        See 4.1.b  See 4.1.b  See 4.1.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.b  See 4.1.b  See 4.1.b Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1.d Child Care (0000-1110-1000-
2100-SG04) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

474



Page 102 of 139

4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress        

 4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress 

 4.2 Develop tools to communicate with 
parents regarding student progress 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1130-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.2 Develop report card tools to 
communicate student progress 
(0000-1110-1000-5830-SG04) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All          
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

475



Page 103 of 139

4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 
app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.)        

 4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 
app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 

 4.3 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to promote an understanding of 
educational programs and parent 
engagement such as social media, district 
and school websites, SchoolGo mobile 
app, e-newsletters, LCAP Infographics 
and virtual meetings (AnyMeeting, Google 
Hangouts, etc.) including 
School/Community events that showcase 
student learning (exhibitions, 
performances, etc.) 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $200  $200  $200 
        $200  $200  $200 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $200  $200  $200 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.a AnyMeeting annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

Amount        $100  $100  $100 
        $100  $100  $100 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $100  $100  $100 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.b Constant Contact annual 
subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

Amount        $150  $150  $150 
        $150  $150  $150 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $150  $150  $150 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.c Weebly Pro Annual 
Subscription (0000-1110-1000-4340-
BG04) 

476



Page 104 of 139

Amount        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs 
        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Source        Base  Base  Base 
        No additional costs  No additional costs  No additional costs Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.d Photography 

Amount        $50  $50  $50 
        $50  $50  $50 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $50  $50  $50 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription 
($1 per student) (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription 
($1 per student) (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3.e SchoolGo annual subscription 
($1 per student) (0000-1110-1000-
4340-BG04) 

Amount        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 
        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $2,000  $2,000  $2,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website  
- Illuminate                              (1110-
5830-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website 
- Illuminate                                
(1110-5830-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.3.f LCAP Infographics for Website   
- Illuminate                              (1110-
5830-BG04) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners            
 

477



Page 105 of 139

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home.        

 4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home. 

 4.4 Provide parent education through 
Community-Based Tutoring program, 
including English language support, 
strategies for supporting students in 
academic learning at home. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a 
        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.a Teacher hourly rate (0000-
4760-1000-1130-SG04) 

Amount        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.b Outreach Worker 

Amount        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d  See 2.3.d Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4.c Program Coordinator 

478



Page 106 of 139

Amount        $1,200  $1,200  $1,200 
        $1,200  $1,200  $1,200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,200  $1,200  $1,200 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-4760-
1000-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-4760-
1000-5830-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.4.d CBET Instructor (0000-4760-
1000-5830-SG04) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners            
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support.        

 4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 4.5 Provide parents with access to 
information related to academic 
interventions and English language 
development support. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

479



Page 107 of 139

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Teacher hourly rate 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Teacher hourly rate 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Teacher hourly rate 

Amount        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c  See 4.1.c Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5 Outreach worker for parent 
consultation and translation services 

 

480



Page 108 of 139

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$347,652  13.7% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses one of the charter 
schools, Schaefer Charter School. Schaefer Charter School's unduplicated count exceeds 40%, (64.9% in 18-19) so some of the 
supplemental grant funds were expended on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income 
or English learner students. Schaefer is budgeting $237,150 on supplemental grant programs. The District is offering an extended day 
and extended year program to targeted K-6 students (low income and English learners) which will increase the instructional minutes 
for the year by approximately 5,000 or 9.25%.  
 
Services explicitly for unduplicated students which are not being utilized on a school-wide basis include: 1) counseling for low-income 
and foster youth, 2) Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and 
designated ELD (33% FTE instructional coach to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL 
Coordinator and follow-up at sites, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the 
development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students, 3) Extended learning 
opportunities (after-school tutoring, summer literacy program, summer maker camp, PE Technician time after school to provide 
opportunities for additional PE/Sports enrichment for low income and EL students, and 4) Parent education -- Parent English classes 
provided by an adult ESL instructor to facilitate engagement of parents of English Learners. Costs for supplemental programs exceed 
the amount of funds projected to be received for this purpose. 
 
Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services" in the 2017-2018 section:  

481



Page 109 of 139

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Schaefer Charter School has determined these actions described 
in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established processes to 
ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
Supporting Research Document for Effective Programs/Services can be found in the 2017-18 section.------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$368,079  11.4% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 

482



Page 110 of 139

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses one of the charter 
schools, Schaefer Charter School. Schaefer Charter School's unduplicated count exceeds 40%, (67% in 17-18) so some of the 
supplemental grant funds were expended on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income 
or English learner students. Schaefer is budgeting $294,949 on supplemental grant programs. The District is offering an extended day 
and extended year program to targeted K-6 students (low income and English learners) which will increase the instructional minutes 
for the year by approximately 5,000 or 9.25%.  
 
Services explicitly for unduplicated students which are not being utilized on a school-wide basis include: 1) counseling for low-income 
and foster youth, 2) Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and 
designated ELD (33% FTE instructional coach to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL 
Coordinator and follow-up at sites, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the 
development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students, 3) Extended learning 
opportunities (after-school tutoring, summer literacy program, summer maker camp, PE Technician time after school to provide 
opportunities for additional PE/Sports enrichment for low income and EL students, and 4) Parent education -- Parent English classes 
provided by an adult ESL instructor to facilitate engagement of parents of English Learners. Costs for supplemental programs exceed 
the amount of funds projected to be received for this purpose. 
 
Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services in 2017-18":  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

483



Page 111 of 139

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Schaefer Charter School has determined these actions described 
in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established processes to 
ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
Supporting Research Document for Effective Programs/Services can be found in the 2017-18 section.------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$349,069  11.5% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

484



Page 112 of 139

Piner-Olivet District is comprised of 5 schools, 4 of which are charter, 1 is non-charter. This LCAP addresses one of the charter 
schools, Schaefer Charter School. Schaefer Charter School's unduplicated count exceeds 40%, so some of the supplemental grant 
funds were expended on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English learner 
students. Schaefer has expended $294,007 on supplemental grant programs. The District offered an extended day and extended year 
program to targeted K-6 students (low income and English learners) which increased the instructional minutes for the year by 
approximately 5,000 or 9.25%.  
 
Services explicitly for unduplicated students which are not being utilized on a school-wide basis include: 1) counseling for low-income 
and foster youth, 2) Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and 
designated ELD (33% FTE instructional coach to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL 
Coordinator and follow-up at sites, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the 
development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students, 3) Extended learning 
opportunities (after-school tutoring, summer literacy program, summer maker camp, PE Technician time after school to provide 
opportunities for additional PE/Sports enrichment for low income and EL students, and 4) Parent education -- Parent English classes 
provided by an adult ESL instructor to facilitate engagement of parents of English Learners. Costs for supplemental programs exceed 
the amount of funds projected to be received for this purpose. 
 
Funds expended will be used in the following five significant ways (which is in response from the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services":  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 

485



Page 113 of 139

implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Schaefer Charter School has determined these actions described 
in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established processes to 
ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
Supporting Research Document for Programs/Services 

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behaviorial, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 

Reviews of the research on school counseling show that the services of school counselors have a positive effect on children: 
 
1. Borders, L.D., & Drury, S.M. (1992). Comprehensive school counseling programs: A review for policymakers and practitioners. 
Journal of Counseling and Development, 70, 487-498.  
 
2. Whitson, S.C., & Sexton, T.L. (1998). A review of school counseling outcome research: implications for practice. Journal of 
Counseling & Development, 76, 412-426.  
 
Quantitative analyses of research (meta-analyses) also substantiate the beneficial effects of school counseling programs: 
 
1. Prout, H.T. & Demartino, R.A. (1986). A meta-analysis of school-based studies of psychotherapy. Journal of School 
Psychology, 24, 285-292.  
 
2. Sprinthall, N.A. (1981). A new model for research in the science of guidance and counseling. The Personnel and Guidance Journal, 
59, 487-493. 
 
School counseling programs have significant influence on discipline problems. Baker and Gerler reported that students who 
participated in a school counseling program had significantly less inappropriate behaviors and more positive attitudes toward school 
than those students who did not participate in the program. Another study reported that group counseling provided by school 
counselors significantly decreased participants' aggressive and hostile behaviors: 
 
1. Baker, S. B., & Gerler, E. R. (2001). Counseling in schools. In D. C. Locke, J. E. Myers, and E. L. Herr (Eds.), The Handbook of 
Counseling, Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications.  

486



Page 114 of 139

 
2. Omizo, M.M., Hershberger, J.M., & Omizo, S.A. (1988). Teaching children to cope with anger. Elementary School Guidance & 
Counseling, 22, 241-245. 
 
School counselors are also very effective in assisting middle school children in the area of career development (Whiston, S. C., 
Sexton, T. L., & Lasoff, D. L. (1998). Career-intervention outcome: A replication and extension of Oliver and Spokane (1988). Journal 
of Counseling Psychology, 45, 150-165). 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention. 

The heart of any Response-to-Intervention (RTI) model lies in the use of tiered instructional processes. Although the assessment 
components of RTI (universal screening and progress monitoring) are essential elements of implementation, it is the instruction that 
occurs as a function of the outcomes of the assessments that truly drives the changes we hope to see in students who are identified 
as being at risk for not meeting academic expectations. Tiered instruction represents a model in which the instruction delivered to 
students varies on several dimensions that are related to the nature and severity of the student's difficulties.  
 
When a tiered framework is applied schoolwide, with all students and addressing academic and/or behavioral curricular instruction, it 
is often termed a multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS). Researchers interested in MTSS in early reading have suggested that if high 
quality reading instruction and reading interventions are not provided, at-risk readers will continue to struggle into later grades and will 
routinely be identified for special education programs (Juel, 1998; Lyon, 2005; Moats, 1999; Torgesen, 2007). The quality of instruction 
has been found to be influential on student academic outcomes (Darling-Hammond, 2000; Foorman, Francis, Fletcher, 
Schatschneider, Mehta, 1998; Haager, Klingner, & Vaughn, 2007; O’Connor, Fulmer, Harty, & Bell, 2005).  
 
When implementing MTSS/RTI, professional development focuses on instructional features, as well as the academic or behavior 
content and skills, to build teacher capacity and improve instruction (Vaughn, et al., 2008; Knight & Michel, 2011). Universal supports, 
also referred to as Tier 1 instruction, are the initial focus of MTSS/RTI implementation. Universal supports are provided in general 
education and are provided to all students (Speece, Case, & Molloy, 2003). This level of support is characterized by its focus on high-
quality initial instruction, grounded in research, and provided to all students. Providing evidence-based instruction and supports for an 
academic content area or for the social, emotional, or behavioral development in all students has been supported as a way to prevent 
future deficits (Doabler, Cary, Jungjohann, Clarke, Fien, Baker, Smolkowski, & Chard, 2012; Greenwood, Horner, & Kratochwill, 2008). 
A strong implementation of universal level support is the first step in reducing the number of students who will require more targeted 
and/or intensive supports (Nelson, Hurley, Synhorst, & Epstein, 2008; Torgesen, Alexander, Wagner, Rashotte, Voeller, & Conway, 
2001).  
 

487



Page 115 of 139

The term Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) has been described as a comprehensive system of differentiated supports that 
includes evidence-based instruction, universal screening, progress monitoring, formative assessment, research-based interventions 
matched to student needs, and educational decision-making using student outcome data (Chard, Harn, Horner, Simmons, & Kame-
enui, 2008). MTSS/RTI helps provide all students, from all backgrounds, equal educational opportunity - regardless of the academic or 
behavioral difficulties they face - especially as issues of disproportionality exist in learning disability identification (Harry & Klingner, 
2006; McCall & Skrtic, 2009). Considering the focus of MTSS/RTI is prevention (Chard, et al., 2008), reflecting on system issues 
provides focus to improve schools and instruction and therefore student success (Sailor, 2009a). 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. 

The following research indicates a critical need for effective professional development to support providing designated and integrated 
ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices: 
 
1. California Department of Education. (2010). Improving education for English learners: Research-based approaches. 
Sacramento, CA: Author.  
 
2. Calderón, M., August, D., Slavin, R., Duran, D., Madden, N., and Cheung, A. (2005). Bring words to life in classrooms with English 
language learners. In E. H. Hiebert and M. L. Kamil (Eds.), Teaching and learning vocabulary: Bringing research to practice. Mahwah, 
NJ: Erlbraum. 
 
3. Dutro, S., and Kinsella, K. (2010). English language development: Issues and implementation at grades six through twelve. In F. 
Ong and V. Aguilar (Eds.) Improving Education for English Learners: Research?Based Approaches. Sacramento, CA: California 
Department of Education. 
 
4. Goldenberg, C. (2008). Teaching English language learners: What the research does—and does not—say. American Educator, 
32(2), p. 8–23, 42–44. 
 
5. Sato, E., Lagunoff, R., & Yeagley, P. (in press). Academic Language and the Common Core State Standards: Implications for State 
and District Implementation and Supporting the Achievement of English Language Learners. San Francisco, CA: WestEd. 
 
6. Short, D., Echevarría, J., and Richards?Tutor, C. (2011). Research on academic literacy development in sheltered classrooms. 
Language Teaching Research 15(3), 363–380. 

488



Page 116 of 139

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. 

Regardless of the overall program structure in school systems, the Institute of Education Sciences, the Education Department's 
research agency, has identified rigorous evidence that the following teaching practices are effective in teaching academic content to 
ELLs: 
 
? Teach a set of academic vocabulary words intensively, over several days and a variety of activities. 
 
? Integrate instruction in spoken and written English into content-area teaching, such as using science laboratory reports to teach 
writing in English. 
 
? Provide ongoing, structured chances to develop writing skills. 
 
? Provide small-group interventions for students struggling with specific problems in literacy or language development. 
 
Additional research reinforces that these core practices are essential to providing designated and integrated ELD and supporting 
second language learners academic achievement: 
 
1. Gibbons, P. (2009). English learners, academic literacy, and thinking: Learning in the challenge zone. Portsmouth, NH: 
Heinemann.  
 
2. Gibbons, P. (2006). Bridging discourses in the ESL classroom: Students, teachers and researchers. London: Continuum. 
 
3. Kieffer, M., and Lesaux, N. (2010). Morphing into adolescents: Active word learning for English? language learners and their 
classmates in middle school. Journal of Adolescent and Adult Literacy, 54(1), 47–56. 
 
4. Veel, R. (1999). Language, knowledge and authority in school mathematics. In F. Christie (Ed.), Pedagogy and the shaping of 
consciousness: Linguistic and social processes. London: Continuum 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 

489



Page 117 of 139

site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. 

The National Comprehensive Center for Teacher Quality provides guidance for teacher professional development and encourages the 
implementation of job-embedded professional development in high-need schools (U.S. Department of Education, 2009a; U.S. 
Department of Education, 2009b). The National Staff Development Council (2010) also emphasizes the importance of school-based 
learning and job-embedded coaching as necessary components of effective professional development. Job-embedded professional 
development (JEPD) refers to teacher learning that is grounded in day-to-day teaching practice and is designed to enhance teachers’ 
content-specific instructional practices with the intent of improving student learning (Darling-Hammond & McLaughlin, 1995; Hirsh, 
2009).  
 
The best professional development support is primarily school or classroom-based and is integrated into the workday allowing 
teachers to assess and develop solutions for authentic and immediate problems of practice as part of cycles of continuous 
improvement (Hawley & Valli, 1999; National Staff Development Council, 2010). 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 

490



Page 118 of 139

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county 
superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

491



Page 119 of 139

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 

Annual Update 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals, Actions, and Services 

Planned Actions/Services 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the California School Dashboard data reports) if desired 
and/or include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and 
actual expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to California School Dashboard means the California School Dashboard adopted by 
the State Board of Education under EC Section 52064.5.    
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

 Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

 Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in 
developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based 
interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the 
implementation of the CSI plan. 

 Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate 
the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school 
improvement. 

492

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


Page 120 of 139

 

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the California School 
Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 
in the California School Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 

493



Page 121 of 139

charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

494



Page 122 of 139

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the California School Dashboard, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 
Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

495



Page 123 of 139

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter "LEA-wide." 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

496



Page 124 of 139

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

 

New/Modified/Unchanged:  

 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 
the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  

 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 

497



Page 125 of 139

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  
 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 
If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

498



Page 126 of 139

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

499



Page 127 of 139

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

500



Page 128 of 139

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

501



Page 129 of 139

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of K-8 students who were absent 10 percent or more of the school days 

excluding students who were: 
(A) enrolled less than 31 days 
(B) enrolled at least 31 days but did not attend at least one day 
(C) flagged as exempt in the district attendance submission. K-8 students are considered to 
be exempt if they: 
 (i) are enrolled in a Non-Public School 
 (ii) receive instruction through a home or hospital instructional setting 
 (iii) are attending a community college full-time. 

(2) The number of students who meet the enrollment requirements. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

 (b) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  
(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 

“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(c) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) For a 4-Year Cohort Graduation Rate: 

(A) The number of students in the cohort who earned a regular high school diploma by the 
end of year 4 in the cohort. 

(B) The total number of students in the cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(2) For a Dashboard Alternative Schools Status (DASS) Graduation Rate: 
(A) The number of students who either graduated as grade 11 students or who earned any 

of the following: 
(i) a regular high school diploma 
(ii) a High School Equivalency Certificate 
(iii) an adult education diploma 
(iv)  a Certificate of Completion and was eligible for the California Alternative 

Assessment if under the age of 20. 
(B) The number of students in the DASS graduation cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
502



Page 130 of 139

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  

503



Page 131 of 139

 

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

504



Page 132 of 139

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, January 2019 
 

505



Page 133 of 139

 

LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 

Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Funding Sources 2,505,274.00 2,585,467.00 2,668,719.00 2,505,274.00 2,589,352.00 7,763,345.00 
Base 1,986,502.00 2,074,709.00 2,214,616.00 1,986,502.00 2,075,290.00 6,276,408.00 
LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 
Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30,800.00 30,800.00 
Special Education 186,201.00 195,139.00 190,504.00 186,201.00 226,483.00 603,188.00 
Supplemental 331,349.00 314,397.00 262,377.00 331,349.00 237,150.00 830,876.00 
Title II 1,222.00 1,222.00 1,222.00 1,222.00 2,629.00 5,073.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

506



Page 134 of 139

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types 2,505,274.00 2,585,467.00 2,668,719.00 2,505,274.00 2,589,352.00 7,763,345.00 
0000: Unrestricted 43,333.00 43,333.00 43,333.00 43,333.00 43,333.00 129,999.00 
0001-0999: Unrestricted: Locally Defined 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,800.00 5,800.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 1,982,509.00 2,076,857.00 2,163,858.00 1,982,509.00 2,028,301.00 6,174,668.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 382,435.00 361,460.00 356,523.00 382,435.00 383,995.00 1,122,953.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 27,150.00 27,458.00 39,150.00 27,150.00 50,844.00 117,144.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

18,147.00 18,062.00 9,122.00 18,147.00 19,279.00 46,548.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 

51,700.00 58,297.00 56,733.00 51,700.00 57,800.00 166,233.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

507



Page 135 of 139

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2018-19 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 2,505,274.00 2,585,467.00 2,668,719.00 2,505,274.00 2,589,352.00 7,763,345.00 
0000: Unrestricted Base 43,333.00 43,333.00 43,333.00 43,333.00 43,333.00 129,999.00 
0001-0999: Unrestricted: 
Locally Defined 

Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 5,800.00 5,800.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 1,655,263.00 1,743,470.00 1,860,826.00 1,655,263.00 1,726,224.00 5,242,313.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Special Education 147,621.00 156,559.00 150,156.00 147,621.00 181,283.00 479,060.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 179,625.00 176,828.00 152,876.00 179,625.00 120,794.00 453,295.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 243,981.00 243,981.00 247,824.00 243,981.00 249,983.00 741,788.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Special Education 38,580.00 38,580.00 40,348.00 38,580.00 45,200.00 124,128.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 99,874.00 78,899.00 68,351.00 99,874.00 88,812.00 257,037.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Base 20,500.00 20,500.00 32,600.00 20,500.00 33,500.00 86,600.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Supplemental 6,650.00 6,958.00 6,550.00 6,650.00 17,344.00 30,544.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Base 11,025.00 11,025.00 2,000.00 11,025.00 10,750.00 23,775.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Supplemental 5,900.00 5,815.00 5,900.00 5,900.00 5,900.00 17,700.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Title II 1,222.00 1,222.00 1,222.00 1,222.00 2,629.00 5,073.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Base 12,400.00 12,400.00 28,033.00 12,400.00 11,500.00 51,933.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 17,000.00 17,000.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 25,000.00 

508



Page 136 of 139

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2018-19 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Supplemental 39,300.00 45,897.00 28,700.00 39,300.00 4,300.00 72,300.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

509



Page 137 of 139

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
Goal 1 2,073,397.00 2,144,052.00 2,252,679.00 2,073,397.00 2,116,764.00 6,442,840.00 

Goal 2 135,829.00 137,445.00 146,955.00 135,829.00 103,050.00 385,834.00 

Goal 3 260,805.00 277,682.00 254,685.00 260,805.00 334,295.00 849,785.00 

Goal 4 35,243.00 26,288.00 14,400.00 35,243.00 35,243.00 84,886.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
 
  

510



Page 138 of 139

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 
  

511



Page 139 of 139

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures NOT Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 

512



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
  

Action Item:  9.4 Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum for the 
Northwest Prep Charter School 
 
Special Meeting of:  June 19, 2019      Action Item Report Format:Oral 
Attachment:  Local Control Accountability Plan   (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum        
 
Background 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) legislation was signed into law by the Governor and 
took effect on July 1, 2013. Under the LCFF, school districts are required to develop, adopt, and 
annually update a three-year Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), beginning on July 1, 
2014. According to Ed Code 52060, school districts are required to consult with staff, students, 
parents, and the community in developing the LCAP.  
 
The final Northwest Prep LCAP includes a description of the stakeholder engagement process, 
goals, actions and services for all students as well as subgroups.   
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP in order to ensure that eligible 
LEAs will meet the LEA Plan Provisions of the ESSA.  The LCAP Addendum must be submitted 
to the CDE to apply for ESSA funding.     
 
Plan 
Prior to approval of the budget under LCFF, a draft of the LCAP and the budget must be 
presented for public hearing.  That occurred at the June 5, 2019 Board meeting.  Both the LCAP 
and the budget are to be adopted at a subsequent meeting.  There have been minimal changes 
made to the NWP LCAP from the Public Hearing version. 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum answers the required questions from the state.  This Federal 
Addendum must be approved by the board and submitted to the state by July 1, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
Expenditures outlined in the LCAP 
 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt the NWP LCAP and Federal Addendum as presented 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Motion: 
 
Moved by:  Second: 
Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent: 
FRANICEVIC       HINTON           MOHR               PRYOR  WAY 
 

513



Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)  
Federal Addendum Template 
 

LEA Name 
Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet Union School 
District         

 

CDS Code: 
49-70870-0106344         

 

Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 

 
 

For which ESSA programs apply to your LEA? 
 
Choose From: 
 
X TITLE I, PART A 

Improving Basic Programs Operated by  
State and Local Educational Agencies        

X TITLE II, PART A 
Supporting Effective Instruction        

X TITLE III, PART A  
Language Instruction for English Learners  
and Immigrant Students        

X TITLE IV, PART A 
Student Support and Academic  
Enrichment Grants        

 
(note: This list only includes ESSA programs with LEA plan 
requirements; not all ESSA programs.) 
 

 
 
 

In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 
 

514



 
Instructions 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs have the 
opportunity to meet the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the ESSA.  

The LCAP Federal Addendum Template must be completed and submitted to the California 
Department of Education (CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are encouraged to review the LCAP 
Federal Addendum annually with their LCAP, as ESSA funding should be considered in yearly strategic 
planning.  

The LEA must address the Strategy and Alignment prompts provided on the following page.  

Each provision for each program must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA.  

In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template.  

Under State Priority Alignment, state priority numbers are provided to demonstrate where an ESSA 
provision aligns with state priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in determining where ESSA provisions 
may already be addressed in the LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support the state 
priorities. 

The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA funds 
are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are 
encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic 
planning of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff 
will evaluate the LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. 
LEAs will be asked to clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 

California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in 
support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs with the opportunity 
to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved 
students. 

The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their federally-
funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  

LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning process supports 
continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement.  

Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for making 
the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local programs as 
described in the LEA’s LCAP. 

515



 

Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or initiatives funded with state 
funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of federal 
funds within the context of the LEA’s broader strategy reflected in the LCAP. 
 
Northwest Prep Charter School is a single school-site charter school.  We use federal funds to supplement and enhance 
local priority or initiatives funded with state funds by increasing or improving existing actions to support students in meeting 
the challenging state academic standards. 
 
Our rationale/evidence for the selected uses of federal funds is to use the funds to assist in the successful completion of 
actions and goals described in our LCAP to ensure the academic achievement of all students, especially our low-income 
students. 
 
Title I funds are used for intervention services, assessment and data management system, supplemental materials and 
adaptive software to assist students in obtaining skills specific to them needed to master the challenging state academic 
standards. 
 
Title II funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities that have a demonstrated result in improving teacher 
and principal quality. 
 
Title III funds are used to improve educational outcomes for our English Language Learners and support students in their 
attainment of the English Language.  The county office ELD coordinator, collaboration time to plan ELD instruction and 
professional development focused on intervention strategies all assist in supporting our English Language Learners. 
 
Title IV funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities to promote the effective use of technology and to 
offer and/or expand programs that will provide students with a well rounded education. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local funds and, 
as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 
 
Northwest Prep Charter School aligns its use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local fund and across 
different federal grant programs.  Our LCAP is used as our district strategic plan and so provides us with an overarching 
plan complete with metrics, stakeholder engagement, goals, actions, and analysis. 
 
This plan encompasses activities to support all students in the areas of : 
 
LCAP GOAL 1:  Culture: Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching:  Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
LCAP GOAL 3: Proficiency: All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary 
for future success in college and careers. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement 
 
Any challenges can usually fit under one of these goals and can be addressed with state, local or federal funds. 
 
 
 
 

516



 
 
ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those goals, for each of the 
LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the descriptions of the goals, actions, and services 
how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state 
accountability system. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic standards by: 
 

(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic needs of all students; 
(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school determines need help in 

meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 
(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen academic programs and 

improve school conditions for student learning. 
 
Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the 
classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of 
the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2). 
 
Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 
If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that coordinate and integrate: 
 

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional strategies, that may 
incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills attainment important to in-demand occupations 
or industries in the State; and 

(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry professionals and, if 
appropriate, academic credit. 

 

517



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Title II, Part A Activities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 
Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these activities will be 
aligned with challenging State academic standards. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching: Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes (Collaboration Time, Design Systems for Gathering 
Data, Professional Development (Instructional), Teachers Observe Other Classrooms, Units of Study (CCSS math and 
Next Gen Science), Common Assessments for writing and integrated projects, Opportunities to increase language 
development for EL's, Inform parents of EL Student Progress) 
 
 
 

 

518



TITLE III, PART A 
 
Parent, Family, and Community Engagement 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

3116(b)(3) 3, 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the education of English 
learners. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement (Parent Involvement/Volunteer Form, Events that Showcase Student 
Learning, Offer Virtual Meetings, Social Media, Update Websites, Translation, Encourage participation in surveys, Add 
blog page to website) and LCAP Goal 2 Teaching  Implement teaching practices that support students in the 
achievement of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes (Opportunities to increase language 
development for EL's, Inform parents of EL Student Progress) 
 
 

519



 
ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System 
 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System (CARS). 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Poverty Criteria 
 

ESSA SECTION(S) STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(4) N/A 
 
Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113. 
 
The poverty criteria used for Title 1, Part A School Allocations is the percent of students who qualify for Free & Reduced 
Price Meals (FRPM). 
 

 

520



 
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP  
 
For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities. Each provision 
for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the 
LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this addendum. 
 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged 
to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of all 
resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s 
responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to clarify 
insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) 
 
Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any 
disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
100% of the teachers at Northwest Prep Charter School are considered Highly Qualified. 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(B)(3) AND 1112(B)(7) 
 
Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d).  
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

521



(ESSA Section 1112(b)(3)-responsibilities under 1111(d)) 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 
(ESSA 1112(b)(7)) 
The strategies the LEA uses to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116, which includes 
how the LEA and its schools build capacity for parent and family engagement is demonstrated in the following ways: 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(a)). 
Northwest Prep Charter School has an adopted parent involvement policy which is described in BP 6020 and AR 6020. 
The Policy and Administrative Regulations provides details on how parents and families are engaged in the school 
community. The LEA parent and family engagement policy, was developed jointly with and agreed on with parents. The 
parent and family engagement policy is distributed to, parents and family members of participating children annually with 
the annual notification packet that is sent home at the beginning of the year. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(1)) 
Northwest Prep Charter School provides assistance to parents in understanding such topics as the challenging State 
academic standards, State and local academic assessments, the requirements of this part, and how to monitor a child’s 
progress and work with educators to improve the achievement of their children through parent conferences, back to school 
night, and school events.  Report cards are sent home quarterly so parents are able to identify how their students are 
doing. Other LCAP actions include: 4.4 Use social media across the district and at school sites to promote an 
understanding of educational program and successes, 4.2 c Illuminate parent portal and LCAP Infographics, 4.6 Outreach 
Worker. 4.5 Update District and School websites to create a more welcoming presence and accessible information. 
 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(2)) 
Northwest Prep Charter School provides materials and training to help parents work with their children to improve their 
children’s achievement, such as literacy training and using technology (including education about the harms of copyright 
piracy), as appropriate, to foster parental involvement by  providing parents with varying opportunities to engage in multiple 
areas of their students’ education and ensuring parents are invited to: parent conferences, Back to School Night, Open 
House. During these events parents engage in activities that assist in improving their children's achievement.  Other items 
include: 4.4 Use social media across the district and at school sites to promote an understanding of educational program 
and successes, 4.2 c Illuminate parent portal and LCAP Infographics, 4.6 Outreach Worker. 4.5 Update District and School 
websites to create a more welcoming presence and accessible information. 
 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(3)) 
Northwest Prep Charter School educates teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, and other 
school leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the value and utility of contributions of parents, and in 
how to reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents as equal partners, implement and coordinate parent 
programs, and build ties between parents and the school during early release days (professional development) and as 
needed throughout the year.  In addition, LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(4)) 
Northwest Prep Charter School coordinates and integrates parent involvement programs and activities with other Federal, 
State, and local programs, including public preschool programs, and conduct other activities, such as parent resource 
centers, that encourage and support parents in more fully participating in the education of their children through the use 
of community organizations of Sonoma County and Sonoma County Office of Education. We have increased hours 
outreach workers who can speak Spanish.  These additional hours will provide more frequent opportunities for parent 
communication in various venues.  We will continue to provide English classes for our community. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(5)) 
Northwest Prep Charter School ensures that information related to school and parent programs, meetings, and other 
activities is sent to the parents of participating children in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents 
can understand.  All notifications and information are sent home in English and Spanish. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(14). 
Northwest Prep Charter School provides other reasonable support for parental involvement activities as parents may 
request. Surveys are conducted annually and attendance at school events is good. Parents are willing to communicate 
needs at school events, with teachers, in the office, at meetings, and via emails. 
 

522



(ESSA Section 1116(f)) 
Northwest Prep Charter School provides opportunities for the informed participation of parents and family members 
(including parents and family members who have limited English proficiency, parents and family members with disabilities, 
and parents and family members of migratory children), including providing information and school reports in a format and, 
to the extent practicable, in a language such parents understand.  All report cards and information are sent home in both 
English and Spanish.  Surveys are sent home in English and Spanish.  Translation services are available during school 
meetings. 
 
Northwest Prep Charter School aligns the parent involvement items required in Section 1116 with the LCAP stakeholder 
engagement process. As part of the LCAP process we seek input from parents and families and we have an entire LCAP 
goal dedicated to parent involvement. The following items and results of the item demonstrates how we sought input from 
parents and how their input informed LCAP goals and actions and is stated in our CA Dashboard Local Indicator report for 
parent involvement: NWP utilizes both Bright Bytes and Quaglia My Voice parent (and other stakeholder) surveys, as well 
as survey monkey and google forms. Based upon parent/guardian feedback, NWP needs to focus on improving connection 
and communication with students and their families. NWP surveys indicated a need to continue to develop and implement 
new ways of reaching out and connecting with parents and families. NWP will continue to develop and offer parent 
education opportunities. NWP will also be expanding onsite family events, Principal Coffee talks, and student exhibitions 
to improve parent engagement. The LCAP infographics (presented at DELAC meetings and other parent workshops and 
events) were a success and parents reported feeling like they brought relevance and understanding to the LCAP at 
stakeholder engagement meetings. NWP uses a variety of communication platforms to engage parents, and provided 
additional support and resources to implement (and include ELs) parent education. NWP administration and teachers have 
expanded information available in Spanish, and a districtwide POUSD Parent English Class was held in the Spring. Many 
NWP families attended student performances, drove on field trips, and chaperoned dances. The NWP Fall 2017 Exhibition 
had over 250 people in attendance. NWP partnered with Bright Bytes and My Voice, two educational research 
organizations, to learn more about parents’ perspectives and experience(s) at our school. These surveys utilize parent 
perspectives on school culture and climate in order to utilize the input in deciding student needs, goals, services, and 
programs for the 18-19 school year. Survey participants also provided input on student needs related to school safety, 
school climate, and intervention support. Survey results were used to develop actions in NWPs LCAP Goals 2, 3, and 4. 
Based on feedback from stakeholder groups, NWP is utilizing LCFF funds to improve student achievement and meet the 
needs of all students. The overall effectiveness of NWP’s goal 4 is evidenced by the participation in parent events and 
student learning activities. Survey results indicated that parents were better able to access information on school events 
and to gain a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their child's education. Parents felt an increased sense 
of connection and engagement with the school community. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under sections 1114 and 1115 and, 
where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children living in local institutions for neglected or 
delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent children in community day school programs. 
 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, paraprofessionals, and specialized 
instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted assistance school program under Section 1115, will identify 
the eligible children most in need of services under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Our single school district operates as a schooolwide program. 
 
 

 
Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 
 
Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided with funds reserved 
under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success of homeless children and youths, in 

523



coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States 
Code 11301 et seq.). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Northwest Prep Charter School ensures that homeless students have access to the same free and appropriate public 
education provided to other students within the district. The district shall provide homeless students with access to 
education and other services necessary for these students to meet the same challenging academic standards as other 
students. Detailed description of processes and procedures for Education for Homeless Children can be found in BP 
6173, AR6173, E6173. The services we provide homeless children and youths are the following: 
 
Northwest Prep Charter School hired a Director of Student Services to include duties that address providing needs for 
homeless students.  The Director or Student Services works closely with Sonoma County Office of Education to identify 
and provide resources as needed.  During the 2017-2018 school year due to the fires the homeless greatly increased as 
did services available.  The county at large through Sonoma County Office of Education (SCOE) provided resources and 
timely information to address the needs of all families. 
 
The services provided are used to support the (1) enrollment, (2) attendance, and (3) success of homeless children and 
youths, in coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
Student Transitions 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8), 1112(b)(10), and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under this part with early 
childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including plans for the transition of participants in 
such programs to local elementary school programs. 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for students from middle 
grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education including: 

(A) coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners; and 
(B) increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment opportunities, or career 

counseling to identify student interests and skills. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) Northwest Prep Charter School coordinates with the following institutions of higher education, employers, and other 
local partners: Santa Rosa Junior College, Sonoma State University, Community Action Partnership, and Sonoma 
County Office of Education to facilitate effective transitions from high school to post-secondary education.   Northwest 
Prep Charter School works with its charter schools and local high schools to facilitate effective transitions from middle 
grades to high school.  Parent meetings are held so that parents and students can learn about the programs offered at 
each school and district so they can make the most appropriate choice for their child/ren. 
 
(B) Northwest Prep Charter School increases student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent 
enrollment opportunities, or career counseling to identify student interests and skills by providing opportunities for dual 
enrollment courses, providing counseling support for students to learn about their interests, and providing AP courses to 
obtain college credit in a high school course. 
 
 
 
 

 
Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 
Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this part, and that the LEA 
determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will: 

524



 
(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an opportunity to develop 

digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) NA 
(B) As a district we assist in developing effective school library program: LCAP Action 3.3 Provide instruction to students 
in developing literacy, media literacy, research and digital citizenship skills and providing devices (computers, 
chromebooks, and tablets) for classroom use. 
 
 
 
 
 

525



 
TITLE I, PART D 
 
Description of Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(1) 
 
Provide a description of the program to be assisted [by Title I, Part D]. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Formal Agreements 
ESSA SECTION 1423(2) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the LEA and correctional 
facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice system, including such 
facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Comparable Education Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(3) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how participating schools will coordinate with facilities working with delinquent 
children and youth to ensure that such children and youth are participating in an education program comparable to one 
operating in the local school such youth would attend. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Successful Transitions 
ESSA SECTION 1423(4) 
 
Provide a description of the program operated by participating schools to facilitate the successful transition of children and 
youth returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, the types of services that such schools will provide such 
children and youth and other at-risk children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Educational Needs 
ESSA SECTION 1423(5) 
 
Provide a description of the characteristics (including learning difficulties, substance abuse problems, and other special 
needs) of the children and youth who will be returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, other at-risk children 
and youth expected to be served by the program, and a description of how the school will coordinate existing educational 
programs to meet the unique educational needs of such children and youth. 

526



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Social, Health, and Other Services 
ESSA SECTION 1423(6) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will coordinate with existing social, health, and other services to meet 
the needs of students returning from correctional facilities, at-risk children or youth, and other participating children or youth, 
including prenatal health care and nutrition services related to the health of the parent and the child or youth, parenting and 
child development classes, child care, targeted reentry and outreach programs, referrals to community resources, and 
scheduling flexibility. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships 
ESSA SECTION 1423(7) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of any partnerships with institutions of higher education or local businesses to facilitate 
postsecondary and workforce success for children and youth returning from correctional facilities, such as through 
participation in credit-bearing coursework while in secondary school, enrollment in postsecondary education, participation 
in career and technical education programming, and mentoring services for participating students. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Involvement 
ESSA SECTION 1423(8) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the 
 

(A) LEA; and  
(B) correctional facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice 

system, including such facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Program Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(9–10) 
 
Provide a description of how the program under this subpart will be coordinated with other Federal, State, and local 
programs, such as programs under title I of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act and career and technical 
education programs serving at-risk children and youth. 
 
Include how the program will be coordinated with programs operated under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 
Act of 1974 and other comparable programs, if applicable. 

527



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Probation Officer Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(11) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will work with probation officers to assist in meeting the needs of 
children and youth returning from correctional facilities. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Individualized Education Program Awareness 
ESSA SECTION 1423(12) 
 
Provide a description of the efforts participating schools will make to ensure correctional facilities working with children and 
youth are aware of a child’s or youth’s existing individualized education program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Alternative Placements 
ESSA SECTIONS 1423(13) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of the steps participating schools will take to find alternative placements for children 
and youth interested in continuing their education but unable to participate in a traditional public school program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

528



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 
 
Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as induction for teachers, 
principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity of teachers and opportunities to develop 
meaningful teacher leadership. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

529



Northwest Prep Charter School has an organized delivery of professional learning for all certificated staff. 
 
Principals: 
Professional growth and improvement are provided to the principal through the following process: at the beginning of their 
career as a principal they are mentored and coached until they are ready to take on more leadership opportunities.  As 
principals progress they are supported based on their individual needs. As principals become more seasoned it is expected 
that they take on more and more responsibility in ensuring academic success for all students. Principals utilize services 
from the Sonoma County Office of Education and fellow principals in the county. Growth and improvement are measured 
by staff, teacher and parent survey results, California Student Dashboard Results, number of LCAP metrics and actions 
completed. 
 
Teachers: 
Professional growth and improvement are provided to teachers during beginning of the year professional development, 
ongoing early release days, County Office Workshops, and Specialists in the Field. At the beginning of their career as a 
teacher they are supported through the induction program at the county office. Teachers are then supported as needed 
throughout their career depending on each teachers individual needs, strengths and growth areas.  Teachers often support 
each other and bounce ideas off each other in informal meetings.  We provide professional development to all teachers: 
LCAP Action 2.1 Establish regular schedule for grade level, cross grade level collaboration (1-2x per month during school 
day, after school) for teachers to review student work, develop rubrics, plan instruction and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. Provide Professional Development/Teacher Planning Days: embedded in regular annual 
calendar; LCAP Action: 2.2 Provide time for teachers to implement systems for gathering data that can be shared externally 
to demonstrate student achievement - time embedded in regular school year calendar, LCAP Action: 2.3 Provide formal 
and informal professional learning opportunities focused on instructional practices aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes (e.g., PBL, Next Generation Science Standards, technology and math). including meeting WASC and other 
accreditation requirements - Time embedded in regular school calendar; LCAP Action 2.4 Provide opportunities for 
teachers to observe in other classrooms and engage in collaborative dialog around professional practices..  Growth and 
improvement for teachers are measured by state assessment data, benchmark data, student surveys. Identification of 
growth and improvement areas as a school are measured by California School Dashboard results. LCAP Action 2.6 
Continue development of common assessments for writing and integrated projects. Teachers are provided professional 
learning opportunities to develop and support instructional practices aligned with the District Student Outcomes and 
California Content Standards for English Language Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project Based Learning, and Next 
Generation Science Standards. There is an instructional coach and technology integration coach to support teachers.  
Santa Rosa City Schools network and Sonoma County Office of Education also provide support. 
 
School Leaders: 
As a small school district we do not have any additional school leaders, however, many experienced teachers serve various 
roles to assist with special projects or initiatives that help to improve student learning. 
 
The systems in place promote professional growth and ensure improvement.  We measure the success of our program by 
utilizing the Annual Update in the LCAP and Dashboard data. We review our LCAP student outcome data with all 
stakeholders (parents, students, teachers, staff, leadership, community members) as part of the Annual Update process.  
This provides an effective way in discussing our successes and growth areas as a school community and determining any 
necessary actions to be added for the following year.  As part of the Local Indicator: Implementation of the Standards 
Dashboard requirement we report annually on teachers progress in 1) providing professional learning for teaching to the 
recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks 2) making instructional materials that are aligned to 
the recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks, 3) implementing policies or programs to support 
staff in identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walk throughs, 
teacher pairing) for the following content areas: English Language Arts, Mathematics, History-Social Studies, English 
Language Development, Next Generation Science Standards.  In addition, we report on implementing each of the following 
academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for all students (Career Technical Education, Physical 
Education Model Content Standards, World Language, Health Education Content Standards, Visual and Performing Arts  
and we report on success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school administrators during the prior 
school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year): Identifying the professional learning needs of groups 
of teachers or staff as a whole, Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers, providing support for 
teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered. As a school community understand the importance of continuous 
improvement within these systems and are focused on professional growth and improvement. 
 
 
 
 

530



 
Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are implementing 
comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and improvement activities under Section 1111(d) 
and have the highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 

 
Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually 
update and improve activities supported under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The sources of data our district uses to monitors and evaluate Title II, Part A activities is: California School Dashboard 
data (including Local Indicator reports), survey results from professional development opportunities, student achievement 
data (benchmark),  STAR data, Teacher Survey data (including CCSS Implementation questions), ELPAC data, and 
student survey results.  This data is analyzed annually as part of the planning process for the following year.  Benchmark 
data and STAR Data is analyzed throughout the year to inform instruction. In addition to above, Northwest Prep Charter 
School has purchased Illuminate in order to quickly and easily analyze student data on a regular basis during professional 
learning communities. 
 
Northwest Prep Charter School meaningfully consults with all stakeholders (teachers, principals and other school leaders, 
paraprofessionals, specialized instructional support personnel,  parents, community partners, organizations) to update and 
improve Title II, Part-A funded activities. This is completed through annual survey data, monthly staff meetings, monthly 
leadership meetings and annually (or as needed) parent meetings.  After compiling information from all stakeholder group 
we determine what are common needs expressed throughout stakeholders and then needs based on each stakeholder 
group. Northwest Prep Charter School meaningfully consults with these stakeholders in the following frequency: teachers-
monthly, principals and other school leaders-monthly, paraprofessionals-quarterly, specialized instructional support 
personnel-quarterly, parents-surveys are annually/events are about 4 times per year, community partners-yearly, 
organizations-as needed/at least yearly) 
 
Our Sonoma County Office of Education also provides valuable resources, support and training to our school districts in 
the county.   By utilizing Sonoma County Office of Education resources we are able to quickly understand what various 
schools in the county are doing and use those ideas and success to improve our school community. Northwest Prep 
Charter School utilizes shortened Wednesdays for collaboration efforts that will be focused on student achievement, setting 
goals for students, and building capacity of staff. 
 
 
 
 

 

531



 
TITLE III, PART A 
 
Title III Professional Development 
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom teachers, principals and other 
school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The following actions from LCAP describe how our LEA effectively assists English Learners: 
 
2.7 Develop and encourage more opportunities for EL students to verbally express themselves in English.  

• create original videos, narrate and act in project videos, participate in stage performance, produce podcasts, 
host Community Meetings, utilize video interactive apps such as Skype, act as school tour guides, PR 
presentations, participate in job shadows, participate in professional internships, participate in peer tutoring 
program (NWP and POUSD elementary sites), offer a Theater/Improv/Performance Club after school 

2.8 Monitor progress of and communicate with parents of EL student progress and programs 
 
These professional development opportunities are designed to improve the instruction and assessment of English learners; 
enhance the ability of such teachers, principals, and other school leaders to understand and implement curricula, 
assessment practices and measures, and instructional strategies for English learners. They are also effective in increasing 
children's English language proficiency or substantially increasing the subject matter knowledge, teaching knowledge, and 
teaching skills of such teachers; and are of sufficient intensity and duration (which shall not include activities such as one-
day or short-term workshops and conferences) to have a positive and lasting impact on the teachers' performance in the 
classroom. 
 
 
 
 
Enhanced Instructional Opportunities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Northwest Prep will provide professional learning in integrated English Language Development strategies incorporating 
the Next Generation Science Standards.  We also provide supplemental activities that provide enhanced instructional 
opportunities for immigrant children and youth: Summer programs, tutorials, supplemental staff, family literacy services, 
family outreach, mentoring, . In determining the best use of funds we consult with stakeholders and use funds strategically 
with other funding streams to support Title III immigrant activities. 
 
 

 
Title III Programs and Activities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(1) 
 
Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, proposed to be 
developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English learners increase their English 
language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic standards. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

532



Our goal is to increase the effectiveness of our programs and our professional learning is focused on differentiation and 
personalized learning.  The major focus is language learner strategies and best practices.  Northwest Prep  develops, 
implements, and administers effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, to 
help English learners increase English language proficiency and meet the challenging state academic standards by 
providing additional staff, working with SCOE, tutorial, supplemental curricular materials. We determine effectiveness by 
evaluating ELPAC data, CA Dashboard data specific to EL students, and RFEP data. 
 
 

 
English Proficiency and Academic Achievement 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(2)(A-B) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving funds under Subpart 
1 assist English learners in: 
 

(C) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment under Section 
1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and 

(D) meeting the challenging State academic standards. 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
We have streamlined our areas of focus, have planned a thorough professional learning plan including differentiating for 
our English learners, and will provide time for teachers to collaborate and focus on student goals.  We believe this will 
increase student achievement for all students including our English learners.  The details of how we ensure our school 
assists English learners in achieving English proficiency and meeting the challenging state academic standards can be 
found in our EL Master Plan. 
 
 

 

533



 
TITLE IV, PART A 
 
Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs 
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1) 
 
Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out under Subpart 1, 
including a description of: 
 

(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization, community-based 
organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of success in implementing activities under 
this subpart;  

(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education under Section 4107;  
(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy students under Section 

4108; 
(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of technology in schools 

under Section 4109; and 
(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the LEA, or consortium of 

such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the activities carried out under this section based on 
such objectives and outcomes. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Title IV, Part A funds will support the effective use of technology through professional development opportunities and will 
expand and/or create programs in the areas of art and leadership,  to support a well-rounded education for all of our 
students. 
 
 
 
 

534



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Northwest Prep Charter School
CDS Code: 49-70870-01-06344
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Year: 2019-20
LEA contact information: Felicia Koha, CBO (707) 522-3008 fkoha@pousd.org

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2019-20 LCAP Year

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Northwest Prep Charter School expects to receive in 
the coming year from all sources.

The total revenue projected for Northwest Prep Charter School is $1,089,425.00, of which $1,002,270.00 
is Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $54,240.00 is other state funds, $8,500.00 is local funds, and 
$24,415.00 is federal funds. Of the $1,002,270.00 in LCFF Funds, $99,422.00 is generated based on the 
enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students).

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Acccountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

LCFF supplemental & 
concentration grants , 

$99,422 , 9%

All Other LCFF funds, 
$902,848 , 83%

All other state funds, 
$54,240 , 5%

All local funds, 
$8,500 , 1%

All federal funds, $24,415 , 
2%

Total LCFF funds, 
$1,002,270 , 92%

Projected Revenue by Fund Source

 Page 1 of 3535



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Northwest Prep Charter School plans to spend for 
2019-20. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

Northwest Prep Charter School plans to spend $1,101,207.00 for the 2019-20 school year. Of that 
amount, $608,683.00 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $492,524.00 is not included in the LCAP. 
The budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 

The total expenditures not included in the LCAP amount include such costs as overhead (i.e. utilitites, 
maintenance, legal costs, insurance, etc.), contributions, and mandatory contributions.

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2019-20

In 2019-20, Northwest Prep Charter School is projecting it will receive $99,422.00 based on the 
enrollment of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Northwest Prep Charter School 
must demonstrate the planned actions and services will increase or improve services for high needs 
students compared to the services all students receive in proportion to the increased funding it receives 
for high needs students. In the LCAP, Northwest Prep Charter School plans to spend $205,499.00 on 
actions to meet this requirement.

Total Budgeted General 
Fund Expenditures

$1,101,207 

Total Budgeted 
Expenditures in LCAP

$608,683 

$ 0

$ 200,000

$ 400,000

$ 600,000

$ 800,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 1,200,000

Budgeted Expenditures

 Page 2 of 3536



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2018-19

This chart compares what Northwest Prep Charter School budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and 
services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Northwest 

Prep Charter School estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or 
improving services for high needs students in the current year.

In 2018-19, Northwest Prep Charter School's LCAP budgeted $77,468.00 for planned actions to increase 
or improve services for high needs students. Northwest Prep Charter School estimates that it will actually 
spend $186,712.00 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2018-19.

$186,712 

$77,468 

$ 0 $ 50,000 $ 100,000 $ 150,000 $ 200,000

Current Year Expenditures: Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students

Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs
Students in the LCAP

Estimated Actual Expenditures for High
Needs Students in LCAP

 Page 3 of 3537



Page 1 of 143

 
LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 

 

            2019-20    

 

 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

California School Dashboard: Essential data to support completion of 
this LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template. 

 
LEA Name 

Northwest Prep-Piner-Olivet 
Union School District            

Contact Name and Title 

Kim Kern            
Principal 

Email and Phone 

kkern@pousd.org            
707-522-3320 

 
 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

Northwest Prep and the Piner-Olivet Union School District (POUSD) were seriously impacted by the 
Northern California wildfires in 2017. The Tubbs Fire destroyed over 5,500 structures and Coffey 
Park, a neighborhood directly across the street from our district office (one of the most densely 
populated areas in Santa Rosa affected by the fire). About 1,500 homes were destroyed in the small 
neighborhood. Many of our students and staff were directly impacted by the fires. In addition, NWP 
housed Schaefer Elementary's 4, 5, and 6th grades on our campus for several months following the 
fires. There were many challenges and successes for our school community during and after this 
natural disaster. 
 
Northwest Prep Charter School (NWP) is a Project-Based public charter school in the Piner-Olivet 
Union School District in Santa Rosa, California. The school focuses on providing a personalized and 
meaningful education for up to 127 students in grades 7-12 by using an integrated, multi-disciplinary 
Project-Based Program of Inquiry. Thirteen percent of our students are English Learners. 16% of our 
students are English learners and 40% are socioeconomically disadvantaged.  Approximately 53% 
of our students are classified as unduplicated high-need students. Much effort is given at NWP to 
support effective instructional practices which provide our students with a child-centered, standards-

538

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/reports/49708700106344/2018


Page 2 of 143

based education that also incorporates our seven district student outcomes of Personal Integrity, 
Productive Collaboration, Critical and Creative Thinking, Effective Communication, Reflective 
Learning, Citizenship and Global Responsibility, and Resiliency and Drive. 
 
The school's classroom instruction is aligned with California Common Core and English Language 
Development standards and assessments. With open communication between the school and the 
community, strong support from parents, and clearly-defined educational goals, we believe that all 
children will have the opportunity to meet their full potential and be productive members of society. 
NWP employs more than 14 staff members, including 9 certificated and 5 classified employees, plus 
substitutes and others. NWP provides its employees with extensive professional development 
opportunities. The staff at Northwest Prep is dedicated to empowering each student to become an 
active, independent, self-actualized individual who is able to take charge of their personal and 
academic growth, and effectively pursue their own interests and ambitions after high school. As with 
many small schools, the entire staff at Northwest Prep serve as the Leadership Team, and as such, 
carefully monitor the progress of each student. In order to best serve the students at Northwest 
Prep, Northwest Prep’s students, staff, and parents are active participants in a truly collective 
endeavor focused on instilling in students a desire to develop successful habits of mind, and an 
appreciation for the importance of continuing education. The Northwest Prep staff works hard to 
develop strong positive relationships and a culture of appreciation, trust, and respect within the 
entire school community. Northwest Prep’s Principal, with input from staff, students, stakeholders 
and community members, the Superintendent, and the Governing School Board have implemented 
a new 6-year action plan based on our recent successful WASC accreditation (awarded in Spring 
2016). 
 
         

 

LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

The Northwest Prep LCAP contains both continuing and new plans and actions. From the study of 
the surveys, the LCFF dashboard, financial documents, stakeholder meetings, and other measures, 
several trends were identified. Trends indicating our strengths include:  

• Students and staff like coming to school and feel safe at school. 
• Parents feel that staff care about their children. 
• Parents feel that the communication between home and school is adequate and 

appreciate all the information we provide in Spanish. 
• Staff value the support they get from each other. 
• Whether it is from our administrator, teachers, other classified staff, parents, or volunteers; 

support from everyone is valued. 
• Teachers value collaboration time and dedicate time to both professional development, 

curriculum/project design, and articulation. 
• Staff, students, and parents are pleased with our implementation of technology – every 

student has the opportunity to integrate technology into their learning every day. 

The are some challenges for Northwest Prep, however. Trends indicating our opportunities for 
improvement include: Student subgroups are not achieving academically as compared to their 
peers. As NWP continues to implement our 6-year WASC action plan in all content areas - 
increased collaboration, improved PBL design, and CCSS scope and sequence activities will 
support improved academic achievement. NWP will continue to strengthen relationships between 
all stakeholders through honesty, transparency, and communication. Parents would like continued 
standardization of procedures and practices. All staff would like more opportunities to learn new 

539



Page 3 of 143

skills and strategies specific to their roles and responsibilities. Behavior and mental health support 
and training is still needed. To achieve this continuous improvement for our students and 
stakeholders, NWP will focus on four overall goals: 

 Goal 1 - Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
 Goal 2 - Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of 

California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 Goal 3 - All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for 

future success in college and careers. 
 Goal 4 - Improve parent engagement. 

Some highlights of NWP's Actions/Services within these goals include (but are not limited to): 
 All school staff will continue to receive training and use the most effective research and 

evidence-based teaching strategies in their practice. 
 All staff will continue to receive knowledge and skills training during professional 

development and collaborative planning and curricular design sessions. 
 NWP will continue to provide professional development to support core instruction, 

improve subgroup performance, and implement designated and integrated ELD instruction 
- and to identify and implement a core set of practices, as well as enhance ELD and 
supports and interventions for Special Education (and all students). 

 NWP will implement a transition from a Response to Intervention (RtI) Framework to a 
Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) comprehensive system of differentiated supports 
that includes evidence-based instruction, universal screening, progress monitoring, 
formative assessment, research-based interventions matched to student needs, and 
educational decision-making using student outcome data. 

 NWP will utilize a positive discipline approach and work diligently to ensure students and 
teachers are engaged and present at school each day. 

 Staff, parents, and students will continue to participate annually in culture and climate 
surveys and strategic planning. 

 Increased Counselor services will be added to support all stakeholders. 
 A full-time POUSD districtwide Director of Student Services position (which NWP pays a 

share of) will be implemented to address the multiple levels of need in the area of Special 
Education. 

 

Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
California School Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or 
other information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build 
upon that success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements 
in services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
We have a lot to be proud of this year, most notably: 
 
New systems and policies for attendance and truancy developed and implemented 

 Charter successfully renewed 
 Safety Plan updated 
 Structured Student Leadership Team established 
 Envision grant for 45+ hours of PBL training and support 
 Course catalog and A-G updates, new curricular adoptions 

540



Page 4 of 143

 New Acellus curriculum offerings (UC A-G, credit recovery, AP) 
 Outreach plan for recruitment/marketing 
 Informational newsletter and parent communications/feedback 
 Campus revitalization and tech upgrades, new Science lab 
 2nd year of StopIt anonymous bully reporting (and prevention) system 
 Successful WASC mid-cycle accreditation report and visit 

On the Dashboard Performance indicators we did not have any green or blue performance colors, 
however, our community suffered a natural disaster during the 17-18 school year which impacted 
the dashboard results. We are optimistic for the 2018-2019 Dashboard results which will be released 
December 2019. 
 
Highlights from each of our LCAP goals are the following: 
 
Goal 1: Culture 

 New quad design and upgrades 
 Move-It Program 
 Academic Exhibitions 
 Field Trips 
 Crossroads Program 
 Elective/Enrichment 
 Seed to Table/Gardening 
 Fine Art/Design 
 Woodshop 
 STEAM 
 Marine Science 
 Hiking 
 Dance 

I-nternship Program 
 
Goal 2: Teaching 

 Providing staff more time to plan and support continued improvement of PBL delivery and 
student portfolio defenses. 

 Providing staff more time to design and improve how NWP will provide evidence of student 
achievement (ie - rubrics and portfolio defenses) 

Goal 3: Proficiency 
 PBL focus 
 Our continued work on consistent tiers of support 
 NWP Crossroads Classes 

Goal 4: Parent Involvement 
 Exhibitions--over 200 parents and community members in attendance at each one, plus an 

additional spring student showcase exhibition (where over 250 students from other schools 
attended) 

 Parent meetings/workshops 
 Student Community meetings 

 

541



Page 5 of 143

Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for 
which overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a 
“Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has 
determined need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local 
indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for 
improvement? 
 
Greatest Needs 
In the CDE’s LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, LEA or school sites receive a performance level based upon 
how every student group (for which there is data for 30 or more students in the group) performs on 
each applicable state indicator. The performance levels for Mathematics or English Language Arts 
show how far the average student is below (or exceeding) the Level 3 threshold for each indicator. It 
should be noted that the data reflected on the current dashboard is from the 2017-2018 school year, 
which is the school year when the devastating fires impacted our community significantly.  
 
The following indicators received an "orange" performance level: 

 Chronic Absenteeism (maintained at around 11%) 
 Suspension Rate (increased 2.3%) 
 English Language Arts (declined 4 points) 
 Mathematics (declined 28 points) 

Due to the small number of students, we did not receive any performance color for:  
 Graduation Rate 
 College and Career Coordinator 

We anticipate an improvement in the results for the 2018-2019 school year, however, our school 
community is still healing and we were impacted by school closures due to smoke and in addition 
there was significant flooding in the area. The following steps are being taking to address these 
areas of improvement: 
 
Chronic Absenteeism/Suspension Rate:  

 Continue with all items in Goal 1: Create a positive, learning focused environment and 
culture for all students in order to improve student engagement and attendance. 

English Language Arts/Mathematics 

 Continue with all items in Goal 2: Implement teaching practices that support students in the 
achievement of California Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes, 
and Goal 3: All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary 
for future success in college and careers. 

The following is a list of challenges and impact on LCAP and Actions: 
 
Goal 2: Teaching 

 Challenges: Transition time of curricular adjustments, New SIS system 

542



Page 6 of 143

 Planned Improvements: Professional Learning, Opportunities to differentiate and support 
different subgroups, Opportunities to increase language development for EL's, Inform 
parents of EL Student Progress 

Goal 3: Proficiency 

 Challenges: Significant decrease in math scores, Decrease in Aerobic and Body 
Composition percentages, During the 17-18 school year there was no middle school math 
teacher. We are excited to have an great middle school math teacher this year! 

 Planned Improvements: Project-Based Learning, Hired a new middle math teacher, New 
curriculum in Mathematics, Science and Social Systems 

Goal 4: Parent Involvement 

 Challenges: Last year was a tough year for our local community, Attendance 

 Planned Improvements: Develop systemic ways to increase parent involvement and 
feedback, Analyze dashboard data to set academic goals 

 
 
Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 
Performance Gaps 
Due to the small number of students, a majority of indicators do not have a performance colors for 
subgroups so there are no student groups that were two or more performance levels below the "all 
student" performance. 
 

543



Page 7 of 143

Suspension rate does provide a performance color for subgroups, however since "all students" are 
at an orange level, there are no students who are two or more performance levels below the "all 
student" performance. White students are at the "red level" with a suspension rate of 17.4% and 
increase of 5.2%. The rate for the current year has dropped considerably (less than 8%) - in 2018, 
we had two (white male) SED students in particular with who disproportionately (and extremely) 
impacted our suspension rates - for 2019 all of our suspension rate data (both column and 
subgroups) will likely be green. 
 
 

 
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every 
Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts. 
 
Schools Identified 
Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 

NA 

 

544



Page 8 of 143

Support for Identified Schools 
Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level 
needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be 
addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

NA 

 
Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to 
support student and school improvement. 

NA 

 

545



Page 9 of 143

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
My Voice Student Survey data: 
 
% of students feel that school is a welcoming and friendly place. 
% of students say they are encouraged to practice good citizenship at 
school. 
% of students feel accepted for who they are at school 
% of students feel that teachers respect students 
% of students feel adults at the school listen to student suggestions and 
allow for free expression of ideas 
% of students feel teachers believe in me and want me to be successful 
% of students feel teachers recognize students who are kind and helpful 
% of students say they want to do their best at school 
% of students believe that they will be successful 
 
        

 My Voice Student Survey data: 
 
83% of students feel that school is a welcoming and friendly place. 
NA % of students feel accepted for who they are at school (not included in 
survey) 
86 % of students feel that teachers respect students 
68% of students feel adults at the school listen to student suggestions 
79% of students feel teachers believe in me and want me to be successful 
68% of students say they want to do their best at school 
79% of students believe that they will be successful 
 
Parent survey 
100% of parents feel students say they are encouraged to practice good 
citizenship at school. 
100% of parents feel students feel teachers recognize students who are kind 
and helpful 
 
Additional relevant datapoints: 
*Attendance Rate: 92.3% 
*Truancy Rate 8% 

546



Page 10 of 143

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
 
2018 My Voice Survey of Northwest Prep students resulted in the following 
data increase (or maintenance): 
 
80% of students feel that school is a welcoming and friendly place. 
90% of students say they are encouraged to practice good citizenship at 
school. 
85% of students feel accepted for who they are at school 
87% of students feel that teachers respect students 
83% of students feel adults at the school listen to student suggestions and 
allow for free expression of ideas 
85% of students feel teachers believe in me and want me to be successful 
90% of students feel teachers recognize students who are kind and helpful 
95% of students say they want to do their best at school 
90% of students believe that they will be successful 
 
        

*Expulsion Rate: 0% 
*FIT Survey: Exemplary 
*Williams Complaints: 0 
*Appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers:100% 
*Chronic Absenteeism: 11.4% 
*Suspension Rate: 8.8% 
*80% (12/15) participated in an internship (11th and 12th grade) 
 
 

547



Page 11 of 143

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their 
school community. 
 
The Spring 2017 My Voice Survey of Northwest Prep 7, 8, and 10th grade 
students resulted in the following data (9, 11, & 12th grade data was not 
counted because less than 10 from each group were surveyed): 
 
73% of students feel that school is a welcoming and friendly place. 
85.1% of students say they are encouraged to practice good citizenship at 
school. 
78% of students feel accepted for who they are at school 
79% of students feel that teachers respect students 
73% of students feel adults at the school listen to student suggestions and 
allow for free expression of ideas 
75% of students feel teachers believe in me and want me to be successful 
80.9% of students feel teachers recognize students who are kind and helpful 
91% of students say they want to do their best at school 
79.4% of students believe that they will be successful 
 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.1 Continue Implementation of 
social-emotional and academic 
support by School Counselor via 
Counseling meetings with students 
and Crossroads classes. 
 

 1.1 Continued Implementation of 
social-emotional and academic 
support by School Counselor via 
Counseling meetings with students 
and Crossroads classes. 

 1.1 Highly qualified counselor 
appropriately assigned - .40 FTE                                         
(3110-1000-1200-SG01) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $45,284  

 1.1 Highly qualified counselor 
appropriately assigned - .40 FTE                                         
(1110-3110-1000-1200-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$45,061 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
 

Actual  
 

Budgeted  
 

Estimated Actual  
548



Page 12 of 143

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
1.2 Create an environment in 
which it is expected that every 
child can and will learn and provide 
whatever is necessary to support 
that vision. 
 

 1.2 Created an environment in 
which it is expected that every 
child can and will learn and provide 
whatever is necessary to support 
that vision. 

 1.2.a IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) 
- across curricular teaching team 
- Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned (1110-
1000-1100) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $326,124  

 1.2.a IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) 
- across curricular teaching team 
- Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned (1110-
1000-1100) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $327,984 

1.2.b IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) 
- across curricular teaching team 
- Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 
students per teacher (1110-1000-
1100-SG01) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $75,610  

 1.2.b IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) 
- across curricular teaching team 
- Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 
students per teacher (1110-1000-
1100-SG01) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $78,128 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.3 Provide in school and after 
school engagement activities such 
as interest based electives, sports, 
arts, clubs, etc. 
 

 1.3 Provided in school and after 
school engagement activities such 
as interest based electives, sports, 
arts, clubs, etc. 

 1.3 Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities) (1110-1000-
1130-SG01) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $4,810  

 1.3 Teacher hourly rate (after 
school activities) (1110-1000-
1130-SG01) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $4,810 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.4 Facilitate performances, 
exhibitions, and publication 
opportunities for students to 
express their creative endeavors 
with peers, parents and the 
community. 
 

 1.4 Facilitated performances, 
exhibitions, and publication 
opportunities for students to 
express their creative endeavors 
with peers, parents and the 
community. 

 1.4 No additional costs 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2  

 1.4 No additional costs 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2 

Action 5 
549



Page 13 of 143

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.5 Communicate high 
expectations through school 
culture, language and symbols. 
 

 1.5 Communicated high 
expectations through school 
culture, language and symbols. 

 1.5 No additional costs 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2  

 1.5 No additional costs 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.6 Provide students with 
leadership opportunities such as 
peer tutoring and internships 
 

 1.6 Provided students with 
leadership opportunities such as 
peer tutoring and internships 

 1.6.a School Course Counselor - 
.10 FTE  (1110-3110-1200-SG01)  
(Part of .40 FTE total for School 
Counselor) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.1  

 1.6.a School Course Counselor - 
.10 FTE  (1110-3110-1200-SG01)  
(Part of .40 FTE total for School 
Counselor) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.1 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.7 Provide school facilities that 
support student engagement and 
positive school culture. 
 

 1.7 Provided school facilities that 
support student engagement and 
positive school culture. 

 1.7.a Maintain school facilities 
and grounds (8110-
5830/5630/4380) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $8,000  

 1.7.a Maintain school facilities 
and grounds (8110-
5830/5630/4380) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $13,820 

1.7.b Custodial Staff (8210-2200) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base 41,054  

 1.7.b Custodial Staff (8210-2200) 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base 40,067 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.8 Design classroom space and 
facilities to promote productive 
collaboration, creative expression 
and project-based learning - MP 

 1.8 Designed classroom space 
and facilities to promote productive 
collaboration, creative expression 
and project-based learning - MP 

 1.8 Classroom furniture and 
equipment (1110-1000-4310-
BG01) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $10,000  

 1.8 Classroom furniture and 
equipment (1110-1000-4310-
BG01) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $10,000 

550



Page 14 of 143

Room & Library - Add projectors 
and sound equipment 
 

Room & Library - Add projectors 
and sound equipment 

Action 9 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.9 Increase enrollment by doing 
outreach and marketing 
presentations at District middle and  
elementary schools. 
 

 1.9 Increased enrollment by doing 
outreach and marketing 
presentations at District middle 
and  elementary schools. 

 1.9 Principal time-.10 FTE (1110-
2700-1300) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $16,171  

 1.9 Principal time-.10 FTE (1110-
2700-1300) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $16,171 

Action 10 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.10 Arrange for 2 team building 
and collaboration field trips 
 

 1.10 Arranged for 2 team building 
and collaboration field trips 

 1.10 Transportation costs of 
school buses. (1110-1000-5806-
FT01) 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Base $500  

 1.10 Transportation costs of 
school buses. (1110-1000-5806-
FT01) 5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 
Base $500 

Action 11 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.11 -Create original videos 
 Narrate and act in project 

videos 
 Participate in stage 

performance/Theater/Imp
rov Club 

 Produce podcasts 
 Host Community 

Meetings 
 Utilize video interactive 

apps such as Skype 
 Act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 

 1.11 -Created original videos 
 Narrate and act in project 

videos 
 Participate in stage 

performance/Theater/Im
prov Club 

 Produce podcasts 
 Host Community 

Meetings 
 Utilize video interactive 

apps such as Skype 
 Act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 

 1.11.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a  

 1.11.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a 

1.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small 
class sizes - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b  

 1.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small 
class sizes - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b 

551



Page 15 of 143

 Participate in job 
shadows 

 Participate in professional 
internships 

 Participate in peer 
tutoring program (NWP 
and POUSD elementary 
sites) 

 

 Participate in job 
shadows 

 Participate in professional 
internships 

 Participate in peer 
tutoring program (NWP 
and POUSD elementary 
sites) 

Action 12 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.12 -Implement regular NWP 
evening Community Forums and 
Parent Workshops 

 Implement more student 
produced events (talent 
shows, dances, speaking 
competitions, debates, 
forums) 

 

 1.12 -Implemented regular NWP 
evening Community Forums and 
Parent Workshops 

 Implement more student 
produced events (talent 
shows, dances, speaking 
competitions, debates, 
forums) 

 1.12.a Hourly teacher overtime 
rate (1110-1000-1130-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$1,203  

 1.12.a Hourly teacher overtime 
rate (1110-1000-1130-SG01) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$1,203 

1.12.b Food/refreshments (1110-
1000-4390-SG01) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500  

 1.12.b Food/refreshments (1110-
1000-4390-SG01) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $500 

Action 13 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.13 -Identify all support personnel 
associated with each foster youth 

 Be sure all supporters of 
foster youth are familiar 
with built-in supports 
such as the school 
website and staff emails 

 Report check-ins and 
progress reports to all 
supporters 

 1.13 -Identified all support 
personnel associated with each 
foster youth 

 Be sure all supporters of 
foster youth are familiar 
with built-in supports 
such as the school 
website and staff emails 

 Report check-ins and 
progress reports to all 
supporters 

 1.13 Provide counseling on 
personal and group basis 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.1.a  

 1.13 Provide counseling on 
personal and group basis 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.1.a 

552



Page 16 of 143

 Hold consistent staff 
check-ins regarding 
foster youth progress 

 Designate staff point-
persons (liaisons) for 
each foster youth and 
their support personnel 

 

 Hold consistent staff 
check-ins regarding 
foster youth progress 

 Designate staff point-
persons (liaisons) for 
each foster youth and 
their support personnel 

Action 14 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.14 -Designate a portion of ipads 
as overnight "loaners" 

 Designate one teacher 
each morning from 8-
9am as the "on duty" IT 
Study Hall teacher. 

 

 1.14 -Designated a portion of ipads 
as overnight "loaners" 

 Designate one teacher 
each morning from 8-
9am as the "on duty" IT 
Study Hall teacher. 

 1.14 Highly Qualified Teachers 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base No 
Additional costs  

 1.14 Highly Qualified Teachers 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base No 
Additional costs 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we created a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students by providing 
social-emotional and academic support, high expectations, engaging activities, creative endeavors, leadership opportunities, facilities, 
classroom space design, spring and fall field trips, community forums/student produced events, foster youth support; communicating 
high expectations, increasing enrollment, and loaning out ipads.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*My Voice Survey Results-Students (School is welcoming and friendly, School listens to student suggestions) 
*expulsion rate of 0 

553



Page 17 of 143

*Exemplary FIT Report 
*0 Williams complaints 
**Appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers 
 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*My Voice Survey Results-Students (Teachers respect students, Students want to do their best at school, students believe they will be 
successful) 
*My Voice Survey Results-Parents (Encouraged to Practice Good Citizenship, Teachers Recognize kind and helpful students) 
*Enrollment 
*Attendance Rate 
*Chronic Absenteeism 
*Suspension Rate 
 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics we added the following datapoints to the 19-20 LCAP for 
this goal. 
*Attendance Rate: 92.3% 
*Truancy Rate 8% 
*Expulsion Rate: 0% 
*FIT Survey: Exemplary 
*Williams Complaints: 0 
*Appropriately assigned and credentialed teachers:100% 
*Chronic Absenteeism: 11.4% 
*Suspension Rate: 8.8% 
         

 

554



Page 18 of 143

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California Common Core Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
# of teachers participating in professional development related to the CCSS 
ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Common Core 
Standards and the District's Student Outcomes are evident (student work 
products, lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
 
% of classrooms demonstrating evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
 
# of hours of teacher professional development opportunities offered during 
the summer and school year. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: 
Foundational Skills rating 
Online Skills rating 
Multimedia Skills rating 
Classroom Skills rating 
 
        

 100% of teachers participated in professional development related to the 
CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Common Core 
Standards and the District's Student Outcomes are evident (student work 
products, portfolio defenses,lessons/units, rubrics developed): 100% 
 
100% of classrooms demonstrating evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
 
40 # of hours of teacher professional development opportunities offered 
during the summer and school year (envision BPAN grant) 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: NA 
 

555



Page 19 of 143

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Teachers had opportunities for professional learning and collaborative time 
together to develop and refine teaching practices that support the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
All teachers participated in professional development related to the CCSS 
ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards 
and the District's Student Outcomes are evident (student work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
 
100% of classrooms demonstrated evidence of close reading, collaborative 
conversations, writing activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to 
the Common Core. 
 
25 or more hours of teacher professional development opportunities offered 
during the summer and school year. 
 
        

556



Page 20 of 143

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Teachers had opportunities for professional learning and collaborative time 
together to develop and refine teaching practices that support the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
Two teachers participated in professional development related to the CCSS 
ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. Another teacher attended 
regular Teacher Induction Program sessions to develop and refine teaching 
practices that support the all students in CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and 
Project-Based Learning and District's Student Outcomes. Exhibition 
presentations, student portfolio work by all students were evidence of 
academic reading and research, collaborative conversations, writing 
activities, and math instructional strategies aligned to the Common Core. 
 
6-YEAR PBL Instructional plan: Key Common Core standards were 
identified in each content area and aligned with PBL 6 yr. plan. 
 
Teachers used 3 professional development days during the summer to work 
collaboratively to plan and design  multi-disciplinary curriculum and student 
project work for the upcoming year that aligns directly with the California 
Common Core Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
Bright Bytes Survey Teacher Results 2017 Spring: 
Foundational Skills -- Advanced 
Online Skills -- Exemplary 
Multimedia Skills -- Advanced 
Classroom Skills - Proficient/Advanced (use of 4C's) 
 
Bright Bytes Survey Teacher Results 2016: 
Foundational Skills -- 90 % report ease with these type of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 100% utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 75% report ease with these types of tasks. 
 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

557



Page 21 of 143

2.1 Establish regular schedule for 
grade level, cross grade level 
collaboration (1-2x per month 
during school day, after school) for 
teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction 
and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 
 
Provide Professional 
Development/Teacher Planning 
Days: embedded in regular annual 
calendar. 
 
 

 2.1 Established regular schedule 
for grade level, cross grade level 
collaboration (1-2x per month 
during school day, after school) for 
teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction 
and reflect on teaching practice 
within and across grade levels. 
 
Provide Professional 
Development/Teacher Planning 
Days: embedded in regular annual 
calendar. 
 

 2.1 No Extra Cost - Embedded in 
Regular Daily Schedule of Highly 
Qualified Teachers 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $0  

 2.1 No Extra Cost - Embedded in 
Regular Daily Schedule of Highly 
Qualified Teachers 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $0 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.2 Provide time for teachers to 
design systems for gathering data 
that can be shared externally to 
demonstrate student achievement 
- time embedded in regular school 
year calendar 
 

 2.2 Provided time for teachers to 
design systems for gathering data 
that can be shared externally to 
demonstrate student achievement 
- time embedded in regular school 
year calendar 

 2.2 Highly Qualified Teachers 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2  

 2.2 Highly Qualified Teachers 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
focused on instructional practices 
aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes (e.g., PBL, Next 
Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math). including 
meeting WASC and other 
accreditation requirements - Time 
embedded in regular school 
calendar 

 2.3 Provided formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
focused on instructional practices 
aligned with the District Student 
Outcomes (e.g., PBL, Next 
Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math). including 
meeting WASC and other 
accreditation requirements - Time 
embedded in regular school 
calendar 

 2.3 Highly Qualified Teachers 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2  

 2.3 Highly Qualified Teachers 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2 

558



Page 22 of 143

 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.4 Provide opportunities for 
teachers to observe in other 
classrooms and engage in 
collaborative dialog around 
professional practices. 
 

 2.4 Provided opportunities for 
teachers to observe in other 
classrooms and engage in 
collaborative dialog around 
professional practices. 

 2.4 - Subs for teachers - (0000-
1110-1000-1149-SGPD) 
 
 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$1,037  

 2.4 - Subs for teachers - (0000-
1110-1000-1149-SGPD) 
 
 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$4,369 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.5 Continue to develop units of 
study aligned with CCSS Math and 
Next Gen Science, including 
formative and summative 
assessments across grades 7-12. 
 

 2.5 Continued to develop units of 
study aligned with CCSS Math and 
Next Gen Science, including 
formative and summative 
assessments across grades 7-12. 

 2.5.a No additional cost - 
embedded in daily schedule of 
Highly Qualified Teachers 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2  

 2.5.a No additional cost - 
embedded in daily schedule of 
Highly Qualified Teachers 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2 

2.5.b Professional development 
focused on Math and Next 
Generation Science Standards - 
no additional cost - embedded in 
program of Highly Qualified 
Teachers 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2  

 2.5.b Professional development 
focused on Math and Next 
Generation Science Standards - 
no additional cost - embedded in 
program of Highly Qualified 
Teachers 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.6 Continue development of 
common assessments for writing 
and integrated projects. 
 

 2.6 Continued development of 
common assessments for writing 
and integrated projects. 

 2.6 No additional cost - 
embedded in daily schedule of 
Highly Qualified Teachers 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2  

 2.6 No additional cost - 
embedded in daily schedule of 
Highly Qualified Teachers 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2 

Action 7 
559



Page 23 of 143

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.7 Develop and encourage more 
opportunities for EL students to 
verbally express themselves in 
English.  

 create original videos 
 narrate and act in project 

videos 
 participate in stage 

performance 
 produce podcasts 
 host Community 

Meetings 
 utilize video interactive 

apps such as Skype 
 act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 participate in job shadows 
 participate in professional 

internships 
 participate in peer 

tutoring program (NWP 
and POUSD elementary 
sites) 

 offer a 
Theater/Improv/Performa
nce Club after school 

 

 2.7 Developed and encourage 
more opportunities for EL students 
to verbally express themselves in 
English.  

 create original videos 
 narrate and act in project 

videos 
 participate in stage 

performance 
 produce podcasts 
 host Community 

Meetings 
 utilize video interactive 

apps such as Skype 
 act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 participate in job 

shadows 
 participate in professional 

internships 
 participate in peer 

tutoring program (NWP 
and POUSD elementary 
sites) 

 offer a 
Theater/Improv/Performa
nce Club after school 

 2.7.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a  

 2.7.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a 

2.7.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small 
class sizes - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b  

 2.7.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small 
class sizes - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.8 Monitor progress of and 
communicate with parents of EL 
student progress and programs 
 

 2.8 Monitored progress of and 
communicate with parents of EL 
student progress and programs 

 2.8 Outreach worker to translate 
information (4760-1000-2100-
SG02) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$3,476  

 2.8 Outreach worker to translate 
information (4760-1000-2100-
SG02) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$3,069 

 
560



Page 24 of 143

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes by providing collaboration time, designing systems for gathering data, 
providing professional development (instructional), providing opportunities for teachers to observe other classrooms, developing units 
of study in CCSS Math and NGSS, developing common assessments for writing and integrated projects, providing opportunities to 
increase language development for EL's, informing parents of EL Student Progress.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*Professional development (CCSS) 
*Evidence of classroom practices 
*Professional development opportunities 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
Continue implementation of Standards. 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Bright Bytes survey was not conducted this year and will no longer be conducted.         

 

561



Page 25 of 143

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 

562



Page 26 of 143

Annual Measurable Outcomes 

563



Page 27 of 143

Expected Actual 

564



Page 28 of 143

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
CAASPP/Smarter Balanced Assessment: 
Graduation Rate 
ELA performance 
Math performance 
 
CELDT -  % of EL students score in the Early Advanced/Advanced range. # 
of EL Redesignations 
 
Participation in Academic Exhibitions 
 
Completion of all semester project benchmarks 
 
College applications 
 
Concurrent enrollment at local Junior College 
 
Participation in Crossroads (career exploration) job shadows, volunteer 
opportunities, and professional internships. 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey Results: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills 
Student use of 4 C's 
Digital Citizenship 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School 
At Home 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational 
Online 
 
4) Environment Overall: 
Policies and Procedures 
Support 
Beliefs 
Prof. Learning 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th and 9th grades): 
Aerobic Capacity 
Body Composition 
 
Participation in "Move It" (PE/Health/Wellbeing) 
 
        

18-19 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
Participation in Academic Exhibitions increased. 
 
90% of students in grades read grade level literary and informational text 
with accuracy and comprehension. 
 
Math 65% students score at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
 
CAASPP Results: 
 
Graduation Rate (9-12) 

 All students scored High status or above. 
 Socioeconomically-disadvantaged subgroup scored Medium 

status or above. 

English Language Arts (11th grade) 

 All students and subgroups scored above level 3 and increased or 
increased significantly. 

Math (11th grade) 

 All students and subgroups scored above level 3 and increased or 
increased significantly. 

English Language Arts (7-8th grade) 

 All students and subgroups scored above level 3 and increased or 
increased significantly. 

Math (7-8th grade) 

 All students and subgroups scored above level 3 and increased or 
increased significantly. 

CELDT: 40% of EL students score in the Early Advanced/Advanced range. 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th and 9th grades):  
 
Aerobic Capacity -- 90% 
 
Body Composition -- 85% 
 

Baseline 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
All students participated in Academic Exhibitions. All students developed 
physical fitness through the 30 minute daily "Move It" class at NWP. Digital 
tools are the "paper and pencil" for NWP students. Students were taught 
and demonstrated proficiency to their teachers in the use of digital tools for 
research (accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. Crossroads classes focused on career and college readiness 
and completion of student portfolios (hat are required and defended by each 
student at the end of the school year and used as a reflective means of 
measuring personal and academic growth.The Portfolio Defense Handbook 
with requirements is available on the NWP IT website. 
 
As measured by: 
 
Increased Participation in Academic Exhibitions 
 
Increased attendance on college tours: Sonoma State University tour and 
ropes course February 2017, UC Davis tour April 2017, Santa Rosa Junior 
College Fall 2016 and Spring 2017 tours 
 
CELDT: In 2015, 26% of EL students score in the Early 
Advanced/Advanced range (current data unavailable) 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results 2017: 
 
1) Student Classroom Skills:  
 
Student use of 4 C's- Advanced 
 
Digital Citizenship- Emerging 
 
2) Student Access:  
 
At School- Exemplary 
 
At Home- Advanced 
 
3) Student Skills general:  
 
Foundational: Advanced 
 
Online: Advanced 
 
4)Environment Overall:  
 
Policies and Procedures: Proficient 
 
Support: Beginning 
 
Beliefs: Advanced 
 
Prof. Learning: Emerging 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results 2016: 
 
100% of students asked to write online at least monthly. 
 
100% of students collaborate with classmates online at least monthly. 
 
80% use digital tools to solve authentic problems at least monthly. 
 
Evidence of outcomes as demonstrated by student work products as well as 
online publishing of student writing and project work. 
 
2017 CAASPP Results: 
 
Graduation Rate (9-12) 

 All students scored Medium status with an 85.7% rate. This group 
increased significantly by 14.3%. 

 Our socioeconomically disadvantaged subgroup scored Low 
status with an 81.8% rate. This group increased significantly 

 by 10.8%.  
 
All other student groups are fewer than 11 students and are not reported for 
privacy reasons.  
 
English Language Arts (11th grade) 

 All students scored 6.3 points above level 3. This group increased 
by 45.4 points. 

All other student groups are fewer than 11 students and are not reported for 
privacy reasons.  
 
Math (11th grade) 

 All students scored 102.8 points below level 3. This group 
increased by +64.4 points. 

All other student groups are fewer than 11 students and are not reported for 
privacy reasons.  
 
English Language Arts (7-8th grade) 

 All students scored 20.4 points below level 3. This group declined 
by -6 points. 

 Our socioeconomically disadvantaged subgroup scored 32.3 
points below level 3. This subgroup increased 

 by +7.7 points.  
 Hispanic students scored 45.1 points below level 3. 
 White students scored .7 points above level 3. 
 English Language Learners - this student group is fewer than 11 

students and is not reported for privacy 

 reasons. 

 Our students with disabilities - this student group is fewer than 11 
students and is not reported for privacy 

 reasons. 
 
Math (7-8th grade) 

 All students scored 74 points below level 3. This group declined 
by -7.2 points. 

 Our socioeconomically disadvantaged subgroup scored 71.7 
points below level 3. This subgroup increased 

 +9.6 points.  
 Hispanic students scored 82.3 points below level 3. 
 White students scored 76.2 points below level 3. 
 English Language Learners - this student group is fewer than 11 

students and is not reported for privacy 

 reasons. 

 Our students with disabilities - this student group is fewer than 11 
students and is not reported for privacy 

 reasons. 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th and 9th grades):  
 
Aerobic Capacity -- 90% 
 
Body Composition -- 85% 
 

 CAASPP/Smarter Balanced Assessment: 
ELA performance:  11 below standard 
Math performance: 111 below standard 
 
Graduation Rate: 78% 
 
ELPAC/CELDT - % of EL students score in the Early Advanced/Advanced 
range: NA 
 
# of EL Redesignations: 0 students 
 
Participation in Academic Exhibitions: 100% 
 
Completion of all semester project benchmarks: 87% 
 
College applications:12 NWP seniors out of 16 graduating applied for college 
(other seniors have plans that do not currently include college: Navy, Work, 
and Apprenticeship) 
 
Concurrent enrollment at local Junior College:16 NWP Students (in 9-12th 
grades) 
 
Participation in Crossroads (career exploration) job shadows, volunteer 
opportunities, and professional internships: Crossroads classes focused on 
career and college readiness and completion of student portfolios (that are 
required and defended by each student at the end of the school year and 
used as a reflective means of measuring personal and academic growth). 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey Results: 
not completed this year 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th and 9th grades): 
Aerobic Capacity : 7th: 20%, 9th: 29% 
Body Composition : 7th: 60%  9th: 41% 
 
Participation in "Move It" (PE/Health/Wellbeing):  100% of students 
developed physical fitness through the 30 minute daily "Move It" class at 
NWP. 
 
 
Additional datapoints: 
College and Career Indicator (prepared): 6% (however, there was a 10% 
increase in students categorized as "approaching prepared," and a 7% 
decrease in students categorized as "not prepared" - indicating much 
progress and growth throughout this indicator level). 
 
Acellus online courses - In 2018-19, thirteen NWP students took 19 classes 
(six courses completed with an A in semester 1, and 13 classes are still in 
progress for semester 2). In our Home Study program, 45 Home Study 
students have taken 322 classes in Acellus (so far, 118 courses have been 
completed this year). To date, 12 home study students have completed 15 
courses with a grade of an A or better. 
 
 

565



Page 29 of 143

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.1 Assess student progress 
toward mastery of content 
standards. Teachers to link 
standard to project work and 
publish on school website. 
 

 3.1 Assessed student progress 
toward mastery of content 
standards. Teachers to link 
standard to project work and 
publish on school website. 

 3.1.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a  

 3.1.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a 

3.1.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b  

 3.1.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.2 Continue to implement Project-
based learning/Inquiry Methods 
focused on integrated units of 
study aligned with California 
content standards. 
 

 3.2 Continued to implement 
Project-based learning/Inquiry 
Methods focused on integrated 
units of study aligned with 
California content standards. 

 3.2.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a  

 3.2.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a 

3.2.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b  

 3.2.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b 

Collaboration Time - embedded in 
schedule - no extra cost 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2  

 Collaboration Time - embedded 
in schedule - no extra cost 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2 

566



Page 30 of 143

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.3 Provide instruction to students 
in developing literacy, research 
and digital citizenship skills. 
 

 3.3 Provided instruction to 
students in developing literacy, 
research and digital citizenship 
skills. 

 3.3 Professional development for 
teachers focused on digital/media 
literacy and digital citizenship - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
schedule. 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2  

 3.3 Professional development for 
teachers focused on digital/media 
literacy and digital citizenship - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
schedule. 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.4 Provide tiers of support for 
students who need targeted 
instruction and academic 
intervention. 
 

 3.4 Provided tiers of support for 
students who need targeted 
instruction and academic 
intervention. 

 3.4.a Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working 
with students in differentiated 
groupings 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.a  

 3.4.a Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working 
with students in differentiated 
groupings 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.2.a 

3.4.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working 
with students in differentiated 
groupings - reduced class size - 
average of 20 students per 
teacher 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b  

 3.4.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working 
with students in differentiated 
groupings - reduced class size - 
average of 20 students per 
teacher 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.b 

Collaboration time to review 
student data, group students for 
targeted instruction, and evaluate 
student progress - no additional 
cost - embedded in daily 
schedule 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2  

 Collaboration time to review 
student data, group students for 
targeted instruction, and evaluate 
student progress - no additional 
cost - embedded in daily 
schedule 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2 

3.4.c Program Assistant time to 
assist students of concern  (1110-
1000-2100-SG03) 2000-2999: 

 3.4.c Program Assistant time to 
assist students of concern  (1110-
1000-2100-SG03) 2000-2999: 

567



Page 31 of 143

Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $43,435  

Classified Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $33,107 

3.4.d  Additional certificated time 
to provide Acellus support for 
students of concern  (1110-1000-
1130-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $4,672  

 3.4.d  Additional certificated time 
to provide Acellus support for 
students of concern  (1110-1000-
1130-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $0 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.5 Implement instructional 
strategies to promote academic 
discourse, structured language 
practices and English Language 
Development during the school 
day. 
 

 3.5 Implemented instructional 
strategies to promote academic 
discourse, structured language 
practices and English Language 
Development during the school 
day. 

 3.5.a Professional development 
focused on instructional 
strategies - no extra cost 
embedded in daily schedule 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2  

 3.5.a Professional development 
focused on instructional 
strategies - no extra cost 
embedded in daily schedule 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2 

3.5.b Facilitation/Consultation 
with SCOE EL Coordinator  
(4760-1000-5830-SGPD) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $600  

 3.5.b Facilitation/Consultation 
with SCOE EL Coordinator  
(4760-1000-5830-SGPD) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $0 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.6 Student engagement in NWP 
Crossroads program through 
further curriculum development 
and coordination. 
 

 3.6 Students engaged in NWP 
Crossroads program through 
further curriculum development 
and coordination. 

 3.6 Collaborative planning time 
and administrator and counselor 
planning time - no additional cost 
- embedded in daily program 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2  

 3.6 Collaborative planning time 
and administrator and counselor 
planning time - no additional cost 
- embedded in daily program 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 1.2 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
 

Actual  
 

Budgeted  
 

Estimated Actual  
568



Page 32 of 143

Actions/Services Actions/Services Expenditures Expenditures 
3.7 Continued approval of more A-
G courses including Integrated 
Math, Foreign Language and 
Integrated Science. 
 

 3.7 College and career 
preparedness: Continued approval 
and implementation of more A-G 
courses including higher level 
Math and Science, Visual and 
Performing Arts courses, and AP 
courses (Acellus, AP College 
Board, and other online supports). 

 3.7 Math, Science, Visual Arts 
and Foreign Language Teacher 
time: hourly rate (1110-1000-
1130) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base $500  

 3.7 College Prep curricular 
materials and subscriptions 
(Acellus, AP College Board, etc.) 
and Acellus teacher time: 
materials/hourly rate (1110-1000-
1130) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base $0 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.8 Identify key CCSS and develop 
curriculum that aligns with the 
school's Project Based Learning 
six year plan 
 

 3.8 Align curriculum and 
assessments with CCSS and 
develop academic and leadership 
assessments and performance 
tasks that track student progress 
and align with the school's Project 
Based Learning and Leadership 
skills work. 

 3.8 3 Extra Duty days during 
summer (1110-1000-1130-SGPD) 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$5,685  

 3.8 3 Extra Duty days during 
summer (1110-1000-1130-
SGPD) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$5,799 

Action 9 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.10 Provide time to design 
systems to gather data that can be 
shared externally to demonstrate 
student achievement. 
 

 3.10 Provided time to design 
systems to gather data, create, 
and implement rubrics and update 
performance data and portfolio 
defenses that can be shared 
externally to demonstrate student 
achievement. 

 3.10 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
regular daily and yearly schedule 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.a  

 3.10 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
regular daily and yearly schedule 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.a 

Action 10 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.11 -create original videos 
 narrate and act in project 

videos 

 3.11 -create/archive videos and 
exhibition materials/artifacts 

 3.11.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 1000-

 3.11.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 1000-

569



Page 33 of 143

 participate in stage 
performance 

 produce podcasts 
 host Community 

Meetings 
 utilize video interactive 

apps such as Skype 
 act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 participate in job shadows 
 participate in professional 

internships 
 participate in peer 

tutoring program (NWP 
and POUSD elementary 
sites) 

 offer 
Theater/Improv/performa
nce club after school 

 

 narrate and act in project 
videos 

 participate in 
performances 

 produce media 
presentations/marketing 
materials 

 host Community 
Meetings 

 utilize academic support 
apps 

 act as school 
tour/shadow guides 

 PR/recruitment 
presentations 

 participate in job 
shadows 

 participate in in- and ex-
ternships 

 -offer clubs after school 

1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a  

1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.2.a 

3.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small 
class sizes - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b  

 3.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small 
class sizes - average of 20 
students per teacher 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental See 1.2.b 

Action 11 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.12 Continue to develop a 
portfolio process that documents 
post project student leadership 
skills assessment results over a six 
year period. 
 

 3.12 Continued to develop a 
portfolio process that documents 
performance and project work and 
tracks student leadership skills 
progress. 

 3.12 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
regular daily & yearly schedule 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.a  

 3.12 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
regular daily & yearly schedule 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.2.a 

 

570



Page 34 of 143

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we worked towards ensuring all students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and 
behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers by assessing student progress, implementing project-based learning, 
implementing instruction in literacy, research, and digital citizenship, providing tiers of support, providing instructional strategies (ELD 
and SpEed), providing NWP Crossroads Program, obtaining approval of additional A-G courses/implementing Acellus online courses 
for credit recovery and A-G college preparedness, designing systems to gather student progress data, and developing portfolio 
process and evaluation materials.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*Broad course of study 100% 
*Participation in Academic Exhibitions 100% 
*Move It Participation: 100% 
*Crossroads Participation 100% 
*CAASPP ELA distance away from - standard met 
 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*CAASPP math distance away from - standard met 
*College and Career Indicator (but improving) 
*Graduation Rate 
*Reclassification Rate 
*Physical Fitness Testing 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
         

 

571



Page 35 of 143

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

572



Page 36 of 143

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
% return of the parent engagement and involvement form at the beginning 
of the year. 
 
% families attendance at school events 
 
# of parents volunteering as speakers, chaperones, and elective teachers. 
 
# of parents serving as Field Trip Chaperones/Drivers. 
 
Engagement statistics on social media sites, website and e-newsletters. 
 
Rates of attendance at Parent Forums, Advisory Team meetings, Principal 
Coffees and Academic Exhibitions. 
 
        

 74% return of the parent engagement and involvement form at the beginning 
of the year. 
 
95% families attendance at school events 
 
35 Parent volunteers 
 
# Parent volunteers as speakers, chaperones, elective teachers. Two 
electives were taught by parents: Art and Gardening. Yearbook was led by 
parent volunteer. 
Field Trip Chaperones/Drivers: We have provided for significantly more field 
trips in the last two years. One of our continuous improvement focus areas is 
“improving college and career readiness.” To that end, we have provided 10 
college/university tours/trips since 2016 (3-4 yearly) to the following 
institutions: 
o University of California, DAVIS 
o Sonoma State University 
o Santa Rosa Junior College: Petaluma and Santa Rosa Campus 

573



Page 37 of 143

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Parents accessed up-to-date information on school events, student learning 
activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their 
child's education. 
 
Parents felt a sense of connection and engagement with the school 
community. 
 
70% returned the parent engagement and involvement form at the 
beginning of the year. 
 
75% families attended school events 
 
Parents volunteered as speakers, chaperones, and elective teachers. At 
least 3 electives/clubs were taught by parent volunteers. 
 
An increasing number of parents served as Field Trip Chaperones/Drivers. 
 
High rates of attendance at Parent Forums, Advisory Team meetings, 
Principal Coffees and Academic Exhibitions. 
 
        

o University of California, Santa Cruz 
o San Francisco State University 
o Dominican University 
o University of California, Berkeley 
o Sonoma State University 
o Sacramento State University 
o Santa Rosa Junior College 
 
We have also provided more curricular and student leadership-development 
trips (since 2016). These field trips were to: 
o Sonoma County Dump Methane Production Center 
o Sonoma County Museum 
o Maker Fair (Bay Area) 
o Student outreach trips (community organizations) during the homelessness 
project 
o Shone Farm 
o Sebastopol Art Museum 
o Leadership Team Trip (training and team-building) 
o Cal Skate team-building 
 
We average 4 parents supporting and assisting with these trips each time. 
 
Parents also attend Parent meetings and workshops, Leadership Team and 
Safety Committee meetings, Principal Coffees, and 
Academic Exhibitions (September and March 2018-19), and WASC 
accreditation/visitation meetings. 
 
 
 

574



Page 38 of 143

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Parents accessed up-to-date information on school events, student learning 
activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals to support their 
child's education. 
 
Parents felt a sense of connection and engagement with the school 
community. 
 
58% returned the parent engagement and involvement form at the 
beginning of the year (49 parents returned parent volunteer form for School 
Year 2016-17). 
 
65% families attendance at school events 
 
Parents volunteered as speakers, chaperones, and elective teachers. Two 
electives were taught by parent volunteers: Art and Gardening. Yearbook 
was also led by parent volunteer. 
 
Parents served as Field Trip and dance Chaperones/Drivers: October 
SSU/SRJC, March (Energy Site/Museum), April (UC Davis), and for May 
(Maker Fair) Field trips. 
 
NWP had high rates of attendance at Parent Forums, Advisory Team 
meetings, Principal Coffees and Academic Exhibitions (November and May 
2016-17), and our WASC accreditation meetings. 
 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.1 Implement parent engagement 
and involvement via 2X per year 
mailing home the year Parent 
Involvement/Volunteer Form. 
Document and keep list of parent 

 4.1 Implemented parent 
engagement and involvement via 
2X per year mailing home the year 
Parent Involvement/Volunteer 
Form. Document and keep list of 

 4.1 Highly Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned-.10 FTE 
of salary (2700-1000-1300) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.9  

 4.1 Highly Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned-.10 FTE 
of salary (2700-1000-1300) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.9 

575



Page 39 of 143

volunteers for use throughout the 
year. 
 

parent volunteers for use 
throughout the year. 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.2 Involve parents in 
School/Community events that 
showcase student learning 
(exhibitions, performances, etc.) 
 

 4.2 Involved parents in 
School/Community events that 
showcase student learning 
(exhibitions, performances, etc.) 

 4.2 Equipment & Supplies (1110-
1000-4310-BG04) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $500  

 4.2 Equipment & Supplies (1110-
1000-4310-BG04) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $726 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.3 Offered virtual meetings -- 
Google Hangouts, etc. to provide 
greater access to parent 
engagement. 
 

 4.3 Offered virtual meetings -- 
Google Hangouts, etc. to provide 
greater access to parent 
engagement. 

 4.3 No cost for virtual programs 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base $0  

 4.3 No cost for virtual programs 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Base $0 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.4 Use social media across the 
district and at school sites to 
promote an understanding of 
educational program and 
successes. 
 

 4.4 Improved newsletters and used 
social media across the district and 
at school sites to promote an 
understanding of educational 
program and successes. 

 4.4 No cost for using Twitter on a 
semi-regular basis 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $0  

 4.4 No cost for using Twitter on a 
semi-regular basis 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $0 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.5 Update District and School 
websites to create a more 
welcoming presence and 
accessible information. 
 

 4.5 Updated District and School 
websites to create a more 
welcoming presence and 
accessible information. 

 4.2.a Weebly Templates & 
Weebly Pro Subscription  (2700-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $60  

 4.2.a Weebly Templates & 
Weebly Pro Subscription  (2700-
4340-BG04) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $60 

576



Page 40 of 143

4.2 c Illuminate parent portal and 
LCAP Infographics  (1110-1000-
5830-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $3,000  

 4.2 c Illuminate parent portal and 
LCAP Infographics  (1110-1000-
5830-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $3,000 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.6 Translation of forms and other 
communications 
 

 4.6 Translated forms and other 
communications - more Spanish 
access and translation of 
materials. 

 4.6 Outreach Worker 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Other See 2.8  

 4.6 Outreach Worker 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Other See 2.8 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.7 Engage and encourage 
parents to complete My Voice 
surveys. 
 

 4.7 Engaged and encouraged 
parents to complete My Voice 
surveys. 

 4.7 My Voice (2700-5880-SG04) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental $400  

 4.7 My Voice (2700-5880-SG04) 
5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental $444 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we improved parent engagement by sending out parent involvement and volunteer forms, 
events that showcase student learning, offering a variety of meeting and workshop options, increasing social media, updating website, 
added translation services, encouraging participation in surveys, and added newsletter section to website.         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*submission of parent engagement and involvement forms (61%) 
*100% of parents surveyed (My Voice Survey) felt welcome at school, 80% of parents believe evening/meetings are worth attending. 

577



Page 41 of 143

 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*Number of My Voice Survey-Parents (10) 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

578



Page 42 of 143

Stakeholder Engagement 
 

 

LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

 

Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

1. Governing Board  
 
LCAP Stakeholder Engagement: Meeting Dates: 

 April 10 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 May 15 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 June 5- (public hearing) 
 June 19 (adoption) 

2. School Site Council: Met on        
3. DELAC Meeting -- participation from all sites.  1/23/2019        
4. ELAC Meeting-        
5. Students 

 My Voice Survey (1/25-2/8) 
 Student Council 

6. Teachers 
 Certificated Bargaining Unit Meeting 1/23/2019 
 Staff Meetings 
 My Voice Survey (1/25-2/8) 
 Instructional Leadership Team 

7. Classified Staff 

 Classified bargaining unit consulted on 1/23/2019 

579



Page 43 of 143

8. Parents 
 My Voice Survey (1/22-2/5) 
 PTO Meeting 
 Events (various throughout the year) 

9. Staff 
 Districtwide LCAP Meeting: 1/23/2019 
 Districtwide Survey 1/23/2019 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting 1/31/2019 
 
        

         
 

Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

1. Governing Board  

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

2. School Site Council 

 School Site Council requested the following : No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

3. DELAC Meeting 

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

4. ELAC Meeting 

 The ELAC was happy with the direction of the school and LCAP goals, actions and services 

5. Students 

580



Page 44 of 143

 My Voice Survey: 63 respondents. Indications that we must continue our work with LCAP Goal 1: Culture: Create a positive, 
learning focused environment and culture for all students, include the following data points which represent the percentage 
of students in total agreement:"Teachers make an effort to get to know me." 69%; "I am proud of my school." 68%; "I am a 
valued member of my school community."38%; "Students respect each other." 52%; "Teachers care if I am absent from 
school." 51%; "Teachers have fun at school." 35%; "I find homework helpful to my overall learning." 19%; "I know the goals 
my school is working on this year." 54%; "Students develop programs that improve the whole school." 46%. 

 Student Council: No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

6. Teachers 

 Certificated Bargaining Unit : Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

 Staff Meetings No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

 My Voice Survey: 3 respondents: We plan to increase the number of respondents next year. 

8. Parents 

 My Voice Survey: 10 respondents. We must continue our LCAP Goal 4: Improve Parent Engagement actions: We plan to 
add the following questions from this survey to the LCAP: Feel welcome at school 100%; Parent evenings/meetings are 
worth attending: 80%; Input and opinions are valued at my child's school 90%; We also plan to increase the # of responses 
from parents. 

 PTO Meeting 

 Events: We had about 400 event participants and 35 volunteers in all of our events. Each of the events help build community 
and develop relationship with our stakeholders so they can share their opinions and develop trust. 

9. Staff 

 District-wide Staff LCAP Meeting Feedback: Professional learning- teachers would like to have their meeting in May as per 
the contract to give input for each site. Shortened Wednesdays- The would like them planned in advance and alternate with 
little changes into the year. 

581



Page 45 of 143

 District Staff Survey: 62 Respondents: The school effectively supports professional learning to facilitate all students 
achieving the academic standards.77%; I have an adequate curriculum at this time to effectively implement the standards 
53%; Assessment data and students' work is analyzed and used to make instructional decisions as a grade level team. 
85%; The school implements strategies and processes for the regular involvement of the parent community including non 
English speaking parents. 65%; The school has an atmosphere of trust, respect, and professionalism. 94%; The school 
offers adequate services, including referral services, to support students in areas of health, counseling, academic assistance 
including English language development, etc. 33%; most important state priorities: Basic Services 64% and Course Access 
71%. Implication on LCAP: Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting        
         
 

582



Page 46 of 143

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to feel safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with others. 
Students need to feel engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their school community. 
 
As measured by My Voice Student Survey data: 
80% of students feel that school is a welcoming and friendly place. 
90% of students say they are encouraged to practice good citizenship at school. 
85% of students feel accepted for who they are at school 
87% of students feel that teachers respect students 
83% of students feel adults at the school listen to student suggestions and allow for free expression of ideas 
85% of students feel teachers believe in me and want me to be successful 
90% of students feel teachers recognize students who are kind and helpful 
95% of students say they want to do their best at school 
90% of students believe that they will be successful 
 
 
 

583



Page 47 of 143

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

My Voice Student 
Survey data: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
% of students feel that 
school is a welcoming 
and friendly place. 
 
        

 Students felt safe to 
take risks, express their 
ideas, and collaborate 
with others. 
Students felt engaged in 
learning and feel a 
sense of connection to 
their school community. 
 
The Spring 2017 My 
Voice Survey of 
Northwest Prep 7, 8, 
and 10th grade students 
resulted in the following 
data (9, 11, & 12th 
grade data was not 
counted because less 
than 10 from each group 
were surveyed): 
 
73% 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
80% (actual) 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
83% (actual) 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
86% 
 
 

% of students say they 
are encouraged to 
practice good citizenship 
at school.        

 85.1%  88%  NA-question no longer 
available 

 NA-question no longer 
available 

% of students feel 
accepted for who they 
are at school        

 78%  80%  NA-question no longer 
available 

 NA-question no longer 
available 

% of students feel that 
teachers respect 
students        

 79%  76% (actual)  86% (actual)  87% 

584



Page 48 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

% of students feel adults 
at the school listen to 
student suggestions and 
allow for free expression 
of ideas        

 73%  69% (actual)  68% (actual)  73% 

% of students feel 
teachers believe in me 
and want me to be 
successful        

 75%  77% (actual)  79% (actual)  81% 

% of students feel 
teachers recognize 
students who are kind 
and helpful        

 80.9%  77%  (actual)  58%  (actual)  65% 

% of students say they 
want to do their best at 
school        

 91%  94% (actual)  68% (actual)  75% 

% of students believe 
that they will be 
successful        

 79.4%  78%  (actual)  79%  (actual)  80% 

My Voice Survey-Parent 
% of parents who 
believe students are 
encouraged to practice 
good citizenship 
        

 85%  96% (actual)  100% (actual)  >95% 

% of parents who 
believe teachers 
recognize kind and 
helpful students        

 81%  76% (actual)  100% (actual)  >95% 

California Healthy Kids 
Survey 
Relationship with Caring 
Adults (7th) 
        

 NA  33%  NA  45%+ 

585



Page 49 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Relationship with Caring 
Adults (9th)        

 NA  31%  NA  45%+ 

Feel very safe at school 
(7th)        

 NA  79%  NA  80%+ 

Feel very safe at school 
(9th)        

 NA  92%  NA  90%+ 

Enrollment         116  103  116  115 

Attendance Rate (as of 
April)        

 NA  NA  93%  95%+ 

Truancy Rate         NA  NA  8%  <6% 

Expulsion Rate         0%  0%  0%  <1% 

FIT Survey         Exemplary  Exemplary  Exemplary  Exemplary 

Williams Complaints         0  0  0  0 

Appropriately assigned 
and credentialed 
teachers        

 100%  100%  100%  100% 

Chronic Absenteeism         Dashboard Data: NA  16-17 Dashboard Data 
Status: 11.1% 
Change: NA 
Performance Color: NA 
 
 
 

 17-18 Dashboard Data 
Status: 11.1% 
Change: Increase 
11.4% 
Performance Color: 
Orange 
 
April of 18-19: 13% 
 

 18-19 Goal: 
Status: 10% 
Change: decrease 1% 
Performance Color: 
Yellow 
 
April of 19-20: 10% 
 

Suspension Rate         Dashboard Data: NA  16-17 Dashboard Data 
Status: 6.5% 
Change: +0.9% 
Performance Color: 
Orange 
 

 17-18 Dashboard Data 
Status: 8.8% 
Change: increase 2.3% 
Performance Color: 
Orange 
 

 17-18 Dashboard Data 
Status: 8.8% 
Change: increase 2.3% 
Performance Color: 
Orange 
 

586



Page 50 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

April of 18-19: 2% 
 

April of 18-19: 3% 
 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.1 Continue Implementation of social-
emotional and academic support by 
School Counselor via Counseling 
meetings with students and Crossroads 
classes.        

 1.1 Continue Implementation of social-
emotional and academic support by 
School Counselor via Counseling 
meetings with students and Crossroads 
classes. 

 1.1 Continue Implementation of social-
emotional and academic support by 
School Counselor via Counseling 
meetings with students and Crossroads 
classes. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

587



Page 51 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $44,000  $45,284  $56,591 
        $44,000  $45,284  $56,591 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $44,000  $45,284  $56,591 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.1 Highly qualified counselor 
appropriately assigned - .40 FTE                                         
(1110-1000-1100) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.1 Highly qualified counselor 
appropriately assigned - .40 FTE                                         
(3110-1000-1200-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.1 Highly qualified counselor 
appropriately assigned - .40 FTE 
(3110-1000-1200-SG01) 
 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.2 Create an environment in which it is 
expected that every child can and will 

 1.2 Create an environment in which it is 
expected that every child can and will 

 1.2 Create an environment in which it is 
expected that every child can and will 

588



Page 52 of 143

learn and provide whatever is necessary 
to support that vision.        

learn and provide whatever is necessary 
to support that vision. 

learn and provide whatever is necessary 
to support that vision. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $239,840  $326,124  $329,565 
        $239,840  $326,124  $329,565 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $239,840  $326,124  $329,565 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) - 
across curricular teaching team - 
Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned (1110-1000-
1100) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) - 
across curricular teaching team - 
Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned (1110-1000-
1100) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.a IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) - 
across curricular teaching team - 
Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned (1110-1000-
1100) 

Amount        $65,000  $75,610  $81,551 
        $65,000  $75,610  $81,551 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $65,000  $75,610  $81,551 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) - 
across curricular teaching team - 
Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher (1110-1000-1100-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) - 
across curricular teaching team - 
Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher (1110-1000-1100-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.2.b IT (Integrated Inquiry Team) - 
across curricular teaching team - 
Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher (1110-1000-1100-SG01) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

589



Page 53 of 143

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

   X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as interest 
based electives, sports, arts, clubs, etc.        

 1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as interest 
based electives, sports, arts, clubs, etc. 

 1.3 Provide in school and after school 
engagement activities such as interest 
based electives, sports, arts, clubs, etc. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $2,960  $4,810  $4,884 
        $2,960  $4,810  $4,884 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $2,960  $4,810  $4,884 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3 Teacher hourly rate (after school 
activities) (1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3 Teacher hourly rate (after school 
activities) (1110-1000-1130-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3 Teacher hourly rate (after school 
activities) (1110-1000-1130-SG01) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

590



Page 54 of 143

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.4 Facilitate performances, exhibitions, 
and publication opportunities for students 
to express their creative endeavors with 
peers, parents and the community.        

 1.4 Facilitate performances, exhibitions, 
and publication opportunities for students 
to express their creative endeavors with 
peers, parents and the community. 

 1.4 Facilitate performances, exhibitions, 
and publication opportunities for students 
to express their creative endeavors with 
peers, parents and the community. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4 No additional costs 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4 No additional costs 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4 No additional costs 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

591



Page 55 of 143

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.5 Communicate high expectations 
through school culture, language and 
symbols.        

 1.5 Communicate high expectations 
through school culture, language and 
symbols. 

 1.5 Communicate high expectations 
through school culture, language and 
symbols. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        No additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5 No additional costs 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5 No additional costs 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5 No additional costs 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

592



Page 56 of 143

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.6 Provide students with leadership 
opportunities such as peer tutoring and 
internships        

 1.6 Provide students with leadership 
opportunities such as peer tutoring and 
internships 

 1.6 Provide students with leadership 
opportunities such as peer tutoring and 
internships 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $43,126  See 1.1  See 1.1 
        $43,126  See 1.1  See 1.1 Source        Base  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $43,126  See 1.1  See 1.1 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6.a School Course Counselor 
(1110-3110-1200) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6.a School Course Counselor - .10 
FTE  (1110-3110-1200-SG01)  (Part 
of .40 FTE total for School 
Counselor) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6.a School Course Counselor - .10 
FTE  (1110-3110-1200-SG01)  (Part 
of .40 FTE total for School 
Counselor) 

Amount        See 1.2.a     
        See 1.2.a     Source        Base     
        See 1.2.a     Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6.b CTE - RCOP Program 

  
 

  
 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

593



Page 57 of 143

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.7 Provide school facilities that support 
student engagement and positive school 
culture.        

 1.7 Provide school facilities that support 
student engagement and positive school 
culture. 

 1.7 Provide school facilities that support 
student engagement and positive school 
culture. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $8,000  $8,000  $8,000 
        $8,000  $8,000  $8,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $8,000  $8,000  $8,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Maintain school facilities and 
grounds (8110-5830/5630/4380) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Maintain school facilities and 
grounds (8110-5830/5630/4380) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.a Maintain school facilities and 
grounds (8110-5830/5630/4380) 

594



Page 58 of 143

Amount        $35,892  41,054  42,000 
        $35,892  41,054  42,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $35,892  41,054  42,000 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.7.b Custodial Staff (8210-2200) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.7.b Custodial Staff (8210-2200) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.7.b Custodial Staff (8210-2200) 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.8 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote productive collaboration, 
creative expression and project-based 
learning.        

 1.8 Design classroom space and facilities 
to promote productive collaboration, 
creative expression and project-based 
learning - MP Room & Library - Add 
projectors and sound equipment 

  

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

595



Page 59 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,500  $10,000   
        $1,500  $10,000   Source        Base  Base   
        $1,500  $10,000   Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.8 Classroom furniture and 
equipment (1110-1000-4310) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.8 Classroom furniture and 
equipment (1110-1000-4310-BG01) 

  
 

Action 9 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.9 Increase enrollment by doing outreach 
and marketing presentations at District 
elementary schools.        

 1.9 Increase enrollment by doing outreach 
and marketing presentations at District 
middle and  elementary schools. 

 1.9 Increase enrollment by doing outreach 
and marketing presentations at District 
middle and elementary schools. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

596



Page 60 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $8,688  $16,171  $8,559 
        $8,688  $16,171  $8,559 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $8,688  $16,171  $8,559 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.9 Director time-10% (1110-2700-
1300) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.9 Principal time-.10 FTE (1110-
2700-1300) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.9 Principal time-.10 FTE (1110-
2700-1300) 

Action 10 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.10 Arrange for Spring & Fall field trips.         1.10 Arrange for 2 team building and 

collaboration field trips 
 1.10 Arrange for 2 team building and 

collaboration field trips 
 
Budgeted Expenditures 

597



Page 61 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.10 Transportation costs of school 
buses. (1110-1000-5830) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.10 Transportation costs of school 
buses. (1110-1000-5806-FT01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.10 Transportation costs of school 
buses. (1110-1000-5806-FT01) 

Action 11 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.11 -Create original videos 

 Narrate and act in project videos 
 Participate in stage performance 
 Produce podcasts 

 1.11 -Create original videos 
 Narrate and act in project videos 

 1.11 -Create original videos 
 Narrate and act in project videos 

598



Page 62 of 143

 Host Community Meetings 
 Utilize video interactive apps such 

as Skype 
 Act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 Participate in job shadows 
 Participate in professional 

internships 
 Participate in peer tutoring 

program (NWP and POUSD 
elementary sites) 

 Participate in stage 
performance/Theater/Improv 
Club 

 Produce podcasts 
 Host Community Meetings 
 Utilize video interactive apps such 

as Skype 
 Act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 Participate in job shadows 
 Participate in professional 

internships 
 Participate in peer tutoring 

program (NWP and POUSD 
elementary sites) 

 Participate in stage 
performance/Theater/Improv 
Club 

 Produce podcasts 
 Host Community Meetings 
 Utilize video interactive apps such 

as Skype 
 Act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 Participate in job shadows 
 Participate in professional 

internships 
 Participate in peer tutoring 

program (NWP and POUSD 
elementary sites) 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.11.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.11.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.11.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

Action 12 
599



Page 63 of 143

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.12 -Implement regular NWP evening 
Community Forums 

 Implement more student produced 
events (talent shows, dances, 
speaking competitions, debates, 
forums) 

 1.12 -Implement regular NWP evening 
Community Forums and Parent 
Workshops 

 Implement more student 
produced events (talent shows, 
dances, speaking competitions, 
debates, forums) 

 1.12 - Continue regular NWP evening 
Community Forums and Parent 
Workshops 

 Continue student produced 
events (talent shows, dances, 
speaking competitions, debates, 
forums) 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

600



Page 64 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,184  $1,203  $1,203 
        $1,184  $1,203  $1,203 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,184  $1,203  $1,203 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.12.a Hourly teacher overtime rate 
(1110-1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.12.a Hourly teacher overtime rate 
(1110-1000-1130-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.12.a Hourly teacher overtime rate 
(1110-1000-1130-SG01) 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.12.b Food/refreshments (1110-
1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.12.b Food/refreshments (1110-
1000-4390-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.12.b Food/refreshments (1110-
1000-4390-SG01) 

Action 13 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X Foster Youth         X LEA-wide          
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

601



Page 65 of 143

1.13 -Identify all support personnel 
associated with each foster youth 

 Be sure all supporters of foster 
youth are familiar with built-in 
supports such as the school 
website and staff emails 

 Report check-ins and progress 
reports to all supporters 

 Hold consistent staff check-ins 
regarding foster youth progress 

 Designate staff point-persons 
(liaisons) for each foster youth 
and their support personnel 

 1.13 -Identify all support personnel 
associated with each foster youth 

 Be sure all supporters of foster 
youth are familiar with built-in 
supports such as the school 
website and staff emails 

 Report check-ins and progress 
reports to all supporters 

 Hold consistent staff check-ins 
regarding foster youth progress 

 Designate staff point-persons 
(liaisons) for each foster youth 
and their support personnel 

 1.13 -Identify all support personnel 
associated with each foster youth 

 Be sure all supporters of foster 
youth are familiar with built-in 
supports such as the school 
website and staff emails 

 Report check-ins and progress 
reports to all supporters 

 Hold consistent staff check-ins 
regarding foster youth progress 

 Designate staff point-persons 
(liaisons) for each foster youth 
and their support personnel 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.6.a  See 1.1.a  See 1.1.a 
        See 1.6.a  See 1.1.a  See 1.1.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.6.a  See 1.1.a  See 1.1.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.13 Provide counseling on personal 
and group basis 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.13 Provide counseling on personal 
and group basis 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.13 Provide counseling on personal 
and group basis 

Action 14 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

602



Page 66 of 143

X Low Income         X LEA-wide          
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.14 -Designate a portion of ipads as 
overnight "loaners" 

 Designate one teacher each 
morning from 8-9am as the "on 
duty" IT Study Hall teacher. 

 1.14 -Designate a portion of ipads as 
overnight "loaners" 

 Designate one teacher each 
morning from 8-9am as the "on 
duty" IT Study Hall teacher. 

 1.14 -Designate a portion of ipads as 
overnight "loaners" 

 Designate one teacher each 
morning from 8-9am as the "on 
duty" IT Study Hall teacher. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional costs  No Additional costs  No Additional costs 
        No Additional costs  No Additional costs  No Additional costs Source        Base  Base  Base 
        No Additional costs  No Additional costs  No Additional costs Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.14 No extra cost 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.14 Highly Qualified Teachers 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.14 Highly Qualified Teachers 

 

603



Page 67 of 143

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California Common Core Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Teachers need to have opportunities for professional learning and collaborative time together to develop and refine teaching practices 
that support the California Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
All teachers participating in professional development related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project-Based Learning. 
 
Evidence of classroom practices related to the California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes are evident (student 
work products, lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
 
100% of classrooms demonstrating evidence of close reading, collaborative conversations, writing activities, and math instructional 
strategies aligned to the Common Core. 
 
25 or more hours of teacher professional development opportunities offered during the summer and school year. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: 
Foundational Skills -- Exemplary 
Online Skills -- Exemplary 
Multimedia Skills -- Exemplary 
Classroom Skills -- Exemplary (use of 4C's) 

604



Page 68 of 143

 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

# of teachers 
participating in 
professional 
development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project Based 
Learning. 
 
. 
 
 
 
        

 Teachers had 
opportunities for 
professional learning 
and collaborative time 
together to develop and 
refine teaching practices 
that support the 
California Common 
Core Standards and the 
District's Student 
Outcomes 
 
Two teachers 
participated in 
professional 
development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project Based 
Learning. Another 
teacher attended regular 
Teacher Induction 
Program sessions to 
develop and refine 
teaching practices that 
support the all students 
in CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project-
Based Learning and 
District's Student 
Outcomes. Exhibition 
presentations, student 
portfolio work by all 
students were evidence 

 100% of teachers 
 
 

 100% of teachers 
 
 

 100% of teachers 

605



Page 69 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

of academic reading and 
research, collaborative 
conversations, writing 
activities, and math 
instructional strategies 
aligned to the Common 
Core. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Evidence of classroom 
practices related to the 
California Common 
Core Standards and the 
District's Student 
Outcomes are evident 
(student work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics 
developed).        

 Baseline 17-18 100%  100% of classrooms  100% of classrooms  100% of classrooms 

% of classrooms 
demonstrating evidence 
of close reading, 
collaborative 
conversations, writing 
activities, and math 
instructional strategies 
aligned to the Common 
Core.        

 Two teachers 
participated in 
professional 
development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project Based 
Learning. Another 
teacher attended regular 
Teacher Induction 
Program sessions to 
develop and refine 
teaching practices that 

 100% 
 
 
 

 100% 
 
 
 

 100% 
 
 
 

606



Page 70 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

support the all students 
in CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project-
Based Learning and 
District's Student 
Outcomes. Exhibition 
presentations, student 
portfolio work by all 
students were evidence 
of academic reading and 
research, collaborative 
conversations, writing 
activities, and math 
instructional strategies 
aligned to the Common 
Core. 
 
 
6-YEAR PBL 
Instructional plan: Key 
Common Core 
standards were 
identified in each 
content area and 
aligned with PBL 6 yr. 
plan. 
 

# of hours of teacher 
professional 
development 
opportunities offered 
during the summer and 
school year. 
 
        

 Teachers used 3 
professional 
development days 
during the summer to 
work collaboratively to 
plan and design  multi-
disciplinary curriculum 
and student project work 
for the upcoming year 
that aligns directly with 

 25 hours  40 hours  25 or more hours 

607



Page 71 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

the California Common 
Core Content Standards 
and the District's 
Student Outcomes. 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.1 Establish regular schedule for grade 
level, cross grade level collaboration (1-2x 
per month during school day, after school) 
for teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction and 

 2.1 Establish regular schedule for grade 
level, cross grade level collaboration (1-2x 
per month during school day, after school) 
for teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction and 

 2.1 Establish regular schedule for grade 
level, cross grade level collaboration (1-2x 
per month during school day, after school) 
for teachers to review student work, 
develop rubrics, plan instruction and 

608



Page 72 of 143

reflect on teaching practice within and 
across grade levels. 
 
Provide more Professional 
Development/Teacher Planning Days: 
embedded in regular annual calendar. 
        

reflect on teaching practice within and 
across grade levels. 
 
Provide Professional 
Development/Teacher Planning Days: 
embedded in regular annual calendar. 
 

reflect on teaching practice within and 
across grade levels. 
 
Provide Professional 
Development/Teacher Planning Days: 
embedded in regular annual calendar. 
 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 
        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 Budget 
Reference        

 
2.1 No Extra Cost - Embedded in 
Regular Daily Schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1 No Extra Cost - Embedded in 
Regular Daily Schedule of Highly 
Qualified Teachers 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1 No Extra Cost - Embedded in 
Regular Daily Schedule of Highly 
Qualified Teachers 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 

609



Page 73 of 143

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.2 Provide time for teachers to design 
systems for gathering data that can be 
shared externally to demonstrate student 
achievement.        

 2.2 Provide time for teachers to design 
systems for gathering data that can be 
shared externally to demonstrate student 
achievement - time embedded in regular 
school year calendar 

 2.2 Provide time for teachers to implement 
systems for gathering data that can be 
shared externally to demonstrate student 
achievement - time embedded in regular 
school year calendar 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source        Supplemental  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2 Professional Development Days 
for teachers at Daily Rate 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2 Highly Qualified Teachers 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.2 Highly Qualified Teachers 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

610



Page 74 of 143

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.3 Provide formal and information 
professional learning opportunities 
focused on instructional practices aligned 
with the District Student Outcomes (e.g., 
writing, PBL, Next Generation Science 
Standards, technology and math).        

 2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
focused on instructional practices aligned 
with the District Student Outcomes (e.g., 
PBL, Next Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math). including meeting 
WASC and other accreditation 
requirements - Time embedded in regular 
school calendar 

 2.3 Provide formal and informal 
professional learning opportunities 
focused on instructional practices aligned 
with the District Student Outcomes (e.g., 
PBL, Next Generation Science Standards, 
technology and math). including meeting 
WASC and other accreditation 
requirements - Time embedded in regular 
school calendar 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,184  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        $1,184  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source        Supplemental  Base  Base 
        $1,184  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.a Professional Development 
Days (1 voluntary) (1110-1000-1130-
SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3 Highly Qualified Teachers 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3 Highly Qualified Teachers 

611



Page 75 of 143

Amount        See 1.2.a     
        See 1.2.a     Source        Base     
        See 1.2.a     Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.b Professional Development Day 
for 6 year planning 

  
 

  
 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.4 Provide opportunities for teachers to 
observe in other classrooms and engage 
in collaborative dialog around professional 
practices.        

 2.4 Provide opportunities for teachers to 
observe in other classrooms and engage 
in collaborative dialog around professional 
practices. 

 2.4 Provide opportunities for teachers to 
observe in other classrooms and engage 
in collaborative dialog around professional 
practices. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

612



Page 76 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  $1,037  $1,085 
        No Additional Costs  $1,037  $1,085 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No Additional Costs  $1,037  $1,085 Budget 
Reference        

 
2.4 No additional cost - embedded in 
daily program. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.4 - Subs for teachers - (0000-1110-
1000-1149-SGPD) 
 
 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.4 - Subs for teachers - (0000-1110-
1000-1149-SGPD) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.5 Develop units of study aligned with 
CCSS Math and Next Gen Science, 
including formative and summative 
assessments across grades 7-12.        

 2.5 Continue to develop units of study 
aligned with CCSS Math and Next Gen 
Science, including formative and 
summative assessments across grades 7-
12. 

 2.5 Continue to develop units of study 
aligned with CCSS Math and Next Gen 
Science, including formative and 
summative assessments across grades 7-
12. 

613



Page 77 of 143

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

 
2.5.a No additional cost - embedded 
in daily schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5.a No additional cost - embedded 
in daily schedule of Highly Qualified 
Teachers 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5.a No additional cost - embedded 
in daily schedule of Highly Qualified 
Teachers 

Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

 
2.5.b Professional development 
focused on Next Generation Science 
Standards - no additional cost - 
embedded in program 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5.b Professional development 
focused on Math and Next 
Generation Science Standards - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
program of Highly Qualified 
Teachers 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5.b Professional development 
focused on Math and Next 
Generation Science Standards - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
program of Highly Qualified 
Teachers 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

614



Page 78 of 143

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.6 Continue development of common 
assessments for writing and integrated 
projects.        

 2.6 Continue development of common 
assessments for writing and integrated 
projects. 

 2.6 Continue development of common 
assessments for writing and integrated 
projects. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

 
2.6 No additional cost - embedded in 
daily schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6 No additional cost - embedded in 
daily schedule of Highly Qualified 
Teachers 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.6 No additional cost - embedded in 
daily schedule of Highly Qualified 
Teachers 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide          
 

615



Page 79 of 143

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.7 Develop and encourage more 
opportunities for EL students to verbally 
express themselves in English.  

 create original videos 
 narrate and act in project videos 
 participate in stage performance 
 produce podcasts 
 host Community Meetings 
 utilize video interactive apps such 

as Skype 
 act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 participate in job shadows 
 participate in professional 

internships 
 participate in peer tutoring 

program (NWP and POUSD 
elementary sites) 

 2.7 Develop and encourage more 
opportunities for EL students to verbally 
express themselves in English.  

 create original videos 
 narrate and act in project videos 
 participate in stage performance 
 produce podcasts 
 host Community Meetings 
 utilize video interactive apps such 

as Skype 
 act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 participate in job shadows 
 participate in professional 

internships 
 participate in peer tutoring 

program (NWP and POUSD 
elementary sites) 

 offer a 
Theater/Improv/Performance 
Club after school 

 2.7 Develop and encourage more 
opportunities for EL students to verbally 
express themselves in English.  

 create original videos 
 narrate and act in project videos 
 participate in stage performance 
 produce podcasts 
 host Community Meetings 
 utilize video interactive apps such 

as Skype 
 act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 participate in job shadows 
 participate in professional 

internships 
 participate in peer tutoring 

program (NWP and POUSD 
elementary sites) 

 offer a 
Theater/Improv/Performance 
Club after school 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

616



Page 80 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.7.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide          
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
617



Page 81 of 143

 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.8 Inform parents of EL student progress 
and programs        

 2.8 Monitor progress of and communicate 
with parents of EL student progress and 
programs 

 2.8 Monitor progress of and communicate 
with parents of EL student progress and 
programs 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,000  $3,476  $3,500 
        $1,000  $3,476  $3,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $3,476  $3,500 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8 Outreach worker to translate 
information (4760-1000-2100-SG02) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8 Outreach worker to translate 
information (4760-1000-2100-SG02) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
2.8 Outreach worker to translate 
information (4760-1000-2100-SG02) 

 

618



Page 82 of 143

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in skills for future success such as literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive 
collaboration, critical and creative thinking, effective communication. 
 
Students need to develop proficiency in academic language (all) and English language skills (EL). 
 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in the use of digital tools for research (accessing information), evaluating sources, digital 
citizenship, communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career readiness. 
 
Students need to develop physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
 
Increased participation in Academic Exhibitions 
 

619



Page 83 of 143

Completion of all semester project benchmarks 
 
College applications 
 
Concurrent enrollment at local Junior College 
 
Participation in Crossroads (career exploration) job shadows, volunteer opportunities, and professional internships. 
 
90% of students in grades read grade level literary and informational text with accuracy and comprehension. 
 
Math 65% students score at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
 
CAASPP Results: 
 
Graduation Rate (9-12) 

 All students scored High status or above. 
 Socioeconomically-disadvantaged subgroup scored Medium status or above. 

English Language Arts (11th grade) 

 All students and subgroups scored above level 3 and increased or increased significantly. 

Math (11th grade) 

 All students and subgroups scored above level 3 and increased or increased significantly. 

English Language Arts (7-8th grade) 

 All students and subgroups scored above level 3 and increased or increased significantly. 

Math (7-8th grade) 

 All students and subgroups scored above level 3 and increased or increased significantly. 

CELDT: 40% of EL students score in the Early Advanced/Advanced range. 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey Results: 
 

620



Page 84 of 143

1) Student Classroom Skills:  
 
Student use of 4 C's - Exemplary 
 
Digital Citizenship - Exemplary 
 
2) Student Access:  
 
At School - Exemplary 
 
At Home - Exemplary 
 
3) Student Skills general:  
 
Foundational - Exemplary 
 
Online - Exemplary 
 
4) Environment Overall: 
 
Policies and Procedures - Exemplary 
 
Support - Advanced 
 
Beliefs - Exemplary 
 
Prof. Learning - Advanced 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th and 9th grades):  
 
Aerobic Capacity -- 90% 
 
Body Composition -- 85% 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Broad Course of Study  100%  100%  100%  100% 
621



Page 85 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

Participation in 
Exhibitions 
Move It Participation 
Crossroads Participation 
 
 
        

100% 
100% 
100% 
 
 
 
 

100% 
100% 
100% 
 
 

100% 
100% 
100% 
 
 

100% 
100% 
100% 
 
 
 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 7,8,11) 
Previous Year 
 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange: 
        

 (2016-2017 Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
 
12.7 points below 
standard 
Increased 7.7 points 
No Performance Color 
(due to # of students) 
 
NA (too low of numbers) 
 

 (2016-2017  Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
 
12.7 points below 
standard 
Improved 7.7 points 
No Performance Color 
(due to # of students) 
 
NA (too low of numbers) 
 

 (2017-2018  Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
 
10.6 points below 
standard 
Improved 4.2 points 
Orange 
 
NA (too low of numbers) 
 

 (2018-2019   Dashboard 
Goal) 
 
 
 
12 points below 
standard 
Improve 3 points 
Yellow 
 
NA (too low of numbers) 
 

 
Math Academic 
Indicator 
(CAASPP 7,8,11) 
Previuos Year 
 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange: 
        

 (2016-2017  Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
 
79.8 points below 
standard 
Declined 5.8 points 
No Performance Color 
(due to # of students) 
 
NA (too low of numbers) 
 

 (2016-2017  Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
 
79.8 points below 
standard 
Declined 5.8 points 
No Performance Color 
(due to # of students) 
 
NA (too low of numbers) 
 

 (2017-2018  Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
 
110.7 points below 
standard 
Declined 27.5 points 
Orange 
 
NA (too low of numbers) 
 

 (2018-2019  Dashboard 
Goal) 
 
 
 
108 points below 
standard 
Improve 3 points 
Yellow 
 
NA (too low of numbers) 
 

Graduation Rate 
Academic Indicator (12) 
Previous Year 

 (2016-2017  Dashboard 
Data) 
 

 (2016-2017  Dashboard 
Data) 
 

 (2017-2018  Dashboard 
Data) 
 

 (2018-2019  Dashboard 
Goal) 
 

622



Page 86 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 
 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
        

 
 
68% 
Declined 7.5% 
No performance color 
 

 
 
68% 
Declined 7.5% 
No performance color 
 

 
 
78% 
Increased 14% 
No performance color 
 
 
 

 
 
90% 
Improve 12% 
No performance color 
 

 
English Learner 
Indicator 
        

 2015: 75% 
2016: 81% 
2017: 100% 
 

 Well Developed: 46% 
Moderately Developed: 
31% 
Somewhat Developed: 
15% 
Beginning Stage: 8% 
 

 State is changing the 
English Learner 
Indicator 

 TBD 

College and Career 
Indicator (12) 
 
 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
        

 (2016-2017  Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
10% 
NA 
NA 
 

 (2016-2017 Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
10% 
NA 
NA 
 

 (2017-2018  Dashboard 
Data) 
 
 
6% 
Declined 4% 
No performance color 
 

 (2018-2019  Dashboard 
Goal) 
 
 
10% 
Increased 4% 
No performance color 
 

Participation in 
Academic Exhibitions        

 100%  100%     

Physical Fitness Test 
(7th and 9th grades): 
Aerobic Capacity -7th 
Aerobic Capacity -9th 
 
        

 (2015-2016 Data) 
72% 
61% 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
82% 
47% 
 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
20% 
29% 
 

 (2018-2019 Goal) 
82% 
47% 
 

 
Body Composition -7th 
Body Composition -9th 
        

 (2015-2016 Data) 
50% 
70% 
 

 (2016-2017 Data) 
65% 
53% 
 

 (2017-2018 Data) 
60% 
41% 
 

 (2018-2019 Goal) 
65% 
53% 
 

623



Page 87 of 143

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.1 Assess student progress toward 
mastery of content standards. Teachers to 
link standard to project work and publish 
on school website.        

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
mastery of content standards. Teachers to 
link standard to project work and publish 
on school website. 

 3.1 Assess and report student progress 
toward mastery of content standards (as 
per WASC critical areas for growth). 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

624



Page 88 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.1.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 

625



Page 89 of 143

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.2 Implement Project-based 
learning/Inquiry Methods focused on 
integrated units of study aligned with 
California content standards.        

 3.2 Continue to implement Project-based 
learning/Inquiry Methods focused on 
integrated units of study aligned with 
California content standards. 

 3.2 Continue to implement Project-based 
learning/Inquiry Methods focused on units 
of study aligned with California content 
standards. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.b Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - reduced 
class size - average of 20 students 
per teacher 

Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

 
Collaboration Time - embedded in 
schedule - no extra cost 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
Collaboration Time - embedded in 
schedule - no extra cost 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
Collaboration Time - embedded in 
schedule - no extra cost 

626



Page 90 of 143

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills.        

 3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills. 

 3.3 Provide instruction to students in 
developing literacy, research and digital 
citizenship skills. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

627



Page 91 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

 
3.3 Professional development for 
teachers focused on digital/media 
literacy and digital citizenship - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
schedule. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3 Professional development for 
teachers focused on digital/media 
literacy and digital citizenship - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
schedule. 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3 Professional development for 
teachers focused on digital/media 
literacy and digital citizenship - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
schedule. 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.4 Provide tiers of support for students 
who need targeted instruction and 
academic intervention.        

 3.4 Provide tiers of support for students 
who need targeted instruction and 
academic intervention. 

 3.4 Provide tiers of support for students 
who need targeted instruction and 
academic intervention. 

 
628



Page 92 of 143

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working 
with students in differentiated 
groupings 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working with 
students in differentiated groupings 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.a Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working with 
students in differentiated groupings 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working 
with students in differentiated 
groupings - reduced class size - 
average of 20 students per teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working with 
students in differentiated groupings - 
reduced class size - average of 20 
students per teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned - working with 
students in differentiated groupings - 
reduced class size - average of 20 
students per teacher 

Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

 
Collaboration time to review student 
data, group students for targeted 
instruction, and evaluate student 
progress - no additional cost - 
embedded in daily schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
Collaboration time to review student 
data, group students for targeted 
instruction, and evaluate student 
progress - no additional cost - 
embedded in daily schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
Collaboration time to review student 
data, group students for targeted 
instruction, and evaluate student 
progress - no additional cost - 
embedded in daily schedule 

629



Page 93 of 143

Amount          $43,435  $44,500 
          $43,435  $44,500 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          $43,435  $44,500 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.c Program Assistant time to 
assist students of concern  (1110-
1000-2100-SG03) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.c Program Assistant time to 
assist students of concern (1110-
1000-2100-SG03) 

Amount          $4,672  $4,672 
          $4,672  $4,672 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          $4,672  $4,672 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.d  Additional certificated time to 
provide Acellus support for students 
of concern  (1110-1000-1130-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4.d  Additional certificated time to 
provide Acellus support for students 
of concern  (1110-1000-1130-SG03) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

630



Page 94 of 143

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.5 Implement instructional strategies to 
promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices and English Language 
Development during the school day.        

 3.5 Implement instructional strategies to 
promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices and English Language 
Development during the school day. 

 3.5 Implement instructional strategies to 
promote academic discourse, structured 
language practices and English Language 
Development during the school day. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

 
3.5.a Professional development 
focused on instructional strategies - 
no extra cost embedded in daily 
schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5.a Professional development 
focused on instructional strategies - 
no extra cost embedded in daily 
schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5.a Professional development 
focused on instructional strategies - 
no extra cost embedded in daily 
schedule 

Amount        No Additional Costs  $600  $600 
        No Additional Costs  $600  $600 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
        No Additional Costs  $600  $600 Budget 
Reference        

 
3.5.b Consultation with SCOE EL 
Coordinator - no cost 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.5.b Facilitation/Consultation with 
SCOE EL Coordinator  (4760-1000-
5830-SGPD) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.5.b Facilitation/Consultation with 
PD provider (4760-1000-5830-
SGPD) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

631



Page 95 of 143

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.6 Student engagement in NWP 
Crossroads program through further 
curriculum development and coordination.        

 3.6 Student engagement in NWP 
Crossroads program through further 
curriculum development and coordination. 

 3.6 Student engagement in NWP 
Crossroads program through further 
curriculum development and coordination. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  See 1.2  See 1.2 Budget 
Reference        

 
3.6 Collaborative planning time and 
administrator and counselor planning 
time - no additional cost - embedded 
in daily program 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6 Collaborative planning time and 
administrator and counselor planning 
time - no additional cost - embedded 
in daily program 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6 Collaborative planning time and 
administrator and counselor planning 
time - no additional cost - embedded 
in daily program 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
632



Page 96 of 143

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.7 Continued approval of more A-G 
courses including Integrated Math, Foreign 
Language and Integrated Science.        

 3.7 Continued approval of more A-G 
courses including Integrated Math, Foreign 
Language and Integrated Science. 

 3.7 College and career preparedness: 
Continued approval and implementation of 
more A-G courses including higher level 
Math and Science, Visual and Performing 
Arts courses, and AP courses (Acellus, AP 
College Board, and other online supports). 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $500  $3,000 
        $500  $500  $3,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $3,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7 Math, Science and FL Teacher 
time: hourly rate (1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7 Math, Science, Visual Arts and 
Foreign Language Teacher time: 
hourly rate (1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7 College Prep materials and 
subscriptions (Acellus, AP College 
Board, etc.) and Acellus Teacher 
time: hourly rate (1110-1000-1130) 

633



Page 97 of 143

Amount            $8,000 
            $8,000 Source            LCFF Base 
            $8,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Acellus subscription (0000-1110-
1000-5840-0000) 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.8 Identify key state standards and align 
with the school's Project Based Learning 
six year plan.        

 3.8 Identify key CCSS and develop 
curriculum that aligns with the school's 
Project Based Learning six year plan 

 3.8 Align curriculum and assessments with 
CCSS and develop academic and 
leadership assessments and performance 
tasks that track student progress and align 
with the school's Project Based Learning 
and Leadership skills work (as per WASC 
critical areas for growth). 

 
634



Page 98 of 143

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $5,685  $6,013 
        $500  $5,685  $6,013 Source        Base  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $5,685  $6,013 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.8 Staff time (1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.8 3 Extra Duty days during 
summer (1110-1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.8 3 Extra Duty days during 
summer (1110-1000-1130-SGPD) 

Action 9 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.9 Increase Math Instructional time by 
hiring a .40 FTE Science Teacher to 
complement current assigned .60 FTE 
Science Teacher to equal 1.0 FTE total.        

    

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

635



Page 99 of 143

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $26,882     
        $26,882     Source        Base     
        $26,882     Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9 Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned  (1110-1000-
1100) 

  
 

  
 

Action 10 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.10 Provide time to design systems to 
gather data that can be shared externally 
to demonstrate student achievement.        

 3.10 Provide time to design systems to 
gather data that can be shared externally 
to demonstrate student achievement. 

 3.10 Provided time to design systems to 
gather data, create, and implement rubrics 
and update performance data and portfolio 
defenses that can be shared externally to 
demonstrate student achievement. 

 
636



Page 100 of 143

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
regular daily and yearly schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in regular 
daily and yearly schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.10 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in regular 
daily and yearly schedule 

Action 11 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 

637



Page 101 of 143

3.11 -create original videos 
 narrate and act in project videos 
 participate in stage performance 
 produce podcasts 
 host Community Meetings 
 utilize video interactive apps such 

as Skype 
 act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 participate in job shadows 
 participate in professional 

internships 
 participate in peer tutoring 

program (NWP and POUSD 
elementary sites) 

 3.11 -create original videos 
 narrate and act in project videos 
 participate in stage performance 
 produce podcasts 
 host Community Meetings 
 utilize video interactive apps such 

as Skype 
 act as school tour guides 
 PR presentations 
 participate in job shadows 
 participate in professional 

internships 
 participate in peer tutoring 

program (NWP and POUSD 
elementary sites) 

 offer Theater/Improv/performance 
club after school 

 3.11 -create/archive videos and exhibition 
materials/artifacts 

 narrate and act in project videos 
 participate in performances 
 produce media 

presentations/marketing 
materials 

 host Community Meetings 
 utilize academic support apps 
 act as school tour/shadow guides 
 PR/recruitment presentations 
 participate in job shadows 
 participate in in- and ex-ternships 
 -offer clubs after school 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11.a Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b  See 1.2.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.11.b Highly qualified teacher 
appropriately assigned - small class 
sizes - average of 20 students per 
teacher 

638



Page 102 of 143

Action 12 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.12 Document post project student 
leadership skills assessment results over a 
six year period.        

 3.12 Continue to develop a portfolio 
process that documents post project 
student leadership skills assessment 
results over a six year period. 

 3.12 Continued to develop a portfolio 
process that documents performance and 
project work and tracks student leadership 
skills progress (as per WASC critical areas 
for growth). 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.12 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in 
regular daily & yearly schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.12 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in regular 
daily & yearly schedule 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.12 Highly qualified teachers 
appropriately assigned - no 
additional cost - embedded in regular 
daily & yearly schedule 

 

639



Page 103 of 143

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Parents need access to up-to-date information on school events, student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional 
goals to support their child's education. 
Parents need to feel a sense of connection and engagement with the school community. 
 
70% or more of NWP families return the parent engagement and involvement form at the beginning of the year. 
75% or more of NWP families attend school events. 
An increasing amount of parents volunteers 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

% return of the parent 
engagement and 

 58%  (actual) 
 

 68%  (actual) 
 

 61% (actual)  >50% 

640



Page 104 of 143

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

involvement form at the 
beginning of the year. 
 
 
        

 
 

 
 
 

% families attendance at 
school events        

 65%  70%  85% (actual)  75%+ 

# of parent volunteers         18-19 baseline 
 
 

 NA  35  36+ 

My Voice Survey-
Parents 
Number of Respondents 
Feel welcome at School 
Parent/evenings/meetin
g are worth attendeing 
        

 NA  NA   
10 
100% 
80% 
 

  
20 
>90% 
>75% 
 

Event Attendees         Baseline 18-19  NA  400  400+ 
 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

641



Page 105 of 143

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.1 Implement parent engagement and 
involvement via 2X per year mailing home 
the year Parent Involvement/Volunteer 
Form. Document and keep list of parent 
volunteers for use throughout the year.        

 4.1 Implement parent engagement and 
involvement via 2X per year mailing home 
the year Parent Involvement/Volunteer 
Form. Document and keep list of parent 
volunteers for use throughout the year. 

 4.1 Implement parent engagement and 
involvement via 2X per year mailing home 
the year Parent Involvement/Volunteer 
Form. Document and keep list of parent 
volunteers for use throughout the year. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $8,688  See 1.9  See 1.9 
        $8,688  See 1.9  See 1.9 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $8,688  See 1.9  See 1.9 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1 Highly Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned-10% of 
salary (2700-1000-1300) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1 Highly Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned-.10 FTE of 
salary (2700-1000-1300) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.1 Highly Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned-.10 FTE of 
salary (2700-1000-1300) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

642



Page 106 of 143

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.2 Involve parents in School/Community 
events that showcase student learning 
(exhibitions, performances, etc.)        

 4.2 Involve parents in School/Community 
events that showcase student learning 
(exhibitions, performances, etc.) 

 4.2 Involve parents in School/Community 
events that showcase student learning 
(exhibitions, performances, etc.) 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.2 Equipment & Supplies (1110-
1000-4310-BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.2 Equipment & Supplies (1110-
1000-4310-BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.2 Equipment & Supplies (1110-
1000-4310-BG04) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

643



Page 107 of 143

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.3 Offer virtual meetings -- AnyMeeting, 
Google Hangouts, etc.) to provide greater 
access to parent engagement.        

 4.3 Offered virtual meetings -- Google 
Hangouts, etc. to provide greater access 
to parent engagement. 

 4.3 Offered virtual meetings -- Google 
Hangouts, etc. to provide greater access 
to parent engagement. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 
        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 Budget 
Reference        

 
4.3 AnyMeeting annual subscription 
- through District - no cost to NWP 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3 No cost for virtual programs 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.3 No cost for virtual programs 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

644



Page 108 of 143

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.4 Use social media across the district 
and at school sites to promote an 
understanding of educational program and 
successes.        

 4.4 Use social media across the district 
and at school sites to promote an 
understanding of educational program and 
successes. 

 4.4 Use social media across the district 
and at school sites to promote an 
understanding of educational program and 
successes. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 
        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 Source          Base  Base 
        No Additional Costs  $0  $0 Budget 
Reference        

 
4.4 No additional cost - embedded in 
program 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.4 No cost for using Twitter on a 
semi-regular basis 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.4 No cost for using Twitter on a 
semi-regular basis 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

645



Page 109 of 143

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.5 Update District and School websites to 
create a more welcoming presence and 
accessible information.        

 4.5 Update District and School websites to 
create a more welcoming presence and 
accessible information. 

 4.5 Update District and School websites to 
create a more welcoming presence and 
accessible information. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $40  $60  $60 
        $40  $60  $60 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $40  $60  $60 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.2.a Weebly Templates  (2700-
4340-BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.2.a Weebly Templates & Weebly 
Pro Subscription  (2700-4340-BG04) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.2.a Weebly Templates & Weebly 
Pro Subscription  (2700-4340-BG04) 

Amount        $20     
        $20     Source        Base     
        $20     Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.2.b Weebly Pro Subscription  
(2700-4340-BG04) 

  
 

  
 

Amount        $2,995  $3,000  $3,000 
        $2,995  $3,000  $3,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $2,995  $3,000  $3,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
LCAP Infographic (1110-1000-5830-
BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.2 c Illuminate parent portal and 
LCAP Infographics  (1110-1000-
5830-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.2 c Illuminate parent portal and 
LCAP Infographics  (1110-1000-
5830-BG04) 

Action 6 

646



Page 110 of 143

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide         X All Schools        
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.6 Translation of forms and other 
communications        

 4.6 Translation of forms and other 
communications 

 4.6 Translation of forms and other 
communications 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 2.8  See 2.8  See 2.8 
        See 2.8  See 2.8  See 2.8 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        See 2.8  See 2.8  See 2.8 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.6 Outreach Worker 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.6 Outreach Worker 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.6 Outreach Worker 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

647



Page 111 of 143

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Modified Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.7 Engage and encourage parents to 
complete My Voice and Bright Bytes 
surveys.        

 4.7 Engage and encourage parents to 
complete My Voice surveys. 

 4.7 Engage and encourage parents to 
complete My Voice surveys. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $400  $400  $400 
        $400  $400  $400 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $400  $400  $400 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.7 My Voice, Bright Bytes (2700-
5880) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.7 My Voice (2700-5880-SG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.7 My Voice (2700-5880-SG04) 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

648



Page 112 of 143

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.8 Add blog page to NWP school website            
 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Costs     
        No Additional Costs             No Additional Costs     Budget 
Reference        

 
4.8 No cost 

  
 

  
 

 

649



Page 113 of 143

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$99,422  11.01% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Northwest Prep has budgeted $205,499 on additional classroom teacher time to reduce the class size to 20 or less in each grade level 
which helps all students in the school including those identified as low income, English learners or foster youth. Northwest Prep's 
unduplicated count for 2019-2020 is 53% exceeding the 40% which allows supplemental grant funds to be expended on school-wide 
programs. In addition, Northwest Prep spends $56,591 on counseling time for all students, specifically targeting foster youth. The 
$99,422 in estimated supplemental grant funding is based on the Governor's May Revise Budget. Northwest Prep has budgeted over 
100% of the supplemental grant funds allocated in 2019-2020 on reducing class size and counseling to provide effective education for 
students designated as low-income, English learners, or foster youth.  
 
Northwest Prep Charter School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs 
of low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based 
on staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner, and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 
site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input. 
 
Funds expended will be used in the following significant ways (which is in response to the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services" in 17-18 section. 

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

650



Page 114 of 143

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and MTSS 

support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 2, 4, & 6. 
 Professional development to support providing ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices. See LCAP Goal 2 

and State Priorities 2 & 4. 
 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD content class 

supports for ELD students. Added credit recovery and enrichment opportunities (Acellus/AP) and more A-G opportunities for 
students who may have barriers to or not be able to access/take/attend JC classes. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 
4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(contract with PD supports and follow-up at site, 10% FTE technology coach, and 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services 
assisting with the development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students). 
See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Northwest Prep Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
Supporting Research Document for Effective NWP Programs/Services can be found in the LCAP Year 2017-2018 section below. 
 
------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$91,921  10.5% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 

651



Page 115 of 143

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Northwest Prep has budgeted $77,468 on additional classroom teacher time to reduce the class size to 20 or less in each grade level 
which helps all students in the school including those identified as low income, English learners or foster youth. Northwest Prep's 
unduplicated count for 2017-2018 is 61% exceeding the 40% which allows supplemental grant funds to be expended on school-wide 
programs. In addition, Northwest Prep spends $33,214 on counseling time for all students, specifically targeting foster youth. The 
$91,921 in estimated supplemental grant funding is based on the January Governor's Budget. Northwest Prep has budgeted over 
100% of the supplemental grant funds allocated in 2017-2018 on reducing class size and counseling to provide effective education for 
students designated as low-income, English learners, or foster youth.  
 
Northwest Prep Charter School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs 
of low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based 
on staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner, and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 
site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input. 
 
Funds expended will be used in the following significant ways (which is in response to the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services:" 

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and MTSS 

support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 2, 4, & 6. 
 Professional development to support providing ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices. See LCAP Goal 2 

and State Priorities 2 & 4. 
 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD content class 

supports for ELD students. Added credit recovery and enrichment opportunities (Acellus/AP) and more A-G opportunities for 
students who may have barriers to or not be able to access/take/attend JC classes. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 
4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(contract with PD supports and follow-up at site, 10% FTE technology coach, and 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services 

652



Page 116 of 143

assisting with the development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students). 
See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Northwest Prep Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
Supporting Research Document for Effective NWP Programs/Services can be found in the LCAP Year 2017-2018 section below.------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$76,631  9.22% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Northwest Prep has budgeted $50,844 on additional classroom teacher time to reduce the class size to 20 or less in each grade level 
which helps all students in the school including those identified as low income, English learners or foster youth. Northwest Prep's 
unduplicated count for 2017-2018 is 56% exceeding the 40% which allows supplemental grant funds to be expended on school-wide 
programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting Economically-disadvantaged, Foster Youth, or English learner 
students. In addition, Northwest Prep spends $18,000 on counseling time for all students, but specifically for foster youth. The $76,631 
in estimated supplemental grant funding is based on the May Revise budget. Northwest Prep has budgeted over 100% of the 
supplemental grant funds allocated in 2017-2018 on reducing class size and counseling to provide effective education for students 
designated as low-income, English learners or foster youth. The 9.22% MPP amount is based on the Governor's May Revise Budget 
information. 
 

653



Page 117 of 143

Northwest Prep Charter School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs 
of low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based 
on staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner, and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 
site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input.  
 
Funds expended will be used in the following significant ways (which is in response to the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services:"  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 
2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices. See LCAP Goal 2 
and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD content class 
supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at site, 10% FTE technology coach, and 8% FTE Director of Intervention 
Services assisting with the development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL 
students). See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Northwest Prep Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
 
Supporting Research Document for Effective NWP Programs/Services: 

654



Page 118 of 143

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. 

Reviews of the research on school counseling show that the services of school counselors have a positive effect on children: 
 
1. Borders, L.D., & Drury, S.M. (1992). Comprehensive school counseling programs: A review for policymakers and practitioners. 
Journal of Counseling and Development, 70, 487-498.  
 
2. St. Clair, K.L. (1989). Middle school counseling research: A resource for school counselors. Elementary School Guidance & 
Counseling, 23, 219-226.  
 
3. Whitson, S.C., & Sexton, T.L. (1998). A review of school counseling outcome research: implications for practice. Journal of 
Counseling & Development, 76, 412-426.  
 
Quantitative analyses of research (meta-analyses) also substantiate the beneficial effects of school counseling programs: 
 
1. Prout, H.T. & Demartino, R.A. (1986). A meta-analysis of school-based studies of psychotherapy. Journal of School 
Psychology, 24, 285-292.  
 
2. Sprinthall, N.A. (1981). A new model for research in the science of guidance and counseling. The Personnel and Guidance Journal, 
59, 487-493. 
 
School counseling programs have significant influence on discipline problems. Baker and Gerler reported that students who 
participated in a school counseling program had significantly less inappropriate behaviors and more positive attitudes toward school 
than those students who did not participate in the program. Another study reported that group counseling provided by school 
counselors significantly decreased participants' aggressive and hostile behaviors: 
 
1. Baker, S. B., & Gerler, E. R. (2001). Counseling in schools. In D. C. Locke, J. E. Myers, and E. L. Herr (Eds.), The Handbook of 
Counseling, Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications.  
 
2. Omizo, M.M., Hershberger, J.M., & Omizo, S.A. (1988). Teaching children to cope with anger. Elementary School Guidance & 
Counseling, 22, 241-245. 
 

655



Page 119 of 143

School counselors are also very effective in assisting middle school children in the area of career development (Whiston, S. C., 
Sexton, T. L., & Lasoff, D. L. (1998). Career-intervention outcome: A replication and extension of Oliver and Spokane (1988). Journal 
of Counseling Psychology, 45, 150-165). 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention. 

The heart of any Response-to-Intervention (RTI) model lies in the use of tiered instructional processes. Although the assessment 
components of RTI (universal screening and progress monitoring) are essential elements of implementation, it is the instruction that 
occurs as a function of the outcomes of the assessments that truly drives the changes we hope to see in students who are identified 
as being at risk for not meeting academic expectations. Tiered instruction represents a model in which the instruction delivered to 
students varies on several dimensions that are related to the nature and severity of the student's difficulties.  
 
When a tiered framework is applied schoolwide, with all students and addressing academic and/or behavioral curricular instruction, it 
is often termed a multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS). Researchers interested in MTSS in early reading have suggested that if high 
quality reading instruction and reading interventions are not provided, at-risk readers will continue to struggle into later grades and will 
routinely be identified for special education programs (Juel, 1998; Lyon, 2005; Moats, 1999; Torgesen, 2007). The quality of instruction 
has been found to be influential on student academic outcomes (Darling-Hammond, 2000; Foorman, Francis, Fletcher, 
Schatschneider, Mehta, 1998; Haager, Klingner, & Vaughn, 2007; O’Connor, Fulmer, Harty, & Bell, 2005).  
 
When implementing MTSS/RTI, professional development focuses on instructional features, as well as the academic or behavior 
content and skills, to build teacher capacity and improve instruction (Vaughn, et al., 2008; Knight & Michel, 2011). Universal supports, 
also referred to as Tier 1 instruction, are the initial focus of MTSS/RTI implementation. Universal supports are provided in general 
education and are provided to all students (Speece, Case, & Molloy, 2003). This level of support is characterized by its focus on high-
quality initial instruction, grounded in research, and provided to all students. Providing evidence-based instruction and supports for an 
academic content area or for the social, emotional, or behavioral development in all students has been supported as a way to prevent 
future deficits (Doabler, Cary, Jungjohann, Clarke, Fien, Baker, Smolkowski, & Chard, 2012; Greenwood, Horner, & Kratochwill, 2008). 
A strong implementation of universal level support is the first step in reducing the number of students who will require more targeted 
and/or intensive supports (Nelson, Hurley, Synhorst, & Epstein, 2008; Torgesen, Alexander, Wagner, Rashotte, Voeller, & Conway, 
2001).  
 
The term Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) has been described as a comprehensive system of differentiated supports that 
includes evidence-based instruction, universal screening, progress monitoring, formative assessment, research-based interventions 
matched to student needs, and educational decision-making using student outcome data (Chard, Harn, Horner, Simmons, & Kame-
enui, 2008). MTSS/RTI helps provide all students, from all backgrounds, equal educational opportunity - regardless of the academic or 
behavioral difficulties they face - especially as issues of disproportionality exist in learning disability identification (Harry & Klingner, 

656



Page 120 of 143

2006; McCall & Skrtic, 2009). Considering the focus of MTSS/RTI is prevention (Chard, et al., 2008), reflecting on system issues 
provides focus to improve schools and instruction and therefore student success (Sailor, 2009a). 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. 

The following research indicates a critical need for effective professional development to support providing designated and integrated 
ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices: 
 
1. California Department of Education. (2010). Improving education for English learners: Research-based approaches. Sacramento, 
CA: Author.  
 
2. Calderón, M., August, D., Slavin, R., Duran, D., Madden, N., and Cheung, A. (2005). Bring words to life in classrooms with English 
language learners. In E. H. Hiebert and M. L. Kamil (Eds.), Teaching and learning vocabulary: Bringing research to practice. Mahwah, 
NJ: Erlbraum. 
 
3. Dutro, S., and Kinsella, K. (2010). English language development: Issues and implementation at grades six through twelve. In F. 
Ong and V. Aguilar (Eds.) Improving Education for English Learners: Research?Based Approaches. Sacramento, CA: California 
Department of Education. 
 
4. Goldenberg, C. (2008). Teaching English language learners: What the research does—and does not—say. American Educator, 
32(2), p. 8–23, 42–44. 
 
5. Sato, E., Lagunoff, R., & Yeagley, P. (in press). Academic Language and the Common Core State Standards: Implications for State 
and District Implementation and Supporting the Achievement of English Language Learners. San Francisco, CA: WestEd. 
 
6. Short, D., Echevarría, J., and Richards?Tutor, C. (2011). Research on academic literacy development in sheltered classrooms. 
Language Teaching Research 15(3), 363–380. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. 

Regardless of the overall program structure in school systems, the Institute of Education Sciences, the Education Department's 
research agency, has identified rigorous evidence that the following teaching practices are effective in teaching academic content to 
ELLs: 

657



Page 121 of 143

 -Teach a set of academic vocabulary words intensively, over several days and a variety of activities. 
 -Integrate instruction in spoken and written English into content-area teaching, such as using science laboratory reports to 

teach writing in English. 
 -Provide ongoing, structured chances to develop writing skills. 
 -Provide small-group interventions for students struggling with specific problems in literacy or language development. 

Additional research reinforces that these core practices are essential to providing designated and integrated ELD and supporting 
second language learners academic achievement: 
 
1. Gibbons, P. (2009). English learners, academic literacy, and thinking: Learning in the challenge zone. Portsmouth, NH: Heinemann.  
 
2. Gibbons, P. (2008). “It was taught good and I learned a lot”: Intellectual practices and ESL learners in the middle years. Australian 
Journal of Language and Literacy, 31(2), 155– 173.  
 
3. Gibbons, P. (2006). Bridging discourses in the ESL classroom: Students, teachers and researchers. London: Continuum. 
 
4. Kieffer, M., and Lesaux, N. (2010). Morphing into adolescents: Active word learning for English? language learners and their 
classmates in middle school. Journal of Adolescent and Adult Literacy, 54(1), 47–56. 
 
5. Veel, R. (1999). Language, knowledge and authority in school mathematics. In F. Christie (Ed.), Pedagogy and the shaping of 
consciousness: Linguistic and social processes. London: Continuum 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. 

The National Comprehensive Center for Teacher Quality provides guidance for teacher professional development and encourages the 
implementation of job-embedded professional development in high-need schools (U.S. Department of Education, 2009a; U.S. 
Department of Education, 2009b). The National Staff Development Council (2010) also emphasizes the importance of school-based 
learning and job-embedded coaching as necessary components of effective professional development. Job-embedded professional 
development (JEPD) refers to teacher learning that is grounded in day-to-day teaching practice and is designed to enhance teachers’ 
content-specific instructional practices with the intent of improving student learning (Darling-Hammond & McLaughlin, 1995; Hirsh, 
2009).  
 

658



Page 122 of 143

The best professional development support is primarily school or classroom-based and is integrated into the workday allowing 
teachers to assess and develop solutions for authentic and immediate problems of practice as part of cycles of continuous 
improvement (Hawley & Valli, 1999; National Staff Development Council, 2010). 
 
------- 
------- 

 

659



Page 123 of 143

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county 
superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

660



Page 124 of 143

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 

Annual Update 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals, Actions, and Services 

Planned Actions/Services 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the California School Dashboard data reports) if desired 
and/or include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and 
actual expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to California School Dashboard means the California School Dashboard adopted by 
the State Board of Education under EC Section 52064.5.    
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

 Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

 Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in 
developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based 
interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the 
implementation of the CSI plan. 

 Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate 
the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school 
improvement. 

661

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


Page 125 of 143

 

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the California School 
Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 
in the California School Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 

662



Page 126 of 143

charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

663



Page 127 of 143

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the California School Dashboard, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 
Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

664



Page 128 of 143

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter "LEA-wide." 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

665



Page 129 of 143

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

 

New/Modified/Unchanged:  

 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 
the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  

 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 

666



Page 130 of 143

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  
 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 
If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

667



Page 131 of 143

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

668



Page 132 of 143

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

669



Page 133 of 143

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

670



Page 134 of 143

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of K-8 students who were absent 10 percent or more of the school days 

excluding students who were: 
(A) enrolled less than 31 days 
(B) enrolled at least 31 days but did not attend at least one day 
(C) flagged as exempt in the district attendance submission. K-8 students are considered to 
be exempt if they: 
 (i) are enrolled in a Non-Public School 
 (ii) receive instruction through a home or hospital instructional setting 
 (iii) are attending a community college full-time. 

(2) The number of students who meet the enrollment requirements. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

 (b) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  
(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 

“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(c) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) For a 4-Year Cohort Graduation Rate: 

(A) The number of students in the cohort who earned a regular high school diploma by the 
end of year 4 in the cohort. 

(B) The total number of students in the cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(2) For a Dashboard Alternative Schools Status (DASS) Graduation Rate: 
(A) The number of students who either graduated as grade 11 students or who earned any 

of the following: 
(i) a regular high school diploma 
(ii) a High School Equivalency Certificate 
(iii) an adult education diploma 
(iv)  a Certificate of Completion and was eligible for the California Alternative 

Assessment if under the age of 20. 
(B) The number of students in the DASS graduation cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
671



Page 135 of 143

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  

672



Page 136 of 143

 

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

673



Page 137 of 143

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, January 2019 
 

674



Page 138 of 143

 

LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 

Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Funding Sources 592,621.00 588,818.00 493,899.00 592,621.00 608,683.00 1,695,203.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Base 405,909.00 412,328.00 377,671.00 405,909.00 395,184.00 1,178,764.00 
LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 
Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Supplemental 186,712.00 176,490.00 116,228.00 186,712.00 205,499.00 508,439.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

675



Page 139 of 143

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types 592,621.00 588,818.00 493,899.00 592,621.00 608,683.00 1,695,203.00 
 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 481,096.00 483,525.00 442,552.00 481,096.00 497,123.00 1,420,771.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 87,965.00 76,243.00 36,892.00 87,965.00 90,000.00 214,857.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 11,060.00 11,286.00 2,560.00 11,060.00 1,060.00 14,680.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 8,500.00 9,500.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 

12,000.00 17,264.00 11,395.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 35,395.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

676



Page 140 of 143

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2018-19 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 592,621.00 588,818.00 493,899.00 592,621.00 608,683.00 1,695,203.00 
  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 342,795.00 344,155.00 328,224.00 342,795.00 341,124.00 1,012,143.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 138,301.00 139,370.00 114,328.00 138,301.00 155,999.00 408,628.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 41,054.00 40,067.00 35,892.00 41,054.00 42,000.00 118,946.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 46,911.00 36,176.00 1,000.00 46,911.00 48,000.00 95,911.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Base 10,560.00 10,786.00 2,060.00 10,560.00 560.00 13,180.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Supplemental 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Base 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 500.00 1,500.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Base 11,000.00 16,820.00 10,995.00 11,000.00 11,000.00 32,995.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Supplemental 1,000.00 444.00 400.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 2,400.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

677



Page 141 of 143

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
Goal 1 529,256.00 538,244.00 451,190.00 529,256.00 533,353.00 1,513,799.00 

Goal 2 4,513.00 7,438.00 2,184.00 4,513.00 4,585.00 11,282.00 

Goal 3 54,892.00 38,906.00 27,882.00 54,892.00 66,785.00 149,559.00 

Goal 4 3,960.00 4,230.00 12,643.00 3,960.00 3,960.00 20,563.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
 
  

678



Page 142 of 143

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 
  

679



Page 143 of 143

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures NOT Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 

680



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
  

Action Item:  9.5 Approval of the 2019-2020 Local Control 
Accountability Plan (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum for the 
Piner-Olivet Charter School  
 
Special Meeting of:  June 19, 2019      Action Item Report Format:Oral 
Attachment: Local Control Accountability Plan    (LCAP) and LCAP Federal Addendum        
 
Background 
The Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) legislation was signed into law by the Governor and 
took effect on July 1, 2013. Under the LCFF, school districts are required to develop, adopt, and 
annually update a three-year Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), beginning on July 1, 
2014. According to Ed Code 52060, school districts are required to consult with staff, students, 
parents, and the community in developing the LCAP.  
 
The final Piner-Olivet Charter School LCAP includes a description of the stakeholder engagement 
process, goals, actions and services for all students as well as subgroups.   
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP in order to ensure that eligible 
LEAs will meet the LEA Plan Provisions of the ESSA.  The LCAP Addendum must be submitted 
to the CDE to apply for ESSA funding.     
 
Plan 
Prior to approval of the budget under LCFF, a draft of the LCAP and the budget must be 
presented for public hearing.  That occurred at the June 5, 2019 Board meeting.  Both the LCAP 
and the budget are to be adopted at a subsequent meeting.  There have been minimal changes 
made to the POCS LCAP from the Public Hearing version. 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum answers the required questions from the state.  This Federal 
Addendum must be approved by the board and submitted to the state by July 1, 2019. 
 
Fiscal Impact 
Expenditures outlined in the LCAP 
 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt the POCS LCAP and Federal Addendum as presented 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Motion: 
 
Moved by:  Second: 
Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent: 
FRANICEVIC       HINTON           MOHR               PRYOR  WAY 
 

681



Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA)  
Federal Addendum Template 
 

LEA Name 
Piner-Olivet Charter School         

 

CDS Code: 
49-70870-6113492         

 

Link to the LCAP: 
(optional) 

 
 

For which ESSA programs apply to your LEA? 
 
Choose From: 
 
X TITLE I, PART A 

Improving Basic Programs Operated by  
State and Local Educational Agencies        

X TITLE II, PART A 
Supporting Effective Instruction        

X TITLE III, PART A  
Language Instruction for English Learners  
and Immigrant Students        

X TITLE IV, PART A 
Student Support and Academic  
Enrichment Grants        

 
(note: This list only includes ESSA programs with LEA plan 
requirements; not all ESSA programs.) 
 

 
 
 

In the following pages, ONLY complete the sections for the corresponding programs. 
 

682



 
Instructions 
 
The LCAP Federal Addendum is meant to supplement the LCAP to ensure that eligible LEAs have the 
opportunity to meet the Local Educational Agency (LEA) Plan provisions of the ESSA.  

The LCAP Federal Addendum Template must be completed and submitted to the California 
Department of Education (CDE) to apply for ESSA funding. LEAs are encouraged to review the LCAP 
Federal Addendum annually with their LCAP, as ESSA funding should be considered in yearly strategic 
planning.  

The LEA must address the Strategy and Alignment prompts provided on the following page.  

Each provision for each program must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the LEA.  

In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within the 
LCAP Federal Addendum Template.  

Under State Priority Alignment, state priority numbers are provided to demonstrate where an ESSA 
provision aligns with state priorities. This is meant to assist LEAs in determining where ESSA provisions 
may already be addressed in the LEA’s LCAP, as it demonstrates the LEA’s efforts to support the state 
priorities. 

The CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA funds 
are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are 
encouraged to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic 
planning of all resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff 
will evaluate the LEA’s responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. 
LEAs will be asked to clarify insufficient responses during the review process. 
 

California’s ESSA State Plan significantly shifts the state’s approach to the utilization of federal resources in 
support of underserved student groups. This LCAP Federal Addendum provides LEAs with the opportunity 
to document their approach to maximizing the impact of federal investments in support of underserved 
students. 

The implementation of ESSA in California presents an opportunity for LEAs to innovate with their federally-
funded programs and align them with the priority goals they are realizing under the state’s Local Control 
Funding Formula (LCFF).  

LCFF provides LEAs flexibility to design programs and provide services that meet the needs of students in 
order to achieve readiness for college, career, and lifelong learning. The LCAP planning process supports 
continuous cycles of action, reflection, and improvement.  

Please respond to the prompts below, and in the pages that follow, to describe the LEA’s plan for making 
the best use of federal ESEA resources in alignment with other federal, state, and local programs as 
described in the LEA’s LCAP. 

683



 

Strategy 
 
Explain the LEA’s strategy for using federal funds to supplement and enhance local priorities or initiatives funded with state 
funds, as reflected in the LEA’s LCAP. This shall include describing the rationale/evidence for the selected use(s) of federal 
funds within the context of the LEA’s broader strategy reflected in the LCAP. 
 
Piner-Olivet Charter School is a single school-site charter school.  We use federal funds to supplement and enhance local 
priority or initiatives funded with state funds by increasing or improving existing actions to support students in meeting the 
challenging state academic standards. 
 
Our rationale/evidence for the selected uses of federal funds is to use the funds to assist in the successful completion of 
actions and goals described in our LCAP to ensure the academic achievement of all students, especially our low-income 
students. 
 
Title I funds are used for intervention services, assessment and data management system, supplemental materials and 
adaptive software to assist students in obtaining skills specific to them needed to master the challenging state academic 
standards. 
 
Title II funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities that have a demonstrated result in improving teacher 
and principal quality. 
 
Title III funds are used to improve educational outcomes for our English Language Learners and support students in their 
attainment of the English Language.  The county office ELD coordinator, collaboration time to plan ELD instruction and 
professional development focused on intervention strategies all assist in supporting our English Language Learners. 
 
Title IV funds are used to provide professional learning opportunities to promote the effective use of technology and to 
offer and/or expand programs that will provide students with a well rounded education. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Alignment 
 
Describe the efforts that the LEA will take to align use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local funds and, 
as applicable, across different federal grant programs. 
 
Piner-Olivet Charter School aligns its use of federal funds with activities funded by state and local fund and across different 
federal grant programs.  Our LCAP is used as our district strategic plan and so provides us with an overarching plan 
complete with metrics, stakeholder engagement, goals, actions, and analysis. 
 
This plan encompasses activities to support all students in the areas of : 
 
LCAP GOAL 1:  Culture: Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching:  Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement 
of California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
LCAP GOAL 3: Proficiency: All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary 
for future success in college and careers. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement 
 
Any challenges can usually fit under one of these goals and can be addressed with state, local or federal funds. 
 
 
 
 

684



 
 
ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP 
 
Within the LCAP an LEA is required to describe its goals, and the specific actions to achieve those goals, for each of the 
LCFF state priorities. In an approvable LCAP it will be apparent from the descriptions of the goals, actions, and services 
how an LEA is acting to address the following ESSA provisions through the aligned LCFF state priorities and/or the state 
accountability system. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(1) (A–D) 1, 2, 4, 7, 8 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will monitor students’ progress in meeting the challenging state academic standards by: 
 

(A) developing and implementing a well-rounded program of instruction to meet the academic needs of all students; 
(B) identifying students who may be at risk for academic failure; 
(C) providing additional educational assistance to individual students the LEA or school determines need help in 

meeting the challenging State academic standards; and 
(D) identifying and implementing instructional and other strategies intended to strengthen academic programs and 

improve school conditions for student learning. 
 
Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(11) 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the LEA will support efforts to reduce the overuse of discipline practices that remove students from the 
classroom, which may include identifying and supporting schools with high rates of discipline, disaggregated by each of 
the student groups, as defined in Section 1111(c)(2). 
 
Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(12)(A–B) 2, 4, 7 (as applicable) 
 
If determined appropriate by the LEA, describe how such agency will support programs that coordinate and integrate: 
 

(A) academic and career and technical education content through coordinated instructional strategies, that may 
incorporate experiential learning opportunities and promote skills attainment important to in-demand occupations 
or industries in the State; and 

(B) work-based learning opportunities that provide students in-depth interaction with industry professionals and, if 
appropriate, academic credit. 

 

685



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Title II, Part A Activities 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

2102(b)(2)(A) 1, 2, 4 (as applicable) 
 
Provide a description of the activities to be carried out by the LEA under this Section and how these activities will be 
aligned with challenging State academic standards. 
 
LCAP GOAL 2: Teaching: Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Content 
Standards and the District's Student Outcomes Collaboration Time: Professional Development (Social/Emotional), 
Professional Development (Instructional), Math Resources and Assessments, Professional Development (ELD), 
Professional Development (targeted instruction), Lesson Study in Mathematics. 
 

 

686



TITLE III, PART A 
 
Parent, Family, and Community Engagement 

ESSA SECTION STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

3116(b)(3) 3, 6 (as applicable) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will promote parent, family, and community engagement in the education of English 
learners. 
 
LCAP GOAL 4: Improve Parent Engagement Variety of Communication Platforms, Parent/student conferences, Parent 
Education in Math, Literacy and Social/Emotional, ELAC parent education and translations, Parent English Classes, 
POCS Parent Club, Parent Volunteer Hours Encouraged and Tracked. 
 
 

687



 
ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System 
 
An LEA addresses the following ESSA provision as part of completing annual reporting through the Consolidated 
Application and Reporting System (CARS). 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Poverty Criteria 
 

ESSA SECTION(S) STATE PRIORITY ALIGNMENT 

1112(b)(4) N/A 
 
Describe the poverty criteria that will be used to select school attendance areas under Section 1113. 
 
The poverty criteria used for Title 1, Part A School Allocations is the percent of students who qualify for Free & Reduced 
Price Meals (FRPM). 
 

 

688



 
ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP  
 
For the majority of LEAs the ESSA provisions on the following pages do not align with state priorities. Each provision 
for each program provided on the following pages must be addressed, unless the provision is not applicable to the 
LEA. In addressing these provisions, LEAs must provide a narrative that addresses the provision within this addendum. 
 
As previously stated, the CDE emphasizes that the LCAP Federal Addendum should not drive LCAP development. ESSA 
funds are supplemental to state funds, just as the LCAP Federal Addendum supplements your LCAP. LEAs are encouraged 
to integrate their ESSA funds into their LCAP development as much as possible to promote strategic planning of all 
resources; however, this is not a requirement. In reviewing the LCAP Federal Addendum, staff will evaluate the LEA’s 
responses to the ESSA plan provisions. There is no standard length for the responses. LEAs will be asked to clarify 
insufficient responses during the review process. 
 
TITLE I, PART A 
 
Educator Equity 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(2) 
 
Describe how the LEA will identify and address, as required under State plans as described in Section 1111(g)(1)(B), any 
disparities that result in low-income students and minority students being taught at higher rates than other students by 
ineffective, inexperienced, or out-of-field teachers. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
100% of the teachers at Piner-Olivet Charter School are considered Highly Qualified. 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Engagement 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(B)(3) AND 1112(B)(7) 
 
Describe how the LEA will carry out its responsibility under Section 1111(d).  
Describe the strategy the LEA will use to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

689



(ESSA Section 1112(b)(3)-responsibilities under 1111(d)) 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 
(ESSA 1112(b)(7)) 
The strategies the LEA uses to implement effective parent and family engagement under Section 1116, which includes 
how the LEA and its schools build capacity for parent and family engagement is demonstrated in the following ways: 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(a)). 
Piner-Olivet Charter School has an adopted parent involvement policy which is described in BP 6020 and AR 6020. The 
Policy and Administrative Regulations provides details on how parents and families are engaged in the school community. 
The LEA parent and family engagement policy, was developed jointly with and agreed on with parents. The parent and 
family engagement policy is distributed to, parents and family members of participating children annually with the annual 
notification packet that is sent home at the beginning of the year. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(1)) 
Piner-Olivet Charter School provides assistance to parents in understanding such topics as the challenging State academic 
standards, State and local academic assessments, the requirements of this part, and how to monitor a child’s progress 
and work with educators to improve the achievement of their children through parent conferences, back to school night, 
and school events.  Report cards are sent home quarterly so parents are able to identify how their students are doing. 
Other LCAP actions include: 4.1 Used a variety of communication platforms to engage to parents such as newsletters, 
email, call notification, regularly scheduled meetings, LCAP infographics, student performances and exhibitions; 4.2 
Continued parent/student conferences for appropriate and balanced placement in core subjects; 4.3 Continued to provide 
Parent Education in Math, Literacy, and Social-Emotional curriculum; 4.4 Provided additional support and resources to 
implement ELAC parent education and expand information available in Spanish; and 4.5 Provided parent English classes 
2x/week for parents of English Learners 
 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(2)) 
Piner-Olivet Charter School provides materials and training to help parents work with their children to improve their 
children’s achievement, such as literacy training and using technology (including education about the harms of copyright 
piracy), as appropriate, to foster parental involvement by  providing parents with varying opportunities to engage in multiple 
areas of their students’ education and ensuring parents are invited to: parent conferences, Back to School Night, Open 
House. During these events parents engage in activities that assist in improving their children's achievement.  Other items 
include: 4.1 Used a variety of communication platforms to engage to parents such as newsletters, email, call notification, 
regularly scheduled meetings, LCAP infographics, student performances and exhibitions; 4.2 Continued parent/student 
conferences for appropriate and balanced placement in core subjects; 4.3 Continued to provide Parent Education in Math, 
Literacy, and Social-Emotional curriculum; 4.4 Provided additional support and resources to implement ELAC parent 
education and expand information available in Spanish; and 4.5 Provided parent English classes 2x/week for parents of 
English Learners 
 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(3)) 
Piner-Olivet Charter School educates teachers, specialized instructional support personnel, principals, and other school 
leaders, and other staff, with the assistance of parents, in the value and utility of contributions of parents, and in how to 
reach out to, communicate with, and work with parents as equal partners, implement and coordinate parent programs, and 
build ties between parents and the school during early release days (professional development) and as needed throughout 
the year.  In addition, LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for parent consultation and translation services 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(4)) 
Piner-Olivet Charter School coordinates and integrates parent involvement programs and activities with other Federal, 
State, and local programs, including public preschool programs, and conduct other activities, such as parent resource 
centers, that encourage and support parents in more fully participating in the education of their children through the use 
of community organizations of Sonoma County and Sonoma County Office of Education. We have increased hours 
outreach workers who can speak Spanish.  These additional hours will provide more frequent opportunities for parent 
communication in various venues.  We will continue to provide English classes for our community (4.5 Provided parent 
English classes 2x/week for parents of English Learners) 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(5)) 
Piner-Olivet Charter School ensures that information related to school and parent programs, meetings, and other activities 
is sent to the parents of participating children in a format and, to the extent practicable, in a language the parents can 

690



understand.  All notifications and information are sent home in English and Spanish (LCAP action 4.5 Outreach worker for 
parent consultation and translation services). 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(e)(14). 
Piner-Olivet Charter School provides other reasonable support for parental involvement activities as parents may request. 
Surveys are conducted annually and attendance at school events is good. Parents are willing to communicate needs at 
school events, with teachers, in the office, at meetings, and via emails. 
 
(ESSA Section 1116(f)) 
Piner-Olivet Charter School provides opportunities for the informed participation of parents and family members (including 
parents and family members who have limited English proficiency, parents and family members with disabilities, and 
parents and family members of migratory children), including providing information and school reports in a format and, to 
the extent practicable, in a language such parents understand.  All report cards and information are sent home in both 
English and Spanish.  Surveys are sent home in English and Spanish.  Translation services are available during school 
meetings. 
 
Piner-Olivet Charter School aligns the parent involvement items required in Section 1116 with the LCAP stakeholder 
engagement process. As part of the LCAP process we seek input from parents and families and we have an entire LCAP 
goal dedicated to parent involvement. The following items and results of the item demonstrates how we sought input from 
parents and how their input informed LCAP goals and actions and is stated in our CA Dashboard Local Indicator report for 
parent involvement: POCS partners with educational research organizations to learn more about parents’ perspectives 
and experience(s) at our school. Parent surveys utilize parent perspectives on school culture and climate in order to utilize 
the input in deciding student needs, goals, services, and programs for the 18-19 school year. Based upon parent/guardian 
feedback, POCS needs to continue to improve parent and family workshops and information night offerings. POCS families 
requested more evening workshops providing high school, college and careers information, community non-profit 
organizations and teen support resources information, and campus work days and family community service events. 
Families of EL students also requested (and are being offered) reclassification informational meetings and regular ELAC 
and DELAC events. Survey results were used to develop actions in POCS LCAP Goals 2 & 3. Based on feedback from 
stakeholder groups, POCS is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets 
the needs of low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these 
subgroups of students. Based on stakeholder feedback, POCS implemented more than ten LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner and foster youth - including using a portion of the LCFF supplemental 
dollars for site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific 
solutions based on unique site needs, and site stakeholder input. Attendance at Parent Meetings fell off this year due in 
large part to the wildfire. Many families were disrupted and had to move several miles from school. Parents were disinclined 
to head out to a meeting in the evening after finally getting home. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(5) and 1112(b)(9) 
 
Describe, in general, the nature of the programs to be conducted by the LEA’s schools under sections 1114 and 1115 and, 
where appropriate, educational services outside such schools for children living in local institutions for neglected or 
delinquent children, and for neglected and delinquent children in community day school programs. 
 
Describe how teachers and school leaders, in consultation with parents, administrators, paraprofessionals, and specialized 
instructional support personnel, in schools operating a targeted assistance school program under Section 1115, will identify 
the eligible children most in need of services under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Our single school district operates as a schooolwide program. 
 
 

 
Homeless Children and Youth Services 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(6) 
 

691



Describe the services the LEA will provide homeless children and youths, including services provided with funds reserved 
under Section 1113(c)(3)(A), to support the enrollment, attendance, and success of homeless children and youths, in 
coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 United States 
Code 11301 et seq.). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Piner-Olivet Charter School ensures that homeless students have access to the same free and appropriate public 
education provided to other students within the district. The district shall provide homeless students with access to 
education and other services necessary for these students to meet the same challenging academic standards as other 
students. Detailed description of processes and procedures for Education for Homeless Children can be found in BP 
6173, AR6173, E6173. The services we provide homeless children and youths are the following: 
 
Piner-Olivet Charter School hired a Director of Student Services to include duties that address providing needs for 
homeless students.  The Director or Student Services works closely with Sonoma County Office of Education to identify 
and provide resources as needed.  During the 2017-2018 school year due to the fires the homeless greatly increased as 
did services available.  The county at large through Sonoma County Office of Education (SCOE) provided resources and 
timely information to address the needs of all families. 
 
The services provided are used to support the (1) enrollment, (2) attendance, and (3) success of homeless children and 
youths, in coordination with the services the LEA is providing under the McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act. 
 
 
 
 
 
Student Transitions 
ESSA SECTIONS 1112(b)(8), 1112(b)(10), and 1112(b)(10) (A–B) 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will support, coordinate, and integrate services provided under this part with early 
childhood education programs at the LEA or individual school level, including plans for the transition of participants in 
such programs to local elementary school programs. 
 
Describe, if applicable, how the LEA will implement strategies to facilitate effective transitions for students from middle 
grades to high school and from high school to postsecondary education including: 

(A) coordination with institutions of higher education, employers, and other local partners; and 
(B) increased student access to early college high school or dual or concurrent enrollment opportunities, or career 

counseling to identify student interests and skills. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) Piner-Olivet Charter School coordinates with the following institutions of higher education, employers, and other local 
partners: Santa Rosa Junior College, Sonoma State University, Community Action Partnership, and Sonoma County 
Office of Education to facilitate effective transitions from high school to postsecondary education.   Piner-Olivet Charter 
School works with Northwest Prep and local high schools to facilitate effective transitions from middle grades to high 
school.  Parent meetings are held so that parents and students can learn about the programs offered at each school and 
district so they can make the most appropriate choice for their child/ren. 
 
(B) NA 
 
 
 
 

 
Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part 
ESSA SECTION 1112(b)(13) (A–B) 
 
Provide any other information on how the LEA proposes to use funds to meet the purposes of this part, and that the LEA 
determines appropriate to provide, which may include how the LEA will: 
 

692



(A) assist schools in identifying and serving gifted and talented students; and 
(B) assist schools in developing effective school library programs to provide students an opportunity to develop 

digital literacy skills and improve academic achievement. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
(A) NA 
(B) As a district we assist in developing effective school library program: Provide instruction to students in developing 
literacy, media literacy, research and digital citizenship skills and providing devices (computers, chromebooks, and tablets) 
for classroom use. 
 
 
 
 
 

693



 
TITLE I, PART D 
 
Description of Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(1) 
 
Provide a description of the program to be assisted [by Title I, Part D]. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Formal Agreements 
ESSA SECTION 1423(2) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the LEA and correctional 
facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice system, including such 
facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Comparable Education Program 
ESSA SECTION 1423(3) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how participating schools will coordinate with facilities working with delinquent 
children and youth to ensure that such children and youth are participating in an education program comparable to one 
operating in the local school such youth would attend. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Successful Transitions 
ESSA SECTION 1423(4) 
 
Provide a description of the program operated by participating schools to facilitate the successful transition of children and 
youth returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, the types of services that such schools will provide such 
children and youth and other at-risk children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Educational Needs 
ESSA SECTION 1423(5) 
 
Provide a description of the characteristics (including learning difficulties, substance abuse problems, and other special 
needs) of the children and youth who will be returning from correctional facilities and, as appropriate, other at-risk children 
and youth expected to be served by the program, and a description of how the school will coordinate existing educational 
programs to meet the unique educational needs of such children and youth. 

694



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Social, Health, and Other Services 
ESSA SECTION 1423(6) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will coordinate with existing social, health, and other services to meet 
the needs of students returning from correctional facilities, at-risk children or youth, and other participating children or youth, 
including prenatal health care and nutrition services related to the health of the parent and the child or youth, parenting and 
child development classes, child care, targeted reentry and outreach programs, referrals to community resources, and 
scheduling flexibility. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships 
ESSA SECTION 1423(7) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of any partnerships with institutions of higher education or local businesses to facilitate 
postsecondary and workforce success for children and youth returning from correctional facilities, such as through 
participation in credit-bearing coursework while in secondary school, enrollment in postsecondary education, participation 
in career and technical education programming, and mentoring services for participating students. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Parent and Family Involvement 
ESSA SECTION 1423(8) 
 
Provide a description of formal agreements, regarding the program to be assisted, between the 
 

(A) LEA; and  
(B) correctional facilities and alternative school programs serving children and youth involved with the juvenile justice 

system, including such facilities operated by the Secretary of the Interior and Indian tribes. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Program Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(9–10) 
 
Provide a description of how the program under this subpart will be coordinated with other Federal, State, and local 
programs, such as programs under title I of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act and career and technical 
education programs serving at-risk children and youth. 
 
Include how the program will be coordinated with programs operated under the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention 
Act of 1974 and other comparable programs, if applicable. 

695



 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Probation Officer Coordination 
ESSA SECTION 1423(11) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of how schools will work with probation officers to assist in meeting the needs of 
children and youth returning from correctional facilities. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 

 
Individualized Education Program Awareness 
ESSA SECTION 1423(12) 
 
Provide a description of the efforts participating schools will make to ensure correctional facilities working with children and 
youth are aware of a child’s or youth’s existing individualized education program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 
Alternative Placements 
ESSA SECTIONS 1423(13) 
 
As appropriate, provide a description of the steps participating schools will take to find alternative placements for children 
and youth interested in continuing their education but unable to participate in a traditional public school program. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A 
 
 
 

696



 
TITLE II, PART A 
 
Professional Growth and Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(B) 
 
Provide a description of the LEA’s systems of professional growth and improvement, such as induction for teachers, 
principals, or other school leaders and opportunities for building the capacity of teachers and opportunities to develop 
meaningful teacher leadership. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

697



Piner-Olivet Charter School has an organized delivery of professional learning for all certificated staff. 
 
Principals: 
Professional growth and improvement are provided to the principal through the following process: at the beginning of their 
career as a principal they are mentored and coached until they are ready to take on more leadership opportunities.  As 
principals progress they are supported based on their individual needs. As principals become more seasoned it is expected 
that they take on more and more responsibility in ensuring academic success for all students. Principals utilize services 
from the Sonoma County Office of Education and fellow principals in the county. Growth and improvement are measured 
by staff, teacher and parent survey results, California Student Dashboard Results, number of LCAP metrics and actions 
completed. 
 
Teachers: 
Professional growth and improvement are provided to teachers during beginning of the year professional development, 
ongoing early release days, County Office Workshops, and Specialists in the Field. At the beginning of their career as a 
teacher they are supported through the induction program at the county office. Teachers are then supported as needed 
throughout their career depending on each teachers individual needs, strengths and growth areas.  Teachers often support 
each other and bounce ideas off each other in informal meetings.  We provide professional development to all teachers 
as described by the following LCAP Actions: 2.1 Provide collaboration time for developing: History, NGSS, Units of Study 
and Lesson Development, Math, Literacy, PBL, performance tasks, assessments, rubrics and evidence of learning; 2.2 
Continue to provide professional development to support implementation of Social-Emotional Learning curriculum 
(Professional development to support on-going implementation of Cyberbully prevention/No Bully/Restorative Practices 
for staff and students, Professional development to support implementation of Suicide Prevention for administrator and 
counselor); 2.3 Provide professional development opportunities focused on instructional practices aligned with California 
Content Standards and District Student Outcomes, such as writing, PBL, technology, math for certificated and support 
staff; 2.4 Continue development of 7/8 Math Curriculum and Assessments; 2.5 Professional development to support 
providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices;  2.6 Professional 
development for targeted instruction to build proficiency in California Content Standards and MTSS support for students 
who need academic intervention (Professional Development workshops Re: Intervention Strategies for certificated and 
classified staff  ). Growth and improvement for teachers are measured by state assessment data, benchmark data, student 
surveys. Identification of growth and improvement areas as a school are measured by California School Dashboard results. 
Teachers are provided professional learning opportunities to develop and support instructional practices aligned with the 
District Student Outcomes and California Content Standards for English Language Arts, Mathematics, Writing, Project 
Based Learning, and Next Generation Science Standards. There is an instructional coach and technology integration 
coach to support teachers.  Santa Rosa City Schools network and Sonoma County Office of Education also provide 
support. 
 
School Leaders: 
As a small school district we do not have any additional school leaders, however, many experienced teachers serve various 
roles to assist with special projects or initiatives that help to improve student learning. 
 
The systems in place promote professional growth and ensure improvement.  We measure the success of our program by 
utilizing the Annual Update in the LCAP and Dashboard data. We review our LCAP student outcome data with all 
stakeholders (parents, students, teachers, staff, leadership, community members) as part of the Annual Update process.  
This provides an effective way in discussing our successes and growth areas as a school community and determining any 
necessary actions to be added for the following year.  As part of the Local Indicator: Implementation of the Standards 
Dashboard requirement we report annually on teachers progress in 1) providing professional learning for teaching to the 
recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks 2) making instructional materials that are aligned to 
the recently adopted academic standards and/or curriculum frameworks, 3) implementing policies or programs to support 
staff in identifying areas where they can improve in delivering instruction aligned to the recently adopted academic 
standards and/or curriculum frameworks identified below (e.g., collaborative time, focused classroom walk throughs, 
teacher pairing) for the following content areas: English Language Arts, Mathematics, History-Social Studies, English 
Language Development, Next Generation Science Standards.  In addition, we report on implementing each of the following 
academic standards adopted by the State Board of Education for all students (Career Technical Education, Physical 
Education Model Content Standards, World Language, Health Education Content Standards, Visual and Performing Arts  
and we report on success at engaging in the following activities with teachers and school administrators during the prior 
school year (including the summer preceding the prior school year): Identifying the professional learning needs of groups 
of teachers or staff as a whole, Identifying the professional learning needs of individual teachers, providing support for 
teachers on the standards they have not yet mastered. As a school community understand the importance of continuous 
improvement within these systems and are focused on professional growth and improvement. 
 
 
 

698



 
 
Prioritizing Funding 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(C) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will prioritize funds to schools served by the agency that are implementing 
comprehensive support and improvement activities and targeted support and improvement activities under Section 1111(d) 
and have the highest percentage of children counted under Section 1124(c). 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
N/A--No schools have been identified for Comprehensive Support and Improvement (CSI) or Targeted Assistance and 
Intervention (TSI). 
 
 

 
Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement 
ESSA SECTION 2102(b)(2)(D) 
 
Provide a description of how the LEA will use data and ongoing consultation described in Section 2102(b)(3) to continually 
update and improve activities supported under this part. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The sources of data our district uses to monitors and evaluate Title II, Part A activities is: California School Dashboard 
data (including Local Indicator reports), survey results from professional development opportunities, student achievement 
data (benchmark),  STAR data, Teacher Survey data (including CCSS Implementation questions), ELPAC data, and 
student survey results.  This data is analyzed annually as part of the planning process for the following year.  Benchmark 
data and STAR Data is analyzed throughout the year to inform instruction. In addition to above, Piner-Olivet Charter School 
has purchased Illuminate in order to quickly and easily analyze student data on a regular basis during professional learning 
communities. 
 
Piner-Olivet Charter School meaningfully consults with all stakeholders (teachers, principals and other school leaders, 
paraprofessionals, specialized instructional support personnel,  parents, community partners, organizations) to update and 
improve Title II, Part-A funded activities. This is completed through annual survey data, monthly staff meetings, monthly 
leadership meetings and annually (or as needed) parent meetings.  After compiling information from all stakeholder group 
we determine what are common needs expressed throughout stakeholders and then needs based on each stakeholder 
group. Piner-Olivet Charter School meaningfully consults with these stakeholders in the following frequency: teachers-
monthly, principals and other school leaders-monthly, paraprofessionals-quarterly, specialized instructional support 
personnel-quarterly, parents-surveys are annually/events are about 4 times per year, community partners-yearly, 
organizations-as needed/at least yearly) 
 
Our Sonoma County Office of Education also provides valuable resources, support and training to our school districts in 
the county.   By utilizing Sonoma County Office of Education resources we are able to quickly understand what various 
schools in the county are doing and use those ideas and success to improve our school community. Piner-Olivet Charter 
School utilizes shortened Wednesdays for collaboration efforts that will be focused on student achievement, setting goals 
for students, and building capacity of staff. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

699



 
TITLE III, PART A 
 
Title III Professional Development 
ESSA SECTION 3115(c)(2) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide effective professional development to classroom teachers, principals and other 
school leaders, administrators, and other school or community-based organizational personnel. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
The following actions from LCAP describe how our LEA effectively assists English Learners: 
2.5 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core 
set of practices (2.5.a Collaboration time for ELD assessment, 2.5.b Professional development for ELL strategies (SCOE) 
 
3.4 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English Language Learners (ELD Assistant, ELD Instructional 
Materials) 
These professional development opportunities are designed to improve the instruction and assessment of English learners; 
enhance the ability of such teachers, principals, and other school leaders to understand and implement curricula, 
assessment practices and measures, and instructional strategies for English learners. They are also effective in increasing 
children's English language proficiency or substantially increasing the subject matter knowledge, teaching knowledge, and 
teaching skills of such teachers; and are of sufficient intensity and duration (which shall not include activities such as one-
day or short-term workshops and conferences) to have a positive and lasting impact on the teachers' performance in the 
classroom. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enhanced Instructional Opportunities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3115(e)(1) and 3116 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Piner-Olivet Charter School will provide professional learning in integrated English Language Development strategies 
incorporating the Next Generation Science Standards.  Piner-Olivet Charter School also provides supplemental activities 
that provide enhanced instructional opportunities for immigrant children and youth: Summer programs, tutorials, 
supplemental staff, family literacy services, family outreach, mentoring, . In determining the best use of funds we consult 
with stakeholders and use funds strategically with other funding streams to support Title III immigrant activities. 
 
 

 
Title III Programs and Activities 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(1) 
 
Describe the effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational programs, proposed to be 
developed, implemented, and administered under the subgrant that will help English learners increase their English 
language proficiency and meet the challenging State academic standards. 
 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 

700



Our goal is to increase the effectiveness of our programs and our professional learning is focused on differentiation and 
personalized learning.  The major focus is language learner strategies and best practices.  Piner Olivet Charter School 
develops, implements, and administers effective programs and activities, including language instruction educational 
programs, to help English learners increase English language proficiency and meet the challenging state academic 
standards by providing additional staff, working with SCOE, tutorial, supplemental curricular materials. We determine 
effectiveness by evaluating ELPAC data, CA Dashboard data specific to EL students, and RFEP data. 
 
 

 
English Proficiency and Academic Achievement 
ESSA SECTIONS 3116(b)(2)(A-B) 
 
Describe how the eligible entity will ensure that elementary schools and secondary schools receiving funds under Subpart 
1 assist English learners in: 
 

(C) achieving English proficiency based on the State’s English language proficiency assessment under Section 
1111(b)(2)(G), consistent with the State’s long-term goals, as described in Section 1111(c)(4)(A)(ii); and 

(D) meeting the challenging State academic standards. 
 

THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
We have streamlined our areas of focus, have planned a thorough professional learning plan including differentiating for 
our English learners, and will provide time for teachers to collaborate and focus on student goals.  We believe this will 
increase student achievement for all students including our English learners.  The details of how we ensure our school 
assists English learners in achieving English proficiency and meeting the challenging state academic standards can be 
found in our EL Master Plan. 
 
 

 

701



 
TITLE IV, PART A 
 
Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs 
ESSA SECTION 4106(e)(1) 
 
Describe the activities and programming that the LEA, or consortium of such agencies, will carry out under Subpart 1, 
including a description of: 
 

(A) any partnership with an institution of higher education, business, nonprofit organization, community-based 
organization, or other public or private entity with a demonstrated record of success in implementing activities under 
this subpart;  

(B) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting well-rounded education under Section 4107;  
(C) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting safe and healthy students under Section 

4108; 
(D) if applicable, how funds will be used for activities related to supporting the effective use of technology in schools 

under Section 4109; and 
(E) the program objectives and intended outcomes for activities under Subpart 1, and how the LEA, or consortium of 

such agencies, will periodically evaluate the effectiveness of the activities carried out under this section based on 
such objectives and outcomes. 

 
THIS ESSA PROVISION IS ADDRESSED BELOW: 
 
Title IV, Part A funds will support the effective use of technology through professional development opportunities and will 
expand and/or create programs such as arts enrichment program to support a well-rounded education for all of our 
students. 
 
 
 
 

702



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name: Piner-Olivet Charter School
CDS Code: 49-70870-61-13492
Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Year: 2019-20
LEA contact information: Felicia Koha, CBO (707) 522-3008 fkoha@pousd.org

School districts receive funding from different sources: state funds under the Local Control Funding 
Formula (LCFF), other state funds, local funds, and federal funds. LCFF funds include a base level of 
funding for all LEAs and extra funding - called "supplemental and concentration" grants - to LEAs based 
on the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learners, and low-income students).

Budget Overview for the 2019-20 LCAP Year

This chart shows the total general purpose revenue Piner-Olivet Charter School expects to receive in the 
coming year from all sources.

The total revenue projected for Piner-Olivet Charter School is $1,889,348.00, of which $1,730,269.00 is 
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF), $81,441.00 is other state funds, $28,436.00 is local funds, and 
$49,202.00 is federal funds. Of the $1,730,269.00 in LCFF Funds, $176,619.00 is generated based on 
the enrollment of high needs students (foster youth, English learner, and low-income students).

The LCFF gives school districts more flexibility in deciding how to use state funds. In exchange, school 
districts must work with parents, educators, students, and the community to develop a Local Control and 
Acccountability Plan (LCAP) that shows how they will use these funds to serve students.

LCFF supplemental & 
concentration grants , 

$176,619 , 9%

All Other LCFF funds, 
$1,553,650 , 82%

All other state funds, 
$81,441 , 4%

All local funds, 
$28,436 , 2%

All federal funds, $49,202 , 
3%

Total LCFF funds, 
$1,730,269 , 91%

Projected Revenue by Fund Source

 Page 1 of 3703



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

This chart provides a quick summary of how much Piner-Olivet Charter School plans to spend for 2019-
20. It shows how much of the total is tied to planned actions and services in the LCAP.

Piner-Olivet Charter School plans to spend $1,948,781.00 for the 2019-20 school year. Of that amount, 
$1,460,427.00 is tied to actions/services in the LCAP and $488,354.00 is not included in the LCAP. The 
budgeted expenditures that are not included in the LCAP will be used for the following: 

The total expenditures not included in the LCAP amount include such costs as overhead (i.e. utilitites, 
maintenance, legal costs, insurance, etc.), contributions, and mandatory contributions.

Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2019-20

In 2019-20, Piner-Olivet Charter School is projecting it will receive $176,619.00 based on the enrollment 
of foster youth, English learner, and low-income students. Piner-Olivet Charter School must demonstrate 
the planned actions and services will increase or improve services for high needs students compared to 
the services all students receive in proportion to the increased funding it receives for high needs students. 
In the LCAP, Piner-Olivet Charter School plans to spend $180,707.00 on actions to meet this 
requirement.

Total Budgeted General 
Fund Expenditures

$1,948,781 
Total Budgeted 

Expenditures in LCAP
$1,460,427 

$ 0

$ 500,000

$ 1,000,000

$ 1,500,000

$ 2,000,000

$ 2,500,000

Budgeted Expenditures

 Page 2 of 3704



LCFF Budget Overview for Parents

Update on Increased or Improved Services for High Needs Students in 2018-19

This chart compares what Piner-Olivet Charter School budgeted last year in the LCAP for actions and 
services that contribute to increasing or improving services for high needs students with what  Piner-Olivet 
Charter School estimates it has spent on actions and services that contribute to increasing or improving 

services for high needs students in the current year.

In 2018-19, Piner-Olivet Charter School's LCAP budgeted $153,702.00 for planned actions to increase or 
improve services for high needs students. Piner-Olivet Charter School estimates that it will actually spend 
$184,550.00 for actions to increase or improve services for high needs students in 2018-19.

$184,550 

$153,702 

$ 0 $ 50,000 $ 100,000 $ 150,000 $ 200,000

Current Year Expenditures: Increased or Improved Services for High Needs 
Students

Total Budgeted Expenditures for High Needs
Students in the LCAP

Estimated Actual Expenditures for High
Needs Students in LCAP

 Page 3 of 3705



Page 1 of 126

 
LCAP Year (select from 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20) 

 

            2019-20    

 
Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template 

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template 

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements.  

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations 

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits) 

California School Dashboard: Essential data to support completion of 
this LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template. 

 
LEA Name 

Piner-Olivet Charter School            

Contact Name and Title 

Susan Donner            
Principal 

Email and Phone 

sdonner@pousd.org            
707-522-3310 

 
 

2017-20 Plan Summary 
The Story 
Describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them. 

Piner Olivet Charter School (POCS) is a collaborative, supportive community which nurtures the 
academic, social, and emotional growth of the individual through engagement in the process of 
inquiry-based problem solving, reflection, and communication. POCS serves a student population of 
about 208 students in grades 7-8. Fourteen percent of our students are English Learners, with 
another 31% redesignated English Learners. 31% of our students are economically disadvantaged 
and approximately 57% of our students are classified as unduplicated high-need students. Much 
effort is given at POCS to support effective instructional practices which provide our students with a 
child-centered, standards-based education that also incorporates our seven district student 
outcomes of Personal Integrity, Productive Collaboration, Critical and Creative Thinking, Effective 
Communication, Reflective Learning, Citizenship and Global Responsibility, and Resiliency and 
Drive. 
 
The school's classroom instruction is aligned with California Common Core and English Language 
Development standards and assessments. With open communication between the school and the 
community, strong support from parents, and clearly defined educational goals, we believe that all 
children will have the opportunity to meet their full potential and be productive members of society. 
POCS employs more than 18 staff members, including 11 certificated and 7 classified employees, 
plus substitutes and others. POCS provides its employees extensive professional development 
opportunities for both certificated and classified staff.  Professional development is supported 
through the Sonoma County Office of Education, Momentum In Teaching and the Piner-Olivet Union 
School District.  POCS is committed to academic excellence. We believe in community advocacy for 
the whole child. We believe that each student is everyone’s responsibility and make it priority to link 
and connect all stakeholders in our school community. 
 
         

706

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/reports/49708706113492/2018


Page 2 of 126

 

LCAP Highlights 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP. 

The POCS LCAP contains both continuing and new plans and actions. From the study of the 
surveys, the LCFF dashboard, financial documents, stakeholder meetings, and other measures, 
several trends were identified. Trends indicating our strengths include:  

• Students and staff like coming to school and feel safe at school. 
• Parents feel that staff care about their children. 
• Parents feel that the communication between home and school is adequate and 

appreciate all the information we provide in Spanish. 
• Staff feel valued for their skills and talents. 
• Staff feel that school is an exciting place to work due to the students. 
• Staff enjoy working at school. 
• Teachers value collaboration time and dedicate time to both professional development 

and horizontal and vertical articulation. 
• Staff, students, and parents are pleased with our implementation of technology - POCS 

has1:1 technology – every student has the opportunity to integrate technology into their 
learning every day. 

There are some challenges for POCS, however. POCS' student subgroup performance on the 
CAASPP is indicative of additional opportunities for improvement. Student subgroups are not 
achieving academically as compared to their peers. As POCS transitions to new curriculum in both 
ELA and Math - collaboration and scope and sequence activities will support improved academic 
achievement. The POCS administration and staff will continue to strengthen relationships between 
all stakeholders through honesty, transparency, and communication. Parents would like continued 
standardization of procedures and practices. Staff (both classified and certificated) would like more 
opportunities to learn new skills and strategies specific to their roles with more input in the choices 
and planning. Behavior and mental health support and training is still needed. To achieve this 
continuous improvement for our students and stakeholders, POCS will focus on four overall LCAP 
goals: 

 Goal 1 - Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students. 
 Goal 2 - Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of 

California Content Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 Goal 3 - All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for 

future success in college and careers. 
 Goal 4 - Improve parent engagement. 

Some highlights of POCS' Actions/Services within these goals include (but are not limited to): 
 Teachers will receive professional development supported by collaborative lesson study, 

job-embedded instructional coaching in the classroom, and external facilitators who will 
focus on student social-emotional development and continuous school improvement. 

 POCS will continue to provide professional development to support designated and 
integrated ELD instruction - and to identify and implement a core set of practices, as well 
as enhance ELD and sheltered content class supports and interventions for ELD, Special 
Education, and all students. 

 POCS continues a transition from a Response to Intervention (RtI) Framework to a Multi-
Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) comprehensive system of differentiated supports that 
includes evidence-based instruction, universal screening, progress monitoring, formative 
assessment, research-based interventions matched to student needs, and educational 
decision-making using student outcome data. 

707



Page 3 of 126

 All school staff will continue to receive training and use the most effective research and 
evidence-based teaching strategies in their practice. 

 All staff will continue to receive knowledge and skills training during professional 
development sessions. 

 Administrators and teachers will continue to develop and work collaboratively, analyzing 
data on the implementation of the adopted materials and use of the high leverage 
strategies. 

 POCS will utilize a restorative practices approach to discipline. 
 POCS will continue to work with parents, students and staff to increase engagement and 

school attendance. 
 Staff, parents and students will continue to participate annually in culture and climate 

surveys and strategic planning. 
 Increased Counselor services will be added to support all stakeholders. 
 A full-time POUSD districtwide Director of Student Services position (of which POCS pays 

a share) will be implemented to address the multiple levels of need in the area of Special 
Education. 

 

Review of Performance 
Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the 
California School Dashboard, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or 
other information, what progress is the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build 
upon that success? This may include identifying any specific examples of how past increases or improvements 
in services for low-income students, English learners, and foster youth have led to improved performance for 
these students. 
 
Greatest Progress 
We have a lot to be proud of a school community. Most notably: 

 Restorative Practices and Extra Counseling Support 
 Increased Student Voice Opportunities Through Leadership Council 
 Social/Emotional Learning in All Classrooms 
 Certificated and Classified Working as a Team to Move POCS Forward 
 (Facilitated “Renewal” Process) 
 Continue to Offer Wide Variety of Enrichment Opportunities 
 Student Presentations Beyond the Classroom 
 Student Reflective Practices and Goal Setting 
 Student Led Conferences 
 Continued Use of Momentum Writing and Workshop Learning 
 Increased Parent Club Participation 
 Collaborative Culture and Climate 
 Focus on Mathematical Practice and Lesson Study 
 Wednesday Standing Assemblies 

With regard to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, the POCS performance data indicate the following: 
 
POCS earned a green performance color for Suspension rate (Status:6%, Change: -8.3%). This is 
an impressive accomplishment considering POCS had a red performance color for this indicator for 
the 2017 school year. English Learners earned a Blue performance color for the suspension rate 
indicator. 
 

708



Page 4 of 126

Below are some of the highlights for each of our LCAP goals: 
 
Goal 1- Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.  

 Restorative Practices, Mindfulness 
 Counseling, Community Meetings 
 Incentive Field Trips, Best Luncheon 
 Standing Assembly, Howl Drawings 
 Orientation Night 
 5th PA Position Filled 
 ½ Time Teacher Position Supports and Expands Enrichment Program 
 Teacher Collaboration to Inform and Improve Instruction 
 Increased Collaboration Among Classified Staff and Teachers to Strengthen Culture of 

Inclusion and Respect 

. 
 
Goal 2- Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of California Content 
Standards and the District's Student Outcomes.  

 Math Dept. involved in lesson study 
 Certificated and Classified staff working together w/facilitators on clarifying POCS values, 

vision & mission 
 ELA Dept. is continuing Momentum Writing 
 Teachers are looking at student work in order to adjust teaching to meet the needs of 

students 
 All teachers and staff are being trained in the use of Restorative Practices 

Goal 3- All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future 
success in college and careers.  

 Excellent PE Program, Including Sports 
 Student Reflection and Goal Setting 
 Engaging, Project-Based Learning Including Student Choice 
 Many Avenues for Student Creativity - Visual Arts, Technical Arts, Digital Arts, Cooking 
 Careers Course and Career Day 
 Strong Connection with Piner HS and Early College Magnet Program 

Goal 4- Improve parent engagement. 
 Parent Ed: Teens & Social Media; 
 Using Restorative Practices with Teens 
 Welcome Back BBQ, All School Wikiup Trip, Back to School Night, Open House 
 Student Best Luncheon & Incentive Trips 
 Work Days 
 Fundraisers 
 Enrollment Information Night; Incoming Family Orientation; 
 Individual Placement Conferences as Necessary 

We plan to continue all our actions and goals from the LCAP and ensure we fund Restorative 
Practices and “Renewal” initiatives to continue the progress we have been making and set goals. 
 

 
Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for 
which overall performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a 

709



Page 5 of 126

“Not Met” or “Not Met for Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has 
determined need significant improvement based on review of local performance indicators or other local 
indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these areas with the greatest need for 
improvement? 
 
Greatest Needs 
According to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics dashboard, the POCS review of needs/areas in which our 
performance overall was classified as "red" or "orange" are as follows: 
 
Chronic Absenteeism (Red) 

 All students: 12.4%. Increased by 4% . This increase was due to the fires. We anticipate 
this to be much improved for the 18-19 school year. 

English Language Arts (Orange) 

 All students scored 14.2 points below level 3 and declined by 1 point. POCS will continue to 
provide professional development to support designated and integrated ELD instruction 
and to identify and implement a core set of practices. We will also focus attention on 
enhancing ELD and sheltered content class supports and interventions for ELD, Special 
Education, and all students. Additional Academic Support in ELA and Math. Student-
centered, deeply engaging, inquiry-based curriculum 

Math (Orange) 

 All students scored 53.3 points below level 3 and increased by 0.8 points. POCS math 
teachers will continue to work with a math consultant from SCOE to improve student 
learning, including CCSS Standards for Mathematical Practice. 

Additional Academic Support in ELA and Math. Student-centered, deeply engaging, inquiry-based 
curriculum 
 
The following are the challenges identified locally after reviewing the most current data: 
 
Goal 1: Culture 
 
Challenges: The wildfire trauma continues to affect student attendance and focus; Ensuring students 
feel like a valued member of the school community; Fewer than expected seventh graders feel 
school is important (56%) 
 
Plans for improvement: Social-Emotional Curriculum; Social-Emotional Support and behavior 
intervention; Increased student voice opportunities, including Leadership Council; Restorative 
Practices for a strategic group of students plus ongoing restorative skills support for students; 
Expanded Restorative Practices PD for staff; Introduction to Restorative Practices at Home for 
parents 
 
Goal 2: Teaching 
 
Challenges: Continue to work on ELD and mathematics; Attendance continues to be an issue; 
NGSS PD & Implementation needed; Measuring Positive Teacher Feedback; Plans for 
improvement: 

710



Page 6 of 126

 
Professional Development (ELD, Instructional, LED, Targeted Instruction); Reader's Workshop PD; 
Lesson Study in Mathematics; Student-centered, deeply engaging, inquiry-based curriculum; Fund 
Restorative Practices and “Renewal” initiatives; Systematize Teacher Feedback Process 
 
Goal 3: Proficiency 
 
Challenges: Increase ELA and Math Scores; Maintaining levels for physical fitness; Increase ELL 
ELA and Math Scores; Become well-versed in Interim Tests & Performance Tasks as a Tier of 
Support; Staff time/interest in additional Academic Support - Engaging Curriculum; Engaging all 
students 
 
Plans for improvement: Tiers of Support; Academic Support; Additional Academic Support in ELA 
and Math; Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) comprehensive system of differentiated 
supports that includes evidence-based instruction, universal screening, progress monitoring, 
formative assessment, research-based interventions matched to student needs, and educational 
decision-making using student outcome data. 
 
Goal 4: Parent Engagement 
 
Challenges: Last year was a tough year for our community; Attendance at Parent Club Meetings; 
Provide more opportunities for parent involvement at school; Fill empty parent Executive Committee 
positions 
 
Plans for improvement: Develop systemic ways to increase parent involvement; Increase outreach 
worker time at each site for bilingual support; Provide more parent education opportunities based on 
interest and need 
 
Invite parents to school - academic presentations, celebrations, projects 
 

 
711



Page 7 of 126

 
Referring to the California School Dashboard, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student 
group was two or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA 
planning to take to address these performance gaps? 
 
Performance Gaps 
There were no student group who were two or more performance levels below the "all student" 
performance. 

 
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) under the Every 
Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts. 
 
Schools Identified 
Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI. 

NA 

 

712



Page 8 of 126

Support for Identified Schools 
Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in developing CSI plans that included a school-level 
needs assessment, evidence-based interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be 
addressed through the implementation of the CSI plan. 

NA 

 
Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness 
Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to 
support student and school improvement. 

NA 

 

713



Page 9 of 126

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
My Voice Surveys 
CHKS (Healthy Kids) Surveys 
Best Luncheon participation 
Incentive Trip participation 
Attendance Rates 
Truancy Rates 
Suspension Rates 
Behavior Reports 
Detentions/Referrals 
        

 Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt connected to school and school adults in a positive way, 
participated in engaging learning activities, and felt connection to their school 
community. 
 
As measured by: 
 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers and parents) - 
65% of students feel school is welcoming and friendly 
68% of students feel teachers make an effort to know them 
44% of students feel they are a valued member of school community 
 
BEST Luncheon participation -146 
Incentive Field trip participation -255 
 
CHKS- NA for 18-19 School year 
CHKS- NA for 18-19 School year 
 
Attendance Rates -95% 

714



Page 10 of 126

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
Students felt connected to school and school adults in a positive way, 
participated in engaging learning activities, and felt connection to their 
school community. 
 
As measured by: 
 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers and parents) - 
At least 85% of students feel school is welcoming and friendly 
At least 75% of students feel teachers make an effort to know them 
At least 60% of students feel they are a valued member of school 
community 
 
BEST Luncheon participation -125 or more per luncheon 
Incentive Field trip participation - 120 or more per year 
 
CHKS- Feel very safe at school - Increase to 43% 
CHKS- Have trusted adult at school - Increase to 50% 
 
Attendance Rates -- Maintain at 97% or more 
Truancy Rate --  Maintain at 2% or less 
Suspension Rates -- Maintain at  2.5 % or less 
Behavior Report # - Decrease to 95 or less 
Detention # - Decrease to 53 or less 
        

Truancy Rate -14% 
Suspension Rates -6% 
 
 

715



Page 11 of 126

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Students felt safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with 
others. 
 
Students felt connected to school and school adults in a positive way, 
participated in engaging learning activities, and felt connection to their 
school community. 
 
As measured by: 
 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers, parents) implemented in 2014-15. 
Baseline data-  

 80% of students feel school is welcoming and friendly 
 63% of students feel teachers make an effort to know them 
 47% of students feel they are a valued member of school 

community 

 
CHKS 2013-14 - Relationship w/ caring adult - 40% 
 
CHKS 2013-14 - Feel very safe at school - 25% 
 
Best Luncheon # Tri 1 -165 T2-143 
 
Incentive # - Tri 1- 120 T2-119 
 
Attendance Rate - 96.87%  
 
Truancy Rate - 2 % 
 
Suspension Rates - 2.5% 
 
Behavior Reports - T1&2 - 99  
 
Detentions- T1&2 - 62 
 

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

    

716



Page 12 of 126

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1,1 Continue Implementation of 
social-emotional curriculum, 
including Toolbox and  No Bully! 
 

 1,1 Continued Implementation of 
social-emotional curriculum, 
including Toolbox and  No Bully! 

 1.1.a Pillars of Character 
Consumable Materials            
(1110-1000-4310-BG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$400  

 1.1.a Pillars of Character 
Consumable Materials            
(1110-1000-4310-BG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$400 

1.1.b My Voice Surveys 
(students, staff and parents) w/ 
professional development 
introduction and follow-up. (1110-
1000-5880-SG01) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $800  

 1.1.b My Voice Surveys 
(students, staff and parents) w/ 
professional development 
introduction and follow-up. (1110-
1000-5880-SG01) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $753 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.2 Continue beginning of year, 
incentive and recognition programs 
to improve collaborative spirit and 
to recognize student 
accomplishments. 
 

 1.2 Continued beginning of year, 
incentive and recognition programs 
to improve collaborative spirit and 
to recognize student 
accomplishments. 

 1.2.a Bus for Community Building 
& Incentive Field Trips          
(1110-1000-5806-FT01) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $3,000  

 1.2.a Bus for Community Building 
& Incentive Field Trips          
(1110-1000-5806-FT01) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $3,000 

1.2.b Renaissance T-shirts, 
certificates, plaques, and other 
recognition materials              
(1110-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $300  

 1.2.b Renaissance T-shirts, 
certificates, plaques, and other 
recognition materials              
(1110-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $300 

1.2.c Challenge Day & ROPES 
Course                      (1110-1000-
5808-FT01) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Other $18,000  

 1.2.c Challenge Day & ROPES 
Course                      (1110-1000-
5808-FT01) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Other $30,259 

Action 3 
717



Page 13 of 126

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.3 Create a school climate in 
which it is expected that every 
child can and will learn and provide 
whatever is necessary to support 
that vision. Facilitate 
performances, exhibitions and 
publication opportunities for 
students. 
 

 1.3 Created a school climate in 
which it is expected that every 
child can and will learn and provide 
whatever is necessary to support 
that vision. Facilitate 
performances, exhibitions and 
publication opportunities for 
students. 

 1.3.a High Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned                     
(0000-2700-1300) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $140,245  

 1.3.a High Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned                     
(0000-2700-1300) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $141,871 

1.3.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
Appropriately Assigned                   
(1110-1000-1100-0000) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $911,829  

 1.3.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
Appropriately Assigned                   
(1110-1000-1100-0000) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $933,505 

1.3 c Provide Updated 
Technology, both infrastructure 
and mobile devices  (1230-1000-
4310-BG01) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $10,000  

 1.3 c Provide Updated 
Technology, both infrastructure 
and mobile devices  (1230-1000-
4310-BG01) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Base $10,000 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.4 Continue Student Leadership 
class to provide leadership 
opportunities for students and to 
plan and organize student spirit 
and community service activities 
 

 1.4 Continued Student Leadership 
class to provide leadership 
opportunities for students and to 
plan and organize student spirit 
and community service activities 

 1.4.a Classified Staffing for 
Leadership Class                              
(1110-1000-2100-SG01) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $4,822  

 1.4.a Classified Staffing for 
Leadership Class                              
(1110-1000-2100-SG01) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $4,822 

1.4.b Training / Conference 
Registration                     (1110-
1000-5202-BGPD) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $500  

 1.4.b Training / Conference 
Registration                     (1110-
1000-5202-BGPD) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $500 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

718



Page 14 of 126

1.5 Provide Enrichment Activities 
(before, during, and after school) 
 

 1.5 Provided Enrichment Activities 
(before, during, and after school) 

 1.5.a Yearbook Advisor                        
(1110-1000-1130-YRBK) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $1,760  

 1.5.a Yearbook Advisor                        
(1110-1000-1130-YRBK) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $1,760 

1.5.b Extra-Curricular Sports 
Coaches & Athletic Director       
(1530-1000-1130/2130/3xxx-
SG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$22,756  

 1.5.b Extra-Curricular Sports 
Coaches & Athletic Director       
(1530-1000-1130/2130/3xxx-
SG01) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$13,905 

1.5.c Community 
Art/Mural/Garden Project               
(1130-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $1,500  

 1.5.c Community 
Art/Mural/Garden Project               
(1130-1000-4310-SG01) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $1,500 

1.5.d Music Instructor                        
(1510-1000-5830-SG01) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $2,500  

 1.5.d Music Instructor                        
(1510-1000-5830-SG01) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $2,500 

1.5 e Supplies for Multiple 
Enrichment Activities and 
Programs  (1110-1000-4310-
BG01) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $6,500  

 1.5 e Supplies for Multiple 
Enrichment Activities and 
Programs  (1110-1000-4310-
BG01) 4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies Base $6,500 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.6 Continue placement 
parent/student conferences for 
appropriate placement in core 
subjects. 
 

 1.6 Continued placement 
parent/student conferences for 
appropriate placement in core 
subjects. 

 1.6.a Teacher Hourly Rate - 2.5 
Hrs x 10 Emp for Orientation 
Event + 7 Additional Hrs for 
Individual Orientation Meetings   
(1110-1000-1130-BG01) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $1,300  

 1.6.a Teacher Hourly Rate - 2.5 
Hrs x 10 Emp for Orientation 
Event + 7 Additional Hrs for 
Individual Orientation Meetings   
(1110-1000-1130-BG01) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $1,300 

Action 7 
719



Page 15 of 126

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.7 Continue to maintain and 
provide facilities and design 
classroom spaces to promote 
positive school culture and 
promote greater collaboration, 
creative expression  and project-
based learning. 
 

 1.7 Continued to maintain and 
provide facilities and design 
classroom spaces to promote 
positive school culture and 
promote greater collaboration, 
creative expression  and project-
based learning. 

 1.7.a Classroom Furniture and 
Equipment                   (1110-
1000-4310-FURN) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base 
$20,000  

 1.7.a Classroom Furniture and 
Equipment                   (1110-
1000-4310-FURN) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Base $0 

1.7.b Repair and Maintenance             
(0000-8110-5630-0000) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $10,000  

 1.7.b Repair and Maintenance             
(0000-8110-5630-0000) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $10,000 

1.7.c Maintenance Supplies                  
(0000-8110-4380-0000) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$5,000  

 1.7.c Maintenance Supplies                  
(0000-8110-4380-0000) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$5,000 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.8 Provide social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support 
students in developing self-
regulation strategies and positive 
social relationships. 
 

 1.8 Provided social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support 
students in developing self-
regulation strategies and positive 
social relationships. 

 1.8.a Training / Professional 
Development Registration and 
Other Costs for Certificated and 
Classified Staff          (1110-1000-
5202-BGPD) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $1,500  

 1.8.a Training / Professional 
Development Registration and 
Other Costs for Certificated and 
Classified Staff          (1110-1000-
5202-BGPD) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $1,500 

1.8.b Counselor                     
(3110-1000-5830-SG01) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $25,000  

 1.8.b Counselor                     
(3110-1000-5830-SG01) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $25,000 

Action 9 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

720



Page 16 of 126

1.9 Provide Student Attendance 
Mediation services 
 

 1.9 Provided Student Attendance 
Mediation services 

 1.9.a SAM Program          (1110-
1000-5830-SG01) Only expensed 
if used 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $1,000  

 1.9.a SAM Program          (1110-
1000-5830-SG01) Only expensed 
if used 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $0 

Action 10 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

1.10 Provide before school, recess 
and after school student 
supervision 
 

 1.10 Provided before school, 
recess and after school student 
supervision 

 1.10.a Yard Supervision                     
(1110-1000-2100-0000) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base $36,131  

 1.10.a Yard Supervision                     
(1110-1000-2100-0000) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Base $36,131 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we created a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students by 
implementing Social Emotional Curriculum, Incentive and Recognition Program, providing High Expectations, Student Leadership, 
Enrichment Activities, Small Group Family Orientation, Facilities and Classroom Space, Social-emotional and behavior intervention, 
Attendance Mediation, Supervision         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*BEST Luncheon participation 
*Suspension Rates 
*Expulsion Rates 
*FIT Survey 
*Williams Complaints 
 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 

721



Page 17 of 126

*My Voice Survey-School is welcoming and friendly, Teachers make an effort to get to know them, Feel like a valued member of 
school 
*Incentive Field Trip Participation 
*Attendance Rate 
*Truancy Rate 
*Chronic Absenteeism 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

722



Page 18 of 126

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California Common Core Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
# of teachers who have participated in professional development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning 
 
# of classrooms with evidence of classroom practices related to the CCSS 
and the District's Student Outcomes (student work products, lessons/units, 
rubrics developed). 
 
Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey 
        

 8 of 8 of teachers who have participated in professional development related 
to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning 
 
8 of 8 of classrooms with evidence of classroom practices related to the 
CCSS and the District's Student Outcomes (student work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
 
4 of 5 Teacher feedback on professional learning opportunities offered. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey: NA 
 
Department Collaboration Time: monthly 
Momentum Writing PD (CCSS): 2 of 4 
Math Lesson Study: 4 of 4 
Professional Development (Social/Emotional): 8 of 8 
 

723



Page 19 of 126

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Teachers had opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine 
teaching practices that support the California Common Core Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
8 of 8 teachers participate in professional development related to the CCSS 
ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
8 of 8 classrooms show evidence of classroom practices related to the 
CCSS and the District's Student Outcomes (student work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
 
Teachers provided feedback on 100% of professional learning opportunities 
offered. Teacher feedback on all professional learning was a minimum of 4 
out of 5. 
 
BrightBytes Teacher Survey data: 
Foundational Skills -- Exemplary 
Online Skills -- Exemplary 
Multimedia Skills -- Exemplary 
Classroom Skills - Exemplary(use of 4C's) 
 
        

724



Page 20 of 126

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Teachers had opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine 
teaching practices that support the California Common Core Standards and 
the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
Eight of eight POCS teachers participated in professional development 
related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
8 of 8 classrooms show evidence of classroom practices related to the 
CCSS and the District's Student Outcomes (student work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
 
Teachers provided feedback on 100% of professional learning opportunities 
offered. Teacher feedback on all professional learning was a minimum of 4 
out of 5. 
 
Bright Bytes Teacher Survey Results 2017 Spring: 
Foundational Skills -- Advanced 
Online Skills -- Proficient 
Multimedia Skills -- Proficient 
Classroom Skills - Advanced (use of 4C's) 
 
Bright Bytes Teacher Survey Results 2016: 
Foundational Skills -- 70 % report ease with these type of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 75% utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 75% report ease with these types of tasks. 
 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.1 Provide collaboration time for 
developing: History, NGSS, Units 
of Study and Lesson Development, 
Math, Literacy, PBL, performance 

 2.1 Provided collaboration time for 
developing: History, Units of Study 
and Lesson Development, Math, 
Literacy, PBL, performance tasks, 

 2.1 Collaboration for teams and 
departments to develop rubrics 
and performance tasks aligned 

 2.1 Collaboration for teams and 
departments to develop rubrics 
and performance tasks aligned 

725



Page 21 of 126

tasks, assessments, rubrics and 
evidence of learning. 
 

assessments, rubrics and 
evidence of learning. 

with CCS and District Student 
Outcomes (shortened 
Wednesdays) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.3.b  

with CCS and District Student 
Outcomes (shortened 
Wednesdays) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.3.b 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.2 Continue to provide 
professional development to 
support implementation of Social-
Emotional Learning curriculum. 
 

 2.2 Continued to provide 
professional development to 
support implementation of Social-
Emotional Learning curriculum. 

 2.2. Professional development to 
support on-going implementation 
of Cyberbully prevention/No 
Bully/Restorative Practices for 
staff and students (1110-1000-
5202/5830-BG02) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $2,500  

 2.2. Professional development to 
support on-going implementation 
of Cyberbully prevention/No 
Bully/Restorative Practices for 
staff and students (1110-1000-
5202/5830-BG02) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $2,500 

2.3. Professional development to 
support implementation of Suicide 
Prevention for administrator and 
counselor (0000-2700-5202-
BG02-admin) (3110-1110-5202-
BG02-counselor) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $500  

 2.3. Professional development to 
support implementation of 
Suicide Prevention for 
administrator and counselor 
(0000-2700-5202-BG02-admin) 
(3110-1110-5202-BG02-
counselor) 5000-5999: Services 
And Other Operating 
Expenditures Base $500 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.3 Provide professional 
development opportunities focused 
on instructional practices aligned 
with California Content Standards 
and District Student Outcomes, 
such as writing, PBL, technology, 
math for certificated and support 
staff. 
 

 2.3 Provided professional 
development opportunities focused 
on instructional practices aligned 
with California Content Standards 
and District Student Outcomes, 
such as writing, PBL, technology, 
math for certificated and support 
staff. 

 2.3.a SCOE and other workshops 
for certificated and classified staff   
(1110-1000-5202/5830-SGPD) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $3,000  

 2.3.a SCOE and other workshops 
for certificated and classified staff   
(1110-1000-5202/5830-SGPD) 
5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $3,000 

726



Page 22 of 126

2.3.b Voluntary Professional 
Development Days - ie. NGSS, 
Math, PBL (1110-1000-1130-
SGPD) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$3,575  

 2.3.b Voluntary Professional 
Development Days - ie. NGSS, 
Math, PBL (1110-1000-1130-
SGPD) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$3,575 

2.3.c Substitute costs - ie. Writing 
PD for Certificated Staff    (1110-
1000-1149-SGPD) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $2,283  

 2.3.c Substitute costs - ie. Writing 
PD for Certificated Staff    (1110-
1000-1149-SGPD) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $2,283 

2.3.d Professional Development-
Momentum in Teaching Writing   
(1110-1000-5830-SGPD) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $2,000  

 2.3.d Professional Development-
Momentum in Teaching Writing   
(1110-1000-5830-SGPD) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $4,600 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.4 Continue development of 7/8 
Math Curriculum and 
Assessments. 
 

 2.4 Continued development of 7/8 
Math Curriculum and 
Assessments. 

 2.4.a Collaboration time for units 
of study and assessments 
development - math   (1460-
1000-1130-BG02) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $1,000  

 2.4.a Collaboration time for units 
of study and assessments 
development - math   (1460-
1000-1130-BG02) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $1,000 

2.4.b Substitute costs            
(1460-1000-1149-BG02) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $500  

 2.4.b Substitute costs            
(1460-1000-1149-BG02) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $500 

2.4.c Consultant time (SCOE) for 
units of student and assessments 
development - math   (1460-
1000-5830-BG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 

 2.4.c Consultant time (SCOE) for 
units of student and assessments 
development - math   (1460-
1000-5830-BG02) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 

727



Page 23 of 126

And Operating Expenditures 
Base $1,000  

And Operating Expenditures 
Base $1,000 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.5 Professional development to 
support providing designated and 
integrated ELD and to identify and 
implement a core set of practices. 
 

 2.5 Provided Professional 
development to support providing 
designated and integrated ELD 
and to identify and implement a 
core set of practices. 

 2.5.a Collaboration time for ELD 
assessment (shortened 
Wednesdays) (1110-1000-1100-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.3.b  

 2.5.a Collaboration time for ELD 
assessment (shortened 
Wednesdays) (1110-1000-1100-
0000) 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.3.b 

2.5.b Professional development 
for ELL strategies (SCOE)      
(4760-1000-5202-SGPD) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $2,000  

 2.5.b Professional development 
for ELL strategies (SCOE)      
(4760-1000-5202-SGPD) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $2,000 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

2.6 Professional development for 
targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in California Content 
Standards and MTSS support for 
students who need academic 
intervention 
 

 2.6 Provided Professional 
development for targeted 
instruction to build proficiency in 
California Content Standards and 
MTSS support for students who 
need academic intervention 

 2.6.Professional Development 
workshops Re: Intervention 
Strategies for certificated and 
classified staff          (1110-1000-
5202-SGPD) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,500  

 2.6.Professional Development 
workshops Re: Intervention 
Strategies for certificated and 
classified staff          (1110-1000-
5202-SGPD) 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental 
$1,500 

 

728



Page 24 of 126

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes by providing:Collaboration Time, Professional Development 
(Social/Emotional), Professional Development (Instructional), Math Resources and Assessments, Professional Development (ELD), 
Professional Development (targeted instruction), Lesson Study in Mathematics         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*Professional development (CCSS) 
*Evidence of classroom practices 
*Positive Teacher Feedback 
*Partner Collaboration Time 
*Department Collaboration Time 
 
We met all our outcomes, however, we must continue to implement this goal. 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

729



Page 25 of 126

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
CAASPP Summative and Interim Assessment data 
 
Other identified Benchmarks-CCSS Language Arts and Math (STAR 
Reading and MDTP) 
 
CELDT scores 
 
Title III Accountability Data 
 
BrightBytes Student Surveys 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th grade) data 
        

 CAASPP Summative and Interim Assessment data 
ELA CAASPP: Dashboard Data: 
Status: 14 points below standard met, 
Change -1 
Performance color: Orange 
# of subgroups in orange or red: 4 
 
Math CAASPP Dashboard Data: 
Status: 53 points below standard met, 
Change +1 
Performance color: Orange 
# of subgroups in orange or red: 3 
 
English Learner Progress Indicator: NA 
 
CELDT scores: NA 
 

730



Page 26 of 126

Expected Actual 

18-19 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
CAASPP Summative and Interim Assessment data: 
Maintain or increase above 60% of students in grades 7 & 8 score at or 
above proficiency on grade level standards. 
 
Other identified Benchmarks: 
CCSS Language Arts STAR Reading assessments Maintain or increase 
above 65% of students in grades 7 & 8 score at or above proficiency on 
grade level standards. 
 
Math MDTP Assessments - Maintain or increase above 60% of students in 
grades 7 & 8 score at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
 
ELPAC: Maintain or increase above 85% of EL students score in the Early 
Advanced/Advanced range. 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English 65% 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency 65% 
 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th grade) HFZ - Healthy Fitness Zone: 
Aerobic Capacity -- 75% 
Body Composition -- 75% 
 
        

Title III Accountability Data: NA 
 
BrightBytes Student Surveys : NA 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th grade) data 
Aerobic Capacity: 70% 
Body Composition: 65% 
 
Broad Course of Study: 100% 
 

731



Page 27 of 126

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Students demonstrated proficiency in skills for future success such as 
literacy skills, mathematical reasoning, productive collaboration, critical and 
creative thinking, effective communication. 
Students developed proficiency in academic language (all) and English 
language skills (EL). 
Students demonstrated proficiency in the use of digital tools for research 
(accessing information), evaluating sources, digital citizenship, 
communication, collaboration and problem solving for college and career 
readiness. 
Students developed physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
The 2015-16 CAASPP all-student ELA performance was medium (2.9 points 
above Level 3), and EL student sub group performance was low (16.8 points 
below Level 3). 55% of 7-8th graders read at grade level. 
The 2015-16 CAASPP all-student math performance was low (55.8 points 
below Level 3), and EL student sub group performance was also low (71.8 
points below Level 3). 40% of 7-8th graders score at or above grade level 
standards. 
 
CELDT:  80% of EL students scored in the Early Advanced/Advanced range 
(met). 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO information is from 2014-15 (due to a 2-year reporting lag w/CDE). 
AMAO I - 45.1% of students made progress learning English (met). 
AMAO II -  15.9% of students attained English Proficiency in less than 5 yrs 
(met). 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey results 2017: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- Proficient 
Digital Citizenship- Proficient 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- Advanced 
At Home- Exemplary 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: Advanced 
Online: Advanced 
Multimedia: Advanced 
 
4) Environment Overall: 
Policies and Procedures: Emerging 
Support: Emerging 
Beliefs: Advanced 
Prof. Learning: Emerging 
 
Bright Bytes Survey Results 2016: 
Foundational Skills -- 70 % report ease with these type of tasks. 
Online Skills -- 75% utilize these skills. 
Multimedia Skills -- 75% report ease with these types of tasks. 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th grade): 
72% of students were in the HFZ for Aerobic Capacity. 
70% of students were in the HFZ for Body Composition. 
 
        

732



Page 28 of 126

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.1 Assess student progress 
toward mastery of content 
standards and District Student 
Outcomes. 
 

 3.1 Assessed student progress 
toward mastery of content 
standards and District Student 
Outcomes. 

 3.1 Benchmark subscriptions - 
STAR Renaissance, Illuminate    
(1110-1000-5840-BG03) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $2,500  

 3.1 Benchmark subscriptions - 
STAR Renaissance, Illuminate    
(1110-1000-5840-BG03) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $5,260 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.2 Provide students with project-
based learning opportunities 
aligned to NGSS, CCS and 
instruction in developing literacy, 
numeracy, media literacy, research 
and digital citizenship skills. 
 

 3.2 Provided students with project-
based learning opportunities 
aligned to NGSS, CCS and 
instruction in developing literacy, 
numeracy, media literacy, research 
and digital citizenship skills. 

 3.2.a  Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.3.b  

 3.2.a  Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base See 1.3.b 

3.2.b Supplies and materials, 
printer ink           (1110-1000-
4310-0000) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Other $400  

 3.2.b Supplies and materials, 
printer ink           (1110-1000-
4310-0000) 4000-4999: Books 
And Supplies Other $400 

3.2.c WeVideo video editing tool 
annual subscription               
(1110-1000-5830-SG03) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $500  

 3.2.c WeVideo video editing tool 
annual subscription               
(1110-1000-5830-SG03) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
Supplemental $500 

3.2.d  Math instructional 
resources for Math Program 
development            (6300-1460-
1000-4110-0000) 4000-4999: 
Books And Supplies Other $8,148  

 3.2.d  Math instructional 
resources for Math Program 
development            (6300-1460-
1000-4110-0000) 4000-4999: 

733



Page 29 of 126

Books And Supplies Other 
$8,148 

3.2.e Substitute time for teachers 
to participate in NGSS activities  
(1110-1000-1149-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $2,000  

 3.2.e Substitute time for teachers 
to participate in NGSS activities  
(1110-1000-1149-SGPD) 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Base $2,000 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.3 Provide tiers of support for 
academic intervention during the 
school day. 
 

 3.3 Provided tiers of support for 
academic intervention during the 
school day. 

 3.3.a  Director of Special 
Education (.80 FTE district-wide)   
POCS Share       (1110-1000-
5830-BG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $3,300  

 3.3.a  Director of Special 
Education (.80 FTE district-wide)   
POCS Share       (1110-1000-
5830-BG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $3,500 

3.3.b  Program Assistants for 
three academic support classes        
(1110-1000-2100-SG03) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $97,610  

 3.3.b  Program Assistants for 
three academic support classes        
(1110-1000-2100-SG03) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $97,610 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.4 Provide designated and 
integrated ELD to support English 
Language Learners 
 

 3.4 Provide designated and 
integrated ELD to support English 
Language Learners 

 3.4 ELD Assistant                     
(4203-4760-1000-2100) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Title III $4,835  

 3.4 ELD Assistant                     
(4203-4760-1000-2100) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Title III $4,835 

3.4 b ELD Instructional Materials            
(4760-1000-4310-SG03) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $300  

 3.4 b ELD Instructional Materials            
(4760-1000-4310-SG03) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies 
Supplemental $300 

Action 5 
    

734



Page 30 of 126

Planned  
Actions/Services 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.5 Provide arts education for 
students to develop 
communication, creativity, and 
critical thinking skills 
 

 3.5 Provided arts education for 
students to develop 
communication, creativity, and 
critical thinking skills 

 3.5.b  Highly Qualified Classroom 
Teachers & Enrichment Class 
Teacher 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.3.b  

 3.5.b  Highly Qualified Classroom 
Teachers & Enrichment Class 
Teacher 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.3.b 

Action 6 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.6 Provide students with 
instruction to develop motor 
skills/physical fitness 
 

 3.6 Provided students with 
instruction to develop motor 
skills/physical fitness 

 3.6 PE Instructor 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base $38,058  

 3.6 PE Instructor 2000-2999: 
Classified Personnel Salaries 
Base $43,944 

Action 7 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.7 Continue academic support for 
students with disabilities to access 
a rigorous curriculum aligned with 
California Content Standards and 
District Student Outcomes 
 

 3.7 Continued academic support 
for students with disabilities to 
access a rigorous curriculum 
aligned with California Content 
Standards and District Student 
Outcomes 

 3.7.a Director of Special 
Education (.80 FTE district-wide)  
Paid by Sponsoring District 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Special Education Paid 
by District  

 3.7.a Director of Special 
Education (.80 FTE district-wide)  
Paid by Sponsoring District 1000-
1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries Special Education Paid 
by District 

3.7.b RSP Teacher         Paid by 
Sponsoring District 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Special Education Paid by District  

 3.7.b RSP Teacher         Paid by 
Sponsoring District 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Special Education Paid by District 

3.7.c RSP Specialized Assistant I          
Paid by Sponsoring District 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Special Education Paid 
by District  

 3.7.c RSP Specialized Assistant I          
Paid by Sponsoring District 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Special Education Paid 
by District 

3.7.d POCS Share of Special Ed 
Encroachment                                                         
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SPED) 

 3.7.d POCS Share of Special Ed 
Encroachment                                                         
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SPED) 

735



Page 31 of 126

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Base $20,000  

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures Base $20,000 

Action 8 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.8 Provide career exploration 
classes for college and career 
readiness 
 

 3.8 Provided career exploration 
classes for college and career 
readiness 

 3.8.a Bus for field trip           
(1110-1000-5806-FT03) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Base 
See 1.2.a  

 3.8.a Bus for field trip           
(1110-1000-5806-FT03) 5000-
5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures Base 
See 1.2.a 

3.8.b Teacher Time           (1110-
1000-1130-0000) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $1,800  

 3.8.b Teacher Time           (1110-
1000-1130-0000) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base $1,800 

Career Day Supplies and 
Materials - Every Other Year    
(1110-1000-4310-BG03) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$300  

 Career Day Supplies and 
Materials - Every Other Year    
(1110-1000-4310-BG03) 4000-
4999: Books And Supplies Base 
$600 

Action 9 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

3.9 Provide augmented 
instructional time for students who 
need additional academic support 
in ELA and Math (before, during, 
and after school) 
 

 3.9 Provided augmented 
instructional time for students who 
need additional academic support 
in ELA and Math (before, during, 
and after school) 

 3.9.a Teacher hourly rate to 
supervise and monitor before and 
after school classes       (1110-
1000-1130-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $1,200  

 3.9.a Teacher hourly rate to 
supervise and monitor before and 
after school classes       (1110-
1000-1130-SG03) 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Supplemental $1,200 

3.9.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
for Academic Support Classes 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.3.b  

 3.9.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
for Academic Support Classes 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Base See 
1.3.b 

736



Page 32 of 126

3.9.b Program Assistants 3 x 50 
min x 4 days  (1110-1000-2100-
SG03) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$2,456  

 3.9.b Program Assistants 3 x 50 
min x 4 days  (1110-1000-2100-
SG03) 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
$2,456 

 

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we worked towards ensuring all students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and 
behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers by Assess Student Progress, Project-Based Learning, Tiers of Support, 
ELD to support EL students, Arts Education, Motor Skills/Physical Fitness Instruction, Academic Support, Career exploration classes, 
Additional Academic Support in ELA and Math         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
*Math CAASPP increase of 1 
*Broad Course of Study 
*Reclassification Rate 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
*ELA CAASPP 
*Physical Fitness Testing 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
         

 

737



Page 33 of 126

Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

738



Page 34 of 126

Annual Update 
 
LCAP Year Reviewed:  2018-19 

 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.          

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 

State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Expected Actual 

Metric/Indicator 
% attendance at Parent Meetings 
% of Parent volunteers 
# Parent participation hours 
% reading e-newsletters & bulletins 
        

18-19 
Parents were provided access to up-to-date information on school events, 
student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals 
to support their child's education. 
Parents felt a sense of connection and engagement with the school 
community. 
 
As measured by: 
Attendance at Parent Meetings - maintain or increase to 40% 
Parent volunteers - maintain or increase to 75% 
# Parent participation hours - maintain or increase to 2000 hours/year 
e-newsletters & bulletins -  - maintain or increase to 60% 
 
        

 25% attendance at parent meetings 
59% of Parent volunteers 
1479  Parent participation hours 
Total Event Attendees: 2100 
 

739



Page 35 of 126

Expected Actual 

Baseline 
Parents were provided access to up-to-date information on school events, 
student learning activities, and a clear understanding of instructional goals 
to support their child's education. 
Parents felt a sense of connection and engagement with the school 
community. 
 
As measured by: 
Attendance at Parent Meetings 21% 
Parent volunteers 62% 
# Parent participation hours - 1585 hours 
e-newsletters & bulletins - Readership 30% 
 
        

 
Actions / Services 
Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed. 
 
startcollapse 
Action 1 

 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.1 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to engage to parents 
such as newsletters, email, call 
notification, regularly scheduled 
meetings, LCAP infographics, 
student performances and 
exhibitions. 
 

 4.1 Used a variety of 
communication platforms to 
engage to parents such as 
newsletters, email, call notification, 
regularly scheduled meetings, 
LCAP infographics, student 
performances and exhibitions. 

 4.1.a Annual subscriptions- 
Weebly, Bright Arrow, newsletter  
(1110-1000-5840-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $1,000  

 4.1.a Annual subscriptions- 
Weebly, Bright Arrow, newsletter  
(1110-1000-5840-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base $1,000 

4.1.b Annual subscription for 
report card platform  (Illuminate)    
(1110-1000-5840-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base See 4.1.a  

 4.1.b Annual subscription for 
report card platform  (Illuminate)    
(1110-1000-5840-BG04) 5800: 
Professional/Consulting Services 
And Operating Expenditures 
Base See 4.1.a 

Action 2 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

740



Page 36 of 126

4.2 Continue parent/student 
conferences for appropriate and 
balanced placement in core 
subjects 
 

 4.2 Continued parent/student 
conferences for appropriate and 
balanced placement in core 
subjects 

 4.2 Teacher time included in 
regular salaries 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.3  

 4.2 Teacher time included in 
regular salaries 1000-1999: 
Certificated Personnel Salaries 
Base See 1.3 

Action 3 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.3 Continue to provide Parent 
Education in Math, Literacy, and 
Social-Emotional curriculum 
 

 4.3 Continued to provide Parent 
Education in Math, Literacy, and 
Social-Emotional curriculum 

 4.3 Teacher time included in 
salaries 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.3.b  

 4.3 Teacher time included in 
salaries 1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 1.3.b 

Action 4 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.4 Provide additional support and 
resources to implement ELAC 
parent education and expand 
information available in Spanish 
 

 4.4 Provided additional support 
and resources to implement ELAC 
parent education and expand 
information available in Spanish 

 4.4 Outreach Worker                   
(4760-1000-2100-SG04) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $6,888  

 4.4 Outreach Worker                   
(4760-1000-2100-SG04) 2000-
2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries Supplemental $6,888 

Action 5 
 

Planned  
Actions/Services 

 

Actual  
Actions/Services 

 

Budgeted  
Expenditures 

 

Estimated Actual  
Expenditures 

4.5 Provide parent English classes 
2x/week for parents of English 
Learners 
 

 4.5 Provided parent English 
classes 2x/week for parents of 
English Learners 

 4.5.a CBET Instructor   -   Paid by 
Sponsoring District 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental Paid 
by District  

 4.5.a CBET Instructor   -   Paid by 
Sponsoring District 5000-5999: 
Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures Supplemental Paid 
by District 

4.5.b Outreach worker - 
translation 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.4  

 4.5.b Outreach worker - 
translation 2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries Supplemental 
See 4.4 

 

741



Page 37 of 126

Analysis 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed. Use actual annual 
measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  
 
Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Throughout the 2018-2019 school year we improved parent engagement by providing a variety of communication platforms, 
Parent/student conferences, Parent Education in Math, Literacy, and Social/Emotional, ELAC parent education and translations,  
Parent English Classes, POCS Parent Club, and Parent Volunteer Hours Encouraged and Tracked         
 
Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA. 
The overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the goal can be demonstrated by meeting the following measurable 
outcomes: 
 
 
The following measurable goals demonstrate a continued need: 
 
*Attendance at Parent Meetings 
*Parent Volunteers 
*Parent participation hours (although we didn't meet our goal 1479 hours is impressive) 
*E-newsletters and bulletins readership 
         
 
Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
         

 
Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and 
analysis of the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP. 
Based on the analysis of the annual update and LCFF Evaluation Rubrics there were no changes made to the 19-20 LCAP.         

 

742



Page 38 of 126

Stakeholder Engagement 
 

 

LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

 

Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis? 

1. Governing Board  
 
LCAP Stakeholder Engagement: Meeting Dates: 

 April 10 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 May 15 - update: provided an update to the board on actions and services identified in the 2018 LCAP. 
 June 5- (public hearing) 
 June 19 (adoption 

2. School Site Council: Met on        
3. DELAC Meeting -- participation from all sites.  1/23/2019, 2/5/2019        
4. ELAC Meeting- 1/17/2019        
5. Students 

 My Voice Survey (2/4-2/25) 
 Student Survey (in-house) (4/15 - 4/19) 
 Student Council NA 

6. Teachers 
 Certificated Bargaining Unit Meeting 1/23/2019 
 Staff Meetings 2/7/19, 4/17/19 
 My Voice Survey (1/28-2/1) 
 Instructional Leadership Team 2/7/19, 4/17/19 

7. Classified Staff 

743



Page 39 of 126

 Classified bargaining unit consulted on 1/23/2019 

8. Parents 
 Survey (1/28-2/1/2019) 
 My Voice Survey (2/1-2/15) 
 PTO Meeting 
 Events (various throughout the year) 

9. Staff 
 Districtwide LCAP Meeting: 1/23/2019 
 Districtwide Survey 1/23/2019 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting: 1/31/2019 
 
        
11. Executive Committee 4/24/19 and 5/20/19        

         
 

Impact on LCAP and Annual Update 
 
How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year? 

1. Governing Board  

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

2. School Site Council 

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this tim 

3. DELAC Meeting 

 No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

4. ELAC Meeting 
744



Page 40 of 126

 The ELAC was happy with the direction of the school and LCAP goals, actions and services. 

5. Students 

 My Voice Survey: Indications that we must continue our work with LCAP Goal 1: Culture: Create a positive, learning focused 
environment and culture for all students, include the following data points which represent the percentage of students in total 
agreement: Teachers have fun at school: 34%; Students develop programs that improve the whole school.44%; I know the 
goals my school is working on this year. 43%; My classes help me understand what is happening in my everyday life. 45% 

 Student Council: No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, metrics were requested at this time. 

6. Teachers 

 Certificated Bargaining Unit: Needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum committee and 
that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

 Staff Meetings: Staff would like upgraded technology, a variety of subscriptions, PD related to NGSS and Readers 
Workshop, more Restorative Practice training for the entire staff, finish buying new furniture for the rooms (we're about half 
way through), designated ELD teacher (our half time position), to continue the renewal process with Gail and Cindy, 
additional counseling hours/translation hours (although Kirsten's ability to speak Spanish will be a HUGE asset!). Culinary is 
a VERY popular Enrichment and the Project Room needs some upgrading to be able to properly accommodate the course, 
but remodeling the kitchen area is a big conversation. Staff wants more Restorative Training, ELA teachers are hoping for 
some Reader's Workshop training, Science teachers want to get NGSS training. Impact on LCAP: Professional development 
on restorative practices, Readers Workshop, and Science. Continuation with the Renewal Project. 

 My Voice Survey: Teachers did not take the MyVoice Survey 

 Instructional Leadership Team 

7. Classified Staff 

 Classified would like to meet and give input on Professional learning for 19-20. No changes to 3 year LCAP goals, actions, 
metrics were requested at this time. 

8. Parents 

745



Page 41 of 126

 My Voice Survey: 1 respondents. We must continue our LCAP Goal 4: Improve Parent Engagement actions and increase 
survey participants. 

 PTO Meeting: Parents want programs to continue and project-based curriculum to expand, the parents really want Challenge 
Day reinstated for the upcoming year. Impact on LCAP: Challenge Day will be implemented next year. 

 Events: We had about 2100 event participants in all of our events and 59% volunteers. Parents provided 1479 participation 
hours. Each of the events help build community and develop relationship with our stakeholders so they can share their 
opinions and develop trust. 

9. Staff 

 District-wide Staff LCAP Meeting Feedback: Professional learning- teachers would like to have their meeting in May as per 
the contract to give input for each site. Shortened Wednesdays- The would like them planned in advance and alternate with 
little changes into the year. 

 District Staff Survey: 62 Respondents: The school effectively supports professional learning to facilitate all students 
achieving the academic standards.77%; I have an adequate curriculum at this time to effectively implement the standards 
53%; Assessment data and students' work is analyzed and used to make instructional decisions as a grade level team. 
85%; The school implements strategies and processes for the regular involvement of the parent community including non 
English speaking parents. 65%; The school has an atmosphere of trust, respect, and professionalism. 94%; The school 
offers adequate services, including referral services, to support students in areas of health, counseling, academic assistance 
including English language development, etc. 33%; most important state priorities: Basic Services 64% and Course Access 
71%. Implication on LCAP: Certificated needs ELA/ELD curriculum and Science curriculum. We formed a curriculum 
committee and that is underway in the paper screening stage of adoption. 

10. Parent and Community Member Meeting (See Executive Committee)        
11. Executive Committee 

 Parents were very interested in reinstating Challenge Day under Goal 1. 

         
 

746



Page 42 of 126

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 1 
Create a positive, learning focused environment and culture for all students.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 6: School Climate (Engagement)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to feel safe to take risks, express their ideas, and collaborate with others. 
Students need to feel engaged in learning and feel a sense of connection to their school community. 
 
As measured by: 
 
My Voice Survey (students, teachers and parents) - 
At least 85% of students feel school is welcoming and friendly 
At least 80% of students feel teachers make an effort to know them 
At least 65% of students feel they are a valued member of school community 
 
BEST Luncheon participation -125 or more per luncheon 
Incentive Field trip participation - 120 or more per year 
 
CHKS- Feel very safe at school - Increase to 50% 
CHKS- Have trusted adult at school - Increase to 55% 
 

747



Page 43 of 126

Attendance Rates -- Maintain at 98% or more 
Truancy Rate --  Maintain below 1% or less 
Suspension Rates -- Maintain at  2.5 % or less 
Behavior Report # - Decrease to 90 or less 
Detention # - Decrease to 48 or less 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

My Voice Surveys-
Student 
% of students feel 
school is welcoming and 
friendly 
7th 
8th 
        

 2014-15.  Baseline data: 
80% 
 
2016-2017 
68% 
71% 
 

  
 
 
68% 
61% 
 

  
 
 
65% 
66% 
 

  
 
 
70% 
70% 
 

% of students feel 
teachers make an effort 
to know them 
7th 
8th 
        

 63% 
 
66% 
56% 
 

  
 
66% 
62% 
 

  
 
70% 
66% 
 

  
 
75% 
70% 
 

% of students feel they 
are a valued member of 
school community 
 
7th 
8th 
        

  
 
 
35% 
31% 
 

  
 
 
41% 
32% 
 

  
 
 
44% 
44% 
 

  
 
 
49% 
49% 
 

CHKS (Healthy Kids) 
Surveys 
Relationship w/ caring 
adult 
 
        

 2013-14: 40%  25%  NA  30% 

748



Page 44 of 126

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

CHKS (Healthy Kids) 
Surveys 
Feel very safe at school 
        

 2013-14: 25%  54%  NA  59% 

Best Luncheon 
participation        

 Tri 1 -165    T2-143  NA  146  125+ 

Incentive Trip 
participation        

 Tri 1- 120     T2-119  NA  85  90+ 

Attendance Rates         96.87%  95%  95%  Greater than 95% 

Chronic Absenteeism 
Indicator 
(Previous Year) 
 
Status 
Change 
Performance Color 
 
April of Current Year 
        

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
8.4% 
NA 
NA 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
8.4% 
NA 
NA 
 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
12.4% 
Increased 4% 
Red 
 
April: 18-19: 11% 
 
 
 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
10% 
Decrease 2.4% 
Green 
 
April 19-20: 10% 
 

Suspension Rates 
(Previous Year) 
 
Status 
Change 
Performance Color 
 
April of Current Year 
        

 2015-2016 
 
 
4.9% 
 
 
 
 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
 
14.3% 
Increased 9.4% 
Red 
 
 
 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
 
6% 
Declined 6.4% 
Green 
 
April: 18-19: 0% 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
 
3% 
Declined 3.4% 
Green 
 
April: 18-19: less than 
3% 
 

 

749



Page 45 of 126

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1,1 Continue Implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully!        

 1,1 Continue Implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully! 

 1,1 Continue Implementation of social-
emotional curriculum, including Toolbox 
and  No Bully! 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

750



Page 46 of 126

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $400  $400  $0 
        $400  $400  $0 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $400  $400  $0 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.a Toolbox Consumable Materials                     
(1110-1000-4310-BG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.a Pillars of Character 
Consumable Materials            (1110-
1000-4310-BG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.1.a  Pillars of Character 
Consumable Materials             (1110-
1000-4310-BG01) 

Amount        $800  $800  $1,200 
        $800  $800  $1,200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $800  $800  $1,200 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff and parents) w/ professional 
development introduction and follow-
up. (1110-1000-5880-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff and parents) w/ professional 
development introduction and follow-
up. (1110-1000-5880-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.1.b My Voice Surveys (students, 
staff and parents) w/ professional 
development introduction and follow-
up. (1110-1000-5880-SG01) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 

751



Page 47 of 126

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.2 Continue beginning of year, incentive 
and recognition programs to improve 
collaborative spirit and to recognize 
student accomplishments.        

 1.2 Continue beginning of year, incentive 
and recognition programs to improve 
collaborative spirit and to recognize 
student accomplishments. 

 1.2 Continue beginning of year, incentive 
and recognition programs to improve 
collaborative spirit and to recognize 
student accomplishments. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $2,600  $3,000  $3,000 
        $2,600  $3,000  $3,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $2,600  $3,000  $3,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.2.a Bus for Community Building & 
Incentive Field Trips          (1110-
1000-5830-FT) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.2.a Bus for Community Building & 
Incentive Field Trips          (1110-
1000-5806-FT01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.2.a Bus for Community Building & 
Incentive Field Trips          (1110-
1000-5806-FT01) 

Amount        $300  $300  $300 
        $300  $300  $300 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $300  $300  $300 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.2.b Renaissance T-shirts, 
certificates, plaques, and other 
recognition materials              (1110-
1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.2.b Renaissance T-shirts, 
certificates, plaques, and other 
recognition materials              (1110-
1000-4310-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.2.b Renaissance T-shirts, 
certificates, plaques, and other 
recognition materials              (1110-
1000-4310-SG01) 

752



Page 48 of 126

Amount        $15,800  $18,000  $18,000 
        $15,800  $18,000  $18,000 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        $15,800  $18,000  $18,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.2.c Challenge Day & ROPES 
Course                      (1110-1000-
5880-FT) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.2.c Challenge Day & ROPES 
Course                      (1110-1000-
5808-FT01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.2.c Challenge Day & ROPES 
Course                      (1110-1000-
5808-FT01) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.3 Create a school climate in which it is 
expected that every child can and will 
learn and provide whatever is necessary 
to support that vision. Facilitate 
performances, exhibitions and publication 
opportunities for students.        

 1.3 Create a school climate in which it is 
expected that every child can and will 
learn and provide whatever is necessary 
to support that vision. Facilitate 
performances, exhibitions and publication 
opportunities for students. 

 1.3 Create a school climate in which it is 
expected that every child can and will 
learn and provide whatever is necessary 
to support that vision. Facilitate 
performances, exhibitions and publication 
opportunities for students. 

 
753



Page 49 of 126

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $129,763  $140,245  $140,000 
        $129,763  $140,245  $140,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $129,763  $140,245  $140,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a High Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned                     
(1110-2700-1300) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a High Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned                     
(0000-2700-1300) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.a High Qualified Principal 
Appropriately Assigned                     
(0000-2700-1300) 

Amount        $869,027  $911,829  $941,687 
        $869,027  $911,829  $941,687 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $869,027  $911,829  $941,687 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
Appropriately Assigned                        
(1110-1000-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
Appropriately Assigned                   
(1110-1000-1100-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.b Highly Qualified Teachers 
Appropriately Assigned                 
(1110-1000-1100/3xxx-0000) 

Amount        $10,781     
        $10,781     Source        Base     
        $10,781     Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.3.c POCS Share of District 
Counselor 

  
 

  
 

Amount          $10,000  $10,000 
          $10,000  $10,000 Source          Base  Base 
          $10,000  $10,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3 c Provide Updated Technology, 
both infrastructure and mobile 
devices  (1230-1000-4310-BG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.3 c Provide Updated Technology, 
both infrastructure and mobile 
devices  (1230-1000-4310-BG01) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

754



Page 50 of 126

Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.4 Continue Student Leadership class to 
provide leadership opportunities for 
students and to plan and organize student 
spirit and community service activities        

 1.4 Continue Student Leadership class to 
provide leadership opportunities for 
students and to plan and organize student 
spirit and community service activities 

 1.4 Continue Student Leadership class to 
provide leadership opportunities for 
students and to plan and organize student 
spirit and community service activities 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $3,739  $4,822  $4,822 
        $3,739  $4,822  $4,822 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $3,739  $4,822  $4,822 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Classified Staffing for 
Leadership Class                              
(1110-1000-2100-SG03) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Classified Staffing for 
Leadership Class                              
(1110-1000-2100-SG01) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.4.a Classified Staffing for 
Leadership Class                              
(1110-1000-2100-SG01) 

755



Page 51 of 126

Amount        $200  $500  $500 
        $200  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $200  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4.b Training / Conference 
Registration                     (1110-
1000-5202-BGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4.b Training / Conference 
Registration                     (1110-
1000-5202-BGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.4.b Training / Conference 
Registration                     (1110-
1000-5202-BGPD) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.5 Provide Enrichment Activities (before, 
during, and after school)        

 1.5 Provide Enrichment Activities (before, 
during, and after school) 

 1.5 Provide Enrichment Activities (before, 
during, and after school) 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

756



Page 52 of 126

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,760  $1,760  $1,760 
        $1,760  $1,760  $1,760 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,760  $1,760  $1,760 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5.a Yearbook Advisor                        
(1110-1000-1130-YRBK) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5.a Yearbook Advisor                        
(1110-1000-1130-YRBK) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5.a Yearbook Advisor                        
(1110-1000-1130-YRBK) 

Amount        $19,941  $22,756  $22,756 
        $19,941  $22,756  $22,756 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $19,941  $22,756  $22,756 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5.b Extra-Curricular Sports 
Coaches & Athletic Director         
(1530-1000-2100-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5.b Extra-Curricular Sports 
Coaches & Athletic Director       
(1530-1000-1130/2130/3xxx-SG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.5.b Extra-Curricular Sports 
Coaches & Athletic Director        
(1530-1000-1130/2130/3xxx-SG01) 

Amount        $3,000  $1,500  $1,500 
        $3,000  $1,500  $1,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $3,000  $1,500  $1,500 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.5.c Artist Fee for Art/Mural Project               
(1130-1000-5830-SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5.c Community Art/Mural/Garden 
Project               (1130-1000-4310-
SG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5.c Community Art/Mural/Garden 
Project               (1130-1000-4310-
SG01) 

Amount        $500  $2,500  $2,500 
        $500  $2,500  $2,500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $2,500  $2,500 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.5.d Music Instructor                        
(1510-1000-5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.5.d Music Instructor                        
(1510-1000-5830-SG01) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.5.d Music Instructor                        
(1510-1000-5830-SG01) 

757



Page 53 of 126

Amount          $6,500  $6,500 
          $6,500  $6,500 Source          Base  Base 
          $6,500  $6,500 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 e Supplies for Multiple 
Enrichment Activities and Programs  
(1110-1000-4310-BG01) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.5 e Supplies for Multiple 
Enrichment Activities and Programs  
(1110-1000-4310-BG01) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.6 Continue placement parent/student 
conferences for appropriate placement in 
core subjects.        

 1.6 Continue placement parent/student 
conferences for appropriate placement in 
core subjects. 

 1.6 Continue placement parent/student 
conferences for appropriate placement in 
core subjects. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

758



Page 54 of 126

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,200  $1,300  $1,300 
        $1,200  $1,300  $1,300 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,200  $1,300  $1,300 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6.a Teacher Hourly Rate               
(1110-1000-1130) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6.a Teacher Hourly Rate - 2.5 Hrs 
x 10 Emp for Orientation Event + 7 
Additional Hrs for Individual 
Orientation Meetings   (1110-1000-
1130-BG01) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
1.6.a Teacher Hourly Rate - 2.5 Hrs 
x 10 Emp for Orientation Event + 7 
Additional Hrs for Individual 
Orientation Meetings   (1110-1000-
1130-BG01) 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.7 Continue to maintain and provide 
facilities and design classroom spaces to 
promote positive school culture and 

 1.7 Continue to maintain and provide 
facilities and design classroom spaces to 
promote positive school culture and 

 1.7 Continue to maintain and provide 
facilities and design classroom spaces to 
promote positive school culture and 

759



Page 55 of 126

promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression  and project-based learning.        

promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression  and project-based learning. 

promote greater collaboration, creative 
expression  and project-based learning. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $38,000  $20,000  $14,000 
        $38,000  $20,000  $14,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $38,000  $20,000  $14,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.a Classroom Furniture and 
Equipment                   (1110-1000-
4310-FURN) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.a Classroom Furniture and 
Equipment                   (1110-1000-
4310-FURN) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.a Classroom Furniture and 
Equipment                   (1110-1000-
4310-FURN) 

Amount        $10,000  $10,000  $10,000 
        $10,000  $10,000  $10,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $10,000  $10,000  $10,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.b Repair and Maintenance             
(0000-8110-5630-0000) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.b Repair and Maintenance             
(0000-8110-5630-0000) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.7.b Repair and Maintenance             
(0000-8110-5630-0000) 

Amount        $4,419  $5,000  $5,000 
        $4,419  $5,000  $5,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $4,419  $5,000  $5,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.c Maintenance Supplies                  
(0000-8110-4380-0000) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.c Maintenance Supplies                  
(0000-8110-4380-0000) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
1.7.c Maintenance Supplies                  
(0000-8110-4380-0000) 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

760



Page 56 of 126

Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.8 Provide social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 
in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships.        

 1.8 Provide social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 
in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships. 

 1.8 Provide social-emotional and 
behavioral intervention to support students 
in developing self-regulation strategies 
and positive social relationships. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $500  $1,500  $1,500 
        $500  $1,500  $1,500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $1,500  $1,500 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.8.a Training / Professional 
Development Registration and Other 
Costs             (1110-1000-5202-
BGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.8.a Training / Professional 
Development Registration and Other 
Costs for Certificated and Classified 
Staff          (1110-1000-5202-BGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.8.a Training / Professional 
Development Registration and Other 
Costs for Certificated and Classified 
Staff         (1110-1000-5202-BGPD) 

761



Page 57 of 126

Amount        $22,500  $25,000  $25,000 
        $22,500  $25,000  $25,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $22,500  $25,000  $25,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.8.b Counselor                     (3110-
1000-5830-SG01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.8.b Counselor                     (3110-
1000-5830-SG01) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
1.8.b Counselor                     (3110-
1000-5830-SG01) 

Action 9 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.9 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services        

 1.9 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services 

 1.9 Provide Student Attendance Mediation 
services 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

762



Page 58 of 126

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $0 
        $1,000  $1,000  $0 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,000  $1,000  $0 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.9.a SAM Program          (1110-
1000-5830-SG01) Only expensed if 
used 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.9.a SAM Program          (1110-
1000-5830-SG01) Only expensed if 
used 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
1.9.a SAM Program          (1110-
1000-5830-SG01) Only expensed if 
used 

Action 10 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
1.10 Provide before school, recess and 
after school student supervision        

 1.10 Provide before school, recess and 
after school student supervision 

 1.10 Provide before school, recess and 
after school student supervision 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

763



Page 59 of 126

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $31,042  $36,131  $37,700 
        $31,042  $36,131  $37,700 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $31,042  $36,131  $37,700 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.10.a Yard Supervision                     
(1110-1000-2100-0000) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.10.a Yard Supervision                     
(1110-1000-2100-0000) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
1.10.a Yard Supervision                     
(1110-1000-2100-0000) 

 

764



Page 60 of 126

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 2 
Implement teaching practices that support students in the achievement of the California Common Core Standards and the District's 
Student Outcomes.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 2: State Standards (Conditions of Learning)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Teachers need to have opportunities for professional learning to develop and refine teaching practices that support the California 
Common Core Standards and the District's Student Outcomes. 
 
As measured by: 
8 of 8 teachers participating in professional development related to the CCSS ELA, CCSS Math, and Project Based Learning. 
 
8 of 8 classrooms showing evidence of classroom practices related to the CCSS and the District's Student Outcomes (student work 
products, lessons/units, rubrics developed). 
 
Teachers provide feedback on 100% of professional learning opportunities offered. 
 
BrightBytes Survey data: 
Foundational Skills -- Exemplary 
Online Skills -- Exemplary 
Multimedia Skills -- Exemplary 
Classroom Skills - Exemplary(use of 4C's) 
 
 
 

765



Page 61 of 126

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

# of teachers who have 
participated in 
professional 
development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project Based 
Learning 
 
 
        

 8 of 8 POCS teachers 
participated in 
professional 
development related to 
the CCSS ELA, CCSS 
Math, and Project Based 
Learning. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 8 of 8 teachers  8 of 8 teachers  8 of 8 teachers 
 
 

# of classrooms with 
evidence of classroom 
practices related to the 
CCSS and the District's 
Student Outcomes 
(student work products, 
lessons/units, rubrics 
developed). 
 
        

 8 of 8 classrooms  8 of 8 classrooms  8 of 8 classrooms  8 of 8 classrooms 

 
Teacher feedback on 
professional learning 
opportunities offered. 
 
        

 Teachers provided 
feedback on 100% of 
professional learning 
opportunities offered. 
Teacher feedback on all 
professional learning 
was a minimum of 4 out 
of 5. 
 
 

 Teachers provided 
feedback on 100% of 
professional learning 
opportunities offered. 
Teacher feedback on all 
professional learning 
was a minimum of 4 out 
of 5. 

 Teachers provided 
feedback on 100% of 
professional learning 
opportunities offered. 
Teacher feedback on all 
professional learning 
was a minimum of 4 out 
of 5. 

 Teachers provide 
feedback on 100% of 
professional learning 
opportunities offered. 
Teacher feedback on all 
professional learning is 
a minimum of 4 out of 5. 

 

766



Page 62 of 126

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.1 Provide collaboration time for 
developing: History, NGSS, Units of Study 
and Lesson Development, Math, Literacy, 
PBL, performance tasks, assessments, 
rubrics and evidence of learning.        

 2.1 Provide collaboration time for 
developing: History, NGSS, Units of Study 
and Lesson Development, Math, Literacy, 
PBL, performance tasks, assessments, 
rubrics and evidence of learning. 

 2.1 Provide collaboration time for 
developing: History, NGSS, Units of Study 
and Lesson Development, Math, Literacy, 
PBL, performance tasks, assessments, 
rubrics and evidence of learning. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

767



Page 63 of 126

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1 Collaboration for teams and 
departments to develop rubrics and 
performance tasks aligned with CCS 
and District Student Outcomes   
(shortened Wednesdays) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1 Collaboration for teams and 
departments to develop rubrics and 
performance tasks aligned with CCS 
and District Student Outcomes 
(shortened Wednesdays) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.1 Collaboration for teams and 
departments to develop rubrics and 
performance tasks aligned with CCS 
and District Student Outcomes  
(shortened Wednesdays) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.2 Continue to provide professional 
development to support implementation of 
Social-Emotional Learning curriculum.        

 2.2 Continue to provide professional 
development to support implementation of 
Social-Emotional Learning curriculum. 

 2.2 Continue to provide professional 
development to support implementation of 
Social-Emotional Learning curriculum. 

 
768



Page 64 of 126

Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        No Additional Cost  $2,500  $2,500 
        No Additional Cost  $2,500  $2,500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        No Additional Cost  $2,500  $2,500 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2. Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Cyberbully prevention/No 
Bully/Restorative Practices 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2. Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Cyberbully prevention/No 
Bully/Restorative Practices for staff 
and students (1110-1000-
5202/5830-BG02) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.2. Professional development to 
support on-going implementation of 
Cyberbully prevention/No 
Bully/Restorative Practices for staff 
and students  (1110-1000-
5202/5830-BG02) 

Amount        No Additional Cost  $500  $500 
        No Additional Cost  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        No Additional Cost  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3. Professional development to 
support implementation of Suicide 
Prevention 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3. Professional development to 
support implementation of Suicide 
Prevention for administrator and 
counselor (0000-2700-5202-BG02-
admin) (3110-1110-5202-BG02-
counselor) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3. Professional development to 
support implementation of Suicide 
Prevention for administrator and 
counselor (0000-2700-5202-BG02-
admin) (3110-1110-5202-BG02-
counselor) 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

769



Page 65 of 126

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.3 Provide professional development 
opportunities focused on instructional 
practices aligned with California Content 
Standards and District Student Outcomes, 
such as writing, PBL, technology, math for 
certificated and support staff.        

 2.3 Provide professional development 
opportunities focused on instructional 
practices aligned with California Content 
Standards and District Student Outcomes, 
such as writing, PBL, technology, math for 
certificated and support staff. 

 2.3 Provide professional development 
opportunities focused on instructional 
practices aligned with California Content 
Standards and District Student Outcomes, 
such as writing, PBL, technology, math for 
certificated and support staff. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $8,500  $3,000  $1,000 
        $8,500  $3,000  $1,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $8,500  $3,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.a SCOE and other workshops    
(1110-1000-5202-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.a SCOE and other workshops for 
certificated and classified staff   
(1110-1000-5202/5830-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.a SCOE and other workshops for 
certificated and classified staff   
(1110-1000-5202/5830-SGPD)  
(1460-1000-5830-000-SGPD) 

770



Page 66 of 126

Amount        $3,520  $3,575  $3,575 
        $3,520  $3,575  $3,575 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $3,520  $3,575  $3,575 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.b Professional Development 
Days     (1110-1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.b Voluntary Professional 
Development Days - ie. NGSS, 
Math, PBL (1110-1000-1130-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.b Voluntary Professional 
Development Days     (1110-1000-
1130-SGPD) 

Amount        $586  $2,283  $500 
        $586  $2,283  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $586  $2,283  $500 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Substitute costs      (1110-
1000-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Substitute costs - ie. Writing 
PD for Certificated Staff    (1110-
1000-1149-SGPD) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.3.c Substitute costs      (1110-
1000-SGPD) 

Amount        $1,000  $2,000  $2,000 
        $1,000  $2,000  $2,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Other 
        $1,000  $2,000  $2,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.d Professional Development-
Momentum in Teaching Writing     
(1110-1000-5830-SG02) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.d Professional Development-
Momentum in Teaching Writing   
(1110-1000-5830-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.3.d Professional Development - 
Momentum in Teaching Writing 
(7510-1110-1000-5830-0000) 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

771



Page 67 of 126

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.4 Research and explore math resource 
options and assessments for continued 
development of 7/8 scope and sequence, 
assessments, and pilot math performance 
tasks        

 2.4 Continue development of 7/8 Math 
Curriculum and Assessments. 

 2.4 Continue development of 7/8 Math 
Curriculum and Assessments. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,000  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.4.a Collaboration time for units of 
study and assessments 
development      (1460-1000-1130-
BG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.4.a Collaboration time for units of 
study and assessments development 
- math   (1460-1000-1130-BG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.4.a Collaboration time for units of 
study and assessments development 
- math      (1460-1000-1130-BG02) 

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.4.b Substitute costs            (1460-
1000-1149-BGO2) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.4.b Substitute costs            (1460-
1000-1149-BG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.4.b Substitute costs            (1460-
1000-1149-BG02) 

772



Page 68 of 126

Amount          $1,000  $1,200 
          $1,000  $1,200 Source          Base  Base 
          $1,000  $1,200 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.4.c Consultant time (SCOE) for 
units of student and assessments 
development - math   (1460-1000-
5830-BG02) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
2.4.c Consultant time (SCOE) for 
units of student and assessments 
development - math   (1460-1000-
5830-BG02) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action          
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.5 Professional development to support 
providing designated and integrated ELD 

 2.5 Professional development to support 
providing designated and integrated ELD 

 2.5 Professional development to support 
providing designated and integrated ELD 

773



Page 69 of 126

and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices.        

and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. 

and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5.a Collaboration time for ELD 
assessment       (4760-1000-1130-
SG02) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5.a Collaboration time for ELD 
assessment (shortened 
Wednesdays) (1110-1000-1100-
0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
2.5.a Collaboration time for ELD 
assessment       (4760-1000-1130-
SG02) 

Amount        See 2.3.e  $2,000  $2,000 
        See 2.3.e  $2,000  $2,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.e  $2,000  $2,000 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.5.b Professional development for 
ELL strategies      (4760-1000-5202-
SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.5.b Professional development for 
ELL strategies (SCOE)      (4760-
1000-5202-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.5.b Professional development for 
ELL strategies (SCOE)      (4760-
1000-5202-SGPD) 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

774



Page 70 of 126

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
2.6 Professional development for targeted 
instruction to build proficiency in California 
Content Standards and MTSS support for 
students who need academic intervention        

 2.6 Professional development for targeted 
instruction to build proficiency in California 
Content Standards and MTSS support for 
students who need academic intervention 

 2.6 Professional development for targeted 
instruction to build proficiency in California 
Content Standards and MTSS support for 
students who need academic intervention 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 2.3.e  $1,500  $1,500 
        See 2.3.e  $1,500  $1,500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 2.3.e  $1,500  $1,500 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.6.Professional Development 
workshops          (1110-1000-5202-
SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.6.Professional Development 
workshops Re: Intervention 
Strategies for certificated and 
classified staff          (1110-1000-
5202-SGPD) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
2.6.Professional Development 
workshops Re: Intervention 
Strategies for certificated and 
classified staff          (1110-1000-
5202-SGPD) 

 

775



Page 71 of 126

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 3 
All students will demonstrate proficiency in the skills and behaviors necessary for future success in college and careers.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 1: Basic (Conditions of Learning)        

X Priority 4: Pupil Achievement (Pupil Outcomes)        
X Priority 5: Pupil Engagement (Engagement)        
X Priority 7: Course Access (Conditions of Learning)        
X Priority 8: Other Pupil Outcomes (Pupil Outcomes)        

Local Priorities:   
 
Identified Need: 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in CCSS (literacy and mathematical reasoning) and study and organization skills. 
Students need to develop proficiency in productive collaboration, critical and creative thinking, problem solving, and effective 
communication. 
Students need to develop proficiency in academic language (all) and English language skills (EL). 
Students need to demonstrate proficiency in the use of digital tools for research, evaluating sources, and digital citizenship. 
Students need to develop physical fitness. 
 
As measured by: 
CAASPP Summative and Interim Assessment data: 
Maintain or increase above 70% of students in grades 7 & 8 score at or above proficiency on grade level standards. 
 
Other identified Benchmarks: 
CCSS Language Arts STAR Reading assessments Maintain or increase above 70% of students in grades 7 & 8 score at or above 
proficiency on grade level standards. 

776



Page 72 of 126

 
Math MDTP Assessments - Maintain or increase above 70% of students in grades 7 & 8 score at or above proficiency on grade level 
standards. 
 
CELDT: Maintain or increase above 85% of EL students score in the Early Advanced/Advanced range. 
 
Title III Accountability 
AMAO I - Students making progress learning English 70% 
AMAO II -- Less than 5 yrs. attaining English Proficiency 70% 
 
BrightBytes Student Survey: 
1)  Student Classroom Skills: 
Student use of 4 C's- Exemplary 
Digital Citizenship- Exemplary 
 
2) Student Access: 
At School- Exemplary 
At Home- Exemplary 
 
3) Student Skills general: 
Foundational: Exemplary 
Online: Exemplary 
Multimedia: Exemplary 
 
4) Environment Overall: 
Policies and Procedures: Exemplary 
Support: Exemplary 
Beliefs: Exemplary 
Prof. Learning: Exemplary 
 
Physical Fitness Test (7th grade) HFZ - Healthy Fitness Zone: 
Aerobic Capacity -- 75% 
Body Composition -- 75% 
 
 
 

777



Page 73 of 126

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 7,8) 
 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
        

 2016-2017 Dashboard 
Data 
 
 
13 points below 
standard 
Declined 16 point 
Orange 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2016-2017 Dashboard  
Data 
 
 
13 points below 
standard 
Declined 16 point 
Orange 
 
 
 

 2017-2018 Dashboard  
Data 
 
 
14 points below 
standard 
Declined 1 point 
Orange 
 
 
 
 

 2018-2019 Dashboard  
Data-Goal 
 
 
11 points below 
standard 
Increased 3 Points 
Yellow 
 
 

ELA Academic Indicator 
(CAASPP 7,8) 
 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange 
 
        

 2016-2017 Dashboard  
Data 
 
 
3 (EL, Hispanic, SED) 
 

 2016-2017 Dashboard 
Data 
 
 
3 (EL, Hispanic, SED) 
 
 

 2017-2018 Dashboard  
Data 
 
 
4 (EL, Hispanic, SED, 
White) 
 

 2018-2019 Dashboard  
Data-Goal 
 
 
3 
 

Math Academic 
Indicator 
(CAASPP 7,8) 
 
Status: 
Change: 
Performance Color: 
 
        

 2016-2017 Dashboard  
Data 
 
 
54 points below 
standard 
Increased 2 points 
Orange 
 

 2016-2017 Dashboard  
Data 
 
 
54 points below 
standard 
Increased 2 points 
Orange 
 

 2017-2018 Dashboard  
Data 
 
 
53 points below 
standard 
Increased 1 point 
Orange 
 

 2018-2019 Dashboard  
Data-Goal 
 
 
50 points below 
standard 
Increased 3 Points 
Yellow 
 
 

Math Academic 
Indicator 
(CAASPP 7,8) 

 2016-2017 Dashboard 
Data 
 

 2016-2017 Dashboard  
Data 
 

 2017-2018 Dashboard 
Data 
 

 2018-2019 Dashboard  
Data-Goal 
 

778



Page 74 of 126

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

 
Number of Subgroups in 
Red or Orange: 
 
        

 
1 (White) 
 

 
1 (White) 
 
 

 
3  (EL, Hispanic, SED) 
 

 
2 
 

English Learner 
Indicator        

 2015: 83% 
2016: 100% 
2017:98% 
 

 2017:98% 
 
 

 NA  TBD 

Physical Fitness Test 
(7th): 
HFZ - Healthy Fitness 
Zone: 
 
Aerobic Capacity 
Body Composition 
        

 2015-2016 Data 
 
72% 
70% 
 

 2016-2017 Data 
 
71% 
69% 
 

 2017-2018 Data 
 
70% 
65% 
 

 2018-2019 Goal 
 
72% 
68% 
 

Broad Course of Study         100%  100%  100%  100% 
 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

779



Page 75 of 126

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.1 Assess student progress toward 
mastery of content standards and District 
Student Outcomes.        

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
mastery of content standards and District 
Student Outcomes. 

 3.1 Assess student progress toward 
mastery of content standards and District 
Student Outcomes. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,500  $2,500  $2,500 
        $1,500  $2,500  $2,500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,500  $2,500  $2,500 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.1 Benchmark subscriptions, 
Illuminate              (1110-1000-4310-
BG03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.1 Benchmark subscriptions - STAR 
Renaissance, Illuminate    (1110-
1000-5840-BG03) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.1 Benchmark subscriptions - STAR 
Renaissance, Illuminate      (1110-
1000-5840-BG03) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

780



Page 76 of 126

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.2 Provide students with project-based 
learning opportunities aligned to CCS and 
instruction in developing literacy, 
numeracy, media literacy, research and 
digital citizenship skills.        

 3.2 Provide students with project-based 
learning opportunities aligned to NGSS, 
CCS and instruction in developing literacy, 
numeracy, media literacy, research and 
digital citizenship skills. 

 3.2 Provide students with project-based 
learning opportunities aligned to NGSS, 
CCS and instruction in developing literacy, 
numeracy, media literacy, research and 
digital citizenship skills. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a  Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a  Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.a  Highly Qualified Teachers 
appropriately assigned 

Amount        $400  $400  $550 
        $400  $400  $550 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        $400  $400  $550 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Student digital and print 
resources          (1110-1000-4310-
BG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Supplies and materials, printer 
ink           (1110-1000-4310-0000) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.b Supplies and materials, printer 
ink          (1110-1000-4310-0000) 

781



Page 77 of 126

Amount        $500  $500  $500 
        $500  $500  $500 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $500  $500  $500 Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.2.c WeVideo video editing tool 
annual subscription                                           
(1110-1000-5840) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.2.c WeVideo video editing tool 
annual subscription               (1110-
1000-5830-SG03) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.2.c WeVideo video editing tool 
annual subscription               (1110-
1000-5830-SG03) 

Amount        $11,000  $8,148  $8,148 
        $11,000  $8,148  $8,148 Source        Other  Other  Other 
        $11,000  $8,148  $8,148 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.d  Math instructional resources 
for Math Program development            
(6300-1460-1000-4110-0000) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.d  Math instructional resources 
for Math Program development            
(6300-1460-1000-4110-0000) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.2.d  Math instructional resources 
for Math Program development            
(6300-1460-1000-4110-0000) 

Amount          $2,000   
          $2,000   Source          Base   
          $2,000   Budget 
Reference        

 
 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.2.e Substitute time for teachers to 
participate in NGSS activities  (1110-
1000-1149-SGPD) 

  
 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

782



Page 78 of 126

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.3 Provide tiers of support for academic 
intervention during the school day.        

 3.3 Provide tiers of support for academic 
intervention during the school day. 

 3.3 Provide tiers of support for academic 
intervention during the school day. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $3,300  $3,300  $3,300 
        $3,300  $3,300  $3,300 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $3,300  $3,300  $3,300 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a  Director of Special Education 
(.80 FTE district-wide)   POCS Share       
(1110-1000-5830-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a  Director of Special Education 
(.80 FTE district-wide)   POCS Share       
(1110-1000-5830-BG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.a  Director of Special Education 
(.80 FTE district-wide)   POCS Share       
(1110-1000-5830-BG03) 

Amount        $116,282  $97,610  $100,000 
        $116,282  $97,610  $100,000 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $116,282  $97,610  $100,000 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b  Program Assistants for three 
academic support classes            
(1110-1000-2100-SG) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b  Program Assistants for three 
academic support classes        
(1110-1000-2100-SG03) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.3.b  Program Assistants for three 
academic support classes        
(1110-1000-2100-SG03) 

783



Page 79 of 126

Amount        $100     
        $100     Source        Supplemental     
        $100     Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.3.c Intervention Materials                        
(1110-1000-4310-SG03) 

  
 

  
 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.4 Provide designated and integrated 
ELD to support English Language 
Learners        

 3.4 Provide designated and integrated 
ELD to support English Language 
Learners 

 3.4 Provide designated and integrated 
ELD to support English Language 
Learners 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

784



Page 80 of 126

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $4,835  $4,835  $4,835 
        $4,835  $4,835  $4,835 Source        Title III  Title III  Title III 
        $4,835  $4,835  $4,835 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4 ELD Assistant                     
(4203-4760-1000-0000) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4 ELD Assistant                     
(4203-4760-1000-2100) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.4 ELD Assistant                     
(4203-4760-1000-2100) 

Amount          $300  $300 
          $300  $300 Source          Supplemental  Supplemental 
          $300  $300 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4 b ELD Instructional Materials            
(4760-1000-4310-SG03) 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
3.4 b ELD Instructional Materials            
(4760-1000-4310-SG03) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Modified Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

785



Page 81 of 126

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.5 Provide arts education for students to 
develop communication, creativity, and 
critical thinking skills        

 3.5 Provide arts education for students to 
develop communication, creativity, and 
critical thinking skills 

 3.5 Provide arts education for students to 
develop communication, creativity, and 
critical thinking skills 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.5.c     
        See 1.5.c     Source        Supplemental     
        See 1.5.c     Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.5.a  Artist to work with students 
and in collaboration with teacher 

  
 

  
 

Amount        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5.b  Enrichment Class Teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5.b  Highly Qualified Classroom 
Teachers & Enrichment Class 
Teacher 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.5.b  Highly Qualified Classroom 
Teachers & Enrichment Class 
Teacher 

Action 6 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

786



Page 82 of 126

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.6 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness        

 3.6 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness 

 3.6 Provide students with instruction to 
develop motor skills/physical fitness 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $34,868  $38,058  $39,500 
        $34,868  $38,058  $39,500 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $34,868  $38,058  $39,500 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6 PE Instructor 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6 PE Instructor 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.6 PE Instructor 

Action 7 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 Specific Student Groups: Special Education         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 

787



Page 83 of 126

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.7 Continue academic support for 
students with disabilities to access a 
rigorous curriculum aligned with California 
Content Standards and District Student 
Outcomes        

 3.7 Continue academic support for 
students with disabilities to access a 
rigorous curriculum aligned with California 
Content Standards and District Student 
Outcomes 

 3.7 Continue academic support for 
students with disabilities to access a 
rigorous curriculum aligned with California 
Content Standards and District Student 
Outcomes 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District 
        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Director of Special Education 
(.80 FTE district-wide)  Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Director of Special Education 
(.80 FTE district-wide)  Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.a Director of Special Education 
(.80 FTE district-wide)  Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

Amount        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District 
        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.b RSP Teacher         Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.b RSP Teacher         Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.b RSP Teacher         Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

Amount        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District 
        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District Source        Special Education  Special Education  Special Education 
        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.c RSP Specialized Assistant I          
Paid by Sponsoring District 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.c RSP Specialized Assistant I          
Paid by Sponsoring District 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.7.c RSP Specialized Assistant I          
Paid by Sponsoring District 

788



Page 84 of 126

Amount        $20,000  $20,000  $20,000 
        $20,000  $20,000  $20,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $20,000  $20,000  $20,000 Budget 
Reference        

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.7.d POCS Share of Special Ed 
Encroachment                                                    
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SPED) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.7.d POCS Share of Special Ed 
Encroachment                                                         
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SPED) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
3.7.d POCS Share of Special Ed 
Encroachment                                                                       
(0000-1110-1000-5880-SPED) 

Action 8 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X New Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.8 Provide career exploration classes for 
college and career readiness        

 3.8 Provide career exploration classes for 
college and career readiness 

 3.8 Provide career exploration classes for 
college and career readiness 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 

789



Page 85 of 126

Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a  See 1.2.a Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.8.a Bus for field trip           (1110-
1000-5880-FT) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.8.a Bus for field trip           (1110-
1000-5806-FT03) 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
3.8.a Bus for field trip           (1110-
1000-5806-FT03) 

Amount        $1,800  $1,800  $1,800 
        $1,800  $1,800  $1,800 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $1,800  $1,800  $1,800 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.8.b Teacher Time           (1110-
1000-1130-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.8.b Teacher Time           (1110-
1000-1130-0000) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.8.b Teacher Time           (1110-
1000-1130-0000) 

Amount          $300   
          $300   Source          Base   
          $300   Budget 
Reference        

 
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
Career Day Supplies and Materials - 
Every Other Year    (1110-1000-
4310-BG03) 

  
 

Action 9 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

790



Page 86 of 126

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide          

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
3.9 Provide augmented instructional time 
for students who need additional academic 
support in ELA and Math (before, during, 
and after school)        

 3.9 Provide augmented instructional time 
for students who need additional academic 
support in ELA and Math (before, during, 
and after school) 

 3.9 Provide augmented instructional time 
for students who need additional academic 
support in ELA and Math (before, during, 
and after school) 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $1,200  $1,200  $1,200 
        $1,200  $1,200  $1,200 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $1,200  $1,200  $1,200 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Teacher hourly rate to 
supervise and monitor before and 
after school classes       (1110-1000-
1130-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Teacher hourly rate to 
supervise and monitor before and 
after school classes       (1110-1000-
1130-SG03) 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.a Teacher hourly rate to 
supervise and monitor before and 
after school classes       (1110-1000-
1130-SG03) 

Amount        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.b Highly Qualified Teachers for 
Academic Support Classes 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.b Highly Qualified Teachers for 
Academic Support Classes 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.b Highly Qualified Teachers for 
Academic Support Classes 

791



Page 87 of 126

Amount        $2,456  $2,456  $2,456 
        $2,456  $2,456  $2,456 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $2,456  $2,456  $2,456 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.b Program Assistants 3 x 50 min 
x 4 days 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.b Program Assistants 3 x 50 min 
x 4 days  (1110-1000-2100-SG03) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
3.9.b Program Assistants 3 x 50 min 
x 4 days   (1110-1000-2100-SG03) 

 

792



Page 88 of 126

Goals, Actions, & Services 
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed. 

 
(Select from New Goal, Modified Goal, or Unchanged Goal) 
X Unchanged Goal        
 

Goal 4 
Improve parent engagement.         

 
State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal: 
State Priorities: X Priority 3: Parental Involvement (Engagement)        
Local Priorities:   

 
Identified Need: 
Parents need to be provided access to up-to-date information on school events, student learning activities, and a clear understanding 
of instructional goals to support their child's education. 
Parents need to feel a sense of connection and engagement with the school community. 
 
As measured by: 
Attendance at Parent Meetings - maintain or increase to 50% 
Parent volunteers - maintain or increase to 80% 
# Parent participation hours - maintain or increase to 2250 hours/year 
e-newsletters & bulletins -  - maintain or increase to 70% 
 
 
 
Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

% attendance at Parent 
Meetings 
 
        

 21% 
 
 
 

 51%  NA 
 
 

 55% 
 
 

793



Page 89 of 126

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

% of Parent volunteers         62%  51%  59%  >50% 

# Parent participation 
hours        

 1585 hours  912 hours/year  1479  1500 

Event Attendees         Baseline 18-19 Data: 
2100 

 NA  2100  2000+ 

 

Planned Actions / Services 
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed. 
 

startcollapse 
Action 1 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All        
X Students with Disabilities        

 X All Schools        

 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.1 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to engage to parents such as 

 4.1 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to engage to parents such as 

 4.1 Use a variety of communication 
platforms to engage to parents such as 

794



Page 90 of 126

newsletters, email, call notification, 
regularly scheduled meetings, LCAP 
infographics, student performances and 
exhibitions.        

newsletters, email, call notification, 
regularly scheduled meetings, LCAP 
infographics, student performances and 
exhibitions. 

newsletters, email, call notification, 
regularly scheduled meetings, LCAP 
infographics, student performances and 
exhibitions. 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $3,000  $1,000  $1,000 
        $3,000  $1,000  $1,000 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        $3,000  $1,000  $1,000 Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.a Annual subscriptions- Weebly, 
SchoolGo, Bright Arrow, newsletter, 
LCAP Infographics  (1110-1000-
4310/5830-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.1.a Annual subscriptions- Weebly, 
Bright Arrow, newsletter  (1110-
1000-5840-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.1.a Annual subscriptions- Weebly, 
Bright Arrow, newsletter (1110-1000-
5840-BG04) 

Amount        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a 
        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a  See 4.1.a Budget 
Reference        

4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.b Annual subscription for report 
card platform  (Schoolwise)    (1110-
1000-4340-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.1.b Annual subscription for report 
card platform  (Illuminate)    (1110-
1000-5840-BG04) 

 5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 
4.1.b Annual subscription for report 
card platform  (Illuminate)    (1110-
1000-5840-BG04) 

Amount            $2,000 
            $2,000 Source            LCFF Base 
            $2,000 Budget 
Reference        

 
 

  
 

 4000-4999: Books And Supplies 
4.1.c Involve parents/community in 
events - equipment/supplies (0000-
1110-1000-4390-0000) 

Action 2 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

795



Page 91 of 126

Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

X All         X All Schools        
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Scope of Services selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.2 Continue parent/student conferences 
for appropriate and balanced placement in 
core subjects        

 4.2 Continue parent/student conferences 
for appropriate and balanced placement in 
core subjects 

 4.2 Continue parent/student conferences 
for appropriate and balanced placement in 
core subjects 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.6  See 1.3  See 1.3 
        See 1.6  See 1.3  See 1.3 Source        Base  Base  Base 
        See 1.6  See 1.3  See 1.3 Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.2 Teacher time 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.2 Teacher time included in regular 
salaries 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.2 Teacher time included in regular 
salaries 

Action 3 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

796



Page 92 of 126

Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners        
X Foster Youth        
X Low Income        

 X LEA-wide         X All Schools        

 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.3 Continue to provide Parent Education 
in Math, Literacy, and Social-Emotional 
curriculum        

 4.3 Continue to provide Parent Education 
in Math, Literacy, and Social-Emotional 
curriculum 

 4.3 Continue to provide Parent Education 
in Math, Literacy, and Social-Emotional 
curriculum 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b  See 1.3.b Budget 
Reference        

1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.3 Teacher time included in salaries 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.3 Teacher time included in salaries 

 1000-1999: Certificated Personnel 
Salaries 
4.3 Teacher time included in salaries 

Action 4 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

797



Page 93 of 126

Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide          
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.4 Provide additional support and 
resources to implement ELAC parent 
education and expand information 
available in Spanish        

 4.4 Provide additional support and 
resources to implement ELAC parent 
education and expand information 
available in Spanish 

 4.4 Provide additional support and 
resources to implement ELAC parent 
education and expand information 
available in Spanish 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        $3,918  $6,888  $7,038 
        $3,918  $6,888  $7,038 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        $3,918  $6,888  $7,038 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4 Outreach Worker                   
(4760-1000-2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4 Outreach Worker                   
(4760-1000-2100-SG04) 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.4 Outreach Worker                   
(4760-1000-2100-SG04) 

Action 5 
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 

798



Page 94 of 126

Students to be Served: 
(Select from All, Students with Disabilities, or Specific Student Groups) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or Specific Grade Spans) 

 [Add Students to be Served selection here]   [Add Location(s) selection here] 
 

OR 
 

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement: 
Students to be Served: 
(Select from English Learners, Foster Youth, 
and/or Low Income) 

 Scope of Services: 
(Select from LEA-wide, Schoolwide, or Limited to 
Unduplicated Student Group(s)) 

 Location(s): 
(Select from All Schools, Specific Schools, and/or 
Specific Grade Spans) 

X English Learners         X LEA-wide          
 

Actions/Services 
Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2017-18 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged 
for 2018-19 

Select from New, Modified, or Unchanged  
for 2019-20 

X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action         X Unchanged Action        
 

2017-18 Actions/Services 2018-19 Actions/Services 2019-20 Actions/Services 
4.5 Provide parent English classes 
2x/week for parents of English Learners        

 4.5 Provide parent English classes 
2x/week for parents of English Learners 

 4.5 Provide parent English classes 
2x/week for parents of English Learners 

 
Budgeted Expenditures 
Year 2017-18  2018-19  2019-20 
Amount        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District 
        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        Paid by District  Paid by District  Paid by District Budget 
Reference        

5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
4.5.a CBET Instructor   -   Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
4.5.a CBET Instructor   -   Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

 5000-5999: Services And Other 
Operating Expenditures 
4.5.a CBET Instructor   -   Paid by 
Sponsoring District 

799



Page 95 of 126

Amount        See 4.5.a  See 4.4  See 4.4 
        See 4.5.a  See 4.4  See 4.4 Source        Supplemental  Supplemental  Supplemental 
        See 4.5.a  See 4.4  See 4.4 Budget 
Reference        

2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.b Outreach worker - translation 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.b Outreach worker - translation 

 2000-2999: Classified Personnel 
Salaries 
4.5.b Outreach worker - translation 

 

800



Page 96 of 126

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils 
 
LCAP Year: 2019-20 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$176,619  11.37% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Piner Olivet Charter School's unduplicated count for 19-20 is 57.2%, exceeding 40%, and so some of the supplemental grant funds 
were expended on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English Learner 
students. For 2019-20 school year, POCS is planning on spending $180,707 in supplemental grant funding which exceeds the 
supplemental grant revenue by $4,088, based on the BASF LCFF Calculator utilizing the Governor's May Revise Budget information. 
 
Piner Olivet Charter School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs of 
low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based on 
staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 
site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input.  
 
Funds expended will be used in the following significant ways (which is in response to the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services:"  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behavioral, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

801



Page 97 of 126

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in NGSS, CCSS and MTSS support for students who need academic intervention See LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and 
State Priorities 2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 
& 4. 

Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Piner Olivet Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2018-19 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$153,702  9.1% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 

802



Page 98 of 126

 

Piner Olivet Charter School's unduplicated count for 17-18 is 57%, exceeding 40%, and so some of the supplemental grant funds were 
expended on school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English Learner students. For 
2017-18, Piner Olivet Charter School expended $172,056 on supplemental grant programs. For 2018-19, POCS is planning on 
spending $184,013 in supplemental grant funding which exceeds the $153,702 expected as supplemental grant revenue, based on 
the BASF LCFF Calculator utilizing the Governor's May Revise Budget information. 
 
Piner Olivet Charter School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs of 
low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based on 
staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 
site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input.  
 
Funds expended will be used in the following significant ways (which is in response to the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services:"  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behaviorial, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in NGSS, CCSS and MTSS support for students who need academic intervention See 

 LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with 

 SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the 
development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for  

803



Page 99 of 126

 
 low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 
 
Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Piner Olivet Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
------- 
------- 
 
LCAP Year: 2017-18 
 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds  Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 

$132,184  8.89% 
 
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either 
qualitatively or quantitatively, as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  
 
Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions 
supporting each schoolwide or LEA-wide use of funds (see instructions). 
 

Piner Olivet Charter School's unduplicated count exceeds 40%, and so some of the supplemental grant funds were expended on 
school-wide programs and some were spent on programs directly targeting low income or English Learner students. For 2016-17, 
Piner Olivet Charter School expended $172,161 on supplemental grant programs. For 2017-18, POCS is planning on $191,887 in 
supplemental grant funding, based on the BASF LCFF Calculator utilizing the Governor's January Budget information. 
 
Piner Olivet Charter School is utilizing LCFF supplemental funds to improve student achievement that principally meets the needs of 
low income, EL and foster youth at the school site, and ensuring that funds are spent to benefit these subgroups of students. Based on 
staff and stakeholder feedback and research on effective practices we are implementing more than 10 LCAP Action/Services to 
improve services for the low income, English learner and foster youth including using a portion of the LCFF Supplemental dollars for 

804



Page 100 of 126

site allocations based on the number of unduplicated youth served to allow sites to implement site specific solutions based on unique 
site needs, and site stakeholder input.  
 
Funds expended will be used in the following significant ways (which is in response to the Community/Stakeholder Engagement 
surveys, as well as research-based). Please find supporting research information below in "Supporting Research Document for 
Programs/Services:"  

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behaviorial, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. See LCAP Goal 1 
and State Priorities 5 & 6. 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention See 

 LCAP Goal 1 & 2 and State Priorities 2, 4, & 6. 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. See LCAP Goal 3 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with 

 SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the 
development and implementation of intervention strategies and programs for  
 
 low SES and EL students. See LCAP Goal 2 and State Priorities 2 & 4. 
 
Based on supporting research, experience, and educational theory, Piner Olivet Charter School has determined these actions 
described in the LCAP are the most effective use of funds to meet the LEA’s goals for unduplicated pupils and has established 
processes to ensure that supplemental funds are utilized in a manner which benefits the intended student subgroups. 
 
 
Supporting Research Document for POCS Programs/Services: 

805



Page 101 of 126

 Provide counseling services: social-emotional, behaviorial, self- regulation, and positive social relationships. 

Reviews of the research on school counseling show that the services of school counselors have a positive effect on children: 
 
1. Borders, L.D., & Drury, S.M. (1992). Comprehensive school counseling programs: A review for policymakers and practitioners. 
Journal of Counseling and Development, 70, 487-498.  
 
2. St. Clair, K.L. (1989). Middle school counseling research: A resource for school counselors. Elementary School Guidance & 
Counseling, 23, 219-226.  
 
3. Whitson, S.C., & Sexton, T.L. (1998). A review of school counseling outcome research: implications for practice. Journal of 
Counseling & Development, 76, 412-426.  
 
Quantitative analyses of research (meta-analyses) also substantiate the beneficial effects of school counseling programs: 
 
1. Prout, H.T. & Demartino, R.A. (1986). A meta-analysis of school-based studies of psychotherapy. Journal of School 
Psychology, 24, 285-292.  
 
2. Sprinthall, N.A. (1981). A new model for research in the science of guidance and counseling. The Personnel and Guidance Journal, 
59, 487-493. 
 
School counseling programs have significant influence on discipline problems. Baker and Gerler reported that students who 
participated in a school counseling program had significantly less inappropriate behaviors and more positive attitudes toward school 
than those students who did not participate in the program. Another study reported that group counseling provided by school 
counselors significantly decreased participants' aggressive and hostile behaviors: 
 
1. Baker, S. B., & Gerler, E. R. (2001). Counseling in schools. In D. C. Locke, J. E. Myers, and E. L. Herr (Eds.), The Handbook of 
Counseling, Thousand Oaks, CA: Sage Publications.  
 
2. Omizo, M.M., Hershberger, J.M., & Omizo, S.A. (1988). Teaching children to cope with anger. Elementary School Guidance & 
Counseling, 22, 241-245. 
 

806



Page 102 of 126

School counselors are also very effective in assisting middle school children in the area of career development (Whiston, S. C., 
Sexton, T. L., & Lasoff, D. L. (1998). Career-intervention outcome: A replication and extension of Oliver and Spokane (1988). Journal 
of Counseling Psychology, 45, 150-165). 

 Provide multiple tiers of intervention (academic, behavioral). and Professional development for targeted instruction to build 
proficiency in CCSS and RTI support for students who need academic intervention. 

The heart of any Response-to-Intervention (RTI) model lies in the use of tiered instructional processes. Although the assessment 
components of RTI (universal screening and progress monitoring) are essential elements of implementation, it is the instruction that 
occurs as a function of the outcomes of the assessments that truly drives the changes we hope to see in students who are identified 
as being at risk for not meeting academic expectations. Tiered instruction represents a model in which the instruction delivered to 
students varies on several dimensions that are related to the nature and severity of the student's difficulties.  
 
When a tiered framework is applied schoolwide, with all students and addressing academic and/or behavioral curricular instruction, it 
is often termed a multi-tiered system of supports (MTSS). Researchers interested in MTSS in early reading have suggested that if high 
quality reading instruction and reading interventions are not provided, at-risk readers will continue to struggle into later grades and will 
routinely be identified for special education programs (Juel, 1998; Lyon, 2005; Moats, 1999; Torgesen, 2007). The quality of instruction 
has been found to be influential on student academic outcomes (Darling-Hammond, 2000; Foorman, Francis, Fletcher, 
Schatschneider, Mehta, 1998; Haager, Klingner, & Vaughn, 2007; O’Connor, Fulmer, Harty, & Bell, 2005).  
 
When implementing MTSS/RTI, professional development focuses on instructional features, as well as the academic or behavior 
content and skills, to build teacher capacity and improve instruction (Vaughn, et al., 2008; Knight & Michel, 2011). Universal supports, 
also referred to as Tier 1 instruction, are the initial focus of MTSS/RTI implementation. Universal supports are provided in general 
education and are provided to all students (Speece, Case, & Molloy, 2003). This level of support is characterized by its focus on high-
quality initial instruction, grounded in research, and provided to all students. Providing evidence-based instruction and supports for an 
academic content area or for the social, emotional, or behavioral development in all students has been supported as a way to prevent 
future deficits (Doabler, Cary, Jungjohann, Clarke, Fien, Baker, Smolkowski, & Chard, 2012; Greenwood, Horner, & Kratochwill, 2008). 
A strong implementation of universal level support is the first step in reducing the number of students who will require more targeted 
and/or intensive supports (Nelson, Hurley, Synhorst, & Epstein, 2008; Torgesen, Alexander, Wagner, Rashotte, Voeller, & Conway, 
2001).  
 
The term Multi-Tiered System of Supports (MTSS) has been described as a comprehensive system of differentiated supports that 
includes evidence-based instruction, universal screening, progress monitoring, formative assessment, research-based interventions 
matched to student needs, and educational decision-making using student outcome data (Chard, Harn, Horner, Simmons, & Kame-
enui, 2008). MTSS/RTI helps provide all students, from all backgrounds, equal educational opportunity - regardless of the academic or 
behavioral difficulties they face - especially as issues of disproportionality exist in learning disability identification (Harry & Klingner, 

807



Page 103 of 126

2006; McCall & Skrtic, 2009). Considering the focus of MTSS/RTI is prevention (Chard, et al., 2008), reflecting on system issues 
provides focus to improve schools and instruction and therefore student success (Sailor, 2009a). 

 Professional development to support providing designated and integrated ELD and to identify and implement a core set of 
practices. 

The following research indicates a critical need for effective professional development to support providing designated and integrated 
ELD and to identify and implement a core set of practices: 
 
1. California Department of Education. (2010). Improving education for English learners: Research-based approaches. Sacramento, 
CA: Author.  
 
2. Calderón, M., August, D., Slavin, R., Duran, D., Madden, N., and Cheung, A. (2005). Bring words to life in classrooms with English 
language learners. In E. H. Hiebert and M. L. Kamil (Eds.), Teaching and learning vocabulary: Bringing research to practice. Mahwah, 
NJ: Erlbraum. 
 
3. Dutro, S., and Kinsella, K. (2010). English language development: Issues and implementation at grades six through twelve. In F. 
Ong and V. Aguilar (Eds.) Improving Education for English Learners: Research?Based Approaches. Sacramento, CA: California 
Department of Education. 
 
4. Goldenberg, C. (2008). Teaching English language learners: What the research does—and does not—say. American Educator, 
32(2), p. 8–23, 42–44. 
 
5. Sato, E., Lagunoff, R., & Yeagley, P. (in press). Academic Language and the Common Core State Standards: Implications for State 
and District Implementation and Supporting the Achievement of English Language Learners. San Francisco, CA: WestEd. 
 
6. Short, D., Echevarría, J., and Richards?Tutor, C. (2011). Research on academic literacy development in sheltered classrooms. 
Language Teaching Research 15(3), 363–380. 

 Provide designated and integrated ELD to support English language Learners and enhance additional ELD and sheltered 
content class supports for ELD students. 

Regardless of the overall program structure in school systems, the Institute of Education Sciences, the Education Department's 
research agency, has identified rigorous evidence that the following teaching practices are effective in teaching academic content to 
ELLs: 

808



Page 104 of 126

 -Teach a set of academic vocabulary words intensively, over several days and a variety of activities. 
 -Integrate instruction in spoken and written English into content-area teaching, such as using science laboratory reports to 

teach writing in English. 
 -Provide ongoing, structured chances to develop writing skills. 
 -Provide small-group interventions for students struggling with specific problems in literacy or language development. 

Additional research reinforces that these core practices are essential to providing designated and integrated ELD and supporting 
second language learners academic achievement: 
 
1. Gibbons, P. (2009). English learners, academic literacy, and thinking: Learning in the challenge zone. Portsmouth, NH: Heinemann.  
 
2. Gibbons, P. (2008). “It was taught good and I learned a lot”: Intellectual practices and ESL learners in the middle years. Australian 
Journal of Language and Literacy, 31(2), 155– 173.  
 
3. Gibbons, P. (2006). Bridging discourses in the ESL classroom: Students, teachers and researchers. London: Continuum. 
 
4. Kieffer, M., and Lesaux, N. (2010). Morphing into adolescents: Active word learning for English? language learners and their 
classmates in middle school. Journal of Adolescent and Adult Literacy, 54(1), 47–56. 
 
5. Veel, R. (1999). Language, knowledge and authority in school mathematics. In F. Christie (Ed.), Pedagogy and the shaping of 
consciousness: Linguistic and social processes. London: Continuum 

 Professional development to support teachers in the implementation of intervention and ELD strategies and designated ELD 
(40% FTE to support teachers in the implementation of ELD strategies, contract with SCOE EL Coordinator and follow-up at 
site, 10% FTE technology coach, 8% FTE Director of Intervention Services assisting with the development and 
implementation of intervention strategies and programs for low SES and EL students. 

The National Comprehensive Center for Teacher Quality provides guidance for teacher professional development and encourages the 
implementation of job-embedded professional development in high-need schools (U.S. Department of Education, 2009a; U.S. 
Department of Education, 2009b). The National Staff Development Council (2010) also emphasizes the importance of school-based 
learning and job-embedded coaching as necessary components of effective professional development. Job-embedded professional 
development (JEPD) refers to teacher learning that is grounded in day-to-day teaching practice and is designed to enhance teachers’ 
content-specific instructional practices with the intent of improving student learning (Darling-Hammond & McLaughlin, 1995; Hirsh, 
2009).  
 

809



Page 105 of 126

The best professional development support is primarily school or classroom-based and is integrated into the workday allowing 
teachers to assess and develop solutions for authentic and immediate problems of practice as part of cycles of continuous 
improvement (Hawley & Valli, 1999; National Staff Development Council, 2010). 
 
------- 
------- 

 

810



Page 106 of 126

Addendum 
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student 
outcomes and overall performance. The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed and updated 
annually, as required. Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter 
school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. The LCAP and 
Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year. 

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, 
goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by 
the Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English 
learners, foster youth, pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and 
any locally identified priorities. 

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-
operated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF student group funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile 
court schools, on probation or parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state 
priorities and any locally identified priorities. School districts and county offices of education may 
additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services funded by a school district that are 
provided to students attending county-operated schools and programs, including special education 
programs.  

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a 
single LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 
52068, and 52070. The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county 
superintendent of schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned.  

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and 
each LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of 
the state priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the 
charter school, and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description 
of goals for state priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the 
nature of the programs provided, including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements 
explicitly applicable to charter schools in the EC. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for 
charter schools that result from the annual update process do not necessarily constitute a material 
revision to the school’s charter petition. 

811



Page 107 of 126

For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below: 

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents 
Plan Summary 

Annual Update 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Goals, Actions, and Services 

Planned Actions/Services 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students 
 

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please 
contact the local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 
916-319-0809 or by email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.  

Plan Summary 
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a 
fixed three-year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year.  
When developing the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in 
these sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, enter the appropriate LCAP year and 
replace the previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP. 
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA. 
LEAs may also attach documents (e.g., the California School Dashboard data reports) if desired 
and/or include charts illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and 
actual expenditures. 
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information 
specified in each prompt and the budget summary table. 
The reference to California School Dashboard means the California School Dashboard adopted by 
the State Board of Education under EC Section 52064.5.    
 

Comprehensive Support and Improvement 
An LEA with a school or schools identified for comprehensive support and improvement (CSI) 
under the Every Student Succeeds Act must respond to the following prompts: 

 Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.  

 Support for Identified Schools: Describe how the LEA supported the identified schools in 
developing CSI plans that included a school-level needs assessment, evidence-based 
interventions, and the identification of any resource inequities to be addressed through the 
implementation of the CSI plan. 

 Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness: Describe how the LEA will monitor and evaluate 
the implementation and effectiveness of the CSI plan to support student and school 
improvement. 

812

mailto:lcff@cde.ca.gov


Page 108 of 126

 

Annual Update 
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied 
verbatim from the previous year’s* approved LCAP; in addition, list the state and/or local priorities 
addressed by the planned goals. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.   

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 
2016/17 LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, 
LCAP year 2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 
2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP.  

Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as 
compared to the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the 
goal.  

Actions/Services 
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these 
actions toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented 
to meet the described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the 
actions/services. As applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, 
or to the planned location of the actions/services provided.   

Analysis 
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the California School 
Dashboard, analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. 
Respond to the prompts as instructed. 

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated 
goal. Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the 
implementation process.  

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal 
as measured by the LEA. 

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual 
Expenditures. Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not 
required. 

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and 
services to achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided 
in the California School Dashboard, as applicable. Identify where those changes can be 
found in the LCAP. 

Stakeholder Engagement 
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing 
the student groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget 
process. EC identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices 
of education as consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local 
bargaining units of the school district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. EC requires 

813



Page 109 of 126

charter schools to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, 
and pupils in developing the LCAP. In addition, EC Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the 
translation of notices, reports, statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian. 
 
The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory 
groups, as applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory 
groups, etc.), to facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA 
may incorporate or reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet 
specific goals.   

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The 
requirements for this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing 
the LCAP, enter the appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the LCAP and Annual Update. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
enter the appropriate LCAP year and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe 
the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual 
Update. 

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult 
with the Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, 
parents, students, school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community 
to inform the development of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the 
indicated LCAP year. 
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, 
administrators, other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of 
the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual 
update for the indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures. 

Goals, Actions, and Services 
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group 
of students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also 
include additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned 
actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to 
implement the specific actions. 

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is 
reviewed and updated annually, as required.   
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the 
charter schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 
2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.   

New, Modified, Unchanged 
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or 
expected annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are 
modified or unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new. 

814



Page 110 of 126

Goal 
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A 
goal is a broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are 
directed. A goal answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?   

Related State and/or Local Priorities 
List the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal. The LCAP must include goals that 
address each of the state priorities, as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local 
priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities) 

Identified Need 
Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update 
process or performance data from the California School Dashboard, as applicable. 

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes 
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track 
progress toward the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student 
groups. Include in the baseline column the most recent data associated with this metric or 
indicator available at the time of adoption of the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. 
The most recent data associated with a metric or indicator includes data as reported in the 
annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the three-year plan, as applicable. The 
baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year LCAP. In the subsequent 
year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year cycle of the 
LCAP. Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years. 
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable 
required metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of 
LEA.  For the student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the 
rates as described in the LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d). 
 

Planned Actions/Services 
For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
included as contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the 
section “For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved 
Services Requirement.” The LEA shall not complete both sections for a single action. 

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement 

Students to be Served 
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those 
which are included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or 
improve services for unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from 
the actions/services by entering “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student 
Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” is entered, identify the specific student group(s) as 
appropriate. 

815



Page 111 of 126

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must identify “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identifying the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services 
Requirement: 

Students to be Served 
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or 
improved services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), 
the LEA must identify the unduplicated student group(s) being served.   

Scope of Service 
For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services 
requirement, identify the scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited 
to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”. The LEA must identify one of the following three options: 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of the LEA, enter "LEA-wide." 

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational 
program of a particular school or schools, enter “schoolwide”.  

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students 
identified in “Students to be Served”, enter “Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)”.  

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” 
may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools 
operating multiple schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use 
“LEA-wide” to refer to all schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a 
single school authorized within the same charter petition. Charter schools operating a 
single school may use “LEA-wide” or “Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a 
consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Location(s) 
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to 
all schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to 
specific schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must enter “Specific 
Schools” or “Specific Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or 
grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K-5), as appropriate. 

816



Page 112 of 126

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter 
petition, may choose to distinguish between sites by entering “Specific Schools” and 
identify the site(s) where the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools 
operating only one site, “All Schools” and “Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, 
therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter schools may use either term provided they 
are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP. 

Actions/Services 
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the 
described goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may 
be grouped together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of 
reference. 

 

New/Modified/Unchanged:  

 Enter “New Action” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of 
the LCAP to meet the articulated goal.  

 Enter “Modified Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal 
and has been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description. 

 Enter “Unchanged Action” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated 
goal and has not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year 
description.   

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the 
duration of the plan, an LEA may enter “Unchanged Action” and leave the 
subsequent year columns blank rather than having to copy/paste the 
action/service into the subsequent year columns. Budgeted expenditures 
may be treated in the same way as applicable. 

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year 
LCAP. For example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 
of the preceding three-year LCAP will be from the prior year. 

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget 
that is submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year 
budget to its authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the 
“Goals, Actions, and Services” section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not 
applicable, charter schools must specify as such. 

Budgeted Expenditures 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to 
implement these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s 
budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures 
must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by EC sections 
52061, 52067, and 47606.5.  
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first 
appears in the LCAP. 

817



Page 113 of 126

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses 
to complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school 
district or county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.  
 

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for 
Unduplicated Students 
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, 
copy the “Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students” table and 
enter the appropriate LCAP year. Using the copy of the section, complete the section as required for 
the current year LCAP. Retain all prior year sections for each of the three years within the LCAP. 

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds 
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and 
concentration of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined 
pursuant to California Code of Regulations, Title 5 (5 CCR) Section 15496(a)(5).  

Percentage to Increase or Improve Services 
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or 
improved as compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated 
pursuant to 5 CCR Section 15496(a)(7). 

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR Section 15496, describe how services provided for 
unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to 
services provided for all students in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in 
quality and to increase services means to grow services in quantity.  This description must address 
how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more unduplicated student group(s), and any 
schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the appropriate description, taken 
together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services for unduplicated 
pupils. 
If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided 
on a schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required 
descriptions supporting each action/service as follows.  
For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis: 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter 
schools and county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed 
to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these 
services are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in 
the state and any local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of 
the funds to meet these goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this 
determination, including any alternatives considered, supporting research, experience or 
educational theory. 

818



Page 114 of 126

For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a 
schoolwide basis: 

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the 
state and any local priorities. 

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% 
enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and 
how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English 
learners, low income students and foster youth, in the state and any local priorities. 

819



Page 115 of 126

State Priorities 
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which: 

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching; 

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and 
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair. 

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses: 
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are:  
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards (CCSS) for English Language Arts 
b. Mathematics – CCSS for Mathematics 
c. English Language Development (ELD) 
d. Career Technical Education 
e. Health Education Content Standards 
f. History-Social Science 
g. Model School Library Standards 
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards 
i. Next Generation Science Standards 
j. Visual and Performing Arts 
k. World Language; and 

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency. 

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses: 
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site; 
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and  
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs. 
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. Statewide assessments; 
B. The Academic Performance Index; 
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy University of California 

(UC) or California State University (CSU) entrance requirements, or programs of study that align with 
state board approved career technical educational standards and framework; 

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the California English Language Development Test (CELDT); 

E. The English learner reclassification rate; 
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and 
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness. 
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 

A. School attendance rates; 
B. Chronic absenteeism rates; 
C. Middle school dropout rates; 
D. High school dropout rates; and 
E. High school graduation rates; 

820



Page 116 of 126

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable: 
A. Pupil suspension rates; 
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and 
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness. 
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in: 

A. S broad course of study including courses described under EC sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable; 

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and 
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs. 

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under EC sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable.  
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils. 
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:  

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement  
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports; 

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and 

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport. 

Local Priorities address: 
A. Local priority goals; and 
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals. 

821



Page 117 of 126

APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE 
CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS 
For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under EC sections 52060 
and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply: 

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The number of K-8 students who were absent 10 percent or more of the school days 

excluding students who were: 
(A) enrolled less than 31 days 
(B) enrolled at least 31 days but did not attend at least one day 
(C) flagged as exempt in the district attendance submission. K-8 students are considered to 
be exempt if they: 
 (i) are enrolled in a Non-Public School 
 (ii) receive instruction through a home or hospital instructional setting 
 (iii) are attending a community college full-time. 

(2) The number of students who meet the enrollment requirements. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

 (b) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:  
(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where 

“cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus 
pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 
1, 2, 3, and 4. 

(2) The total number of cohort members. 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(c) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) For a 4-Year Cohort Graduation Rate: 

(A) The number of students in the cohort who earned a regular high school diploma by the 
end of year 4 in the cohort. 

(B) The total number of students in the cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(2) For a Dashboard Alternative Schools Status (DASS) Graduation Rate: 
(A) The number of students who either graduated as grade 11 students or who earned any 

of the following: 
(i) a regular high school diploma 
(ii) a High School Equivalency Certificate 
(iii) an adult education diploma 
(iv)  a Certificate of Completion and was eligible for the California Alternative 

Assessment if under the age of 20. 
(B) The number of students in the DASS graduation cohort. 
(C) Divide (1) by (2). 

(d) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(3) Divide (1) by (2). 

(e) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows: 
(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 

expelled during the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during 

the academic year (July 1 – June 30). 
822



Page 118 of 126

(3) Divide (1) by (2). 
 

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 
2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 
52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 
Sections 6312 and 6314.  

823



Page 119 of 126

 

APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS 
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis 

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of 
those services result in the desired outcomes? 

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified 
pursuant to EC Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income 
pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired 
outcomes?  

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school 
sites and were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes? 

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review 
progress toward goals in the annual update? 

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? 
How effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What 
changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result 
of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?  

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual 
expenditures? What were the reasons for any differences? 

 

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement 
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated 

pupils and unduplicated pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education 
foster youth services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth 
stakeholders; community organizations representing English learners; and others as 
appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing, reviewing, and supporting 
implementation of the LCAP?  

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for 
engagement in the development of the LCAP? 

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to 
stakeholders related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting 
process? How was the information made available? 

4)  What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written 
comments or other feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement 
processes? 

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement 
pursuant to EC sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in EC Section 42238.01? 

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 
Section 15495(a)? 

824



Page 120 of 126

7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement 
of these stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, 
related to the state priorities? 

 

Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services 
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 

Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access 
(Priority 7)? 

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil 
Achievement (Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled 
Pupils (Priority 9 – COE Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – 
COE Only)?  

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil 
“Engagement”: Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School 
Climate (Priority 6)? 

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities?  
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the 

development of meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level 
advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth 
school level data analysis, etc.)?  

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in EC Section 42238.01 and 
groups as defined in EC Section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils? 

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals 
annually and over the term of the LCAP? 

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to 
develop goals to address each state or local priority? 

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites? 
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in EC Section 52052? 
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant 

to EC Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, and/or 
to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP? 

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?  
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  

Where can these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget? 
 
 
Prepared by the California Department of Education, January 2019 
 

825



Page 121 of 126

 

LCAP Expenditure Summary 
 

Total Expenditures by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Funding Sources 1,435,996.00 1,453,405.00 1,387,537.00 1,435,996.00 1,460,427.00 4,283,960.00 
Base 1,220,063.00 1,232,311.00 1,161,100.00 1,220,063.00 1,244,187.00 3,625,350.00 
LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 
Other 26,548.00 38,807.00 27,200.00 26,548.00 28,698.00 82,446.00 
Supplemental 184,550.00 177,452.00 194,402.00 184,550.00 180,707.00 559,659.00 
Title III 4,835.00 4,835.00 4,835.00 4,835.00 4,835.00 14,505.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

826



Page 122 of 126

Total Expenditures by Object Type 

Object Type 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types 1,435,996.00 1,453,405.00 1,387,537.00 1,435,996.00 1,460,427.00 4,283,960.00 
1000-1999: Certificated Personnel Salaries 1,093,548.00 1,108,199.00 1,044,378.00 1,093,548.00 1,119,378.00 3,257,304.00 
2000-2999: Classified Personnel Salaries 190,800.00 196,686.00 197,140.00 190,800.00 196,351.00 584,291.00 
4000-4999: Books And Supplies 52,848.00 33,148.00 59,119.00 52,848.00 48,298.00 160,265.00 
5000-5999: Services And Other Operating 
Expenditures 

57,000.00 71,859.00 49,000.00 57,000.00 55,000.00 161,000.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting Services And 
Operating Expenditures 

41,800.00 43,513.00 37,900.00 41,800.00 41,400.00 121,100.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

827



Page 123 of 126

Total Expenditures by Object Type and Funding Source 

Object Type Funding Source 
2018-19 
Annual 
Update 

Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual 
Update 
Actual 

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 
2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
All Expenditure Types All Funding Sources 1,435,996.00 1,453,405.00 1,387,537.00 1,435,996.00 1,460,427.00 4,283,960.00 
1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 1,058,674.00 1,081,976.00 1,014,071.00 1,058,674.00 1,086,287.00 3,159,032.00 

1000-1999: Certificated 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 34,874.00 26,223.00 30,307.00 34,874.00 33,091.00 98,272.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Base 74,189.00 80,075.00 65,910.00 74,189.00 77,200.00 217,299.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Supplemental 111,776.00 111,776.00 126,395.00 111,776.00 114,316.00 352,487.00 

2000-2999: Classified 
Personnel Salaries 

Title III 4,835.00 4,835.00 4,835.00 4,835.00 4,835.00 14,505.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Base 42,200.00 22,500.00 47,319.00 42,200.00 35,500.00 125,019.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

LCFF Base 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Other 8,548.00 8,548.00 11,400.00 8,548.00 8,698.00 28,646.00 

4000-4999: Books And 
Supplies 

Supplemental 2,100.00 2,100.00 400.00 2,100.00 2,100.00 4,600.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Base 5,000.00 5,000.00 700.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 10,700.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Other 18,000.00 30,259.00 15,800.00 18,000.00 20,000.00 53,800.00 

5000-5999: Services And 
Other Operating Expenditures 

Supplemental 34,000.00 36,600.00 32,500.00 34,000.00 30,000.00 96,500.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Base 40,000.00 42,760.00 33,100.00 40,000.00 40,200.00 113,300.00 

5800: Professional/Consulting 
Services And Operating 
Expenditures 

Supplemental 1,800.00 753.00 4,800.00 1,800.00 1,200.00 7,800.00 

 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
  

828



Page 124 of 126

Total Expenditures by Goal 

Goal 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

2017-18 
through 
2019-20 

Total 
Goal 1 1,224,843.00 1,230,506.00 1,167,272.00 1,224,843.00 1,249,025.00 3,641,140.00 

Goal 2 19,858.00 22,458.00 15,106.00 19,858.00 16,275.00 51,239.00 

Goal 3 183,407.00 192,553.00 198,241.00 183,407.00 185,089.00 566,737.00 

Goal 4 7,888.00 7,888.00 6,918.00 7,888.00 10,038.00 24,844.00 
 
* Totals based on expenditure amounts in goal and annual update sections. 
 
  

829



Page 125 of 126

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 
  

830



Page 126 of 126

 
startcollapse 

Expenditures NOT Contributing to Increased/Improved Requirement by Funding Source 

Funding Source 
2018-19 

Annual Update 
Budgeted 

2018-19 
Annual Update 

Actual 
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 

All Funding Sources      

 

831



Piner-Olivet Union School District 
 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

  

Action Item:  9.6 Approval of 2019-2020 Budget for Piner-Olivet 
Union School District Including Olivet Charter School, Schaefer 
Charter School, Northwest Prep Charter and Piner-Olivet Charter 
School 
 
 
Special Meeting of:  June 19, 2019 Action Item Report Format:Oral 
Attachment:  Staff Report 
 
Background 
Districts must adopt a balanced budget by June 30.  Since the inception of the Local Control 
Accountability Plan in 2014-2015, district budgets must align with the LCAP.  The District and 
groups of stakeholders have been working on the LCAPs for the District and charter schools for 
several months.  The Board reviewed the draft LCAPs at several meetings, including the Public 
Hearing held on June 5, 2019.    
 
 
Issue(s) 
Beginning in 2014-2015 and continuing in subsequent years, districts must hold public hearings 
on the LCAP first and then the budget.  The LCAP and budget must then be adopted at a 
subsequent meeting and cannot be approved at the same meeting as the public hearings.  The 
District held the public hearings on all five LCAPs and the budget on June 5, 2019.  This June 19, 
2019 meeting is to adopt those LCAPs and budget. 
 
 
Plan/Discussion/Detail 
Information used to develop the budget is the most recent available, although that information 
changes on a daily basis.  The budgets align with the LCAPs.  The revenue for the budget is 
based on the Local Control Funding Formula.  This revenue projection complies with the 
parameters given to districts by the Sonoma County Office of Education.   
 
 
Fiscal Impact 
 
 
Options 
 
 
Recommendation 
Adopt the budget as presented 
 
 
 
 
 
Motion: 
 
Moved by:  Second: 
Vote: Aye: No: Abstention: Absent: 
 FRANICEVIC                 HINTON                   MOHR               PRYOR  WAY 
 

832



833



834



835



836



837



838



839



840



841



842



843



844



845



846



847



848



849



850



851



852



853



854



855



856



857



858



859



860



861



862



863



864



865



866



867



868



869



870



871



872



873



874



875



876



877



878



879



880



881



882



883



884



885



886



887



888



889



890



891



892



893



894



895



896



897



898



899



900



901



902



903



904



905



906



907



908



909



910



911



912



913



914



915



916



917



918



919



920



921



922



923



924



925



926



927



928



929



930



931



932



933



934



935



936



937



938



939



940



941



942



943



944



945



946



947



948



949



950



951



952



953



954



955



PINER-OLIVET UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
3450 COFFEY LANE 

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403 
REGULAR MEETING – GOVERNING BOARD MINUTES 

JUNE 5, 2019 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

The regular meeting of the Governing Board of the Piner-Olivet Union School District was called to order at 5:30 p.m., 
Wednesday, June 5, 2019, in Room 24 at Schaefer Elementary School.  President, Cindy Pryor, presided. 
 
 

2. ROLL CALL 
 Governing Board         Staff 
 Cindy Pryor, President PRESENT      Carmen Diaz-French, Superintendent and 
 Mardi Hinton, Vice-President PRESENT   Secretary to the Board 
 Mindy Mohr, Clerk ABSENT    Felicia Koha, Chief Business Official 

Janae Franicevic, Member PRESENT    Becky Leffew, Interim Chief Business Official – Closed  
John Way, Member ABSENT    Session Only 

        Cathy Manno, Executive Secretary   
        Susan Donner, Principal 
 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 

Ms. Pryor announced that items to be discussed in Closed Session were issues regarding personnel, and collective 
bargaining.  There were no comments on the Closed Session agenda. 
 

4. ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 
 The meeting adjourned to closed session at 5:31 p.m.   
 
5. CLOSED SESSION  
 5.1 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957: 

 5.1.1 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT DISCIPLINE/DISMISSAL/RELEASE 
  (No additional information required) 
 5.1.2 PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT-EMPLOYMENT/APPOINTMENT 

Title:  School Psychologist, Principal, Director @ 50%, Teacher 
 5.1.3 PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
  Title:  Superintendent  
5.2 With respect to every item of business discussed in closed session pursuant to Gov. Code Section 54957.6: 

  5.2.1 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
 Name of Agency Negotiator: Carmen Diaz-French 
 Name of organization representing employees:  Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association, CTA Affiliate 

  5.2.2 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
 Name of Agency Negotiator: Carmen Diaz-French  
 Name of organization representing employees:  Piner-Olivet Classified Association, CSEA Affiliate 

  5.2.3 CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
 Name of Agency Negotiator: Carmen Diaz-French  
 Name of organization representing employees:  Confidential, Supervisory, Administrative Staff 
  

6. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING   
The meeting reconvened to Open Session at 7:00 p.m.     
 

7. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY 
Ms. Pryor commented that during Closed Session, the Board took action on negotiations. 

 
8. FLAG SALUTE 
 
9. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS 
 There was none.      
 
10. COMMUNICATIONS, PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS 
  There were none 
 
11. COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD 

Ms. Franicevic commented that she had attended the promotion ceremonies at each of the school sites and enjoyed the 
student speeches.  
Ms. Hinton commented on the 75th Anniversary of D-Day and the Battle of Normandy and wished everyone a restful 
summer.  956



  
 
 
Regular Meeting – Governing Board 
June 5, 2019 
Page 2 
 
12. RECOGNITION OF EXCELLENCE 

There was none. 
 

13. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
13.1 Announcements 
 Ms. Diaz-French commented that the administrative team has been planning and preparing for the upcoming year.  
 
13.2 Curriculum 
Ms. Diaz-French commented on the recent Bridges Math training.  
 
13.3 Maintenance, Grounds and Operations 
There was none. 
 
 13.4 Enrollment 
There was none. 
 

14. ASSOCIATION REPORTS  
14.1 POEA 
  Ms. Zavala thanked the Board for all that they did throughout the year. She presented the WHO award to April Nichols.  
 
14.2 POCA 

 There was no report.   
 
15. BOARD POLICIES 
 Review and Approval of BP 6151 Class Size and BP 6152 Class Assignment 

Board Policies 6151 Class Size and 6152 Class Assignment were approved as presented on the motion of Ms. Hinton, and 
seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye.  

 
16. DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS 
 There were none 
 
17. ACTION ITEMS 
 

17.1 Approval of the Syserco Contract Addendum to Continue Prop 39 and Other Funded Energy Conservation 
Project       

Mr. Johnson from Syserco gave highlights of the Syserco Contract Addendum and description of work to be completed.  
Ms. Koha commented that she would like to use funds from the Capital Facilities Fund and the General Fund to finance 
the projects.  The Syserco Contract Addendum to Continue Prop 39 and other Funded Energy Conservation Project was 
approved  as presented by Ms. Hinton,  and seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye.  

 
17.2 Public Hearing on 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) for the Piner-Olivet Union School 

District       
Ms. Pryor opened the Public Hearing regarding this LCAP. There were no comments or questions. Ms. Pryor Closed 
Public hearing.  

 
17.3 Public Hearing on 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) for Olivet Elementary Charter School        
  Ms. Pryor opened the Public Hearing regarding this LCAP. There were no comments or questions. Ms. Pryor Closed 
Public Hearing 
 
17.4 Public Hearing on 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) for Schaefer Charter School      
Ms. Pryor opened the Public Hearing regarding this LCAP.  There were no comments or questions.   Ms. Pryor  Closed 
Public 
 
17.5 Public Hearing on 2019-2020Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) for Northwest Prep Charter School  
  Ms. Pryor opened the Public Hearing regarding this LCAP. There were no comments or questions. Ms. Pryor Closed 
Public Hearing    
 
 
 
 

 957



 
Regular Meeting – Governing Board 
June 5, 2019 
Page 3 

 
17.6 Public Hearing on 2019-2020 Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP) for the Piner-Olivet Charter School  
Ms. Pryor opened the Public Hearing regarding this LCAP. There were no comments or questions.   Ms. Pryor Closed 
Public Hearing  
 
17.7 Public Hearing on 2019-2020 Budget for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter School, 

Schaefer Charter School, Northwest Prep Charter School, and the Piner-Olivet Charter School Including 
Assigned and Unassigned Fund Balances  

Ms. Koha reviewed the budget highlights.       
Ms. Pryor opened the Public Hearing on the 2019-2020 Budget for the Piner-Olivet Union School District, Olivet Charter 
School, Schaefer Charter School, Northwest Prep Charter School, and the Piner-Olivet Charter School Including 
Assigned and Unassigned Fund Balances. Ms. Donner asked if POCS enrolled 10 more students what that would do to 
their budget. Ms. Pryor Closed Public Hearing. 

 
17.8 Approval of Resolution #523, Declaring Indefinite Salaries for 2019-2020      
Resolution #523 declaring indefinite salaries for 2019-2020 was approved as presented on the motion of Ms. Hinton    
seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye  
 
17.9 Approval of 2019-2020 Staffing Standards 
Ms. Diaz-French commented that the Staffing Standard Guidelines for 2019-2020 includes one revision as compared to 
 prior years. The proposed revision would provide an increase of .10 FTE for the Director of Innovative Learning.   
The 2019-2020 Staffing Standards were approved as presented on the motion of Ms. Franicevic, seconded by Ms. Hinton, 
all aye.  
 
17.10 Public Hearing and Ratification of Closed Session Action Regarding 2018-2019 Contract Agreements between 
the District and the Piner-Olivet Classified Association (POCA)     
Ms. Koha commented that the AB1200 Disclosure had been included in the Board packet.  Ms. Pryor opened the Public 
Hearing.  There were no comments.  Ms. Pryor closed the Public Hearing.  Ms. Hinton moved to ratify Closed Session 
action approving the following 2018-2019 contract agreements between the District and POCA. Article 26- Wages- no 
language changes in contract. All POCA unit members shall receive an on-schedule 3.75% salary increase retroactive to 
July 1, 2018. All POCA unit members who were employed by the District for a minimum of two (2) months during the 
2018-2019 fiscal year shall receive an off-schedule $2,000 salary adjustment retroactive to July 1, 2018. Article 26-
Wages-Outreach Worker Range changed from Range 13 to Range 14 effective July 1, 2019. Article 26- Wages- 
Specialized Assistant II Range changed from Range 14 to Range 15 effective July 1, 2019. Article 26 Wages- The parties 
agree to review job descriptions and salaries of comparison district during summer, 2019. Article 5- Benefits- Health 
Benefit Cap increased from $730 to $800 for single coverage, from $830 to $950 for double coverage and from $930 to 
$1,100 for family coverage effective October 1, 2019. Article 5- Benefits – Item 5.5.1- Summertime- Change language to 
“Health benefits shall continue as stated for all full-time and part-time classified unit members. Part-time unit members 
shall receive the following dental, vision and life benefits.” Item 5.5.1.1 – delete language. Item 5.5.1.2 – change number 
to 5.5.1.1. Item 5.5.1.3 – change number to 5.5.1.2 Articles 5 & 26 If the agreements with any other bargaining unit 
exceed the amounts agreed to with POCA, the District agrees to increase the amounts for POCA to equal those of the 
other bargaining unit. (Me too) and seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye. 

 
17.11 Public Hearing and Ratification of Closed Session Action Regarding 2018-2019 Contract Agreements between 

the District and the Piner-Olivet Educators’ Association (POEA)     
Ms. Koha commented that the AB1200 Disclosure had been included in the Board packet.  Ms. Pryor opened the Public 
Hearing.  There were no comments.  Ms. Pryor closed the Public Hearing.  Ms. Hinton moved to ratify Closed Session 
action approving the following 2018-2019 contract agreement s Between the District and POEA, Salary - $3,000 On-
Schedule- Retroactive to July 1, 2018. Salary - $2,000 Off-Schedule per unit member, not allocated based on FTE. Health 
Caps – Effective 10/1/19 $800 for Single, $950 for Double, $1,100 for Family as noted in Article XIII – Benefits. TIC 
Stipend- Increase from $1,000 to $1,500 – Retroactive to July 1, 2018. Masters Stipend- Increase from $750 to $1,100 – 
Retroactive to July 1, 2018. Doctorate Stipend- Increase from $1,000 to $1,100 – Retroactive to July 1, 2018. Sub plans 
when attending District required trainings- $50 per District required training with submission of approved timesheet to 
District Office- Effective July 1, 2019. Teachers who take students when a class has to be split due to a substitute position 
not being filled- $50 per teacher with submission of approved timesheet to District Office- Effective July 1, 2019. 
Substitute pay for teachers in a job share or in the Willie Brown Program – Increase from $150 to $165 per day- Effective 
July 1, 2019. Article IV – Association Rights–Revised language in Section 2: Payroll Deductions-Dues Deduction to 
remove “Agency Fee” language. Section 6 (c): New Employee Orientation – New Hire Information Packet, language 
added stating POEA will provide the District copies of completed membership applications within ten (10) days of receipt 
of signed form. MOU- Teaching Hours – NWP 2017-2018, 2018-2019, 2019-2020. MOU Teaching Hours–POCS 2018-
2019, 2019-2020. MOU Kindergarten and TK Teacher Workday 2019-2020. MOU-Shortened Wednesdays 2019-2020. 
MOU–Teaching Hours – Support for Grade 4-6 Teachers 2019-2020. Article VIII –Class Size: Withdrawn by POEA- 
May 13, 2019. Article VI – Teaching Hours: Withdrawn by POEA- May 13, 2019. and seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all 
aye.       958



 
Regular Meeting – Governing Board 
June 5, 2019 
Page 4 
 

17.12 Approval of the 2018-2019 Compensation Agreements for Piner-Olivet Union School District Confidential, 
Supervisory and Management Staff 

The 2018-2019 Compensation Agreements for Piner-Olivet USD Confidential, Supervisory and Management Staff 
 was approved as follows 3.75 Salary Adjustment on schedule retroactive to  
July 1, 2018. $2,000 Salary Adjustment off schedule per employee. Health benefit caps adjusted to $800 for single,  
$950 for double and $1,100 for family effective 10/1/19. on the motion of Ms. Hinton, and seconded by  
Ms. Franicevic, all aye.  
 
17.13 Consideration of Approval of Compensation Adjustment for District Superintendent 
The Board of Trustees will review, discuss and consider approval of a 3.75% on-schedule salary increase for 2018-2019, 
a $2,000 off-schedule salary payment for 2018-2019 and health benefit cap increase for 2019-2020 for the District 
Superintendent was approved as presented on the motion of Ms. Hinton, and seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye.  

 
18. CONSENT ITEMS 
 The following consent items were approved on the motion of Ms. Hinton, seconded by Ms. Franicevic, all aye.  

18.1 The minutes of the special Board meeting of May 15, 2019, 
18.2 The minutes of the regular Board meeting of May 15, 2019, 
18.3 The Personnel Action Report 
18.4 The vendor warrants,  
18.5 The routine budget updates,  
18.6 The swimming field trip for POCS 7th & 8th grades field trip to Wikiup Tennis & Swim Club – September 6, 

2019, 
18.7  The service contract between POUSD and The Salvation Army Tutoring & Mentoring Program (TAM) from 

September 10, 2019 through May 21, 2020, 
18.8 The contract agreement between Olivet Elementary Charter School and Seeds of Awareness to provide 

counseling services for the 2019-2020 school year, and 
18.9 The MOU between Sonoma County Library and POUSD for the Student Onecard Initiative.  

 
19. ROUND TABLE COMMENTS FROM THE GOVERNING BOARD  
  There were none 
 
20. DATES AND FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

20.1 Next Special Board Meeting June 19, 2019   
20.2 Next Regular Board Meeting August 7, 2019 

 
21. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 
 There was no Closed Session.  
 
22. RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION 
 There was no Closed Session. 
 
23. RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING 
 There was no Closed Session. 
 
24. REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION NOT ON THE ACTION AGENDA 
 There was no Closed Session. 
 
25. ADJOURNMENT 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       Carmen Diaz-French 
       Secretary to the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
 
 
 _____      
Mindy Mohr, Clerk of the Board 

959



960



961



962



963



964



965



966



967



968



969



970



971



972



973



974



975



976



977



978



979



980



981



982



983



984



985



986



987



988



989



990



991



992



993



994



995



996



997



998



999



1000



1001



1002



1003



1004



1005



1006



1007



1008



1009



1010



1011



1012



1013



1014



1015



1016


	SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	Wednesday, June 19 2019

	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER 2.  ROLL CALL
	3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 4.  ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 5.  CLOSED SESSION
	6.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	7.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
	8.  BOARD POLICIES
	9.  ACTION ITEMS
	10.  CONSENT ITEMS
	11.  ADJOURNMENT

	9.1 a ACTION -Jack London.POUSD-LCAP - SUMMARY.pdf
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	9.1 b District LCAP Addendum.pdf
	Instructions
	Strategy
	Alignment

	ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards
	Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom
	Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities

	TITLE II, PART A
	Title II, Part A Activities

	TITLE III, PART A
	Parent, Family, and Community Engagement


	ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System
	TITLE I, PART A
	Poverty Criteria

	ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Educator Equity
	Parent and Family Engagement
	Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children
	Homeless Children and Youth Services
	Student Transitions
	Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part

	TITLE I, PART D
	Description of Program
	Formal Agreements
	Comparable Education Program
	Successful Transitions
	Educational Needs
	Social, Health, and Other Services
	Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships
	Parent and Family Involvement
	Program Coordination
	Probation Officer Coordination
	Individualized Education Program Awareness
	Alternative Placements

	TITLE II, PART A
	Professional Growth and Improvement
	Prioritizing Funding
	Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement

	TITLE III, PART A
	Title III Professional Development
	Enhanced Instructional Opportunities
	Title III Programs and Activities
	English Proficiency and Academic Achievement

	TITLE IV, PART A
	Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs


	9.1 d District LCAP.pdf
	Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template
	2017-20 Plan Summary
	The Story
	LCAP Highlights
	Review of Performance
	Greatest Progress
	Greatest Needs
	Performance Gaps

	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Annual Update
	Goal 1
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 2
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 3
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 4
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update
	Impact on LCAP and Annual Update

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 1
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 2
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 3
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 4
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
	Addendum
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Plan Summary
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
		Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

	Annual Update
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions/Services
	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Goals, Actions, and Services
	New, Modified, Unchanged
	Goal
	Related State and/or Local Priorities
	Identified Need
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions/Services
	For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
	Students to be Served
	Location(s)

	For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
	Students to be Served
	Scope of Service
	Location(s)

	Actions/Services
	New/Modified/Unchanged:

	Budgeted Expenditures


	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
	Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
	Percentage to Increase or Improve Services


	State Priorities
	APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS
	APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
	Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis
	Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement
	Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

	LCAP Expenditure Summary


	9.2 a ACTION  -Olivet LCAP - SUMMARY.pdf
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	9.2 b Olivet LCAP Addendum.pdf
	Instructions
	Strategy
	Alignment

	ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards
	Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom
	Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities

	TITLE II, PART A
	Title II, Part A Activities

	TITLE III, PART A
	Parent, Family, and Community Engagement


	ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System
	TITLE I, PART A
	Poverty Criteria

	ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Educator Equity
	Parent and Family Engagement
	Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children
	Homeless Children and Youth Services
	Student Transitions
	Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part

	TITLE I, PART D
	Description of Program
	Formal Agreements
	Comparable Education Program
	Successful Transitions
	Educational Needs
	Social, Health, and Other Services
	Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships
	Parent and Family Involvement
	Program Coordination
	Probation Officer Coordination
	Individualized Education Program Awareness
	Alternative Placements

	TITLE II, PART A
	Professional Growth and Improvement
	Prioritizing Funding
	Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement

	TITLE III, PART A
	Title III Professional Development
	Enhanced Instructional Opportunities
	Title III Programs and Activities
	English Proficiency and Academic Achievement

	TITLE IV, PART A
	Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs


	9.2 d Olivet LCAP.pdf
	Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template
	2017-20 Plan Summary
	The Story
	LCAP Highlights
	Review of Performance
	Greatest Progress
	Greatest Needs
	Performance Gaps

	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Annual Update
	Goal 1
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 2
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 3
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 4
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update
	Impact on LCAP and Annual Update

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 1
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 2
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 3
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 4
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
	Addendum
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Plan Summary
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
		Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

	Annual Update
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions/Services
	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Goals, Actions, and Services
	New, Modified, Unchanged
	Goal
	Related State and/or Local Priorities
	Identified Need
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions/Services
	For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
	Students to be Served
	Location(s)

	For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
	Students to be Served
	Scope of Service
	Location(s)

	Actions/Services
	New/Modified/Unchanged:

	Budgeted Expenditures


	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
	Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
	Percentage to Increase or Improve Services


	State Priorities
	APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS
	APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
	Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis
	Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement
	Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

	LCAP Expenditure Summary


	9.3 a ACTION  - Schaefer LCAP - SUMMARY.pdf
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	9.3 b Schaefer LCAP Addendum.pdf
	Instructions
	Strategy
	Alignment

	ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards
	Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom
	Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities

	TITLE II, PART A
	Title II, Part A Activities

	TITLE III, PART A
	Parent, Family, and Community Engagement


	ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System
	TITLE I, PART A
	Poverty Criteria

	ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Educator Equity
	Parent and Family Engagement
	Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children
	Homeless Children and Youth Services
	Student Transitions
	Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part

	TITLE I, PART D
	Description of Program
	Formal Agreements
	Comparable Education Program
	Successful Transitions
	Educational Needs
	Social, Health, and Other Services
	Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships
	Parent and Family Involvement
	Program Coordination
	Probation Officer Coordination
	Individualized Education Program Awareness
	Alternative Placements

	TITLE II, PART A
	Professional Growth and Improvement
	Prioritizing Funding
	Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement

	TITLE III, PART A
	Title III Professional Development
	Enhanced Instructional Opportunities
	Title III Programs and Activities
	English Proficiency and Academic Achievement

	TITLE IV, PART A
	Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs


	9.3 d Schaefer LCAP.pdf
	Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template
	2017-20 Plan Summary
	The Story
	LCAP Highlights
	Review of Performance
	Greatest Progress
	Greatest Needs
	Performance Gaps

	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Annual Update
	Goal 1
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 2
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 3
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 4
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update
	Impact on LCAP and Annual Update

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 1
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 2
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 3
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 4
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
	Addendum
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Plan Summary
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
		Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

	Annual Update
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions/Services
	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Goals, Actions, and Services
	New, Modified, Unchanged
	Goal
	Related State and/or Local Priorities
	Identified Need
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions/Services
	For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
	Students to be Served
	Location(s)

	For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
	Students to be Served
	Scope of Service
	Location(s)

	Actions/Services
	New/Modified/Unchanged:

	Budgeted Expenditures


	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
	Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
	Percentage to Increase or Improve Services


	State Priorities
	APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS
	APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
	Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis
	Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement
	Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

	LCAP Expenditure Summary


	9.4 a ACTION  - NWP LCAP - SUMMARY.pdf
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	9.4 b NWP LCAP Addendum.pdf
	Instructions
	Strategy
	Alignment

	ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards
	Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom
	Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities

	TITLE II, PART A
	Title II, Part A Activities

	TITLE III, PART A
	Parent, Family, and Community Engagement


	ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System
	TITLE I, PART A
	Poverty Criteria

	ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Educator Equity
	Parent and Family Engagement
	Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children
	Homeless Children and Youth Services
	Student Transitions
	Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part

	TITLE I, PART D
	Description of Program
	Formal Agreements
	Comparable Education Program
	Successful Transitions
	Educational Needs
	Social, Health, and Other Services
	Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships
	Parent and Family Involvement
	Program Coordination
	Probation Officer Coordination
	Individualized Education Program Awareness
	Alternative Placements

	TITLE II, PART A
	Professional Growth and Improvement
	Prioritizing Funding
	Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement

	TITLE III, PART A
	Title III Professional Development
	Enhanced Instructional Opportunities
	Title III Programs and Activities
	English Proficiency and Academic Achievement

	TITLE IV, PART A
	Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs


	9.4 d NWP LCAP.pdf
	Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template
	2017-20 Plan Summary
	The Story
	LCAP Highlights
	Review of Performance
	Greatest Progress
	Greatest Needs
	Performance Gaps

	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Annual Update
	Goal 1
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 2
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 3
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 4
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update
	Impact on LCAP and Annual Update

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 1
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 2
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 3
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 4
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
	Addendum
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Plan Summary
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
		Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

	Annual Update
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions/Services
	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Goals, Actions, and Services
	New, Modified, Unchanged
	Goal
	Related State and/or Local Priorities
	Identified Need
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions/Services
	For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
	Students to be Served
	Location(s)

	For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
	Students to be Served
	Scope of Service
	Location(s)

	Actions/Services
	New/Modified/Unchanged:

	Budgeted Expenditures


	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
	Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
	Percentage to Increase or Improve Services


	State Priorities
	APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS
	APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
	Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis
	Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement
	Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

	LCAP Expenditure Summary


	9.5 a ACTION  - POCS LCAP - SUMMARY.pdf
	Background
	Fiscal Impact

	9.5 b POCS LCAP Addendum.pdf
	Instructions
	Strategy
	Alignment

	ESSA Provisions Addressed Within the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Monitoring Student Progress Towards Meeting Challenging State Academic Standards
	Overuse in Discipline Practices that Remove Students from the Classroom
	Career Technical and Work-based Opportunities

	TITLE II, PART A
	Title II, Part A Activities

	TITLE III, PART A
	Parent, Family, and Community Engagement


	ESSA Provisions Addressed in the Consolidated Application and Reporting System
	TITLE I, PART A
	Poverty Criteria

	ESSA Provisions Not Addressed in the LCAP
	TITLE I, PART A
	Educator Equity
	Parent and Family Engagement
	Schoolwide Programs, Targeted Support Programs, and Programs for Neglected or Delinquent Children
	Homeless Children and Youth Services
	Student Transitions
	Additional Information Regarding Use of Funds Under this Part

	TITLE I, PART D
	Description of Program
	Formal Agreements
	Comparable Education Program
	Successful Transitions
	Educational Needs
	Social, Health, and Other Services
	Postsecondary and Workforce Partnerships
	Parent and Family Involvement
	Program Coordination
	Probation Officer Coordination
	Individualized Education Program Awareness
	Alternative Placements

	TITLE II, PART A
	Professional Growth and Improvement
	Prioritizing Funding
	Data and Ongoing Consultation to Support Continuous Improvement

	TITLE III, PART A
	Title III Professional Development
	Enhanced Instructional Opportunities
	Title III Programs and Activities
	English Proficiency and Academic Achievement

	TITLE IV, PART A
	Title IV, Part A Activities and Programs


	9.5 d POCS LCAP.pdf
	Local Control Accountability Plan and Annual Update (LCAP) Template
	2017-20 Plan Summary
	The Story
	LCAP Highlights
	Review of Performance
	Greatest Progress
	Greatest Needs
	Performance Gaps

	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
	Schools Identified
	Support for Identified Schools
	Monitoring and Evaluating Effectiveness


	Annual Update
	Goal 1
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 2
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 3
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Annual Update
	Goal 4
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions / Services

	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Involvement Process for LCAP and Annual Update
	Impact on LCAP and Annual Update

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 1
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 2
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 3
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Goals, Actions, & Services
	Goal 4
	State and/or Local Priorities addressed by this goal:
	Identified Need:
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions / Services

	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
	Addendum
	Instructions: Linked Table of Contents
	Plan Summary
	Comprehensive Support and Improvement
		Schools Identified: Identify the schools within the LEA that have been identified for CSI.

	Annual Update
	Annual Measurable Outcomes
	Actions/Services
	Analysis

	Stakeholder Engagement
	Goals, Actions, and Services
	New, Modified, Unchanged
	Goal
	Related State and/or Local Priorities
	Identified Need
	Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes

	Planned Actions/Services
	For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
	Students to be Served
	Location(s)

	For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
	Students to be Served
	Scope of Service
	Location(s)

	Actions/Services
	New/Modified/Unchanged:

	Budgeted Expenditures


	Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
	Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
	Percentage to Increase or Improve Services


	State Priorities
	APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS
	APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
	Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis
	Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement
	Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

	LCAP Expenditure Summary


	9.6 a ACTION  District 2019-2020 Budget - Summary.pdf
	Background
	Plan/Discussion/Detail
	Fiscal Impact
	Options
	Recommendation

	ADP8113.tmp
	3450 COFFEY LANE

	ADPFAA7.tmp
	SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	Wednesday, June 19, 2019

	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER 2.  ROLL CALL
	3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 4.  ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 5.  CLOSED SESSION
	6.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	7.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
	8.  BOARD POLICIES
	9.  ACTION ITEMS
	10.  CONSENT ITEMS
	11.  ADJOURNMENT


	Special Governing Board Agenda for June 19, 2019.pdf
	SPECIAL MEETING - GOVERNING BOARD
	Wednesday, June 19, 2019

	www.pousd.org
	1.  CALL TO ORDER 2.  ROLL CALL
	3.  PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION AGENDA 4.  ADJOURNMENT TO CLOSED SESSION 5.  CLOSED SESSION
	6.  RECONVENE TO PUBLIC MEETING
	7.  REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION ACTION, IF ANY
	8.  BOARD POLICIES
	9.  ACTION ITEMS
	10.  CONSENT ITEMS
	11.  ADJOURNMENT





